
State of Florida 

CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER 2540 SHUMARD ddN%&@'Am 10: 4 8 
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DATE: August 22,201 1 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

Ann Cole, Commission Clerk, Office of Commission Clerk 

Ray E. Kennedy, Economic Analyst, Division of Regulatory Analysis '$& 
Docket No. 110013-TP: Sprint's Response to Question Set 1 Regarding Sprint's 
Proposal to Provide Relay Services in Florida 

Please place the attached information in the file for Docket No. 110013-TP, Request for 
submission of proposals for relay service, beginning in June 2012, for the deaf, hard of hearing, 
deafblind, or speech impaired, and other implementation matters in compliance with the Florida 
Telecommunications Access System Act of 1991. 

Included in the attachment are staffs letter and e-mail to Sprint, and Sprint's responses, 
including original of letters fiom Citibank N.A. and Marsh USA Inc. 
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DIVISION OF REGULATORY ANALYSIS 
BETR W SALAK 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COMMISSIONERS 
ART GRAHAM, CHA!RMAN 
LISA POLAK EDGAR DIRECTOR 
RONALDA BRlSE (850) 413-6600 
EOUARWE BALBIS 
JULEI BROWN 

August 4,201 1 

Via U.S. Post, FAX: 913-523-9277 
and Email: dottie.cartrite@sprint.com 

Sprint 
Attn: Dottie Cartrite 
707 17th Street, Suite 3750 
Denver, CO 80202 

Re: Docket No. 110013-TP - Question Set 1 Regarding Sprint’s Proposal to Provide Relay 
Services in Florida 

Dear Ms. Cartrite: 

In order to complete the evaluation of Sprint’s proposal in Docket No. 110013-TP, staff 
ai the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) needs a written response to the following: 

Check List Item 67 - Financial Information RFP Reference C-4 

Request for Proposal Section C-4 requires the bidder to submit: 

Audited financial statements (or a SEC 10K Report) for the most recent two (2) years, 

1) 
2) cash flow statement, 
3) balance sheet, and, 
4) 

Primary Banking source letter of reference, 

For the items in a. above, Sprint’s proposal provides a website address and refers the FPSC to. 

a. 
including at a minimum: 

statement of income and related earnings, 

opinion concerning financial statements from an outside CPA; 

b. 

r the website. As set forth in the FWP, please submit a hard copy of the data that Sprint wants the FPSC-  t I  
to evaluate as part of its proposal. ? E  0 i 

= E  
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f ’  0 5: 

For item b. above, Sprint’s proposal provides multiple contacts for bank references. As seg: 
forth in the RFP, please submit primary banking source letter(s) of reference that Sprint wants th@ 
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CO r FPSC to evaluate as part of its proposal. I--. h 
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An Affirmative Action /Equal Oppol-hlnity Employer 
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Sprint, Attn: Dottie Cartrite 
Page 2 
August 4,201 1 

Check List Item 70 -Bid Security Deposit RFP Reference C-7 

It is not clear that Sprint’s bid security deposit, in the form of a bond, is valid through at least 
October 28,201 1. Please explain how the bond is valid through at least October 28,201 1. 

Please provide a written response to me no later than August 11, 201 1. If you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 850-413-6584. 

Sincerely, 

Ray Kennedy 
Division of Regulatory Analysis 
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Ray Kennedy 

From: Ray Kennedy 
Sent: 
To: 'Cartrite, Dottie [BMG]' 

Monday, August 08,2011 1:29 PM 

Subject: RE: Docket No. 110013-TP - Question Set 1 Regarding Sprint's Proposal to Provide Relay Services in 
Florida 

Good Afternoon, 

It appears that the bank and bond companies are mailing the letters to us. I will route what you have sent 
via e-mail to the evaluators. I will wait for the letters to come in before filing them in the docket file (one 
was going to Ann Cole already I see). 

This e-mail confirms that I have timely received your filing in response to my letter dated August 4, 201 1; 
questions to Sprint regarding its proposal to provide relay services in Florida, Docket No. 110013-TP. 

Thank you, 

Ray Kennedy 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 
Phone: 850-413-6584 
Fax: 850-413-6585 
E-Mail: rkennedy@psc.state.fl,us 

From: Cartrite, Dottie [BMG] [mailto:Dottie.Cartrite@sprint.corn] 
Sent: Monday, August 08,2011 12:56 PM 
To: Ray Kennedy 
Subject: Docket No. 110013-TP - Question Set 1 Regarding Sprint's Proposal to Provide Relay Services in 
Florida 

Mr. Kennedy, 

Enclosed, please find Sprint's response to the State's questions/request for additional information (also 
enclosed) regarding Docket No. 110013-TP 
for provision of relay services in Florida, including the following: 

a. 
b. 
c. 

Audited financial statement - a copy of Sprint's SEC 10k report; 
Primary banking source letter of reference 
Clarification on Sprint's bid security bond validation period - through at least October 28, 2011. 

Please don't hesitate to contact me should you have additional questions or need for bid clarification 

Regards, 

Dottie 

Dottie Cartrite - Sprint Relay 
Sr. Account Manager 

8/22/2011 
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E-mail: dottie.cartrite@sflrint.com 
Wireless: 3 0 3 . 9 4 9 . 4 9 4 1  
Fax: 913.523.9277 
www.sflrintrelav.com 

From: Ray Kennedy [mailto:RKennedy@px.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Thursday, August 04,2011 11:37 AM 
To: Cartrite, Dottie [BMG] 
Subject: Docket No. 110013-TP - Question Set 1 Regarding Sprint's Proposal to Provide Relay Services in Florida 

Good Afternoon Ms. Cartrite. 

The questions and instructions for filing the response are in the attached file 

Ray Kennedy 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 
Phone: 850-413-6584 
Fax: 850-413-6585 
E-Mail: rkennedv@,usc.state.fl.us 

8/22/2011 



Paige M. Turner 
Senior Vice President 

M A R S H  
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REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

Marsh USA Inc. 
2405 Grand Boulevard, Suite 900 
Kansas C l y ,  MO 64108 
+I 816 556 4267 
paige.m.turner@mamh.com 
www.rnarsh.com 

August 04,201 1 

Mr. Ray Kennedy 
Florida Telecommunications Relay, Inc. 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Subject: Bid Bond 

Project: Telecommunications Relay Service 
Principal: Sprint Communications Company L.P. 
Bid Bond Amount: $500,000 
Bid Date: July 13'h, 201 1 

Dear Mr. Kennedy: 

The bid bond referenced above and issued on June 13th, 201 1 remains active and in 
full support of the Principal's bid throughout the RFP process. This bid bond will 
remain in effect until October 28th, 201 1 and will continue to support the Principal's 
bid should there be any postponements after October 28th, 201 1. 

Please feel free to contact me for further confirmation or if there are any questions. 

Paige i$$>ner 
Attorne -. -Fact for Berkley Regional Insurance Company 

cc: Randy Calhoun, Berkley 



388 Greenwich Street 
New Yorh, NY 10013 

August 5, 201 1 

Mr. Ray Kennedy 
c/o Ms. Ann Cole, Director 
Office of Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Dear Sir: 

We are pleased to inform you that Sprint-Nextel Corporation has been a customer of Citibank 
for more than 10 years. We, at Citibank N.A. and Citigroup, have a valued global relationship 
with Sprint-Nextel Corporation the parent company and their subsidiary, Sprint Communications 
c o  LP. 

We know the company and management well, and hold them in high regard. We agent 
syndicated, unsecured credit facilities in the $2,000,000,000.00 range. 

Sprint has been financially responsible in our experience. We believe the company handles its 
business affairs appropriately. 

Yours trulv 

Denise Brown-Saddler 

Vice President 

Communications Group 

Global Banking 

CitigrOUp Global Market5 Inc. 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM I k K  

PART I 





" "  













Tahlr of Co " L a  

. .  . 
copyrights, P l c n l i  and trademarks ofothcm, like "Virgin Mob~le"'In total, thew lisenre~ and our copynghu. patcnm,'&demde and P C W ~  marks arc ofmatmid 
imponanCF lo the burinerr Generally, our Vademarkr and wryice marks endure and are enforceable io long as hry continue to be vrcd Our ~ a t e n l i  and licensed patents 
havcrrmsiningtcrm~grnerally ranpine from m e t o  19ysars 

















.. 
Wc are currently engaged ~n an arbctraoon with Clcanvire relating IO the pmmg of Y N ~ C I  on Cleawse'r 4 0  network for dual-mode wireless handsem used by 

Sprint c~llomers. pumuant 10 our MVNO agreement with Cleanvire We do not expect the r e d u h o n  o f  this muter will hays P material adverse eNea an OW consolidated 
financial pomtian, ruults of operationr or operatine savh flow. however, ultimate m s ~ l ~ l i o n  of this "seer mould &=t the prlong and compef#iivcncs% ofour 4 0  S ~ N I C C S .  

I, 
. ... .. .. .. ... . . .. . . .. ...... .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. ... -. .. .. .. .. . ..... .. .... .. . .,. ..... .. .. . .... - 
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Keith 0 Cowan 

RobonL Johnson 

Roben H Johnmn 

Charlm R Wunrch 

. .  
FinanceforG E P I ~ ~ t i c s  

2 w 1  President - Strategic Planning and Corporate l n i t i a t i v ~ ~  He was apwntcd President - 
Sfrakgis Planmng and Corporate lnihative~ in July 2007. He dm served m Acting President 
. COMA from Nouemkr 2W8 to May Zw9 He newrd as Exocutivs Vioe President of 
Genuine P- Company from Januuy 2W1 lo July 2001 HI held I F V F ~ ~ I  key positmns wllh 
BsllSovfh Corpomtion from 1996 m January 2001, including ChiefPlmning and 
Davslopmsnt Ofirer, Chidf ie ld Opmaaons Officer, Prcscdcnt - Marketing and Product 
Management and President - Infeiconnection S~rviccr He was P ~ ~ Y ~ O U I I Y  an assmists and 
partn.ra,Ih.lawRrmofAl.,onB BirdLLC 

ChirfSemceOfilcer Hewmappointed CbiofSeruiseOficer inO~toborZW7 Heserved 2007 
BI President - NonhcmL Region from September 2006 to October 2001 Ha sewed a Senior 
Vice President - Conaumer Salrr. Sewirc and Repair from August 2W1 lo August 2 w 6  He 
sewed asScnmr Vi~ePrcridrnr-Niuional FisldOpsrafionrofNIIl l l  from Fcbruv  2 W l l o  
July 2001 

61 

54 

12 

56 

5 1  
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Skusn L. Elfman 

Danny L Bowman 

Preaidcnt - Neluork Operations and Wholsrde He w u  appointed Prcaidcnt - Network 
Oprr8tionr and Whalssals ~n May 2008 He served u President and C h # c f O p r * w  Officer 
of Motnoiv, B mobile datatechnology company, from January 2W8 u) May 2W8 and as 
Exrcutivr Vice President oflnforpkrc Mobile (surrently MoVicity) from July 2WI 10 
Dccemkr 2W7 Hs w u  m indeandent wnsulfanf working with Accanture Ltd , jl 
wnrulting wmpany, from May 2W1 10 July 2001 He served u Exlculive Vice Prcsidcnl of 
Operations ofrarabeam Corp~mtion 8 Seattle-hued w m r n u n i ~ s l i ~ n ~  company, from May 
2000 10 May 2003, and he served as Chieflnformafion ORivsr ofAT%T Wrelew from June 
1997 to May 2W0 

2008 5 

Vice President - Convoller He w u  appointed Vice President. Controller 10 Noucmkr 2009 1 
1009 He wrved u Vcu President and Asiirtant Controller from January 2009 to November 
2009 Prior to joining Spnnf. he worked for LyondcllBawll Indusmer, 8 chemical 
manvfaciuring wmpany from January 2004 through January 2009. whcrc he held YWIOUP 

~ X ~ C U I I V L  Ikvcl finance and mcwvnting positions, bncluding Confrvllcr - European 
Ope.at,O"S 
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PART I 1  

UI"MY*.II*. ,*w H.,kO P.*. 

Hi* L.. I.d.lh,*d 16 LI" b d . l h h *  

s 421  1 110 1 380 1 420 1 I 8 3  s 3 51 
5 1 1  3 81 4 24 594 3 49 481 
5 08 3 8 1  163 491 147 195 
4 88 3 10 4 23 441  2 78 3 66 

As of Frbrvw I S ,  201 I, WE had ahout 18,WO Series I wrnmon stock record holders. no Snier 2 ~ommon stock r m r d  holderr and no nom-voting ~ommon 
nock record holders 

S p n I  Ncxicl 
S&P 5W 
Dor  Jones U S Tilecorn Index 

VsluoorSIM Invested on DecsmbsrJ1,2WS 

I _  11.1 m n  1IU I _  *"IO 

S I W W S  8 8 4 6 1  6 1 1 6 1  8 6 1 1  1 1 2 1 1  1990 
1 l W O O 1  l l 5 1 9 1  1 2 2 1 6 1  1 6 9 6 1  9 7 1 1 1  11199 
1 I O O W S  1 3 6 8 3 1  1 5 0 5 7 s  1 0 0 9 8 1  1 1 0 9 2 1  13060 
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Shareholders' equity 

Net cash provided by operalmg a c I ~ v i l i e ~  

Capital rxpcndilvrsr 

Cash Flow Data 
I 

12,561 E 
~ 

6,248 
(595) 

(3.465) 
~ 

(116) E 
- 
- 

11,654 I 
15,214 
21,704 

20,191 
14.546 

4,815 s 
1,915 

32,260 I 
- 

7,416 

(2,436) 
(1,398) 

- 

(084) E 
~ 

~ 

55,424 I 
18,280 

23.462 

21,061 

18,095 

4,891 I 
1,603 

35,635 I 
963 

8,407 

(2.642) 

(2.7961 
- 

(098) I 
- 
- 

58.510 I 
22.311 
22,886 

21,610 
19,915 

6,179 I 
3,882 

40,146 I 
29,619 

8,933 
(28,140) 
(29.144) 

~ 

(l0.24j S 
- 

0 I O  

64.295 I 
26.616 
28,119 

22,130 
21,445 

9,215 I 
6.322 

.(I,WI 

9,192 

2,184 
995 

334 

- 

0 34 
0.1 I 
0.10 

97,161 
25,868 
60,057 

22.1S4 
53.441 

10,055 
7,556 













Y....*darmbrll. 

nl* m rn 
<e Ilil...s, 

$ 21,921 E 23,205 S 25,994 
1.756 2,081 1,498 

25,617 25.286 27,492 
217 146 913 

(8.288) 18.384) 18,741) 
17,606 11.418 19,690 

25.894 25.832 28.435 

68 % 68 % 69 % 
2.103 1,954 1,992 

(6,965) 15,545) (4.8591 
(4,262) 0 ,591)  12.867) 

(8.8111 18.6591 (10,047) 
(I58)Yh (I 84)% (144)% 

S 4.531 $ 5,198 S 6.776 



I 55 s 56 I 56 

28 33 30 
1 5J 53 









"<" E.&d rnc.b.111. 

YI" m 2- 
h " " I Y a U  

I 2,249 s 2,563 S 1.079 
519 662 959 

2,175 2,293 2,148 
97 1 1 1  146 

5.040 5.629 6,312 

(3,319) (3,663) (4.192) 
1.721 1,966 2,140 

34% 35% 34% 

(611) (745) (965) 
s 1,090 I 1,221 I 1.175 
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FUTURE CONTRACNAL OBLIGATIONS 

additional purchauca of our sec~rities and refinancing of those IIEUO~ISI. could CSYY actual payments LO differ sipnificandy from there mounls. See "-Fonuard-Looking 
Stalementr " 

Thcfallowmgiahlcw~ forth our bsatsrtimaterau to Lhe.mountsandtirningofcontraclua1 payments as of December 31. 2010 FuturesuenU, vdvdcng 

11<".6 
hill a.I"MII a(illlkIN Toe., 21111 YI1 ZUII  *om *=.n, m11 _ _ ~ _ _ _ ~  

e ""I'+ 

Ssn#oinotrr. b ~ " k ~ ~ ~ d , , f ~ ~ , l i , , ~ ~ ~ d d ~ b ~ " , " , ~ ~  I 30.586 I 2.969 S 1,914 S 2.811 S 2,261 S 3,007 S 15,604 

Capital lease8 and financing obliyuion"' 1,748 84 86 87 82 82 1,127 

Operat,ng I C a W P '  13.192 1,694 1,705 1,576 ,* I5  1,116 5,866 

S 57,514 I 11.913 I 7,610 I 5.721 I 4,347 I 4,551 I 21,152 

Purchass orders and other commitmmti' 11,788 7,166 1,925 1,127 589 116 555 _ _ ~ _ _ -  
Total 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCING 
We do not pBnic,patr I". 07 ICCWF. financing3 for any unconrolidnled. specid1 ~urP0Er CnullCS 

19 















TablSOiConlenU 

PART 111 

Item 10. 

of Dssctore-Nommrrs for Drecior.""Board Commitfees and Director Meatinir--Thc Audh Committee" and "Board Commtttccs and Director Mebmg-The 
Nominafini and Corporate Oovernanm Committee,' in our proxy statement relating to our 201 I annual meeting of shueholdcw which will be filed wiul the SEC. and 
with r$spect to family rclarionrhipe, to Part I ofthis rcpon under "Exesutwc Officers o f  Ihe Registmt.'' The informallan required bo this ihm regarding our CXCCYLWI 

offilccrs IS 3nsorporated hy rcfnmec IO Part I ofthis repon vnda the caption " E x c ~ u t t v ~  Ofhers oftbc Rc&rant." The Information required by lhca ,tan regardmg 
compliance wilh Section I q a )  oflhc Secuntas Exchange Act of 1914 by our dirrsmrs, CX(FYLIYI offiiocn and holden often perctnt ofaregwtercd clw ofour equity 
Y C U ~ ~ C S  IS incorporated by reference 10 lhc information Ict fonh undnthc caption "Scclion 16(aJ Beneficial Ounerrhip Reponing Campliancs" In our proxy statement 
rdmng Lo our 201 I annual meeting ofshareholder% which will b filed with the SEC 

We have adopted the Sprint Nextel Code o f  Conduct, which ~ p ~ I i e 8  to all of  our directors. officers and employoos The Code of Conduct is publicly availabls 
on our wrbmte ill hl lp: /hvw.pnn, . rurn 'go"~,"~"~~ l fwe  msks any ammdmeni 10 our Code ofconduct, other than atechnd. sdminiiVBwr or non-substantwc 
amendment. or If we sranl any w~iver, msludlng any ~mpltc#l wwver, from 8 p r o ~ w o n  oithc Code o f  Conduct that ~ppl#ss to our prmcipal CX~EYIIV~ offcer, PccnE1~al 
finan~lal offirer, p'incipal ~~wvnfmng offissr o? ~ m t m l l ~ r .  we wII diwlose the naure of uls amendment or waiver on our usbrilc at the s a m ~  Io~atmn Also. we may 
elect lo d ido re  !he amendment 01 WSWIC in a current report on Form 8-K filed with thc SEC 

Item I , .  E~erui ive  Compens.tion 

the captioor "Compenrarron of  Directors," "Exrsutw~ Co-mation," "Board Cornmittre3 and Direnor Msdinp--Compenratlan Committedompcn.a(lon 
Comminrr Interlocks and Insider Paninpation" and "Compa8ation Committee Reporc" m our proxy slmtement rrlaing to our 201 I annual mcdcng of shareholders, 
which will be filed with the SEC 

Directors. Exrculiue Oficrri and Corporals Governance 

The ~nformat,on requlrcd by thlr stem cegardmg our directors i s  incorporated by rcfrrence (0 tho knformation Id fonh under Ihc captions "Proposal I ElDllon 

The hnformauon required by this item regarding c~mpsnsati~n ofrxerutwc offmsn and dirsnars ( 3  tncorarated by reference to the lnformatmn set fonh under 

Item II. 

fonh under the faptionr "Snunq Ownenhip ofCsnam Bcnsfirial Owners" and "Sesunty Ovncrrhip o f  Directors and Exccutwc Officer.'. m our proxy statement 
relamgtoour2011 annual meetlngofrhar~holdcrs,whlrhvlllb~61cdwllhihaSEC 

Security Ownership o f  C~rtain B~nrFlcisl Ownrrs and Msnsgemenl and Related Stockholder Matterr 
The information cequxed by this #(em, othsi than the cgvify compondon plan lnformulon presented below, 13 Incorporated by reference Lo the informatLon ret 

Comp.n*.lion PI." Info,m.#ion 

Currently we sponsor two active equity ~nmntivc plans, the 2W7 Omnibue Incentwe Plan (2Wl Plan) and our Employee Stock Purchujc Plan (ESPPJ We also 
rpon$or lhc 1991 Long-Term Inoentiv~ Program (1997 Program): the NaItel Incenti~e Equity Plan (Nextel Plan) and the Management lncenlivc Stock Option Plan 
(MISOP) Undcrthc 2007 Plan, we may grant stock options, stock appceciafmn ngho. restricted stock, rcrmcted stock units. performance ahares, performance uni l~  and 
other equity-based and a s h  awards (0 our employee.. outride dircflon and certain other sewice pmuiders The Compcns&on Committee ofovr board ofdrrstom. or one 
or m_c CX~CU~JIC officcrr should fhc Compenrmon Committee ID authorize, will determine the tcms of eirh awud No new gcanTr em be made under the 1991 
Program. the Ncxlcl Plan or the MlSOP 

46 



n.nc.rrlr Y""..,. ...( n,dm NUL,. 

B, ,..>"*"" b, Ib) 

EqulLy wmpnratmn plans approved by shareholders , s n s  

of Sa8er I common sock 80,255,833 I 1067 255,471,594 
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2 I .*  Sepaation and Diatrihullon Agreement by and between Sprinl IO-12Bl.4 001-32712 2 1  512i2m 
Ncxtsl Corporation and Embarq Corporation. dated BI ofMay I ,  
2W6 

2 2  T r a n s d o n  Agrcsm~nl and Plan of M c r w  daed BQ of May 1, 8-K 001.04721 2 1  51712008 
2W8, hy and amongSpnntNo;LdCor~railoo. C*.lrc 
Corpordion. Comcwt Corporation, Time Warner Cahlc Inc , 
Btight House Networks. LLC, ON& h c  and Intel Corporaim 

2 3  Agrromcni and Plan of Merger, dated ss of l v l y  21,2009. by and 8-K WI-04121 2 1  71x12639 
among Sprm Nsnrl Corporation, Sprint M o m ,  Inc and Virgin 
Mobile USA, I ~ c  

(3) Artides oflnrorporation and By1.r~ 

3 1  Amsnded and Restated Articles of lnsorporation 8-K 00144121 3 1  8ilsnWS 

3 2  Amended and Restated Bylaws 8-K WI-0~721  1 2  I1/412010 

(4) Inslrumsnls Defining the Righb of Sprint Nextel Slcurily Holders 

4 ,  The righlr of Sprint Kexlel Corwration'r equity 8ecurq holders 8-K WI-04121 3 1  811812635 
are defined in he Fifth. Sinh, Seventh and Eighth Anicies of 
Sprinl'n Anicl~roflncorporation Sic  Exhihill I 

4 2  Provision regardin8 Kaniar Control Share A~lumt ion Act 15 ~n 8-K WI-MI21 3 2/28/2637 
And.  2, Section 2 S ofihr Bylawi Provis,ons regarding 
Stoskholdrrs' Mcct ingrare~t  fonh ~n Article3 oftheBylawr See 
EXhibl, 1 2  

4 1  I lndcnfure,daled u ot'Odohcr I, 1998,mang SpnntCapltal l0.Q WI-M72I 4(h) I ,,2/1998 
Corparalmn. Sprint Corporation and Bank One, N A,, ar Tivntrc 

4 3 2 Frst Supplemental Indsnlurs, daed BI o f l a n u q  I S ,  ,999. m v n r  8-K 001-04721 4(b) 2/3/1999 
Sprint CapiW Corporation. Sprint Corprafion and Bank One, 
N A ~ T r u r t c c  



I O  I Re&iairation Right8 Agreement dmcd BI afNovcmber 13, 1998. S-,/A 333.64241 
mong Spna Corporat8on. TCI Telephony Services, Inc , Cox 
Communlsaaonr, In* a d  Camcast Corporation 

10 2 I * * *  Letter A~rmmcnt heween Motorolb Inc and Nextel, dated November s-l 13.43411 
4, 1991 

,DEN Infcassuaurr Supply Agrerment bawmn Molorola and Nextel 
deed April I 3  1999 

10-Q OW-19656 I n  2 2 * * *  

10 2 

1067 11/15/1991 

10 2 8/16/1999 

10 2 3." Term Shrsl for Subscriber Unm a d  S r r v l u e  Agreement, dated IO-Q wo-19616 I O  I 2 
December 31, 2001 bewren Nextel and Motorola 

I O  2 4  Second Extenrion Amendment ID the ,DEN Infrastructure 5 Year IO-K WI-04721 I O  1.20 
Supply Asre~mml, dated December 14, 2004. b-en Molorula. Inc 
and Nextel Communicatmni, Inc. 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current lisbililiea 

Accounts pqabls  
Ac~rucd expenses and other current liabilities 
Cuma pornion of long-mm debt financing and c a p i d  lease obligationr 

T a d  cuncnt liabilitisr 

Long-term debt, Cnmcing and capital lease obligslions 
Deferred Lax liabllitiu 
Ocher 1i.bilitIes 

Total liabilities 
Conmilmmls and conlingmries 
Shartholders' 'qYily 

Common rharrs, voting, p u  value $2 W per share, 6 5 billian shares authonzcd, 
1008 and 3 007 billion shares cmnued, 2 988 and 1973 billion sharer ovtilandinp 
Paid-in capital 

Treasury shares, at a p t  

Accumulued deficit 

Accumulu<d other amprehennre IDPI  
Total shareholders' equity 

S 5,171 S 1,819 
100 I os 

3,016 2.9% 
670 628 
185 295 
516 750 

9,880 8,591 
1,189 4,624 
15,214 18,280 

119 373 
20,116 19.91 I 
2,W9 3,178 
467 465 

$ 51,654 I 55,424 

$ 2,642 $ 1,167 
1,571 1,750 

7,891 6,785 
18.535 20,291 
6,802 6,693 

1,656 768 

3,880 1.558 
37,108 17,329 

6,016 6.015 
46.84, 46,793 
(227) (582) 

(17,582) (11,779) 
(502) (152) 

14.546 18,095 
S 51,654 $ 55,424 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

17,692 16.435 16,746 
9,638 9,453 11,355 

Ill 447 8 3 5  

5.014 5,821 1,966 
~ - 961 

1,174 1,589 2,441 

33,158 33.658 38,217 

(5951 (1,198) (2.6421 

(1531 (93) (291 

(1.4641 (1.4501 (1.362) 

46 157 89 
(1,286) (803) (1451 

(2,7041 (2.0961 (1,418) 
(3,2991 (3,4941 (4,060) 

(1661 1.058 1,264 
I (3.465) I (2,436) I (2.7961 

I (I 16) I (0 84) I (0 98) 

2,988 2,886 2,863 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATlON 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended M s m h o r 3 l .  
1010 1w9 1W8 

(in rn'Ili0"') 

$ (3,465) I (2,436) S (2,796) 

41  

3,819 3,691 2,246 

S 5,113 S 3.819 S 3,691 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Aduer"sini Cos& 

December 3I.2010, and S I  5 billion for each offhs years ended Dsvsmbsr 31.2W9 and 2W8 
We recognlzr advmlnng cxpenv when mrurrcd ar %elling, general and adminislruive ~xpenre Adveninng expenaer lofaled $I 4 bllhon for the year ended 

F - l l  
~ . .  . . .. . ....... . 
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NOTES T O  THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(2,772) (1.458) (514) 
I (2.215) I ( I . l s 4 ) I  (494) 

I (2.303) I (1.254) I (592) 



F-I5 

$ 332 $ 331 
11,514 36,992 

4.823 1,192 
2,465 2,966 
995 1 , l l l  

(10.915) (21.913) 
$ 15,211 s 18,280 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AI o f  Ucscmber 11. 2010, Sprint Nexlcl Corporaeon, the parent corporalion, had $1 3 hillion ~n pmcipal ofdebt outstanding, including the credit fafililirr In 
addition. S I 5  I billion ~n principal ofour long-term debt sewed by wholly-awncd subsidiaries IS guaranteed by tbc parent, ofwhich appraximately $10 3 billion IS fully 
and unconditionally gusant*d Tho indenturss and financing arrangements a f ~ c n i n  submdmnes' debt canam provisions that limit cash dividend paymenU on 
subsidiary common stock ThcLrm~fnofcashinihcformofadvmccr from Iheivbiidiarierloiheparcntcorpo.niong~nerally is notreilrisfcd 

securcdbysl I bill ionofgrorrpropeny.piantandcguipm~aandoth~re~ea Ceh inirrenpaymentrtotaledSI 5 billionduringtbeycarcndedDescmber11,2010and 
S I  4bbill ionduring~a~bofihsycsrcndcdU1~smbsr3I.2W9and2WS 

N O l U  

iPCS ThC Company may eleat Lo p a  i n t e r e ~ l m  8 panion ofthe PCS Secund Note% entirely I" cash or by increanng the prmcip~l mount. Cash interest 00 the 
remaining note8 IS senerally payable s~miannually ~n _car( Ap~roxcmalrly 118 4 billion of ihr  notes ace redeemable 81 the Company's discretion a1 the then applicable 

AsofIkcemhcr 3I,2OIO,aboul S I  3 billion oFourouUfandingdcbt. comprlncdofccnarn ~ O ~ C S ,  financmgand capital IC- obligationsand mortgager, 13 

Note3 c o n ~ w  of ~ ~ n i o r  and serial rrdermabk aenior notes thn are unwcurrd. and Secured Notes ofiPCS which are ilcvred d c l y  wilb Lbr underlying -em of 
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201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 

2015 
2016 md thereafter 

Add prcmiumi. dinsounu and adiusmtnts, net 

lull*-, 

I 1.651 

2,758 
1,783 
1,164 

2,152 
10,427 
20,139 

52 

S 20.191 

. .  
thc results ofoperations when incurred 

F-19 
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I 413 I 432 

s 1,373 s 1.270 
346 188 
126 481 

382 40s 

1,046 1,206 
I 1,571 s 1.no 

~~ -- 
I 781 S 824 

L26S 1,257 
121 176 
208 204 
687 525 
816 512 

s 1.880 E 1,158 
-- -- 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I -  I 1 , 3 1 8 s  ~ I 2,788 
5 1  - 40 

445 1.073 442 1,209 
479 

238 - 2 W  
445 5.151 442 4,716 

2.798 354 1,792 231 

- 1,792 ~ 2,658 
- 6,611 - 6,667 

- 1,065 - 1,048 
132 59 112 50 

50 9,600 59 10,485 

- 

~ 173 - 
- - 

1210) (2,355) ~ (88) (924) 

- 

____ 
I 295 - I 185 - 

s 6,802 I 6.691 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES T O  THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The minimum cash obligation #m~proximatcly $2 8 billion under*< R~ponandOrdor Wears, however, obligated to pay the full amounlofihc~oat~rclatingfo 
the reconfiguration plan. even i f t hox  c01ti exceed I 2  8 billion As required under the r e m 3  of the Report and Order. a letter of credit has been secured 10 provide 
asiuranethatfundsw111 beavailable lo pay the rdocationcostiofthc incumbent usersofthe 8W M b s v t r u m  W~iuhmilthequalif ied 800MHzrelocation S O I B ~ O  
the FCC for ~ C Y I ~ W  Tor p~cenml letter of credit rsdustionr on a pcnodis basis As a icsuII ofthese review, OW letter of credit was reduced from 12 S billion 81 Ulr itan of 
IheproisftoSI 3 bi I l ionasof~cmbcr3l .2010,asapprovrd bytheFCC. 

Ths following table rcpre3enfi paymenu directly atfribumblo to our ~erfornance undrrthc Report and Ordcr from the inception ofthe pmgmr 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S T A T E M E M S  

201 I 5 1,694 
2012 1,705 
2013 1,576 
1014 1.415 
201 5 1.136 
2016md thereafter 5,866 

I 13,392 

TotairrniaiexpenwwasSI 8 b!llion 1n2010.2W9and2008 

Co..il.~"l 

buaincrr As ofDecember 3l.2010, b e  minimum amovntsducvndc.ihsrc~ornmilmsnt~w~re as follows(in rnlllcanr): 
Wr arc a p q  to other commilrnsntr. which includes mwce.  sprclrum, network capaclry and otherrxccufow eonrrwtr 8n connection with conducting our 
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(49) E 21 65 
72 E , 0 7 9  607 I 20 

67 E I I  11 5 8 6  I I 7  

39 E 1652 393 I 4 
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I 28,597 S 1,959 E 1 s  12,563 
,0111 i l  "*l l  ~..--., .,... 

(24,066) 0,950) 1,086 (26,910) 

f 4 , 5 3 1 1  1 , 0 9 0 S  12 5,611 
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s ,,IS5 s 223 S 257 S 1,915 

38,445 1.655 10,554 51.654 

s 1,149 S 267 S 187 S 1.603 
42,338 1.987 10,099 55.424 

s i.386 S 522 s 971 I 3.882 
46.977 3,494 8,079 58.550 
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a".."LmkI 
."d 

WkI." Wk4." nll,".,*lld,' 0 4 u . n  
6 Iriil-, 

E 25,677 E - I - I 25,677 
2,703 - - 2,703 
- 2.249 (7321 1,517 
- 519 (1401 379 
- 2.175 (2091 1,966 

217 97 7 321 

s 28,597 s 5,040 s (1,0741 I 32.563 

E 25,286 S ~ s ~ s 25,286 
1,954 - - 1,954 
- 2,563 (7871 1,776 
- 661 1119) 533 
- 2,293 (2421 2,051 

566 / I 1  3 660 

E 2 7 , 7 8 6 1  5 , 6 2 9 1  I l , l S S )  I 32.260 

E 27,492 I ~ E ~ E 27,492 

- 3.079 (8041 2.275 
~ 959 (1271 832 
~ 2,148 (1921 1.956 

943 146 I 1,090 
'E 30,427 I 6,332 5 (1,124) E 15,615 

1,991 ~ (2) 1,990 
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s 1,233,562 5 1,698,017 

I.050 1,166 
26,187 6,253 

4,899 5,402 
17,132 12,624 
80,lSS 46,466 

1,865,601 3,876,589 
4,464,536 2,596,520 

10,521 5,620 

15,251 87.687 
4,417,492 4,495,134 

62.908 91,711 
11,261 10.647 

169,913 103,941 

s 11,040,486 s I1,167.813 

502,316 2,106,661 

S 155,890 S 496,133 
210,961 47,194 
686,853 543,427 

4,017.0 I 9  2,714,711 
5.564 6.351 

461,052 210,974 
5,170,488 3,495,485 

Class Acommon $tack, parvrluc SOOWI, 1,500,WOrhar~eauthon.rd. 243,544 and 196,767 rharcr&rrued and 
outstanding, mpccfwcly 24 20 
ClaoBcommonrtoc~,parvalvsSOWol, I,Wo,OWrharensuihonled,741,481 and716,219shar~s,srvedand 
outmndinn, r~rpeclwely 74 73 

Ac~vmulaled other comprehensive r n c ~ m ~  2,495 3,745 
Additland p a h n  capital 2,221,110 2,MW,O61 

Aecumulaled deficit (900,193) (413.056) 
Total Clcanvire Corporalmon nockholdcrr' equity 1.121,210 1,590,843 

Nom-~onfrolling mvrssto 4,546,788 6,181.525 
ToU stockholders' equity 5,869,998 7,772,168 

Total Iiabilil,ea and amckholdcrs' equtty s 11,040,186 s I1267.853 

S e  notes fa ronrolidaisd financial statemenu 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --(CONTINUED) 

On the Clo9ing. Old Clranuirc, and the Sprint WiMAX Businerr. combined to form a new independent company, C l c m i r s  The conmhdated finanrial statements 
ofClearwscand rubridlarlcnar.thcre.vlts ofthcSprcnt WiMAXBuslnes3, fromlanuary I. 2W8 throughNoucmber28, 2W8 and inclvdeihercrvluofthe~omblnrd 
entities thereafter for ule persod from November 29, 2W8 through McSmber 31, 2010 For financial reponing purp~se~. tho Sprint WiMAX Busnerr war determined to 
he !he accounting acq~uer and ~ccounting predecessor The assets acquired and liabilities arwmed ofold Cleanuirc have b m  accounted for at f a r  Y ~ Y C  cn auocdance 
with the purrhas. morhod ofaccounting and 8,s results of operations hsw been included m our conmlidakd financial r e 8 ~ I B  beginning on November 29, 2W8 

The ~ E E O Y ~ ~ P  and financial ~tatemcnir of Clearwire for the period from January I, 2008 through November 28, 2008 have been prepared from the wparate records 
mamtancd by Sprint Funher, rush B E E O U ~ ~ S  and financial statements inslvdc d h ~ m o n ~  ofcxpn3eI from Spnnt and therefore may not necissanly be m d i d u c  of !he 
finanrial poution, rciulll ofoperations and c e h  nowr thatwould have resulted had we functioned ar i/ stand-alone operation Sprint d r 4 y  asagned, ,where pomblc, 
ecrtam cam to YI hascd on our Mual  YIC oflhc shared Y W ~ E L I  Theac coils includs network related expenws. office fscilctier, treasury ~ N I E C S ,  human ~ C S O Y ~ C ~ I .  

supply cham managrrnsnt and other shared sewices Carh mangsmsnt was performed om a ronsolid*ed hark, and Sprint pmcesed pyabler, p.'yroll and other 
tran~cllons on our behalf Anwli and lhilbililior which were nnt specifically Idcniifiable to YI included 

. . . 
Cash, cash cquiudsnts and mveLm~ntr, with activity cn our csrh balances being recorded through businem equity: 
Accounts payable, which were prmcsaed ~ ~ n M l l y  by Sprint and were p'sed u) us through ~nkrcompany acu)uot~ that were included m bvrinras cqu$ty, and 
Cmain accrued Iiabclitlcr, which were paarcd through to us through intercompany accounts that wue included m bunmess equity. 

Our naamcnf of cash nous p m r  io ths Closing prcwcnm the actwmos that were pud by Sprint on our behalf Financing acI1~111cs include funding advancer from 
Sprint, prcwnfcd as businere equity, smsc Sprint managed our financing sctivilies on aceniralired basis Funher. the net cash used ~n operating ~UYIIIFI and ulc net c u h  
uwd ~n mvi3ting activities f o r c ~ i l a l  expenditures and a~quai lmns  of FCC licenses and patenis rrprersnt transfers o f r x p e n r i  m i l ~ ~ e t s  paid for by other Sp'inr 
subsidiaries No carh payments were made by UP for income taxes or intcre~l pnor Io ths Closing 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDURIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

3. Inr.stmmls 

InvcstmcnuasofD~ember 31.2OlOand 2W9 conimed ofthefollowmg(m thousands) 

8,959 ,5,251 
S 111,080 S 511,567 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDLARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

IshmQmu 

4. Proprty. Plant and Eq~ipmsnl  

Propsrq. planland equipment 8sofDecernherIl,2010and 2W9conriilcd ofthe followin~(inthounandJ) 

2 147,959 64,108 
3-7 411,858 216,598 

Lescr ofuwful 
life Or 1eas.F term 49.712 18,128 

NIA 1,299,264 1,623,701 

5,091.561 2,820,311 
(627,029) (221.831) 

I 4.64.134 I 2,596,520 

"lrrE.4rd Daernk.3,. 

2010 I W  mJ* 

I 208,591 1 140,168 I 4,469 
1 '  415.216 1 170.111 I 51,811 



CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES T O  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

W~in~vrr~dthefol lo~uln~losr.~anroclar~d mih  property. plant and ~gulpm~lforthsycaricnded Dsosmberl l ,  2010, 2W9and ZW8 (In thouuulds) 

h . r l . d a h r m * r l l .  

1010 *a* ms 
Loss from abandonment and impwmenr of network and other atsets 

Abandonmen< a1 network P~OJFEII s 180,001 I 7,916 s - 
Imparmem of assets held by inlmational wbJidmneo(lJ 10,351 - - 

190,152 7.916 - 
-- 

Total 108% from abandanmcnt and ~ m p s i m m l  of nclwork and other m5cU 

- 
ChwsgSs for Identified differences betwrm recorded movntl  and the rrsvltr of physical counts and ~ X C C P ~ I Y C  and 
obrolofs ~quipmen42) 159,160 52,958 

I 149.512 S 60,814 S - Total l o s l s ~  on pmpeny, plant and equipment -- 

(6,268) 111,801 

1,199,939 ~,121,405 (62.911) 1,260,468 

Definite-lived o w e d  sprsvum 16-20yearr IW.174 (8,630J 91,844 I 18,069 

Spcrtrum ICBSLI and pmpud 
'pertrum 25 years 1,320,109 ( I  20.370) 
Pending spdrurn and tranmon 
WII$ NIA 14,838 - 16.838 40.464 - 40,464 

Totd spear~m 11ccnsei I 4,516,492 S (129,000) I 4,417,492 I4,564,339 I (69,205) E 4,495,114 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

vcr.e.&d Dannkr>l. 

*US" zc49 *<)us 

I 51,431 S 57,898 S 11,109 
S 4.171 I 5,689 S 447 

As of  December 31. ZOIO, future amonizauon of spectrum Ihunser. ~poclrurn I D ~ J F J  and prepaid IC- ~ m l e  (excluding pcndmg s p l e u m  and W N u m  tranlllmn 
coru) is crpccfrd to be m  follow^ ( ~ n  thousands) 

sprtn ln  0dI.llr 
Lruu ..d u r d  0w.d 

P n l Y d S p r n r m  Sô'"" TOW 

201 I S 52,849 I 5,415 I 58,324 
2012 52,104 5.415 58,179 
2013 52,036 5,471 57,111 
2014 51,710 5,475 57,185 
2015 51,584 5,415 57,059 

Thorcder 

Told 

939,056 64.469 1,003,525 
I 1,199,939 I 91,844 I 1,291,781 

We expect that all renewal perlode ~n our leases WII be renewed by us, a d  the E D I ~ B  to renew u) be ~mmatfrnal 

6. Other Intangible Assets 

Other inlanglblemwtr 8s ofDccrmher31, ZOlOand 2 0 0 9 ~ o n n s l ~ d  ofthe following(m thousads) 

D m m k r  I,. *"lo Drnrnk,,,, Iwv 
C"vl C r n  

C.rnii.E *tr"n.l.lrd NIIC..OI.I C..r)i., *rrm.l.,rd I1.tC"Oi.l 

Subscriber relationrhips 4 - 7 i y e u r S  115,418 E (57,001) I 18,417 I 120.211 I (34.084) S 86.147 
Trade n m ~ s  and sademarkr 1 years 3,804 11.185) 2,219 3,804 I8241 2,980 
Paenta and other 10yesrs 1,166 (894) 2,212 3,164 (5781 2,586 

Total other #nlangihlcr I 122,388 S (59,480) I 62.908 'E 121,199 S (15.486) I 91,713 

"d", 1°C. ".k *.o"Yni,,. ".l.C ".l"C *nnniu,ia. ".I.* 

As of Dscsmbcr 1 I. 2010, the future monimL~m ofother mtagibls uscm IS sxpcstsd 10 k u followr(m thousands) 

I 21,465 
16.870 
12.293 
7,728 
3.861 

69 I 

I 62,908 
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"Q.rs.dd I lrrnk., , .  

2010 2uIY __ *u*l 

S 26.705 S 32,443 S 2,888 

S 329,859 S 317,890 
17,578 28.670 
52,636 M.326 
21.456 25.924 
14,161 19.423 

455,890 496,231 

161,892 - 
22.401 16,060 
19.161 ~ 

21.106 11.134 
230,963 47,194 

S 686.853 S 541,427 

m<nk.ll. 

I"," mun 
S 394,195 I 161,091 

66.557 66.883 
I 461,052 I 210,974 

F 51 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

8.  IncomeT..rs 

The lnsome ux provision C O ~ I I I I P  d i h c  following for Ihc years ended December 31, 2010. 2009 and 2008 (8" thousands) 

"...e."rd D ~ n k r l l .  

2010 - >m *m 
cvnen, UxeP 

I",U"~,,o"al 

Federal 

S 135 S (189) S 325 
- - ~ 

- 148 
1,035 (241) 325 

SlUL 7 w  - 

Intcmaoonal (1,191) 953 (87) 

Total EUrrSnt Lues 

Deferred t u s s  

~ ~ 11,686 
~ - 9.683 

(1,191) - 953 61.282 

I (156) I 61,607 

Federal 

S t l e  
Total deferred taxes 

Income kx (benefit) pmui~ion 

The income kx rate computed using the federal ilaturory m t c s  I S  remnaled to Lhr reponed cffsctivr income tax rate a8 follows 

(276) ( 2 5 9 )  ~ 

" I  " 7  0 2  



CLEARWIRE CORPO-TION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(CONTINUED) 

Noncurrent defsrrrd liui axti 
Net operating 108s carryforward 
Capiml loss carryforward 
Othrruwtr 

Total deferred tax a s s 1 8  

Vsluatlon a11owanec 

Net deferred tax amc0 
Noncurrent dcfcned tax liabilmer 

Drtmmkrll, 

>"I" 1w 

E 912,818 E 118,851 
6.620 6.230 
1,101 13.113 

946,741 138,616 
(696,881) (513,165) 
249,858 165,491 

238,286 142,431 
16,IM 19.411 

619 9,911 
311 16 

211.422 111,844 
E 5.566 I 6,113 



Note.: 
Senior Srvred Notes and Rollovsr Notes 
Second-Pnoniy Secured Nolrr 
Exchanueahle N o w  

2015 $ 2,917,494 $ (42.187) 1 2,905,107 

8 25S% 16 65% 2040 729,250 (230,121) 499.129 

12 00% 1292% 
1 2 W %  I2 19% 2017 SW,OW - 5w.m 

LIBOR 
Vendor Financing Notes beed(2) 6 16% 2014 60,251 (264) 59,987 
Cnpil.1 les,e obliqstions 12,160 - 72.160 
Total debt. net $ 4,109,155 $ (212,172) 4.016,181 

L-5: Curred portion orvendor Finsncing Notes 
and cspitsl 1e.11 oblig.tions(3) (19,364) 

Told l o n ~ l s r m  debt, net 

- 
$ 4.011.019 

(I) 
(2) 
(1) 

Reprepents weighted average etl'eaive intcrent rate buod on year-end balances 
Coupn r e  bawd on I-month LIBOR plus a spread o f 5  50% 
Included 10 Other cunent liabilities on the eonsolidakd balance .h=t 

NdCX 
Senior Secured Notes and Rollover Notes 

Total long-term dsbl. ne# 
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TahlcofCvRLLRU 
C L U R W I R E  CORPOK4TION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

InIucIIExpem~ - Interest expcnx included m our coneohdated ilafcmenls ofoperlions for the years ended Dercmbcr 1 I, 2010 2005 and 2W8, onsisted ofthe 
following ( ~ n  hourand3) 

14.419 64,183 1,667 
(208.591) (140,168) (4,4691 

$ 112,868 S 69,468 S 16,541 



CLEARWIRE C O R W R K T I O N  AND SUBSIDWRIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(CONTINUED) 

I 1 , 6 9 8 , 0 1 7 1  
I 2 ,106 ,6611  
s 74,116 I 

F-60 
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IDPl"ofCo"tsm 
CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED)  

The following table presents Lhr carrim8 V ~ Y F  and the approximaw fair Y ~ U I  of our oulrlanding dobt inilrumcntr 81 Dccembr 3 I, 2010 and 2009 (8" thousands1 

Dmcmk.,,. 20," D ~ m k r l l . l U U 1  

C"*ii.S C..Qi., 
"due P,lr".lre ".I.* F.i,Y",.* 

I 1,905,107 S 3,180,662 I 2,714,731 S 2,810.616 
I 5W,WO I 110,833 
I 499,129 S 746.107 
S 19,987 I 60,713 

T*re.lW, 
i.Cl"dililll 

lo,", l u l l  *",, mu *M, 101s =.e"., W M .  

I 4,236,995 I 15,062 S 20,084 'E 20.084 S 5,021 S 2,967,194 S 1,229.250 
3,997,361 474.514 476,077 474,895 473,937 471,862 1,624,078 

i3.630.873 391,193 439.971 447,799 416,188 466,482 I1.431,240 
5,950.009 156,579 163,057 162,037 170,480 161.151 5,132,705 

107.682 1,130 1.130 1.130 1.130 l,l30 102,032 
126.297 12,450 12,731 13.022 13,996 11,538 62,560 

- - ~ - - 9,925 9,925 

40,222 40.222 ~ - - - - 
188.557 68,043 50,672 29,869 10,984 10,970 18.019 

I 28,287,923 I 1,16Y,I>8 $ 1,163,722 I 1,148,836 $ 1,129,736 S 4,074,617 I 19,601,886 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

Expcnw recorded related to ~pectnrm and operatin8 leas8 w u  u followa (m thourande) 

spec,rvm lease expmse 

Amonnailon ofprcpsid spectrum I ~ C E ~ Y I  
Total rps~trum kule erpinii 

oper*,flng 1- cxpenw 

"...E.** arrntr,,. 

2010 man 2 w  

S 222,560 I 201.461 I 12,923 
57,633 51.898 11,109 

S 219,993 I 219,159 I 90,032 

S 481.631 I 245.351 I 51,345 
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ReIricird stock ~ n i u  outatanding - Jausr/ I ,  2008 
RIItriEted stock units acquired ~n purchase ~cwuntmg - November 28,2008 

Granted 
Forfeited 
Released 
Cancelled (108,777) - 

Restricted stock units outstadin. - Decsmbsr 3 I. 1008 3,212,625 S I1 19 
Granted 
Forfeited 
Relcucd 
Cancelled 

Granted 
Forfeited 
Rebawd 
Cancelled 

Reao,aed stock units outamding - December 11. 2 W 9  

Rcntrirtcd stock units outsading - Dscrrnbsr 1 I. 2010 

10,918,677 

(I, 140.25 1) 

(1,217,857) 

- 
11,851,196 s 
10,521,211 
(1,613,124) 
(4,087,694) 

14,675,651 $ 

- 

4.19 
5.17 
6 95 

4 60 

671 
5 5 5  
I22 

5 99 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATlON AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUEOJ 

A 8umrnary ofoplion activity from January I, 2008 throwh Msembcr 31,2010 IS presented below 

Granted 
Forfutcd 
Exercised 

Options o u e m n d m -  Dcsember 31.2010 

Vested and expected 10 w s t  - December 31, 2010 

Exncirablsoulltanding- Dcsrmkr 31.20lO 

19,093,614 I 
125,wo 
(337,147) 
(9,866) 

19,171,601 I 
7,075,000 
(4,084,112) 
(624.758) 

21,537,731 S 
996,648 

I, w7 8951 , .  . , 
(3,083,243) 
16,443,241 s 
15,773,121 E 
11,074,772 E 

1138 
110 
1164 
3w 

1421 6 36 
4 30 
I5 I 3  
3 51 

I I  09 6 39 
7 37 
12 19 
4 44 
II 80 5 6 3  E 1 7  

1201 559 s 1 2  

,393 4 6 8  I 3 3  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

E,rm,,cPrru 

$2 25 -IS 00 
SI 03 

IS 51 - $5 45 
$6 00 

$607 -17 66 
$7 87 --IISW 

$1602 
SI7 I 1  

118W-I20 16 
$21 30-25 13 

Total 

opla.. 

454,701 
2.902,WO 

562,621 
2,029,238 
1,940,656 

2,241,589 
138,615 

i ,r6a,a2 
1,667,621 4 5" ,809 1,663,871 1808 
2.737.7M 5 54 24 25 2,516.086 24 27 
16,443,241 5 6 9  'E I 1 8 0  11.074.772 $ I S  33 

(YI.") 

I 25 
8 16 

661 

3 94 

8 6 4  
5 16 
2 60 
3 55 

P,* OL",.. ?.IC< 

L 2 86 454,701 I 2 86 

3 03 912,WO s 01 
4 34 237,875 431 
6 00 2,029,238 6 00 
7 I S  410.625 7.24 

I I  78 1,338,283 13.26 
1602 125,875 1602 
1711 1,146,218 17 ,, 

"I.r Em.* D**m*r >I ,  

1oI"  IIW 2WI 

58 80%-62 22% 61 S5%.67 65% 66 52% 
- - - 

6 25 41611975 4 I5  

I 4.27 I 2 6 s  $ 2 24 

2 W?&S !5% I 16% - 2 98.A 1.91% 
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CLEARWIRK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDURIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

Sprint and the Invssmrs, other than Google, In<,  which wc referto as Goode. o w  sharer of Class B Common Stock. which have equal votlng rights to Clewlre 's 
SO Owl par v d ~ e ,  Class A Common Stock, but have only limited C C D ~ O ~ K  rights Unlike Ihc holden ofClau A Common Stock. the holders ofclass B Common Stock 
havcnongh,todividcndsand norighttoany praecd.onlquidaionothsrlhantheparu~urafiheCIas.BCommonStosk SprinlandihcInv.rmr.,oth.rthanGwglc, 
hold their eonomic righm *rough Owncrnhip ofClearwirr Communitaions Class B Common Interests Google o w 3  rharro ofClasjr A Common Svnk 

Under the In~esfmenf Ayreemtnt, Clearwire commixed 10 a rights oNmna, pumuanl to which right3 Lo purchass rharcr of Class A Common Stock were granted (0 

omh holdsrofClasurA CommonSlock along withscrtainpanicipstIng secumesas ofDecember 17, 2009. which wereferto asthe Rlghtr ONermg Wcdbltibbuted 
wbrcnption nghu which wcw cxcrrlpablr for up 10 93,903,IW shares ofClasur A Common Stock Each subscription right cnt#lled B shareholder to wrchax 
0 4336 sharer ofclass A Common Stock at 8 suh3cnption pnce ofS7 3 3  p(r share. The rubicription rights expired ifthey wcre not exerccaed by June 21.2010 Thc 
P ~ Y I I C I ~ M I O ~  Equifyholdcra andGooglcwaivsd t h r i r r q x c w e  rightslopanicipatc ~ntheRight~ON~ringwiIhr.lprcfto nharrsofClassA Common SLockIhey each hold 
asof Ihewpl#cahlc record d l e  In connsetmnullh the RightiONenng, nghtnlo purchase396mllllonlharrl ofClasn ACommon Stockwercexerclsed foranaggrcgatc 
purchase price ofS290 3 m6llion 

Ne, IDIS attrihvtablo to C l s w i r s  
Decrease ~n Clearwsc'r additional pmid-in capital for I I I Y ~ ~ ~ E E  o fClas~  A and B Common Stock related to 
the p o ~ t  closing sdjurrmont 
Decrease ~n Clrwi rs ' r  additional p"d-in capital for ~ n w a n e  ofClass B Common Stock 
Inwear  ~n Clsorwire's additional p"d-,n capital for ~ J P U ~ ~ C C  of Class A Common Stock 
Othsr sNecU ofchanpn ~n Clcuvirr I additional pald-ln capsal for lswance ofClasr A and Class B 
Common stock 

Change from net lorn mnbutablc 10 C l c w i r r  and Uandsm to "on-corntrolling inlere~ls 

(61.569) 
301,849 

Yu. E.IW 
-mlrr>,. 

fwn 
E (319,199) 

(13,632) 
(140,253) 

11.957 

~ 

S (475,127) S (19,460) 

The non-voting C l e w i r e  Cummunissmn units arc dcngnard as zither Clearwire Communicauons Clasa A Comman Intsrsst~, all o fwhxh  are held by Clcarwm. 
or Clearwire Communications Class B Common I n t c r s s ~ ,  which are hcld by Sprint and the l n v ~ ~ t ~ r ~  with tho exosption 0fGooxle Both cIasae8 ofnon-voting Clsarwlrr 
Communisauon mill pMiripale 811 dmtnbutions of C l e w i r e  Communieationr on an equal and proponionate basil 

F.72 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION A N 0  SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

OirUibution to warrant and rearicted stock unit holdsre 

Netlassanributablc,oClaui ACommon Stockholders 
Weighted nvcra~e sharer Clmn A Common Stock outstanding 

NclIo13 per share 

.., 
"I.rE.*d YC..P.W I o w  10 
DIYrnh.,,, Dccemhr,,, -nM(rll, 

I"," 1ovI 1*I 

S (2,301,094) $ (1,253,816) $ (189.654) 
1,815,617 928,261 159,721 
(487,437) (315,581) (29,933) 

- 
~ (9,4911 

$ (187,431) $ (335,073) I (29,933) 
212 527 194~696 189.921 



CLEARWLRE CORPOKATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES T O  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

Ncl Iom per sharo atmbutabk Lo holderr ofClasr A Common Stock on a diluted basla, assum#ng ~ l n v ~ c s m n  ofthe Clcmlre Communlcation3 Class B Common 
Intereats and Class B Common Stock and E O ~ Y I I S # O ~  ofthe Exohangable Note% is Eabulsted based an the folloxlng information (In thoupandn, except PCT *hare 
mounts) 

P d d  prom 
No*m*rm 

"rrre.W "S.,E.I*II *w* 10 
Dlurn*.,,, Darm*r3,, m c n m 3 l .  

11,111 tW9 2M1 

Nst IDIP annbutabb to Class A Common Stockholders 'E (687,437) S (335,073) I (29,933) 
Nan-concrollmg mleresU m ne 1018 of conrolldated subridimer (1,815,657) (928,264) (159,721) 

R c v s r d  ofsain on Exchange Option3 and Exchangeable Notes interest cxpenrs, upon exchange of 

N e  IDIS availablr to Class A Common Stockholders, assuming the exchange of Class B to Class A 
Common stock and conversion ofihc Exchangsablc Nota 
Weighted werage sharer C h i  A Common Stock outstanding 222,527 194.696 189,921 

Weightal average rharei convened from the Exchangeable N o l i  
Total wmghtad avsrags sharer Clasi A Common Stock ovtrland8ns (diluted) 
Net 10s p e  3h-e I (246) I ( I  74) s (0 28) 

TU adjusfmmt rcsult~ng from d8noluuon ofClemire Communirationr (27,117) (27.356) 14,158) 

"DtCS ( 5 8 2 % )  ~ ~ 

S (1,188,507) I (1,290,6931 I (193,812) 

Weighted werase shares converted from Class B Common Stock outamding 141,962 546,315 so5,wo 

970,765 741,011 696,921 

~ 6,176 ~ 

F-75 

P C l b d  "ma" 
Nn.r.*.*Y, 

YcrrE.drd "I.,l.dCd lull 1" 
n a m k r , , ,  Drr".h<ll. k r n * . l l .  

Zulu * M Y  *w 
18,380 22,154 19,317 

17,806 17.806 17,806 

22,657 

12,414 9,488 3,054 

~ - 
1,519 12,747 28.821 

72,776 62,195 69.WI 



TsbleofCvnfrnlr 
CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

1,327,565 50,573 1,318,138 
453.966 12,146 466.112 

2,694,301 77,600 2,771,705 

I (2,159,2021 S (55,6771 (2,214.879) 

(88,371) 
156 

(2,303,094) 
1,815,657 

I (487,4371 
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Table of ContsnW 
CLEARWIRE CORPOK4TION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

(I%"< C.dd Drrrnk. 11, tw) 

U.i,dS,.Lt I.*...li".d Told 

S 218.681 I 30,686 S 269,113 
2,503 ~ 2,503 

242,798 31,660 274,418 
410,849 11,699 428,348 
180,266 .0,921 821,190 
190,271 11,990 208,263 

1,381,188 76,413 1,451,801 

1,608 914 2.582 

s ( I , I I ~ , s ~ o )  s (44.151) (1 ,181, iai)  
(69,1911 

(7121 
(1,251,8461 

928.26d 
1 (125.582) 

"t.,Z."d I*rr.brr,,.tl",s 

".;led I M r  ,.Llr.llrn.l T4.l 

$ 1 7 , 7 7 5 1  2,114 S 20,489 
~ - - 
~ - - 

17,115 2,714 20,489 
I 3 I , I P 2  IZII 132.525 
236,468 1.668 239,936 

82,960 ~ 82,%0 
56,014 2.072 58,146 

506,694 6,813 513,567 
I (488,9191 I Id.lS91 (493,018) 

(37,662) 
(61,601) 

(592,311) 
159,721 

$ (432,626) 



Table of Cantcnfr 
CL-RWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

I 2,654.612 I 1,131,918 I 173,537 

S 2,664,150 I 1,540,030 S 574,957 
10,138 6,112 1.420 

$ 10,921,881 S 11.111,815 
118,601 112,038 

$ 11,060,186 I 11,261,853 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable and accrued expm~en 

O a r r n k . , , .  

2"l" 2001 

$ 22,297 S 1,221 
I 11,161 I 22,121 

S 104,883 I 75,283 I 118.331 
$ 7,150 S 10,771 I 95,840 

s - s -  5 151,921 

F 18 
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CLEARWIRE CORPOIUTION AND SUBSlDlARlES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

CLEARWIRE CORPORATION 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

- I I I  I 
3.321 4,577 

1,552,931 1,591,585 
S 1,556,264 I 1,602.162 

s 1,552 S 11,183 
1,516,112 1.5w.979 

I 1,556,264 I 1,602,162 



Ipblc of Content$ 
CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED] 

CLEARWIRE CORPORATION 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

E ~ E - I 
7,283 6,190 312 

17,2811 (6,3901 (3121 

1196.8751 1319.1991 129.621) . . ,  . . .  . .  
~ 16,784 7 

(480,OSl) (319,1921 (29,621) 
S (487,374) S (325,1821 S 129,9331 

F-84 



CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +CONTINUED) 

CLEARWIRE COUFQRATION 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS O F  CASH FLOWS 

I (487,374) I 1325,582) S (29,913) 

496,875 319,199 29,621 

1,256 0.980) $SO 
(10,469) 541 161 

- 288 (9.820) 

(304,015) (12,196) (SW.WO1 

- 9,820 - 
303,738 12.196 500,OW 
303,738 22,016 SW,wO 

- ~ II 

Section 2: EX-10.2 (AMENDMENT 27 TO TERM SHEET EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 
2010) 

EXHIBIT 10.1.6 

AMENDMENT TWENTY-SEVEN TO THE 
TERM SHEET FOR SUBSCRIBER UNITS AND SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND MOTOROLA. INC. 

This Ammdment T ~ ~ " , ~ . S ~ " = " , ~ ~ b ~ T ~ , m  See1 for SvblrribPr Uoilsnnd S~~- ie~ , ( . 'Am~ndm~nl ' ' )x l l l  hedtsmrd  effecliue sa ofJSnuar). 1,1010 
("Enectivr D s W )  between MOTOROLA, INC., a Ddawarr corporation, with omcer at SWO West Sunrise Boulsrwd, Phntalian, FL 33311 ("MotOrOls"), and 
NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS, INC. a DeInwsra mrpmtion.  with offices st 1WI Edmund Hdlsy Drive, Reston, VA 10191 ("Sprint" or "NIXId") with 
Sprint i United Maoagemenl Company IS .gent for Nextel Communiralions, In.. and iu AIElistes; (Motorola and Narld to be rolleelb.ly d e r r s d  to .I Ihr 
"Parties" and each a "Party"). 

WHEREAS, Motorola and Sprint entered into theTcrm Sheet far SubJcnber Units and Services dated as ofths I ls tday ofDcrrmber2W1, ill amended (!he 
"Handsel Tcnn Sheet" or "AgrcemenF'), and 

WHEREAS, Motorola m d  Sprint wi3h to m k  certain amendments to the Handset Term Sheel to reflect agreeme* Io ccnilin burmess ttrrns Intended to he 
.ffcctL"e p m r  to CXFCYtID" ora mlY/er S I C .  ~1B"cmenl. 

NOW, THEREFORE. ~n uonsidrrUmn ofthe promclen and mutml ohltgatulonr contained herem and for othergood and valuable cunnderenon, thercrrlpt 
and wfficimcy ofwhuhlsh art herchy mutuolly 8eknowledgd. Motorola and Spnm 88'" au follows 

I Gmer.1 



1 Agreement Modifiutioni 

Motorola and Sprint agree that the following iectionr ofthe Agreement are modified to rcad a8 followr 

a Seclion I entitled "Term" ofthe Term Sheet for Subscriber Unit. and Ssrvics~ Agreement IS deleted m $11 entirety and ceplzzcd with 
the following 

I '"Term": 

This Agrecmem shall be effective from the Effectwe Dam ofthm Agrecmcnl through Deccmbcr 3l.2010 (the "lnilial Term") This Asrecmcnt 
shall renew far m - y e a r  percod8 (each a'Xenrwal Term") thcrdtcr, U ~ ~ C I B  either party pmvideswnttsn noh~e  ofnon-renewal olthli 
Agreement at least sxty (60) calendar days before the last day oflhe Initial Term or any Spnnt Motorola Confidential Remud Term or U ~ I C I I  
the parLcn agree otherwise The Imtm Term and any Renewal Terms are rcfencd 10 herein c o l l ~ e t i v ~ l ~  as the 'Term" For the avoidance of 
doubt, thia rhsll be conridered a fixed term ~greeemsnf reyardlcss afths numhr of Renewal Tcrmr 

(Sapaturs) Id Shaw U o m  

(Pnnf Nuno  Sham Moore 

(Tltlo) Souran& Manarsr 

IDalrI 12-23-09 

3 R.tiL.lion 

Except as specifically staled ~n this Amendment, the Handret Term Shed IS. ~n dl oher ~FICYCIS, ratified, confirmed and c o n t l n ~ e ~  m full fore  and effect 

4 Authority 

Each p q  hsreto rc~rcssnts and w m n e  that (I) if has obtained 811 n~sessarj and requwte qpmvalr, ~ o n ~ n t s  and aulhorilaliona ofthird panier and 
go~vnmcntal authorities 10 m f ~ r  inlo this Ammdmmc and to perform and carry out 8,s obligations hereunder, (si) the perrons ~xecutingthir Amcndmcnf on behalf 
of each pmty have cxprcs3 authority to do 30, and, m ro doing, to bind Lhc p m  thereto, ( 8 8 1 )  the sxec~tion, delivery, and performanw of this Amendmml da l i  not 
viol i l f~ any proumon ofany bylaw, charter, reedation, or any other ~ovemang authoriw offhc pwly, and, (IV) the ex_~I~on ,  delivery and pedormancr ofthis 
Amendment has been duly authorized by al l  ncces~ary pannership or corporate action and this Amendment IS a valid and binding obligation ofauch p a y ,  
enforceable I" accordants with 11% terms 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Motorola and Sprm have entered lnm h i s  Amendment as oflhe EITeeclwc Date firat wntlsn above. 

Signed 

(Signarurr) 1x1 Richard Cadd 

(Print Name) Richard Gadd 

(T~ tk )  Vise Preadcnf, Sales 

iDato) 12-23-09 

Page 2 o f 2  

Section 3: EX-12 (COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED 
FIXED CHARGES) 

Exhibit I1 

Computation of  Ratio oCEominy to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stork Dividends 

2,081 2.047 2,094 1,213 2,212 
2,081 2.017 2,094 2,213 2,245 

I 66 -,I, - (21 -"3 - (0 

~~ 

-- 



Section 4: EX-21 (SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT) 

Exhibit 21 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT 

Sprmt Ncxtrl Corporauon 13 the pmrsnt The wbiidhar8rs of Sprlnt Nene1 Comorarlon are ar follawi 

AlamorsHoldinp, Inc 

*,rGscPCS. 1°C 

Subsdiary 

Subsidiaries 

AGW LIaplng Company, 1°C 

AirGalr Network Servlcrs. I.LC 
AirGate SIMU Company, Inc 

Alamora PCS Holdings, Inc 

Alamora (Delaware), 1°C 

Subsidiary 

Subadiaricr 
*lamom klawarc operauonn. LLC 
Alamora Holdings. LLC 

Alamor. PCS, 1°C 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiaries 
Alamo~a W l w n n n  GP. LLC 

Subsidiary 
Alamois Wisconsin Limited Pmnership 

Subsidiary 
almosa(Wlronn") Propcnlu. LLC 

Aiamora Flnansc. LLC 
Alamora Limiltd, LLC 

Subsidiary 
Tcxar Telccommunlrations, LP 

Subsidiary 
A l u n o r a P r o ~ ~ i e ~ ,  LP 

Alamora Delaware GP. LLC 
Subsidiaries 

Alamora Propenlra. LP 
Taxa Telecommunications. LP 

Alamosa Wisconsin Limilcd Pannsrship 
AlamoraMiuouri, LLC 

Subsidiary 
Alamora Mirnouri Pro~enses. LLC 

Warhingion Oregon Wirdcn. LLC 
Subsidiaries 

WaihinELon Oregon Wireless Ltscnrs, LLC 
WarhinBton Oregon Wirclcrl Propeniel. LLC 

S W L P . L L C  
Subsidiary 

Southwest PCS, L P 

100 

io0 

IO0 
100 
100 
100 

100 

loo 
100 

I O 0  

IW 

I 

100 
LOO 

100 

99 

99 
100 

99 

100 

100 
100 

IO0 
IW 
100 

99 



S W G P , L L C  
Subsidiary 

Southwest PCS, L P 
Subsidiaries 

Southwest PCS Lccenrcr, LLC 
Southwest PCS Propenier, LLC 

Amensan T&carflng, 1°C 

Sub$idiary 
SN UHC 3,  Inc (roo Pcopld3 Choiu TV COT ior SN UHC 3. In( %ubi, III mdnolc) 

Allanla MUS Co.. In0 
Subsidiary' 

SN UHC 2, Inc (ICC Spnnl WBC olNew York. In' lor SN UHC 2, In( subs, sea mdnoa) 
Card>"< venture.. 1°C 

C FON Corporation 
IPCS, 1°C 

Subsidiary 
Bngbt PCS Holdinis, In< 

Subsidiary 
B.,&h, Perronal Communlcrlonr sewulcer, LLC 

lPCS Wmlcns, 1°C. 

Subsidiary 
lPCS EqulpmenL 1°C 

Horizon Perronal Communccatmnl, Ins 

IWO Holding% In6 

Subsidiary. 
Indcpmdeni Wirrlsas One Corp~catmn 

Subsidiary 
lndrpsndanl Wireless One Leared R d V  Corporilfion 

Los Angelel MUS Company, In< 

Subsidi&. 
SNUHC2,  In~.(rrrS~"nnlWBColNiwYurL,Inr lorSNUHC1. In(. sub%scesndnolr) 

New York MUS, In(. 

Subi idiq 
SNUHC2,Inc O"SpnnlWBCoiN~uYorl, ini  lorSNUHC1,lni rubn,rrrsndnolc) 

Nextel Communlcattlonr, 1°C 

Subnidiarire 
Dial Call MidwcsL Inc 
NCI WO Sprrlrvm Holdmgs, Inc 

Subridiarisr 
ACI 9W, Inc. 

Velo~81a Wmlerr Holding Cow 
Subridiarulcr 

Machino License Holding, LLC 
Yslosita Wir~l trs Holding, LLC 

Subsidiary 
Machine License Holding, LLC 

100 

I 

100 
100 
100 

29.06"' 
I00 

4 4 P  
100 
100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

IW 
100 

IW 

100 
100 

8 59"' 
100 

21 58"' 
I on 

100 
IW 

100 
100 

96 I 7  
IO0 

3 8 3  



F 

001 

,,,La fS 
.18 F5 

si PS 

001 
001 
001 
001 

00 I 
WI 

WI 
001 

WI 
WI 

WI 
001 

WI 
00 I 
00 I 

001 
00 I 

001 
00 I 
00 I 
001 
001 

WI 
001 

00 I 
001 

001 

001 

WI 

00 I 
WI 
001 

WI 
00 I 

001 



IW 
100 

100 

IW 

IW 
IW 
IW 
100 

IW 
100 

IW 
100 

100 

100 
100 

100 

IW 
100 
100 

IW 

118"' 
54 55"' 

3079 
I00 
IW 

4 18"' 





90 
I00 
100 
99 9 
99 9 
IO0 
IW 

I O  

,999 
IO0 
IO0 
I O 0  

100 
IO0  

98 
IW 
I O 0  

99 96 

I O 0  
ZOO 

100 
> 99 99 

100 
95 

100 
99 

I O 0  
IO0 
100 
I O 0  

100 
100 
IO0 
100 

,66508"' 

100 

3 34"' 

62 5 

,054"' 

6 
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Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnuship 
Delaware Partnership 

Ik1awarr Pannsrshlp 

Delaware Partnership 



I S  
I S  

0 I5 
IW 

78 
IW 

30 
30 
10 

IW 

0 I S  
100 

99 
14 85 

IW 

95 04"" 

I I  36 
IW 

%,W 

100 

0 81'" 
3 1  5 
IW 

100 

IW 



Delaware 
Delaware Partutnrrrh>p 

3 4 . 1 P  
I4 I 4  

100 
100 

100 
49 

18 99 

10 
47 1 
47 I 

40 
1960 

14.14 

loo 

<In 

I00 
100 

100 
100 

58.98"" 

0.12 
18 98 

51 

100 
I W  
I00 

20 40 

58 98 

10 



Ownership 
1ntcre.t 
Held 
By I t s  

Jurisdiction of Incorporation lmmedimc 
NN7X or Organ,lat,on Pivent 

(Sprint Nadel Corporation rubridiivier continued) 

100 

100 

100 

IW 
so 
20 

100 
100 

IW 

IW 
496"" 
4 94"" 

100 

001 
86 

Io"" 

I O  
50 

100 
0 1  
0 1  

IOU 

194"" 
I 94 
I1 

100 

1.94 
IW 

2 
0 04 

<0.01 
5 , 

4 94 

,,, , 



Subs#d>ary 
Bluebottle USA Inunlmen<s L P 
Bluebottle USA In~cifrnenli L P 

Blucbbottle USA In~estmsnfi L P 

Blucboole USA Holdinis L P 
Blvcbottls USA Holding. L P 

Subsidiary 

Blucbottlc USA Holdings L P. 
Subeldime 

V M U G P I ,  LLC 
Subsidiary 

Virgin Mobile USA, L P 
Virgin Mobile USA, L P 

Virgin MobkUSA,  L P  
Virgin Mobile USA, L P 

Subasdiarbes. 
Awurams Wirslsrr o f  South Carolmq LLC 
Helio LLC 

Wirelsrr Cable o f  Florida. Inc 
SubxLdIary 

SNUHC3,  Inc (rerPcapl i sChoicrNCorp  forSNUHCl, lnr.rub~,rrrEndnolr)  
LYuxvma 

Delaware 

Delaware 
DIlaware 
Delaware 
Dslawarc 

Delaware 

1912"' 
100 

100 

OW,"' 
IW"' 

99 999"' 

99 470'" 

I W"' 
0 53'3' 

0 12"' 
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Section 5: EX-23.1 (CONSENT OF KPMG LLP) 

Exhibit 23.1 
Consent orlndepndenl Ragislered Pvblir Accounting Firm 

The Board o f  Dreclon and Shareholders 
Sprint Nericl Corpormon 

Wssonimtlothc ~ncoorporaon by iefer~nscinLer.girtrofion slatemmlsm Form S-I (No 133-171301) and Form S-8 (No 31142077.No 333-68717,No 133-56938, 
No 133-59124.No 333-76783,No. 313.92809. No 131-54IO8,No 333-71664. No. 113-103691, No. 313.105244. No 311.111956, No. 333-1 15621, Na 393-115607. 
No 331-115609, No 333-124189, No 131-127426,No 131.130277,No 113-142702 and No 111-119~10)ofSprintN1xlcl Corporation ofovr repon dated 
F~brvary24,2011,wifhrcrpsttothccon~oiid~ed b~lancc~hntrofS~nnlNenclCoorpor~~anandrubnd~~uleiaafDFcembcr31,2010and2W9.andrhcrclatsd 
consolidated rtatemcnm ofapcrationr, cash flows andiharcholders'cquity foreachoifhe years ~nthsfhrrp-ycarporiod~ndcd Dcocmber31, 2010,andthecNeo,lv~nc.. 
ofinlcrnalconlrolovsrfinanrialrc~on~ng~ofDercmbcr31.2010,whishrr~onqopears 1nthcDI~cmberll,2010annual rspononForm IO-KofSprlnlNIxicl 
CorpOrat>o" 

The Company adopted a ~ c o u n t i n j  pwdancr rrwrdinu "counting for burineri combinations and q u # v  method ~nvestmcnfl m 2009 

&&3J& 

Section 6: EX-23.2 (CONSENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP) 

Exhibit 23.2 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the incorporation by reference an Registration Statement No. 333-1 71301 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 333- 
42077.333-68737,333-56938,333-59124, 333-76783,333-92809,333-54108,333-75664,333-103691,333-105244,333-1I1956,333- 
115621, 333.1 15607,333.1 15609,333-124189,333-127426,333-130277,333-142702, and 333-IS9330 on Form S-8 of Sprint Nextel 
Corporation of our repan dated Februaly 22, 201 I, relating to the consolidated financial statements ofClemire Carparation and subsidlarks 
appearing in the Annual Repan on Form IO-K ofSprint Nextel Corporation for the year ended December 31,201 0 

Is1 Deloitte &Touche LLP 

Seattle, Washington 
February 24,201 I 

Section 7: EX-31.1 (CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-l4(A)) 

E r h l b i t l l  1 

CERTIFICATION 

I Daniel R Herre certify thB( 



Date February 24,201 I 

hi Danbsl R Heox 
Daniel R Hrrss 

Dale February 24,201 I 

Chief Financial Office# 

a 4 % k u T d  

Section 9: EX-32.1 (CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350) 

Exhihil3Z.I 



Date February 24,201 I 

/?I Daniel R HSIIF 
Dand R Heue 
Chief Exccvtivc Officer 

(DacXToToo) 

Section 10: EX-32.2 (CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350) 

Exhibit 32.2 

Certiflc.tion Purausnlto IS U.S.C. Sl(tim 1350, 
A$ Adopted Punusnt  Io Section Po6 ofthe 

S.rhsnu-Oilcy Act of2m2 

In  fonnectmn with the annual repon oiSprint Ncxfal Corporation (the"Company") on Form IO-K forths year e n d 4  Dsocmber I ) ,  2010. BI 61ed with the Securities and 
Exchwe~Commi~~ion(ths"Ripon").I,RobcnH B,",cChidFinancialOtTlccrofthcCompany,~lrtlhi. pur~uantto I S U S C  Dl3SO,a.adopledpurruan,to5906of 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE cnmissm 

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K 
PART I 

Item 1. Business 
OVERVIEW 

subsidiaries. Ow Series 1 voting common stack trades on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “S.” Sprint Nextel Corporation and its 
subsidiaries (“Sprint,” “we,” “us,” %ur” or the “Company”) is a communications company offering a comprehensive range of wireless and wireline 
communications products and services that are designed to meet the needs of individual consumers, businesses, government subscribers and resellers. Our 
operations are organized to meet the needs of our targeted subscriber groups through focused communications solutions that incorporate the capab 
wireless and wireline services. We are the third largest wireless communications company in the United States based on the number ofwireless subscribers, one 
of the largest providers of wireline long distance services and one of the largest carriers of Internet traffic in the nation. Our services are provided through OUI 

ownership ofextensive wireless networks and a global long distance, Tier 1 Internet backbone. 

Sprint corporate brand which includes our retail brands consisting of Sprinte, Nextel*, Boost Mobilea, Virgin Mobile* and Assurance WirelessSM on networks 
that utilize code division multiple access (CDMA), integrated Digibl Enhanced Network (iDEN), or internet protocol (IP) technologies. We utilize these network 
to offer our wireless and wireline subscribrrs differentiated products and services whether through the use of a single network or a combination of these 
networks. Tllhrough our partnership with Clranvire Corporation and its subsidiary Clearwire Communications LLC (together Weamire”), and their development of 
a fourth generation (4G) network utilizing Worldwide Interoperability for Microwave Access (WiMAX) technology, we are establishing ourselves as a leader in 
the deployment ofnext-generation wireless broadband services. We offer wireless services an a post-paid and prepaid payment basis to retail subscribers and 
also an a wholesale basis. 

percentage to 56% as of December 3 I ,  2009 and enhancing Clewire’s  ability to h n h e r  iu 4G network buildout. To strengthen our position in the growing 
prepaid market, we completed our acquisition of Virgin Mobile USA, Inc. (VMU) an November 24,2009. In addition, on December 4,2009, we completed the 
acquisition of iPCS, Inc. (iPCS). iPCS was previously a Spnnt PCS affiliate that sold services under the SprinP brand name and in Sprint-branded stores. 

Our Business Segments 

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results ofoperations” and also refer to note I 5  of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Wireless 

operator (MVNO) relationship with Clearwire, we are also the first and only nationwide wireless carrier to offer 4G Services. Sprint 4G is available in 21 markets 
serving more than 

Sprint Nextel Corporation, incorporated in 1938 under the laws ofKansas, is mainly a holding company, with its operations primarily conducted by its 

We offerwireless and wireline voice and data transmission services to subscribers in all 50 states, Pueno Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands under the 

On November 9,2009, we entered into an investment agreement with Clearwire to contribute an additional S I .  116 billion increasing our ownership 

Our business consists of two reportable segments: Wireless and Wireiine. For information regarding our segments, see ”Part 11, Item 7 Management’s 

We provide certain wireless services on our third generation (30) network and our national push-to-talk network. Through our mobile virtual network 
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30 million people, and is expected to cover up to 120 million people by the end of 20 10. In January 20 10 we announced the Overdrive TM 3Gi4G Mobile Hatspot by 
Sierra Wireless that allows up to five wireless fidelity (WiFi) enabled devices to enjoy the speeds ofour 4G services where available. We also support the open 
development of applications and content on our network platforms. Our multi-functional device portfolio has been expanded to include the BlackBerrym TourTM 
and Blackbenye Curvem 2, the Samsung Instinct* HD, the Touch pro 2 from HTC, and the MiFi 2200 ham Novatelm Wireless. In 2009 we also added our first 
Andmidm d e v i c e s t h e  HTC Heram and the Samsung Moment" with GoogleTM and we were the first to launch the new Palm WebOS devices. We also enable a 
variety ofthird-party providers, location-based services, and consumer product providers through our open device initiative. The open device initiative 
incorporates selling, marketing, product development, and operations resources to address growing nan-traditional data needs, which covers a wide variety of 
products and services including telematics, in-vehicle devices, e-readers, specialized medical devices, and other original equipment manufacturer devices. 

popular data applications with traditional mobile voice calling at attractive price points. The addition of Any Mobile, AnytimesM to Everything Data SMplans 
provides subscribers unlimited mobile-to-mobile calling from the SprinP Network to and from any wireless phone on any US. wireless carrier network at no 
additional charge. New Business Advantage 
Any Mobile, AnytimesM with certain plans. Our Boost Mobilee prepaid price plans include unique nationwide monthly unlimited, pay as you go, and $ 1  per day 
text and chat plan options. Our Virgin Mobile" prepaid price plans include monthly hybrid plans and voice and data per usage plans. Subscribers may use Top- 
Up cards ~ available in increments of $10, $20, $30, $50 and $90 - to add money to their accounts. Subscribers may also elect to register a credit card, debit card or 
PayPal account to credit their accounts automatically on a monthly basis or when their accounts reach a specified minimum amount. 

We believe that our valuedriven wireless price plans are very competitive. Our family of "Simply Everyhinge" post-paid price plans bundle together 

pricing plans provide value, flexibility and simplicity to our business subscribers who can also take advantage of 

Services and Products 
Dam & Voice Services 

Wireless data communications services include mobile productivity applications, such as Internet access and messaging and email services: wireless 
photo and video offerings; location-based capabilities, including asset and fleet management, dispatch services and navigation tools; and mobile entertainment 
applications, including the ability to view live television, listen to Sirius-XM" satellite radio, download and listen to music tiom our Sprint Music Store, a music 
catalog with thousands of songs from virtually every music genre, and game play With full-color graphics and polyphonic sounds all from a wireless handsel. 

Wireless voice communications services include basic local and long distance wireless voice services, as well as voicemail, call waiting, three-way 
calling, caller identification, directory assistance, call forwarding, and speakerphone. We offer Nextel Direct ConnecP push-to-talk services on our iDEN network. 
We also provide voice and data Services to areas in numerous countries outside of the United States through roaming arrangements. We offer customized 
design, development, implementation and support services for wireless services provided to large companies and government agencies. 

Product> 
Our services are provided using a wide variety ofdevices and personal computer wireless data cards manufactured by various suppliers for use with 

our voice and data Services. We generally sell there devices at prices below our cost in response to competition, to attract new subscribers and as retention 
inducements far existing subscribers. We sell accessories, such as carrying cases, hands-free devices, batteries, battery chargers and other items to subscribers, 
and we sell devices and accessories to agents and other third-party distributors for resale. 

Wireless Network Technologies 
We deliver wireless services to subscribers primarily through the ownership ofour CDMA and iDEN networks or as a reseller of4G services 
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Our CDMA network, an all-digital wireless network with spectrum licenses that allow us to provide service in a11 50 states, Pueno Rim and the U S  
Virgin Islands, uses a single frequency band and a digital spread-spectrum wireless technology that allows a large number of users to access the band by 
assigning a code to all voice and data bits, sending a scrambled transmission ofthe encoded bits over the air and reassembling the voice and data into its original 
format. We provide nalionwide service through a combination of operating our own digital network in bath major and smaller U.S. metropolitan areas and rural 
connecting mutes using CDMA technology, affliations under commercial arrangements with third-party affiliates (PCS Affiliates) and roaming on other 
providers’ networks. 

wireless service provider in the United States that utilizes iDEN technology and, generally, lhe iDEN devices that we currently offer are not enabled to roam on 
wireless nehyorks that do not utilize iDEN technology. iDEN is a proprietaty technology that relies principally on our and Motorola’s efforts for further research, 
product development and innovation. For additional information, see Item IA ,  “Risk Factors-If Motorola is unable or unwilling to provide us with equipment 
and devices in support ofour iDEN-based services, as well as improvements, our operations will be adversely affected.” 

Beginning in 2009, our subscribers in certain markets now have access to C l e w i r e ’ s  4G network through an MVNO arrangement that enables us IO 
resell Clearwire’s 4G wireless services under the Sprint brand name. The services supported by 4G give subscribers with compatible devices high-speed access to 
the Internet. This relationship with Clearwire was developed through a transaction that closed on November 28,2008, at which time we and Clearwire joined 
together to combine our next-generation wireless broadband businesses. 

Ow iDEN network is an all-digital packet data network based on iDEN wireless technology provided by Motorola, Inc. We are the only national 

Sales, Marketing and Customer Care 
We focus the marketing and sales ofwireless services on targeted groups of retail subscribers: individual consumers, businesses and government 

We use a variety of sales channels to attract new subscribers ofwireless services, including: 
subscribers. 

* direct sales representatives whose efforts are focused on marketing and selling wireless services primarily to mid-sized to large businesses and 
government agencies; 
retail outlets that focus on sales to the Consumer market owned and operated by us, as well as third-party retailers: 
indirect sales agents that primarily consist of local and national “on-affiliated dealers and independent Contractors that market and sell services 
to small businesses and the consumer market, and are generally paid through commissions; and 
subscriber-canvenient channels, including web sales and telesales. 

* 

We market our post-paid sewices under the Sprint@ and Nextelm brands. We offer these services an a contract basis typically far one or two year 
periods, with sewices billed on a monthly basis according to the applicable pricing plan. We market our prepaid services under the Boost MobileQ, Virgin 
Mobile@ and Assurance WirelesssM brands, as a means to provide value-driven prepaid service plans to particular markets. Our wholesale customers are resellers 
of our wireless services rather than end-use subscribers and market their products using their brands. 

Although we market our services using traditional print and television advertising, we also provide exposure to our brand names and wireless services 
through various sponsorships, including the National Association far Stock Car Auto Racing (NASCARm), and the National Football League (NFL”). The goal of 
these marketing initiatives is to increase brand awareness and sales. 

Our customer management organization works to improve our customer’s experience, with the goal ofretaining subscribers of our wireless services. 
Customer service call centers, some of which are operated by us and some ofwhich arc operated by unrelated parties subject to Sprint standards ofoperation, 
receive and respond to inquiries from subscribers. We implemented initiatives that are designed to improve call center processes and procedures, and 
standardized OUT performance measures through various metrics, including customer satisfaction ratings with respect lo customer care, first call resolution and 
calls per subscriber. 
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Competition 
We believe that the market far wireless services has been and will continue to be characterized by intense competition on the basis afprice, the types 

of services and devices offered and quality of service. We compete with a number of wireless carriers, including three other national wireless companies: AT&T, 
Verizon Wireless and T-Mobile. Our primary competitors offer voice, high-speed data, entenainment and location-based services and push-to-talk-type features 
that are designed to compete with our products and services. Other competitors offer or have announced plans to introduce similar services. AT&T and Verizon 
also offer competitive wireless services packaged with local and long distance voice, high-speed Internet services and video. Our prepaid services compete with a 
number of carriers and resellers including Metro PCS Communications, Inc., Leap Wireless International, Inc. and TracFone Wireless, which offer competitively- 
priced calling plans that include unlimited local calling. Additionally, AT&T, T-Mobile and Verizon also offer competitive prepaid services and wholesale service 
10 rrsellcn. Competition will increase to the extent that new firms enter the market if additional radio spectrum is made available far commercial wireless services. 
We also expect competition to increase as a result ofother technologies and services that are developed and introduced in the future, including potentially those 
using unlicensed spectmm and long term evolution (LTE). Wholesale services and products also contribute to increased competition. In some instances, resellers 
that use our network and offer like services compete against our offerings. 

As the wireless market matures, it is becoming increasingly imponant to retain existing subscribers in addition to attracting new subscribers. We and our 
competitors continue to offer more service plans that combine voice and data offerings, plans that allow users to add additional mobile devices to their plans at 
attractive rates, plans with a higher number ofbundled minutes included in the fixed monthly charge for the plan, plans that offer the ability to share minutes 
among a group afrelated subscribers, or combinations of these features. Consumers respond to these plans by migrating to those they deem most attractive. In 
addition, wireless carriers also try to appeal to subscribers by offering devices at prices significantly lower than their acquisition cast, and we may offer highei 
cost devices at greater discounts than our competitors, with the enpeclation that the loss incurred on the device will be offset by future service revenue. As a 
result, we and our competitors recognize immediate losses that will not be recovered until future periods when service is provided. Our abilily to effectively 
compete in the wireless business is dependent upon our ability to retain existing and attract new subscribers in an increasingly competitive marketplace. See 
Item IA, “Risk Factors-lfwe are not able attract and retain wireless subscribers, our financial performance will be impaired.” 

Wireline 

In addition, we provide voice, data and 1P communication services to our Wireless segment and IP and other s e r v i m  to cable Multiple System Operators (MSOs) 
that resell our local and long distance service and use our back office systems and network assets in support of their telephone service provided over cable 
facilities primarily to residential end-user subscribers. We are one a f the  nation’s largest providers oflong distance services and operate all-digital long distance 
and Tier 1 IPnerwork. 

Most markets in which we operate have high rates ofpenetration for wireless services, thereby limiting the growth of subscribers ofwireless services. 

We provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications services to other communications companies and targeted business subscribers. 

Services and Products 
Our services and products include domestic and international data communications using various protocols such as multipratocol label switching 

technologies (MPLS), [P, asynchronous transfer mode (ATM), IP-based frame relay, managed network services, Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) and 
traditional voice services. Our IP services can also be combined with our wireless services. Such services include our Wireless Integration service which enables 
a wireless handset to operate as part of a subscriber’s wireline voice network and our DataLink SM service, which uses our wireless networks to connect a 
subscriber location into lheirprimarily wireline wide-area IPiMPLS data network, making it easy far businesses to adapt their network to changing business 
requiremenu. 
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change, which could adversely affect us in the future. The following discussion describes some of the major communications-related regulations that affect us, 
but numerous other substantive areas of regulation not discussed here may also influence our business. 

Regularion 4nd Wireless Operofions 

requirements impose operating and other restrictions on our wireless operations that increase our costs. The FCC does not currently regulate rates for services 
offered by CMRS providers, and states are legally preempted from regulating such rates and entry into any market, although states may regulate other terms and 
conditions. The Communications Act and FCC rules also require the FCC's prior approval of the assignment or transfer of control of an FCC license, although the 
FCC's rules permit spectrum lease arrangements far a range ofwireless radio service licenses, including our licenses, with FCC oversight. Approval from the 
Federal Trade Commission and the Department oflustice, as well as state or local regulatory authorities, also may be required if we sell or acquire spectlum 
interests. The FCC sets NICS, regulations and policies to, among other things: 

The FCC regulates the licensing, consuuctian, operation, acquisition and sale ofour wireless operations and wireless spectrum holdings. FCC 

* grant licenses in the 800 megahertz (MHz) band, 900 MHz band, 1.9 gigahertz (GHz) personal communications services (PCS) band, and license 
renewals, 
rule on assignments and transfers of control of FCC licenses, and leases covering our use of FCC licenses held by other persons and 
organizations; 
govern the interconnection of our CDMA and iDEN networks with other wireless and wireline carriers: 
establish access and universal service funding provisions; 
impose rules related to unauthorized use of and access to customer information; 
impose fines and forfeitures for violations ofFCC rules; 
regulate the technical standards governing wireless services; and 
impose other obligations that it determines to be in the public interest. 

* 

- 
* 

We hold Several kinds oflicenses to deploy our services: 1.9 GHz PCS licenses utilized in the CDMA network, and 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses 
utilized in the iDEN network. We also hold 1.9 GHz and other FCC licenses that are not currently being utilized, but which we intend to use in the future 
consistent with customer demand and our obligations as a licensee. 

1.9 GHz PCS License Conditions 
All PCS licenses are granted for ten-year terms. For purposes of issuing PCS licenses, the FCC utilizes major trading areas (MTAs) and basic trading 

areas (BTAs) with several BTAs making up each MTA. Each license is subject to build-out requirements, and the FCC may revoke a license a h  a hearing ifthe 
buildaut or other applicable requirements have not been met. We have met these requirements in all ofour MTA and BTA markets. 

auctions. If a renewal application is challenged, the FCC grants a preference commonly referred to as a license renewal expectancy to the applicant ifthe applicant 
can demonstrate that it has provided "substantial service'' during the past license term and has substantially complied with applicable FCC NICS and policies and 
the Communications Act. The licenses far the I O  MHz afspecmm in the I .9 GHz band that we received as pari afthe FCC's Report and Order, described below, 
have ten-year terms and are not subject to specific buildaut conditions, but are subject to renewal requirements that are similar to those for our PCS licenses. 

Ifapplicable buildaut conditions are met, these licenses may be renewed for additional ten-year terms. Renewal applications are not subject to 
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800 MHz and 900 MHz License Conditions 
We hold licenses for channels in the 800 MHz and YO0 MH2 bands that are used to deploy our iDEN services. Because spectrum in these bands 

originally was licensed in small groups of channels, we hold thousands of these licenses, which together allow us to provide coverage across much of the 
continental United States. Our 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses are subject to requirements that we meet population coverage benchmarks tied to the initial license 
grant dates. To date, we have met all afthese construction requirements applicable to these licenses, except in the case of licenses that are not material to our 
business. Our 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses have ten-year terms, at the end of which each license is subject to renewal requirements that are similar to those for 
ow 1 .Y GHr licenses. 

Spectrum Reconfiguration Obligations 
In 2004, the FCC adopted a Report and Order that included new rules regarding interference in the 800 MHr band and a comprehensive plan to 

reconfigure the 800 MHz band. The Report and Order provides for the exchange of a portion ofour 800 MHz FCC spectrum licenses, and requires us to fund the 
cost incurred by public safety systems and other incumbent licensees to reconfigure the 800 MHz spectrum band. In addition, we received licenses for 10 MHz of 
nationwide spectrum in the 1.9 GHz band; however, we are required to relocate and reimburse the incumbent licensees in this band for their costs ofrelocation to 
another band designated by the FCC. 

The minimum cash obligation is approximately $2.8 billion under the Repon and Order. We are, however, obligated to pay the full amount ofthe costs 
relating to the recanfiguration plan, even ifthose costs exceed $2.8 billion. As required under the terms of the Report and Order, a lener of credit has been 
secured to provide assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs of the incumbent users ofthe 800 MHz spectrum. These relocation costs are 
reviewed periodically based on actual costs incurred. As a result of these reviews, our letter of credit was reduced from $2.0 billion to $1.7 billion in 2009 as 
approved by the FCC. 

Completion ofthe 800 MHz band reconfiguration was initially required by June 26,2008; however, the FCC has issued a Significant number ofwaiven 
to 800 MHz licensees giving them additional time to complete their band reconfigurations, which may delay access to some ofour 800 MHz replacement spectrum. 
Based on progress to date, a significant number of additional extension requests have been filed and more are expected. Under an October 2008 FCC Order, we 
may be required, an March 3 I ,  2010, to relinquish some ofour 800 MH2 spectrum on a region-by-region basis prior to receiving 800 MHz replacement spectrum 
On January 21, 2010, we asked the FCC lo waive the requirement in certain regions where most public safety agencies have not yet vacated our replacement 
channels. This request is pending before the FCC. The Report and Order also contained an exception with respect to markets that border Mexico and Canada. The 
exception with respect to markets that border Canada was clarified on May 9,2008 when the FCC issued the Canadian border plans to include a 30manth 
deadline for completion. 

New Spectrum Oppartuoitirs and Spectrum Auctions 
Several FCC proceedings and initiatives are undenvay that may affect the availability of specwm used or useful in the provision of commercial 

wireless services, which may allow new competitors to enter the wireless market. We cannot predict when or whether the FCC will conduct any spectrum auctions 
or ifit will release additional spectrum that might be useful to wireless carriers, including US, in the future. 

911 Services 
Pursuant to FCC rules, CMRS providers, including us, are required to provide enhanced 91 I (E9 11) Services in a two-tiered manner. Specifically, 

wireless carriers are required to transmit to a requesting public safety answering point (PSAP) both the 91 I caller’s telephone number and (a) the location of the 
cell site from which the call is being made, or (b) the location ofthe customer’s handset using latitude and longitude, depending upon the capability of the PSAP. 
Implementation of E91 1 service must be completed within six months o f a  PSAP request for service i n  its area, or longer, based on the agreement between the 
individual PSAP and carrier. As a part ofthe FCC’s approval of the Cleanvire transaction, we committed to measure the accuracy 
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ofour 91 I systems at the county level with certain exceptions. We believe we will be able to comply with this accuracy standard using existing technology 

National Security 
Issues involving national security and disaster recovery are likely to continue to receive attention at the FCC, state and local levels, and Congress. A 

major focus ofthe federal government is cyber Security. Congress is expected to take up legislation implementing measures to increase the security and resiliency 
of the Nation's digital infrastruchue. We cannot predict the cost impact of such legislation, The FCC has chartered the Communications Security. Reliability and 
Interoperability Council consisting of communications companies, public safety agencies and "on-profit consumer and community organizations to make 
recommendations to the FCC to ensure optimal security, reliability, and interoperability of communications systems. We are a member of the council. In addition, 
the FCC and the Federal Emergency Management AgencylDepanment of Homeland Security are likely to continue to focus on disaster preparedness and 
communications among first responders. We have voluntarily agreed to provide wireless emergency ale- over our CDMA network and are looking to do so over 
OUT iDEN network. Under the time line developed by the FCC, the provision of such alerts is to begin no later than April 2012. 

Tower Siting 
Wireless systems must comply with various federal, state and local regulations that govern the siting, lighting and construction of transmitter towers 

and antennas, including requirements imposed by the FCC and the Federal Aviation Administration. FCC rules subject certain cell site locations to extensive 
zonmg, environmental and historic preservation requirements and mandate consultation with various parties, including Native Americans. The FCC adopted 
significant changes to its mules governing historic preservation review of projects, which makes it more diffkult and expensive to deploy antenna facilities. The 
FCC recently has imposed a tower siting "shot c l o c k  that would require local authorities to address tower applications within a specific timebame. This may 
assist carriers in more rapid deployment oftowers. Other changes to environmental protection and tower construction rules, however, are still possible. To the 
extent governmental agencies impose additional requirements on the tower siting process, the time and cost to ~onstruct  cell towers could be negatively 
impacted. 

State and Local Regulation 
While the Communications Act generally preempts state and local governments from regulating entry of, or the rater charged by, wireless carriers, 

certain state PUCs and local governments regulate customer billing, termination of sewice arrangements, advenising, certification of operation. use of handsets 
when driving, service quality, sales practices, management of customer call records and protected information and many other areas. Also, Some state attorneys 
general have become more active in bringing lawsuits related to the sales practices and services ofwireless carriers. Varying practices among the states may make 
it mare difficult far us to implement national sales and marketing programs. States also may impose their own universal service suppon requirements on wireless 
and other communications carriers, similar to the contribution requirements that have been established by the FCC, and some states are requiring wireless carriers 
to help fund the provision of intrastate relay services far consumers who are hearing impaired. We anticipate that these trends will continue to require us to 
devote legal and other resources to work with the states to respond to their concerns while attempting to minimize any new regulation and enforcement actions 
that could increase our costs of doing business. 

Regularion and Wireline Operofions 

Competilivr Local Service 
The Telecommunications Act of 1996 (Telecom Act) the first comprehensive update of the Communications Act, was designed to promote 

competition, and it eliminated legal and regulatory barriers for entry into local and long distance communications markets. It also required incumbent local 
exchange carriers (ILECs) to allow resale of specified local services at wholesale rates, negotiate interconnection agreements, provide nondiscriminatory access to 
certain unbundled network elements and allow co-location of interconnection equipment by competitors. The rules implementing the Telecom Act remain subject 
to legal 
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challenges. Thus, the scope of future local competition remains uncertain. These local competition rules impact us because we provide wholesale services to 
cable television companies that wish lo compete in the local voice telephony market. 

We provide cable companies with communications and back+ffice services to enable the cable companies to provide competitive local and long 
distance telephone services primarily in a VolP format to their end-user customers. We are now providing these services to cable companies in a number of states 
while working to gain regulatory approvals and obtain interconnection agreements to enter additional markets. Certain rural ILECs continue to take steps to 
impede our ability to provide services to the cable companies in an efficient manner. However, regulatory decisions in several states may speed our market entry 
in those states. 

Voice over lotcract Protocol 
We offer a growing number of VolP-based services IO business subscribers and transport VolP+riginated traffic far various cable companies. The 

FCC has not yet resolved the regulatory classification of VolP services, but continues to consider the regulatory status ofvarious forms ofVoIP. In 2004, the FCC 
issued an order finding that one form of VolP, involving a specific form afcamputer-toiamputer services far which no charge is assessed and conventional 
telephone numbers are not used, is an unregulated “information service,” rather than a telecommunications service, and preempted state regulation of this 
service. 7he FCC also Nled that long distance offerings in which calls begin and end on the ordinary public switched telephone network, but are transmitted in 
pan through the use of IP, are “telecommunications services,” thereby rendering the services subject to all the regulatory obligations imposed on ordinary long 
distance services, including payment of access charges and contributions to the universal service fund (USF). In addition, the FCC preempted states from 
exercising entry and related economic regulation of interconnected VolP services that require the use of broadband connections and specialized customer 
premises equipment and permit users to terminate calls to and receive calls from the public switched telephone nehvark. However, the FCC’s ruling did not 
address specifically whether this form of VolP is an “information service” or a “telecommunications service,” or what regulatory obligations, such as intercarrier 
compensation, should apply. Nevertheless, the FCC requires interconnected VOW providers to contribute to the federal USF, offer E91 I emergency calling 
capabilities lo their subscribers, and comply with the electronic surveillance obligations set forth in the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act 
(CALEA). Because we provide VolP services and transport VolPirriginated traffic, an FCC ruling an the regulatory classification of VolP services and the 
applicability of specific intercarrier compensation rates is likely to affect the cost to provide these services; our pricing of these services; access to numbering 
resources needed lo provide these services; and long-term E91 1, CALEA and USF obligations. Continued regulatory uncertainty over the appropriale intercarrier 
compensation for interconnected VolP services has led to many disputes between carriers, 

High-speed Internet Access Services 
Following a lune 2005 U.S. Supreme Court decision affirming the FCC‘s classification of cable modem Internet access service as an “information 

service” and declining to impose mandatory common carrier regulation on cable providers, the FCC issued an order in September 2005 declaring that the wireline 
high-speed Internet access services, which are provided by ILECs, are “information services” rather than “telecommunications services.” As a result, over time 
ILECs have been relieved of certain obligations regarding the provision of the underlying broadband transmission services. In 2007, the FCC followed this 
decision with a similar deregulation of wireless high-speed Internet access services. Such deregulation should result in less regulation of some of our evolution 
data optimized (EV-DO) products and services. 

Network Neutrality 
Deregulation of broadband services has sparked a debate over ‘%et neutrality’’ and “open access.’’ Proponents of “net neutrality” assert that 

operators of broadband transmission facilities should not he permitted to make distinctions among content providers for priority access to the underlying 
facilities and that networks should he “open” to use by any device the customer chooses to bring to the network. While we have deployed open wireless 
operating platforms an our devices, such as the Android platform created in conjunction with 
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Google and the Open Handset Alliance, an open access or net neutrality mandate that i s  not narrowly crafted could adversely affect the operation of our 
broadband networks by constraining our ability to control the network and protect our users from harm caused by other users and devices. The FCC has a 
pending proceeding to consider whether a l l  high-speed Internet access services, including wireless services, should be subject to such '%et neutrality" 
obligations. The imposition afany such obligations could result in significant costs to us. 

lotrrontioaal Rcgulatioo 
The wireline services we provide outside the United States are suhject to the regulatory jurisdiction of foreign governments and international bodies. 

In general, this regulation requires that we obtain licenses far the provision ofwireline services and comply with certain government requirements. 

Other Regulofions 
Truth in Billing and Consumer Protection 
The FCC's Truth in Billing rules generally require both wireline and wireless telewmmunications carriers, such as us, to provide full and fair disclosure 

o fa l l  charges on their bills, including brief, clear, and non-misleading plain language descriptions of the services provided. In response to a petition from the 
National Association o f  State Util i ty Consumer Advocates, the FCC found that state regulation of CMRS rates, including line items an consumer hills, i s  
preempted by federal statute. This decision was overturned by the 1 Ith Circuit Court of Appeals and the Supreme Court denied furlher appeal. As a 
consequence, states may anempt to impose various regulations an the bil l ing practices ofwireless carriers. In addition, the FCC has opened a new proceeding to 
address issues o f  consumer protection, including the use o f  early termination fees, and appropriate state and federal roles. lfthis proceeding or individual state 
proceedings create changes in the Truth in Bil l ing rules, our bil l ing and customer service costs could increase. 

Access Charge Reform 
ILECs and competitive local exchange carriers (CLECs) impose access charges for the origination and termination of long distance calls upoil wkless 

and long distance carriers, including our Wireless and Wireline segments. Also, interconnected local carriers, including our Wireless segment, pay to each other 
reciprocal compensation fees for terminating interconnected local calls. In addition, ILECs and CLECs impose special access charges for their provision of 
dedicated facilities to other carriers, including bath our Wireless and Wireline segments. These fees and charges are a significant cost for our Wireless and 
Wireline segments. There are ongoing proceedings at the FCC related to access charges and special access rates, which could impact our costs for these services 
and the FCC has released recently a further Public Notice addressing special access charges. We cannot predict when these proceedings w i l l  be completed. 
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profits. The FCC is considering the legality of traffic pumping arrangements as well as rule changes to ensure that rates charged by LECs experiencing substantial 
increases in demand volumes are just and reasonable. As a major wireless and wireline carrier, we have been assessed millions of dollars in access charges for 
‘‘pumped traffic. Adoption by the FCC ofmeasures to limit the windfall profits associated with traffic pumping would have a direct beneficial impact an us. 
Recent positive decisions against several LECr and their traffc pumping partners in U S  district cowls and before the Iowa Utilities Board and the FCC may 
result in some decrease in this activity. 

Universal Srrviee Reform 

Communications carriers contribute to and receive support from various universal service funds established by the FCC and many states. The federal 
USF program funds services provided in high-cost areas, reduced-rate services to law-income consumers, and discounted communications and Internet services 
for schools, libraries and rural health care facilities. The USF is funded from assessments on communications providers, including our Wireless and Wireline 
segmenls, based on FCC-prescribed contribution factors applicable lo our interstate and international end-user revenues from telecommunications services and 
interconnected VolP services. Similarly, many states have established their own universal service funds to which we contribute. The FCC is considering changing 
the interstate revenue-based assessment with an assessment based on telephone numbers or connections to the public network, which could impact the amount 
of our ascssments, but it is not clear that the FCC is prepared to take action in the near future. As permitted, we assess subscribers for these USF charges. 

jurisdictions as an Eligible Telewmmunicationr Carrier (ETC). In 2008, the FCC capped the total amount of high cost USF supporl competitive carriers could 
receive and has continued to impose conditions an parties seeking merger or acquisition approval to reduce their USF receipts. As part of the Clearwire 
transaction, we agreed to reduce our USF receipts to zero in five equal steps over a four year-period. The annual amount we currently receive from USF is 
immaterial. In addition, various state wmmissions have imposed or are considering new billing, Lifeline service and nehvork deployment requirements which add 
significantly to the cost and burden of providing service as an ETC. A loss of our ETC designation in a given state, whether voluntary or mandatory, would 
require us to forego our USF suppon in that state 

The FCC also is considering changing the way it distributes federal USF support to competitive carriers like US. Currently, we receive support in 25 

Electronic Survrillmcc Obligations 
The CALEA requires telecommunications carriers, including us, to modify equipment, facilities and Services to allow far authorized electronic 

surveillance based an either industry or FCC standards. Our CALEA obligations have been extended to data and VolP networks, and we are in compliance with 
these requirements. Certain laws and regulations require that we assist various government agencies with eleclronic surveillance of cammunications and records 
concerning those communications. We are a defendant in four purporled class action lawsuits that allege that we participated in a program of intelligence 
gathering activities far lhe federal government following the terrorist attacks of September 1 I ,  2001 that violated federal and state law. Reliefraught in these 
cases includes injunctive relief. statutory and punitive damages, and attorneys’ fees. We believe these suits have no merit, and they were dismissed by the 
district w u n .  The plaintiffs’ appeal to the US Coun of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is pending. We do not disclose customer information to lhe government 01 

assist government agencies in electronic suneillance unless we have been provided a lawhl  request for such information. 

Privacy-Related Regulations 
We wmply with FCC customer proprietary network information (CPNI) rules, which require carriers to comply with a range of marketing and safeguard 

obligations. These obligations focus on carriers’ access, use, storage and disclosure of CPNl. In 2007, the FCC adopted a new CPNl Order that imposed 
additional CPNl obligations an carriers. The new CPNl d e s  took effect in December 2007. We are utilizing a variety ofcompliance vehicles, such as technical and 
systematic solutions and updated policies and procedures, to conform our operations to the new CPNl obligations. The technical and systematic solutions offer 
significant data security 
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benefits, but they also require significant development and testing. We petitioned the FCC for a limited waiver of Some new CPNl N k S  so that we could Complete 
development, testing and deployment ofour CPNl compliance solutions. No opposition comments were filed in response to our petition. We also continue to 
monitor our CPNl compliance program and make enhancements and improvements when necessary. 

Eoviraomcotal Compliance 
Our environmental compliance and remediation obligations relate primarily to the operation of standby power generators, batteries and fuel storage for 

our telecommunications equipment. These obligations require compliance with storage and related standards, obtaining of permits and occasional remediation. 
Although we cannot assess with certainty the impact of any future compliance and remediation obligations, we do not believe that any such expenditures will 
have a material adverse effect an our financial condition or m ~ n l t ~  afoperations. 

operated by entities acquired by Centel Corporation, formerly a subsidiary afaurs and now a subsidiary ofCenturyLink. We and CenturyLink have agreed to 
share the environmental liabilities arising from these former manufactured gas plant sites. Three ofthe sites are pan ofongoing Settlement negotiations and 
administrative consent orders with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Two ofthe sites have had initial site assessments conducted by the Nebraska 
Department ofEnviranmental Quality (NDEQ) but no regulatory actions have followed. The hvo remaining sites have had no regulatory action by the EPA or the 
NDEQ. Centel has entered into agreements with other potentially responsible parties to share costs in connection with five of the seven sites. We are working to 
assess the scape andnature ofthis responsibility, which is not expected to he material. 

We have identified seven former manufactured gas plant sites in Nebraska, not currently awned or operated by us, that may have been owned or 

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses 
We own numerous patents, patent applications, service marks, trademarks and other intellectual property in the United States and other countries, 

including “Sprinte,” “Nextelm,” “Direct Connect”,” and “Boost Mobile”.” Our services often use the intellectual property of others, such as licensed soflware, 
and we oflen license copyrights, patents and trademarks ofothers, like “Virgin MobileC” In total, these licenses and our copyrights, patents, trademarks and 
service marks are ofmaterial imponance to the business. Generally, our trademarks and service marks endure and are enforceable so long as they continue to he 
used. Our patents and licensed patents have remaining terms generally ranging from one to 19 years. 

We occasionally license our intellectual property to others, including licenses to others to use the trademarks “Sprint” and ‘‘Nextel.” 
We have received claims in the past, and may in the future receive claims, that we, or third parties from whom we license or purchase goads or 

services, have infringed on the intellectual property of others. These claims can be timeconsuming and costly lo defend, and divert management resources. If 
these claims are successful, we could be forced to pay significant damages or stop selling certain products or services or stop using cenain trademarks. We, or 
third parties from whom we license or purchase goads or SeNiCeS, also could enter into licenses with unfavorable terms, including royalty payments, which could 
adversely affect our business. 

Employee Relitions 
As of December 3 I ,  2009, we employed approximately 40,000 personnel. 
We announced cast reduction programs in January and November 2009 designed to funher align our cost slructme with the reduced revenues 

expected from fewer subscribers. Approximately 1,200 positions from the 2009 reductions will not be completed until 20 10, and as such, are still included in the 
ending employee count above. 

Access to Public Filings and Board Committcc Charters 
Important information is routinely posted on our website at www.sprinl.com. Information contained on the website is not part afthis annual report. 

Public access is provided to our annual repons an Farm 10-K, quarterly reports an Farm 1 O-Q, current reports on Farm 8-K, and amendments lo these reports filed 
with the 
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Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These documents may be accessed free ofcharge on our website at the 
following address: hrrp://inveslors.sprint.co,n. These documents are available as soon as reasonably practicable after filing with the SEC and may also be found 
at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. 

Public access i s  provided to our Code o f  Ethics, entitled the Sprint Nextel Code ofconduct, our Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of 
the following committees of our board of directors: the Audit  Committee, the Compensation Committee, the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, and the 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Code of Conduct, corporate governance guidelines and committee charters may be accessed free of 
charge on our website at the following address: www,spr;nr.eom/governance. Copies of any ofthese documents can be obtained free ofcharge by writing to: 
Sprint Nextel Shareholder Relations, 6200 Sprint Parkway, Mailstop KSOPHF0302-3B424, Overland Park, Kansas 6625 I or by email at 
shareholder.relotrons@sprrnr.com. If a provision of the Code of Conduct required under the NYSE corporate governance standards is materially modified, or if a 
waiver ofthe Code ofcanduct is granted to a director or executive officer, a notice of such action will be posted an our website at the fallowing address: 
www.sprinr.com/governance. Only the Audit Committee may consider a waiver of the Code ofcanduct for an executive officer or director. 

Item IA. Risk Factors 

business, financial condition, liquidiiy or results ofoperations could be materially adversely affected by any ofthese risks. 

Ifwe are no1 oble lo nmact and retoin wireless subscribers, our/innneialperforrnanee will be impaired 

and retain current subscribers. If we are unable to find enough people willing to subscribe far or purchase our wireless communications services, or unwilling to 
continue to purchase our services, at the prices at which we are willing to sell them, our financial performance will be impaired, and we could fail to meet OUT 
financial obligations, which could result in several outcomes, including controlling investments by third parties, takeover bids, liquidation ofassets or 
insolvency. Since January 1,2009, we have experienced a 1 .O million decrease in our total retail subscriber base, including approximately 3.5 million post-paid 
subscribers, while our two largest competitors increased their subscribers. In addition, over the past y e a ,  we have experienced an average post-paid churn rate of 
2.15%. while our fwo largest competitors had churn rates that were substantially lower. 

In addition to the other information contained in this Form IO-K, the following risk factors should be considered carefully in evaluating us. Our 

We are in the business of selling communications services to subscribers, and our economic success is based on our ability to attract new subscribers 

Our ability to compete successfully for new subscribers and to retain our existing subscribers and reduce our rate ofchurn depends on: 
* our successful execution of marketing and sales strategies, including the acceptance of our value proposition; service delivery and customer 

care activities, including new account set up and billing; and our credit and collection policies; 
actual or perceived quality and coverage ofaur  network 
public perception about our brands; 
our ability to anticipate and develop new or enhanced products and services that are attractive to existing or potential subscribers; 
our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry, including new services that may be introduced by 
our competitors, changes in consumer preferences, demographic trends, economic conditions, and discount pricing and other strategies that 
may be implemented by our competitors; and 
our ability to enter into arrangements with MWOs and alternative resellers; 

* 
* 

* 

* 

Our recent efforts to attract new post-paid subscribers and reduce churn have not been as successful as those of our competitors. Our post-paid 
subscriber losses and high rate ofchum have impaired our ability to 
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maintain the level of revenues generated in prior periods and caused deterioration in the operating margins ofour wireless operations and our operations as a 
whole, the effects ofwhich will continue ifwe do not attract new subscribers and reduce our rate of chum. Our ability to retain subscribers may also he 
negatively affected by industry trends related to subscriber c ~ n t r ~ c t s .  For example, we and our competitors no longer require subscribers to renew their contracts 
when making changes to their pricing plans. These types afchanges could negatively affect our ability to retain subscribers and could lead to an increase in our 
chum rates i fwe are not successful in providing an attractive product and service mix. 

We expect to incur expenses to attract new subscribers, improve subscriber retention and reduce chum, but there can be no assurance that our efforts 
will result in new subscribers or a lower rate of subscriber chum. Subscriber losses and a high rate of chum adversely affect our business, financial wndition and 
rcsulls ofaperations because they result in lost revenues and cash flow. Although attracting new subscribers and retention of existing subscribers are important 
to the financial viability a fau r  business, there is an added focus on retention because the cost of adding a new subscriber is higher than the cost associated with 
retention of an existing subscriber, and new subscribers are generally entering into contracts with lower average revenue per subscriber than the subscribers 
leaving our network 

As the wireless market matures, we must increasingly seek to m r m f  subscribers from eompefifors and face increased credit riskfromfrsf-lime wireless 
subscribers. 

than from first-time purchasers of wireless services. Recently, we have not been able to attract past-paid subscribers a1 the same rate 83 our competitors and have 
had a net lass ofpost-paid subscribers during each ofthe last three fiscal years ending December 3 I ,  2009. In addition, the higher market penetration also means 
that subscribers purchasing wireless services for the first time, an average, have a lower credit scare than existing wireless users, and the number afthese 
subscribers we are willing to accept is dependent on our credit policies. To the extent we cannot compere effectively for new subscribers, our revenues and 
results of operations will be adversely affected 

Compelition and technological changes in the morkeffor wireless services couldnegatively affecf our average revenueper subscriber, subscriber churn, 
operaling CDSIS and our obiliry to onracr new subscribers, resulting in adverse effeeefs on our revenues, future carhfows,  growth ondproftability. 

We compete %th a number ofather wireless sewice providers in each of the markets in which we provide wireless services, and we expect 
competition to increase as additional spectrum is made available for commercial wireless services and as new technologies are developed and launched. As 
competition among wireless communications providers has increased, we have created pricing plans that have resulted in declining average revenue per 
subscriber, for voice and data services, a trend that we expect will continue. Competition in pricing and service and product offerings may also adversely impact 
subscriber retention and our ability to attract new subscribers, with adverse effects on our results of operations. A decline in the average revenue per subscriber 
coupled with OUT declining number of subscribers will negatively impact our revenues. future cash flows, growth and overall profitability, which, in turn, could 
impact our ability to meet our financial obligations. 

technology and the deployment of unlicensed spectrum devices. This change causes uncertainty about future subscriber demand for our wireless services and 
the prices that we will be able to charge for these services. In addition, due, in part, to current economic conditions, we are carefully monitoring our spending, and 
we are targeting how and where we spend our capital on network and service enhancements. Spending by our competitors on new wireless Services and network 
improvements could enable our competitors to obtain a competitive advantage with new technologies or enhancements that we do not offer. Rapid change in 
technology may lead to the development of wireless communications technologies or alternative services that are superior to our technologies or services or that 
consumers prefer over ours. If we are unable to meet future advances in competing technologies on a timely basis, or at an acceptable cost, we may not be able to 
compete effectively and could lose subscribers to our competitors. 

We and our competitors increasingly must seek to attract a greater proportion of new subscribers from each other's existing subscriber bases rather 

The wireless communications industry is experiencing significant technological change, including improvements in the capacity and quality of digital 
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Mergers or other business combinations involving our competitors and new entrants, including new wholesale relationships, beginning to offer 
wireless services may also continue to increase competition. There wireless operators may be able to offer subscribers network features or products and services 
not offered by us, coverage in areas not served by either of our wireless networks or pricing plans that are lower than those offered by us, all ofwhich would 
negatively affect our average revenue per subscriber, subscriber churn, ability to attract new subscribers, and operating casts. For example, AT&T, Verizon and 
T-Mobile now offer competitive wireless services packaged with local and long distance voice and high-speed Internet services, and flat rate voice and data 
plans. Our prepaid services compete with several regional carriers, including Metro PCS and Leap Wireless, which offer competitively-priced prepaid calling plans 
that include unlimited local calling. In addition, we may lose subscribers ofour higher priced plans to our prepaid offerings. 

One of the primary differentiating features of our iDEN network is the two-way walkie-talkie service. Several wireless equipment vendors, including 
Mutorola, which supplies equipment for our Nextel-branded service, have begun to offer wireless equipment that is capable ofproviding walkie-talkie services 
that are designed to compete with our walkie-talkie services. Several of our competitors have introduced devices that are capable of providing walkie-talkie 
services. If these competitors’ services are perceived lo be or become comparable, or if any sewices introduced in the future are comparable to our Nextel- 
branded walkie-talkie services, a key competitive advantage ofour Nextel service would be reduced, which in turn could adversely affect our business. 

Failure to improve wireless subscriber service nnd failure lo continue Io enhance the quality nnd feofures of our wireless networks ondmeet capacity 
requirements of our subscriber base couldimpair ourfi~lnoncinlperformonfe and adversely oflect our resulfs of operations. 

among other things, the current economic conditions, we are carefully targeting how and where we spend our capital on network and service enhancements. Over 
the past few years, we worked to enhance the quality ofour wireless networks and related services by: 

Although we must continually make investments and incur costs in order to improve OUT wireless subscriber service and remain competitive, due to, 

* 
* 
* 
* 

maintaining and expanding the capacity and coverage ofour networks: 
securing suftircient transmitter and receiver sites and obtaining zoning and construction approvals or permits at appropriate locations: 
obtaining adequate quantities of system infrastructure equipment and devices, and related accessories to meet subscriber demand; and 
obtaining additional spectrum in Some or all ofour markets, ifand when necessary. 

Our current budget and focus on careful spending will require us to make decisions on the necessity and timing ofceltain network enhancements. We 
may not continue to update our network at the same rate as in previous years. l faur  competitors spend on their network and service enhancements while we are 
curtailing our nonessential spending, their networks could perform at levels superior to ours, which could negatively affect our ability to attract new subscribers 
or retain existing subscribers. 

Any network and service enhancements we decide to make may not occur as scheduled or at the cost that we have estimated. Delays or failure to add 
network capacity, failure to maintain roaming agreements or increased costs of adding capacity could limit our ability to satisfy our wireless subscribers, resulting 
in decreasedrevenues. Even i fwe continuously upgrade our wireless networks, there Can be no assurance that existing subscribers will not prefer features ofour 
competitors and switch wireless providers. 

Current economic conditions, our reeentfinonciolper/ormance and  our debt raflngs couldnegntively impocf our access to fhe cnpi~nl markets rerulting in 
less growfh than planned orfailure to sotisfyfinoneiol covennnts under our existing debt agreements. 

plans or to satisfy our debt service requircments for the next few years, we may need to incur additional debt in the future for a variety ofreasons, including 
future 

Although we do not believe we will require additional capital to make the capital and operating expenditures necessary to implement our business 

IS 
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Consolidotion ond cornpetifion in the wholesale markef for wireline services, (IS well as consolidofion of our roamirrgporfnerr and accessproviders used for 
wireless services, could adversely affect our revenues ondprofltobility. 

Our Wireline segment competes with AT&T, Verizon, Qwest Communications, Level 3 Communications Inc., other major local incumbent operating 
companies, and cable operators, as well as a host ofsmaller competitors, in the provision of wireline services. Some of these companies have highsapacity, IP- 
based fiber-optic networks capable of supporting large amounts ofvoice and data traffic. Some ofthese companies claim certain cost stmctwe advantages that, 
among other factors, may allow them to offer services at a price below that which we can offer profitably. In addition, consolidation by these companies could 
lead to fewer companies controlling access to more cell sites, enabling them to control usage and rates, which could negatively affect our revenues and 
profitability. 

business digital telephone services. These contracts may not be renewed as they expire, generally in the time period between 201 I and 2013. 

huther. AT&T and Verizan continue to be our two largest competitors in the domestic long distance communications market. We and other long distance carriers 
depend heavily on local access facilities obtained From ILECs to serve our long distance subscribers, and payments to ILECs for these facilities are a significant 
cost of service for our Wireline segment. The long distance operations of AT&T and Verizon have cost and operational advantages with respect to these access 
facilities because those camicrs S C N ~  significant geographic areas, including many large urban areas, as the incumbent local carrier. 

partners and access providers, which could negatively affect our revenues and profitability. 

Failure to compiefe developmenf, fesfing anddeployment of new IeehnologV fhaf supporfs new services could affect our ability Io compete in the indusfry. 
The deployment of new fechnologV and new service offerings could resulf in network degrodnfion or the loss of subscribers. In oddifion, the technology we 
use may place us af II eompefifive disndvanfage. 

We develop, test and deploy various new technologies and suppan systems intended 10 enhance our competitiveness by both supporting new 
services and features and reducing the costs associated with providing those services. Successful development and implementation oftechnology upgrades 
depend, in part, on the willingness ofthird parties to develop new applications in a timely manner. We may not successfully complete the development and 
rollout ofnew technology and related features or 
which case we could not recover our investment in the technology. Deployment oftechnology supponing new service offerings may also adversely affect the 
performance or reliability ofour networks with respect to both the new and existing services and may require us to take action like curtailing new subscribers in 
cenain markets. Any resulting subscriber dissatisfaction could affect our ability to retain subscribers and have an adverse effect on our results ofoperations and 
growth prospects. 

Our wireless networks provide services utilizing CDMA and iDEN technologies. Wireless subscribers served by these two technologies represent a 
smaller ponion of global wireless subscribers than the subscribers served by wireless networks that utilize Global System for Mobile Communications (GSM) 
technology. As a result, our costs with respect to both CDMA and iDEN network equipment and devices may continue to be higher than the comparable costs 
incurred by our competitors who use GSM technology, which places US at a competitive disadvantage. 

lnvesment in Cleanvire” below far risks related to our investment in Cleanvice and the deployment of 4G. 

We provide wholesale services under long term contracts to cable television operators which enable these operators to provide consumer and 

Increased competition and the significant increase in capacity resulting from new technologies and networks may drive already low prices down 

In addition, our Wireless segment could be adversely affected by changes in rates and access fees that result from consolidation ofour roaming 

in a timely manner, and they may not be widely accepted by our subscribers or may not be profitable, in 

We entered into agreements in 2008 with Clearwire to integrate our former 4G wireless broadband business with theirs. See “Risks Related to our 
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The blurring of the traditional dividing lines among long distance, local, wireless, video and Internet services contribute to increased competition. 

The traditional dividing lines among long distance, local, wireless, video and Internet services are increasingly becoming blurred. Through mergers, 
joint ventures and various service expansion strategies, major providers are striving to provide integrated services in many of the markets we serve. This trend is 
also reflected in changes in the regulatory environment that have encouraged competition and the offering of integrated services 

We expect competition to intensify across all of our business segments as a result a f the  entrance of new competitors or the expansion of services 
offered by existing competitors, and the rapid development ofnew technologies, products and services. We cannot predict which afmany possible future 
technologies, products, or services will be important to maintain our competitive position or what expenditures we will be required to make in order to develop 
and provide these technologies, products or services. To the extent we do not keep pace with technological advances or fail to timely respond to changes in the 
competitive environment affecting our industry, we could lose market share or experience a decline in revenue, cash flows and net income. As a result ofthe 
financial strength and benefits ofscale enjoyed by some ofour competitors, they may he able to offer services at lower prices than we can, thereby adversely 
affecting our revenues, growth and profitability. 

If we are unable to improve our results of operations, we face the possibility of additional charges for lmpoirments of long-lived or indefinite-lived assets. In 
addition, V t h e  fair market value of our Investment In Clearwire based on quotedprlces continues to trade below Its book value, It could result in an 
impairment charge. Also, our future operating results will be impacted by our share ofCleorwire’s net loss or net income, which during thisperiod of their 
network bulld-out will likely negotively affect our results of operations. 

recoverable. l fwe  are unable to improve our results ofaperations and cash flows, a review could lead to a material impairment charge in our consolidated financial 
statements. In addition, ifwe continue to have challenges retaining subscribers and as we continue to assess the impact ofrebanding the iDEN network, 
management may conclude in future periods that certain CDMA and iDEN assets will never be either deployed or redeployed, in which case cash and non-cash 
charges that could he material to our consolidated financial statements would be recognized. 

We account far OUT investment in Clearwire using the equity method ofaccounting and, as a result, we record our share of Clearwire’s net income or 
net loss, which could adversely affect our consolidated results ofoperations. In addition, the trading price of Clearwire’s Class A common stack has been and 
may continue to he volatile, and the estimated fair market value ofour investment may continue to he below the hook value of the investment, which could result 
in a material impairment in our consolidated financial statements 

If Motorola is unable or unwilling to provide us with equipment and devices In support of our iDEN-basedservices, as well as Improvements, our operations 
will be adversely offeeeted. 

except far BlackBerry devices. Although our handset supply agreement with Motorola is structured to provide competitivelypriced devices, the cost of iDEN 
devices is generally higher than devices that do not incorporate a similar multi-function capability. This difference may make it more difficult or costly for us to 
offer devices at prices that are attractive to potential subscribers. In addition, the higher cost of iDEN devices requires us to absorb a larger part ofthe Cost of 
offering devices to new and existing subscribers, which may reduce our growth and profitability. Also, we must rely on Motorola to develop devices and 
equipment capable of supporting the features and services we offer to subscribers of services on our iDEN network, including the dual-mode,devices. A decision 
by Motorola to discontinue, or the inability of Motorola to continue, manufacturing, supporting or enhancing our iDEN-based infrastructure and devices would 
have a material adverse effect on us. In addition, because iDEN technology is not as widely adapted and has fewer subscribers than other wireless technologies, 
it is less likely that manufacturers other than Motorola will be willing to make the significant financial commitment required to license, develop and manufacture 
iDEN 

We review our wireless and wireline long-lived assets far impairment when changes in circumstances indicate that the book amount may not be 

Motorola is our sole source for most ofthe equipment that suppbrts the iDEN network and for all ofthe devices we offer under the Nextel brand 
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infrastructure equipment and devices, which would impose material costs on us including, among other things, migrating subscribers off the iDEN network. 
Further, our ability to complete the specmm reconfiguration plan in connection with the FCC's Report and Order is dependent, in part, an Motorola. 

We have enlered info agreements wilh unreintedparties/or certain business operofions. Amy diffieulfies experienced in these arrangements could r e d l  in 
addifional expense, loss o/subscriben and revenue, inferrupfion o/our services 01 (I delay in the roli-out o/new fechnology. 

and wireline networks, and for the development and maintenance of certain soflware systems necessary for the operation of our business. We also have 
agreements with third parties to provide customer service and related support 10 our wireless subscribers and outsourced aspects of our wireline network and 
back offlice functions to third parties. In addition, we have sublease agreements with third parties far space on communications towers. As a result, we must rely 
on third parties to perform certain a f a u t  operations and, in certain circumstances, interface with our subscribers. lfthese third parties are unable 10 perform to our 
requirements, we would have to pursue alternative strategies to provide these services and that could result in delays, interruptions, additional expenses and loss 
of subscribers. 

Theproduels and services ufiiized by us and oursuppliers andservice providers may infinge on inleliecfuolproperly rights owned by ofhers. 

Some of our products and services use intellectual property that we own. We also purchase products from suppliers, including device suppliers, and 
outsource Services to Service providers, including billing and customer care functions, that incorporate or utilize intellectual property. We and some of our 
suppliers and service providers have received, and may receive in the future, assertions and claims from third parties that the products or software utilized by us 
or our suppliers and Service providers infringe on the patents or other intellectual property rights ofthese third parlies. These claims could require us or an 
infringing supplier or service provider to cease certain activities or to cease selling the relevant products and services. These claims and assertions also could 
subject us to costly litigation and significant liabilities for damages or royalty payments, or require us to cease certain activities or to cease selling certain 
products and Services. 

Government regulation could ndverseiy n//ecf ourprospem and results of operafions; fhe FCC ondslote reguialory commissions may adopt new 
regulafions or lake ofher oefions fhnt could adversely a//ect our businessprospeef~./ufu,e growfh or results o/operalions. 

regulations or take other actions that would adversely affect our business prospects or results of operations. 

depending an the jurisdiction, international, state and local regulatory agencies. In particular, the FCC imposes significant regulation on licensees of wireless 
spectrum with respect to haw radio spectrum is used by licensees, the nature ofthe services that licensees may offer and how the services may be offered, and 
resolution of issues ofinterference between spectrum bands. 

The FCC grants wireless licenses for terms of generally ten years that are subject to renewal and revocation. There is no guarantee that our licenses 
will be renewed. Failure to comply wilh FCC requirements in a given license area could result in revocation ofthe license for that license area. 

Depending OD their outcome, the FCC's proceedings regarding regulation of special access rates could affect the rates paid by our Wireless and 
Wireline segments for special access services in the future. Similarly, depending on their outcome, the FCC's proceedings on the regulatory clsssification of VOW 
services could affect the intercarrier compensation rates and the level of USF contributions paid by us. 

spectrum licenses and requires us to fund the cost incurred by public safety systems and other incumbent licensees to recanfigure. In order to accomplish the 
reconfiguration, we may 

We have entered into agreements with unrelated parties for the dayloday  execution of services, provisioning and maintenance for our CDMA, iDEN 

'The FCC and other federal, state and local, as well as international, governmental authorities have jurisdiction over our business and could adopt 

The licensing, construction, operation, sale and interconnection arrangements ofwireless telecommunications systems are regulated by the FCC and, 

In 2004, the FCC adapted a Report and Order to recanfigure the 800 MHr band that provides for the exchange o f a  partion ofour 800 MHz FCC 
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need to cease our use of a portion ofthe 800 MHz spectrum an our iDEN network in a particular market before we are able to begin use ofreplacement 800 MHz 
spectrum in that market. To mitigate the temporaw lass of the use ofthis spectrum, we may need to construct additional transmitter and receiver sites or acquire 
additional spectrum. In markets where we are unable to C O ~ S ~ N C ~  additional sites or acquire additional spectrum as needed, the decrease in capacity may 
adversely affect the performance ofour iDEN network. 

may not be preempted by federal law. If imposed, these regulations could make it more difficult and expensive to implement national sales and marketing 
programs and could increase the costs of our wireless operations. 

Degradation in network performance caused by compliance with government regulation, loss of spectrum or additional rules associated with the use 
of spectrum in any market could result in an inability to attract new subscribers or higher subscriber churn in that market, which could adversely affect our 
revenues and results afaperations. In addition, additional costs or fees imposed by governmental regulation could adversely affect ourrevenues, future growth 
and results ofoperations 

The currenl economic environmenl may make if di / / lr l t for our businessponnrrs andsubscribers lo meet their conlrocluol obligations, which could 
negolively affect our resuils of opernrions. 

and subscribers to have problems meeting their contrachlal obligations wilh us. l faur  suppliers are unable to fulfill our orders or meet their contractual 
obligations with us, we may not have the sewices or devices available to meet the needs a f a u r  current and future subscribers, which could cause us to lose 
current and potential subscribers to other carriers. In addition, ifaur distributors are unable lo stay in business, we could lase distribution points, which could 
negatively affect our business and results of operations. Finally, if our subscribers are unable to pay their bills or potential subscribers feel they are unable to 
take an additional financial obligations, they may be forced to forgo our services, which could negatively affect our results of operations. 

Our business could be negolively impacted by securiry fhreals and olher disruplions. 

technology security that affect our wireline and wireless networks, including transport facilities, communications switches, routers, microwave links, cell sites or 
other equipment or third-party owned local and long-distance networks on which we rely, could have a material adverse effect on our operations. These events 
could disrupt our operations, require significant resources, result in a loss of subscribers or impair our ability to attract new subscribers, which in turn could have 
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

Concerns oboul henllh risks nssocioled wilh wireless eyuipmenl may reduce the demandfor our services. 

Purported class actions and other lawsuits have been filed against numerous wireless carriers, including us, seeking not only damages but also remedies that 
could increase our cost of doing business. We cannot be sure of the outcome of those cases or that our business and financial condition will not be adversely 
affected by litigation of this nature or public perception about health risks. The actual or perceived risk ofmobile communications devices could adversely affect 
us through a reduction in subscribers, reduced network usage per subscriber or reduced financing available to the mobile communications industry. Funher 
research and studies are ongoing, and we cannot guarantee that additional studies will not demonstrate a link between radio frequency emissions and health 
concerns. 

Various  state^ are considering regulations over terms and conditions of service, including certain billing practicer and consumer-related issues that 

The current economic environment has made it difficult for businesses and consumers to obtain credit, which could cause our suppliers, distributors 

Major equipment failures, natural disasters, including severe weather, terrorist acts, cyber attacks or other breaches of network or information 

Ponable communications devices have been alleged to pose health risks, including cancer, due to radio frequency emissions from these devices. 
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Item 18. Uoresolvrd StaR Comments 
None. 

Item 1. Properties 
Our corporate headquarters is located in Overland Park, Kansas and consists of about 3,853,000 square feet. 
Our grass property, plant and equipment at December 3 I ,  2009 totaled $46.2 billion, as follows: 

lW9 

Wireless 
W ireline 
Corporate and other 
Total S 46.2 - 

Properties utilized by our Wireless segment generally wnsist of base transceiver stations, switching equipment and towers, as well as leased and 

Properties utilized by our Wireline segment generally consist of land, buildings, switching equipment, digital fiber optic network and other transport 

As of December 3 1, 2009, about $ I  .4 billion afoutstanding debt, comprised ofcertain secured notes, financing and capital lease obligations and 

owned general office facilities and retail stores. We lease space far base station towers and switch sites for our wireless network. 

facilities. We have been granted easements, rightsaf-way and rights-af-accupancy by railroads and other private landowners for our fiber optic network. 

mortgages, is secured by $1.2 billion ofgross property, plant and equipment, and other assets. 

Item 3. Lrgd Proerrdiogs 

agreement, Sprint and iPCS sought an immediate stay of litigation and the Circuit Court ofCook County, Illinois, Chancery Division and the Illinois Appellate 
Court entered the slay on all litigation, including iPCS's request for an injunction to block the merger of Sprint and Virgin Mobile USA, Inc., and, upon the closing 
ofthe acquisition, all litigation between iPCS and Sprint was dismissed. Subsequent to the announcement of our merger agreement, two lawsuits were filed in 
Cook County, Illinois state court on behalf ofiPCS shareholders against iPCS, the members of the iPCS Board of Directors as individual defendants, Sprint Nextel 
and Ireland Acquisition Corp. seeking to enjoin Sprint Nextel's proposed acquisition of iPCS' common stock. The complaints assert breach of fiduciary duties by 
the individual defendant iPCS directors and aiding and abetting the breach of fiduciary duties by Sprint Nextel. We are engaged in settlement negotiations and 
expect to resolve the complaints far an mount not material to Sprint. 

We are involved in certain other legal proceedings that are described in Note 12 ofNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this 
report. During the quarter ended December 3 I ,  2009, there were no material developments in the status afthese legal proceedings. 

Various other suits, proceedings and claims, including purported class actions typical for a large business enterprise, are pending against us or our 
subsidiaries. While it is not possible to determine the ultimate disposition of each ofthese proceedings and whether they will be resolved consistent with our 
beliefs, we expect that the outcome of such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or 
results of operations. 

Item 4. 

On October 18,2009, we entered into a mergeragreement with iPCS pursuant to which Sprint agreed to acquire iPCS. In connection with the merger 

Submission ofMalters to a Vote ofSecurily Holders 
No matter was submitted to a vote ofsecurity holders during the fourth quarter 2009. 
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2009 
N."W Business Experience Hold Since 

RobertH. Johnson President - Consumer. He was appointed President - Consumer in May 2009. 55 
He co-founded and seNed as Chief Operating Officer o f  Sotta Wireless Inc. 
from I:ebruary 2006 to January 2009. Prior to joining Satto Wireless, he served 
in various executive positions at AT&T Wireless Services, Inc. since 1988, 
most recently as Executive Vice Resident, National Operations. 

and Comorate Secretm in October 2008. He sewed as our Vice President for 
Charles R. Wunach General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. He was appointed General Counsel 2008 54 

Paget L .  Alves 

Steven L. Elfman 

Daniel H. Schulman 52 
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Name Bosinrss Experience Held Sinre 
Danny L. Bowman President - Integrated Solutions Group. He was appointed President - 2009 44 

Integrated Solutions Group in September 2009. He Served as President - i D M  
from June 2008 to August 2009. He served in various executive positions 
including Product Development and Management, Sales, Marketing and 
General Management since 1997. 

Senior Vice President, Boost Mobile from April 2008 until Janualy 2010 and e3 
Senior Vice President, Base Management from December 2006 until April 2008. 
Prior to joining Sprint, he served as Senior Vice President ofMarketing at PNC 
Financial Services. 

Vice President - Controller. He was appointed Vice President, Controller in 
November 2009. He served as Vice President and Assistant Controller horn 
January 2009 to November 2009. Prior to joining Spint, he worked far 
LyondellBasell Industries, a chemical manufacturing company, from January 
2004 through January 2009, where he held various executive level finance and 
accounting positions, including Controller - European Operations 

Malthew Carter President - 4G. He was appointed President ~ 4G in January 2010. He served as 2010 49 
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PART I1 
ltcm 5. 
Common Share Data 

Series 1 common stock prices, as reponed on the NYSE composite are as follows: 

Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relnled Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purebases o f  Equity Securities. 

The principal wading market far our Series I common stack is the NYSE. Our Series 2 common stock is not publicly traded. The high and low Sprint 

Series 1 eornmon stock 
First quaner 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 78 66 672 I 3 5  I 8 3  

Number ofSh.rrboldrrsofReeord 

common stock record holders. 

Dividends 
We did not declare any dividends on our common shares in 2008 or 2009. We are currently restricted from paying cash dividends by the terms ofour 

revolving bank credit facility as described under Item 7 "Management '3 Drscusrion and Analysis o/Financiul Condition andResulls qfOperutions - Liquidfry 
andCuprtal Resources - Liquidity. " 

As of February 19,2010, we had about 41,000 Series 1 common stock record holders, 4 Series 2 common stock record holders, and no non-voting 

Issuer Purchsscs of Equity Securities 
None. 
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Performance Graph 

The graph below compares the yearly change in the cumulative total shareholder return for our Series I common stock with the S&PJ!> 500 Stock Index 
and the Dow Jones U,S, Telecommunications Index for the five-year period from December 31 , 2004 to December 31 , 2009, The graph assumes an initial 
investment of$1 00 on December 31,2004 and reinvestment of all dividends, 

5-Year Total Return 

-o-Sprint Ne)(tel -o-S&P 500 -0-00w Jones U,S, Telecom Index 

~oo r----------------------------------------------------------, 

S150 ---.--------------.-,.------.-,.::;... :....--"'-"""-----.-------.-.---­

j $100 

S50 ~---

1213 112004 

Value ofSIOO Invested on December 31, 2004 

Sprint Nextel 
S&P 500 
Dow Jones U,S, Telecom Index 

2004 

$ 100,00 
$ 100,00 
$ 100,00 

2005 

$ 95 ,07 
$ 104,91 
$ 102,04 

$ 
$ 
$ 

2006 

84 ,10 
121.48 
139,62 

$ 
$ 
$ 

2007 

58,72 
128,16 
153.64 

$ 
$ 
$ 

2008 

8,18 
80,74 

103.04 

$ 
$ 
$ 

2009 

16.37 
102, II 
113.20 
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Item 6. Selected Fimacial Data 

merger and the subsequent Nextel Pmners, Inc , Virgin Moblle USA, Inc and PCS Ailillate acqulsitlons, as well as our November 2008 contnbutton ofour next 
generation wireless network to Clearwire The acquired companies' results of operations subsequent to thelr acqulsmon dates are included m our consohdated 
financial statements Embarq Corporation, our former local segment, which was spun*ff in 2006, IS shown as dlscontmued operatmns for all permds prmr to !he 
spin-off We lost approximately I 0 million retail wireless subscribers m 2009, 5 1 million in 2008 and 658,000 in 2007, which caused !he m a p m y  ofthe reductm in 
net operating revenues in those periods 

The 2009,2008,2007 and 2006 data presented below IS not comparable lo that ofthe prior periods prlmartly as a result ofthe August 2005 Spnnt-Nextel 

Year Ended Dlcenber31, 
ZW6 ZWI - - -  1W9 fW8 IW7 

Results of Operanons 
Net operating revenues 
Goodwill impairment 
Depreciation and amortization 
Operating (loss) mcomeS1 
(Loss) income from continuing operationsi'l 
Discontinued operations, net 
Cumulative effect of change ~n accounting p r i m p  

(Loss) Earnings per Sbnre and Dividends 
and diluted (loss) earnings per common share 
Discontinued operations 
Cumulative effect ofchange in accounting p 

Dividends per common shareW 

$ (084) $ (098) 

$55,424 $58,550 S 64,295 $97, 
Property, plant and equipment, net 
Intangible assets, net 
Total debt, capital lease and financing obligations 
Seventh series redeemable preferred shares 
Shareholders' equity01 18,095 19,915 22,445 53,441 52,226 

ClSb FlOW Data 
Net cash provided by operating activities 
Capital expenditures 

In 2009, we recognizednel charges 0/$389 million ($248 million ofiw 1ax)primorily related to ~ e v e m n c e  exit costs and asset impairments other than 
goodwill. I n  2008. we recordedner charges 0/$936 million ($586 million afler iax)primarily relared lo asset impoirmenls oiher than goodwrll, 
severance ondexir COSIS, andmerger and rnlegrarion cosu. In 2007, w e  recognizednei charges 0/$956 million ($590 million afler Wprrmar i l y  
related 10 merger and integralion costs, mset  imparrmenls other than goodwill, andseverance and exir costs. In 2006, we recognized nef  charges a/ 
$620 million ($381 mrllion afru fax)primorily reloled to merger andinregration COSIS, asset impairmenis. andseverance andexii costs. In 2005, we 
recordedner charges 0/$723 million ($445 million afler la) primarily relared to merger and integration costs, asset impazrmenfs, andseverance and 
hurricane-reloled costs. 
We did nor declare any drvidends on our common shares in 2009 and 2008. In rhefirst and secondquarter 2005, a dividendo/$O. l25per share was 
paid. In the Ihrrdand/ourih quarter 2005 and for each quarier 0/2006 and2007, the divrdend was $0.025 per share. 
In eomplermg o detailedreconoliotion q lne t  de/erred lax liabilities in 2009, it w m  deiermined rho1 ne1 de/erred lax lrabilities were overslared in 
priorperiods. Previously reporredshareholders'equiry has been increased by $310 millton as qfDecember 31, 2008, 2007, and2006andincreosed 
by $289 million a3 of December 31. 2005 related to a reduction in deferred tax liabdiiies. 
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Item 7. 
OVERVIEW 
Business SIrntegies and Key Priorilies 

to meet the needs of individual consumers, businesses, government subscribers and resellers. The communications industry has been and will continue to be 
highly competitive on the basis ofprice, the types of services and devices offered and the quality ofservice. As discussed below in “Effeecls on our Wireless 
Business 4/Posl-poidSubscriber Losses,” the Company has experienced significant losses of subscribers in the critical post-paid wireless market and is currently 
focused on specific steps to reduce such losses. 

Significant steps in positioning ourselves for2010 include our fourth quarter 2009 investment agreement with C l e w i r e  to contribute an additional $1.176 billion 
increasing our ownership percentage to 56% as of December 3 1,2009 and enhancing Cleanvire’r ability to further its 4G network buildout: and the fourth quarter 
2009 acquisitions ofvirgin Mobile USA, Inc. (VMU) allowing us to broaden our product offerings in the prepaid wireless market and iPCS, Inc. (iPCS) to expand 
our direct subscriber base, grow our direct coverage area and simplify our business operations. Our future growth plans and strategy revolve around the 
following key priorities: 

Management’s Diseussion nod Analysis of Fioaoeial Cooditioo and Results dOpera t ioos  

Sprint is a communications company offering a comprehensive range of wireless and wireline communications products and services that are designed 

Our business strategy is lo be responsive to changing consumer mobility demands by being innovative and differentiated in the marketplace. 

Improve ihe customer experience: 
Strengthen the Sprint brand, and * 

* Generate operating cash flow. 
Our Sprint brand stands for Simplicity, Productivity and Value by making it affordable to do m o ~ e  than just talk. We have reduced confusion over 

pricing plans and complex bills with our Simply Everything and Everything Data plans and our Any Mobile AnytimesM feature that offer savings compared to our 
competition. In addition lo savings offered to consumers, new Business Advantage pricing plans are available to our business subscribers who can also take 
advantage of Any Mobile, AnytimeSM with certain plans. To simplify and improve the customer experience, we have inmoduced tools such as Sprint0 One Click 
that allows subscribers to access various software applications through a single click on their mobile devices and Ready Now which trains our subscribers before 
they leave lhe store on how to use their mobile devices. For our business subscribers, we aim to increase their productivity by helping them upgrade from older, 
less flexible network technologies to IP and by providing differentiated services that utilize the advantages of combining IP networks with wireless technology. 
This differentiation enables us to acquire and retain both wireline-only and combined wireline-wireless subscribers on our networks. 

Consistent with the changing economic environment, our prepaid plans, primarily through the National Boost Monthly Unlimited, Virgin Mobile and 
Assurance Wireless offerings, are experiencing strong demand as our simple, no long-term contract solutions provide good service and value. We plan to 
continue to grow our position in the prepaid market by tailoring our products and services to target markets while leveraging our Boost Mobile, Virgin Mobile 
and Assurance Wireless brands through new and existing distribution channels 

Sprint has refocused its wholesale business as a reseller ofnew converged services that leverage the Sprint network but are sold under the customer’s 
brand. We have adopted new pricing models, made it easier for our customers to acquire access and resell our services by bundling wireless and wireline Services 
and focused our attention to partners with existing distribution channels. In addition, we have strengthened our sales efforts and expanded to new markets in the 
rapidly growing machine to machine space. 
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In addition to our customerdriented goals, we have also taken steps to generate operating cash flow and reduce our cast stmcture to align with the 
reduced revenues from fewer post-paid subscribers. Our actions include workforce reductions in 2009, which are expected to reduce labor and other costs by  
approximately $1.5 billion annually. We believe these actions, as well as our continued efforts to reduce other operating expenses and nan-essential capital 
spending, w i l l  allow US to maintain a strong cash position, although we do not expect that these measures w i l l  fully offset the decline in cash provided by 
operating activities expected because ofour lower number o f  post-paid subscribers as discussed below in "Efleecis on our W~reless  Business qfPosi-paid 
Subscriber Losses." 

Effeds on our Wireless Business of Posy-poid Subscriber Losses 

business combinations. 
The following table shows annual net additions (losses) o f  post-paid subscribers far the past five years, excluding subscribers obtained through 

Year Ended DsremborJI, 

Iw9 __ __ - -  
( m  ,*Ou.rdd 

Total net additions (losses) of post-paid subscribers (3,546) (4,073) (1,224) 2,194 

IW8 1W7 IW6 2W5 
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We expect these actions will have a favorable impact on net subscriber losses. Net post-paid subscriber losses had not improved sustainably through 
the first quarter of2009, in part due lo circumstances in the general economy, including higher deactivations of business customer accounts as companies 
reduced wireless service lines resulting from their own workforce reductions. However, during 2009, the Company began to see improvement in our net loss of 
post-paid subscribers. Net past-paid subscriber losses decreased by approximately 20% sequentially for each of the quarters ended June 30,2009 and 
September 30,2009 and by approximately 35% sequentially for the quarter ended December 3 I ,  2009. Net post-paid subscriber losses during the six-months ended 
December 3 I ,  2009 decreased by more than 40% compared to the same period in the prior year. 

service revenue in 2010 to be approximately $2.1 billion lower. If we continue to experience similar losses ofpost-paid subscribers in 2010, it would have a 
significant negative impact on Sprint’s financial condition, results ofoperations and liquidity in 2010 and beyond. 

accounts. Sprint’s successful prepaid wireless offerings, as well as the cost controls that have been implemented, will partially offset the effects ofnet post-paid 
subscriber lasses, but are unlikely to he sufficient to sustain the Company’s level of profitability and cash flows unless we are successful in funher reducing the 
decline in past-paid subscribers. The Company believes the actions that have been taken, as described above, and that continue to be taken in marketing, 
customer service, device offerings, and network quality, should reduce the number of net post-paid and total subscriber lasses for 2010 as compared to 2009. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

As discussed below under “Wireless BusinessSelvice Revenue,” the net loss ofpast-paid subscribers in 2009 can be expected to cause wireless 

During 2009, wireless industry trends have included a significant industry-wide shifl for new accounts from post-paid wireless accounts to prepaid 

Wireless segment earnings 
Wireline segment earnings 
Corporate, other and eliminations 

Depreciation and amortization 
Goodwill impairment 
Merger and integration expenses 
Other, net 

Interest expense 
Equity in losses of unconsolidated investments, net 
Other income, net 
Income tax benefit 

Consolidated segment earnings 

Operating loss 

Net loss 

Year Ended Dectmkr31,  
2w9 IW? 

$ 5,198 6,776 
1,221 1,175 
9- 

( I )  Consolidated results o/opernt;ons rnclude the results o/our next-generatrow wireless broadband nerwork, which was conbibufed Io Clearwire in a 
transaction that closed on November 28, 2008. 

Consolidated segment earnings decreased $ I  .26 billion, or 16%, in 2009 compared to 2008 and $3.14 billion, or 29%, in 2008 compared to 2007. 
Consolidated segment earnings consist of our Wireless and Wireline segments, which are discussed below, and Corporate, other and eliminations. Carporate, 
other and eliminations improved $275 million for 2009 compared lo 2008 and declined $99 million for 2008 compared to 2007 primarily BS a result ofcosls incurred 
related to the build-up of WiMAX from 2007 to 2008 that are no longer being incurred in 2009 due to the close ofthe transaction with C l e w i r e  in late 2008. 
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Depreciation and Amorfiration Expense 

Depreciation expense decreased S 137 million, or 2%, in 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to reduced capital expenditures in 2009 as compared to 
2008 and increased $343 million, or 6%. in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to increases ofin-service network assets. Amortization expense declined $854 
million, or 35%. in 2009 compared to 2008 and $869 million, or 26%, in 2008 as compared to 2007, primarily due to the amortization ofthe customer relationships 
acquired as part of the Sprint-Nextel merger, which are amortized using the sum ofthe years' digits method, resulting in higher amortization rates in early periods 
that decline over time. 

Goodwill Impairment 

The Company recognized non-cash goodwill impairments ofS963 million and $29.649 billion during 2008 and 2007, respectively. The impeed  goodwill 
was primarily attributable to the Company's acquisition ofNextel in 2005 and reflects the reduction in estimated fair value of Sprint's wireless reponing unit 
subsequent to the acquisition resulting from, among other factors, net losses of post-paid subscribers. 

Merger and Integration Expenses 

Merger and integration expenses related to business combinations prior to 2008 were generally classified as selling, general and administrative and 
cost of products as appropriate on the consolidated statement of operations. Those not solely and directly attributable to the Wireless segment were included in 
Corporate, other and eliminations and were classified as selling, general and administrative expenses. Merger and integration expenses decreased $130 million, or 
100%. in 2009 compared to 2008 and $386 million, or 75%, in 2008 as compared to 2007 as we did not incur these costs in the second halfaf 2008. 

Ocher, net 

The following table provides additional information of items included in "Other, net" for the years ended December 3 I ,  2009,2008 and 2007. 

Year Ended DscembarJI, 
fW8 1w7 - - zw9 - 

Severance and exit costs 
Asset impairments 
Gains from asset dispositions and exchanges 
Other 

Other, net expenses decreased $41 7 million, or 52%, in 2009 compared to 2008 and increased $364 million, or 82%, in 2008 compared to 2007. Severance 
and exit cosls increased by $45 million, or 13%. in 2009 compared to 2008 and $78 million, or 28%, in 2008 compared to 2007 due to separation ofemployees and 
continued organizational realignment initiatives aimed at reducing our cost structure to align with reduced revenues from net subscriber losses. Asset 
impairmenls decreased by $433 million, or 90%, in 2009 compared to 2008 and increased $317 million, or 194%. in 2008 compared to 2007. Asset impairments in 
2009 primarily related to network asset equipment no longer necessary for management's strategic plans and, in addition, in 2008 also related to cell site 
development costs no longer necessary for management's strategic plans. During 2007, asset impairments related to the write-off of network assets, including site 
development costs, the loss on the sale of Velocita Wireless, and the closing ofretail stores due to integration activities. Gains from asset dispositions and 
exchanges increased by $39 million, or 134%, in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to specuum exchange transactions. 
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The table below summarizes average number of retail subscribers and average revenue per subscriber for the years ended December 3 1,2009,2008 and 
2007. Retail comprises those subscribers to whom Sprint directly provides wireless services on our networks, whether those services are provided on a prepaid or 
a post-paid basis. Wholesale and affiliates are those subscribers who are served through MVNO and amliate relationships, and other arrangements through 
which wireless services are sold by Sprint to other companies that resell those services to their subscribers. Mare information about the number ofsubscribers, 
net additions to subscribers, and average rates ofmonthly post-paid and prepaid customer churn for each quarter since the first quaner 2007 may be found in the 
table on page 37. 

Average post-paid subscriberslll 
Average prepaid 
Average monthly service revenue per subscriber 

Past-paid 
Prepaid 
Average retatl 

/ / I  Average subscrrbers include subscribers acquired through business combrnarionsprospecrivelyfrom the dale ofocquisirion. Averoge subscrrbers/or 
theyear endedDecember 31. 2009 are inclusive 0/4.539,000prepaid subscribers and835.000post-poidsubscribers acquiredthrougk our 2009 
business combinorions which were previously includedwith wholesale ondaffiliare subscribers. Average subscribersfor the year endedDecember 31, 
2007are inclusive o/170,000subscribers acquiredthrough our 2007 business combinalion. 

Retail service revenue decreased 52.2 billion, or a?&, in 2009 as compared to 2008 and $3.6 billion, or 1 I %  in 2008 as compared to 2007. The majority of 
the decline is due to a $2.8 billion and $3.5 billion decrease in post-paid service revenue driven by a reduction in the Company's average number ofpost-paid 
subscribers ofapproximately 4. I million and 2.7 million for the years ended December 3 I ,  2009 and 2008, respectively. The decline in post-paid service revenue 
was partially offset by an increase of $583 million in prepaid revenue for 2009 as compared to 2008, primarily driven by attracting subscribers to the Company's 
National Boost Monthly Unlimited plan, which launched in the first quaner of2009. Prepaid revenue for 2008 decreased $92 million as compared to 2007, primarily 
driven by a reduction of256,OOO in the average number ofretail prepaid subscribers, primarily on the iDEN network. 

compared to 2007. The decrease in 2009 was primarily due to a decrease in the number of subscribers with two oiour large MVNO operators. Wholesale revenues 
include a growing number o f  devices under our open-device initiative, including machine-tomachine services through devices thal utilize our network. Average 
revenue per subscriber for our open-device machine-to-machine services is significantly lower than revenue from other wholesale and affiliate subscribers; 
however, the cost to service these customers is also lower resulting in a higher profit margin as a percent of revenue. The decrease in 2008 was primarily due to a 
decline in average monthly service revenue per wholesale subscriber. 

Wholesale, affiliate and other revenues, in total, decreased $397 million, or 42%. for 2009 as compared to 2008, and $1 18 million, or 1 I%, for 2008 as 
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The following table shows (a) net additions (losses) of wireless subscribers for the past twelve quarters, excluding subscribers obtained through 
business combinations, existing subscribers who have migrated between networks (b) our total subscribers as of the end of each quarlerly period, and (c) our 
average rates of monthly post-paid and prepaid customer churn for the past twelve quarters 

Prepaid 

Port-pud 
9,6W 8.890 8 2 9 2  

Prepaid 
DEN 4,284 4.354 3,491 4.435 

wholed< and 
Wll,d31 6.825 6.980 

Monthly w*omer 
chum d" 

Retad past-paid 210% 201% 
8 2Ph 6 86% 638% -1 p w d  697% 676% 
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Retail Posr-PardSubscr,bers~We lost 3.5 million ne1 post-paid subscribers during 2009 as compared to losing 4.1 million and 1.2 million net post- 
paid subscribers during 2008 and 2007, respectively. The following table provides a reconciliation of reported net additions (lasses) of retail post-paid subscribers 
and transfen of subscribers between network technologies during the years ended December 3 1,2009,2008 and 2007. 

CDM* 

Reponed net addrlions (losses) 
Net transfers from ,DEN 

Additions (losses) after transfers from IDEN 

;DEN Year Ended December33, - 
I W 9  fW8 fW7 

(;m rhnurardsJ 
- - -  

Reponed net IOSSKS 

Losses after transfers to CDMA 

The Company expects that both post-paid and total subscriber full-year net losses should improve for the year 2010 as compared lo 2009. However, 

Net transfers to CDMA 

our actual loss of post-paid subscribers in 2009 can be expected to cause wireless service revenue in 2010 to be approximately $2. I billion lower than it would 
have been had those subscribers not been lost. l fwe  continue to experience significant loss ofpost-paid subscribers in 2010, it would have a significant negative 
impact an Sprint's financial condition, results afoperations and liquidity in 20 10 and beyond. 

Prepaid Subscribers-We added approximately 2.6 million net prepaid subscribers during 2009 as compared to losing 981,000 and adding 566,000 net 
prepaid subscribers in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Our net prepaid subscriber additions in 2009 were principally driven by the Company's National Boost 
Monthly Unlimited offering on the iDEN network which was launched in the first quarter 2009. R e  success achieved by the National Boost Monthly Unlimited 
offering has driven a significant prepaid market share gain. In conjunction with the changing economic environment, the Company's National Boost Monthly 
Unlimited offering continues to experience strong demand as prepaid decisions are becoming a larger pottion of overall decisions in the marketplace. Net prepaid 
subscriber losses in 2008 as compared to net additions in 2007 were principally caused by our attracting fewer new subscribers on the iDEN network and total 
deactivations increasing year over year. End of period prepaid subscribers include subscribers engaged in cettain retention programs that target qualifying 
subscribers lo maintain ongoing service while providing additional time to make a replenishment prior to account deactivation. Subscribers targeted through 
retention programs are not included in the calculation of churn until their offer expires without a replenishment to their account. 

that resell our services to their subscribers. customers residing in PCS Affiliate territories and a growing portion of subscribers from our open-device initiative 
primarily representing machine-to-machine devices that utilize our network. During 2009, wholesale and affiliate subscriber losses were 138,000, compared to net 
subscriber additions af472.000 and I .4 million for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Subscriber losses in 2009 were primarily due to a decrease in the number of 
subscribers with two afour large MVNO operalors. 

Wholesale andAfflliore Subscribers-Wholesale and affiliate subscribers represent customers that are served on our networks lhrough companies 
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cost of services 
Cost of services consists primarily of 

* costs to operate and maintain our CDMA and iDEN networks, including direct switch and cell site costs, such as rent, utilities, maintenance, 
payroll costs associated with network employees and spectrum frequency leasing costs; 
fixed and variable interconnection casts, the fixed component afwhich consists afmonlhly flat-rate fees for facilities leased h m  local exchange 
carriers based an the number ofcell sites and switches in service in a particular period and the related equipment installed at each site, and the 
variable component of which generally consists of per-minute use fees charged by wireline providers for calk terminating an their networks, 
which fluctuate in relation to the level and duration of those terminating calls: 
long distance costs paid to the Wireline segment, 
costs to service and repair devices; 

* 

* 

* regulatory fees; 
* roaming fees paid to other carriers; and 

fixed and variable costs relating to payments to third parties for the use oftheir proprietary data applications, such as messaging, music, TV and 
navigation services by our subscribers. 

Cost of services decreased $361 million, or 4%, in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily reflecting a decline in labor, outside services and maintenance 
costs consistent with the Company's cost cutting efforts, as well as a decline in network casts associated with fewer subscribers. Cost ofservices increased $133 
million, or 2%, in 2008 as compared to 2007 primarily reflecting increased costs relating to data and voice roaming outside ofour networks and increased service 
and repair costs related to devices with increased functionality. In addition, backhaul costs, including usage of our wireline network, have increased primarily due 
to increased data usage by our subscribers and the expansion of EV-DO Rev. A in our network. These costs have been slightly offset by lower employee related 
and outside services costs. 

Equipmenf Net Subsidy 

We recognize equipment revenue and corresponding costs of devices when title of the device passes to the dealer or end-user customer. Our 
marketing plans assume that devices typically will be sold at prices below cost, which is consistent with industry practice, as subscriber retention efforts often 
include providing incentives to subscribers such as offering new devices at discounted prices. We reduce equipment revenue for these discounts offered directly 
to the customer, or for certain payments to third-party dealers to reimburse the dealer for point of sale discounts that arc offered to the end-user subscriber. 
Additionally, the cost of devices is reduced by any rebates that are earned from the supplier. Cost of devices and accessories also includes order fulfillment 
related expenses and write-downs of device and related accessory inventory for shrinkage and obsolescence. Equipment costs in excess of the revenues 
generated from equipment sales is referred lo in the industq as equipment net subsidy. Equipment revenue decreased $38 million, or 2%, in 2009 compared to 
2008 primarily due to declining average sales prices far those devices as a result of competitive and economic pressures, partially offset by an increase in the 
number of devices sold in 2009 as compared to 2008. Equipment revenue decreased $603 million, or 23%, in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to a decrease in 
the number ofdevices sold in 2008 as compared to 2007, partially offset by an increase in the average sales prices for those devices as customers began to 
purchase more smarlphones. Cost ofdevices increased $699 million, or 15%, in 2009 compared to 2008, primarily due to our mix ofdevices sold reflecting a greater 
mix ofpost-paid devices sold with a higher functionality and an increase in the number of devices sold. Cost ofdevices decreased $165 million, or 3%, in 2008 
compared to 2007, primarily due to a decrease in the number of devices sold partially offset by an increase in the average cost per device as our mix of devices 
sold consisted a f a  higher percentage of smartphones and higher-end devices. 
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Selling, General and Adminislrorive Expense 

Sales and marketing costs primarily consist of customer acquisition costs, including commissions paid to our indirect dealers, third-party distributors 
and retail sales farce for new device activations and upgrades, residual payments to our indirect dealers, payroll and facilities costs associated with our retail 
sales force andstores and marketing employees, advertising, media programs and sponsorships, including costs related to branding. General and administrative 
expenses primarily consist of costs for billing, customer care and information technology operations, bad debt expense and administrative support activities, 
including collections, legal, fmance, human resources, strategic planning and technology and product development. 

Sales and marketing expense decreased $273 million, or 6%, in 2009 from 2008 as compared to $722 million, or 13%, in 2008 from 2007. The decline in 
sales and marketing expenses for the year ended December 3 1,2009 and 2008 is primarily due to the decline in gross subscriber additions and B decline in labor 
related casts due to our workforce and cost reduction activities. 

administrative costs for the year ended December 3 I ,  2009 is primarily due to the decrease in employee related costs as part of our cost culling initiatives, 
reduction in customer care costs, and lower bad debt expense. Employee related costs decreased approximately $536 million in 2009 as compared to 2008, due to 
workforce reductions announced in J a n u q  and November 2009. Customer care costs decreased $363 million in 2009 as compared to 2008. Bad debt expense was 
$392 million for the year ended December 3 I ,  2009 representing a $240 million decline, as compared to bad debt expense ofS632 million in 2008. The improvement 
in bad debt expense resulted from lower rates of uncollectibility during the period, as well as lower estimated uncollectible accounts in outstanding accounts 
receivable. Our improvement in customer care expense is largely attributable to customer care quality initiatives that were launched in 2008. These initiatives 
resulted in fewer calls per subscriber into customer care which was reduced by 39% from 2007 peak levels. The reduction in calls per subscriber allowed far a 
reduction of 19 call centers in 2009 and I I call centers in 2008. We also have several customer care and collection activities designed to proactively eontact 
subscribers to ensure they are an appropriate service plans based on their usage and to negotiate payment arrangements designed lo  help customers through 
difficult financial times. As a result, we have experienced a decrease in involuntary churn, as well as a decrease in the number ofaccounts and average balances 
written off in 2009 compared to 2008. The decline in general and administrative casts for the year ended December 31,2008 was principally due to the decrease in 
bad debt expense and lower employee related costs, offset by an increase in customer care related costs. Bad debt expense was $632 million for the year ended 
December 3 I ,  2008 as compared to $896 million for 2007 representing a $264 million decline. The improvement in bad debt expense was largely attributable to credit 
policies for new customers and the customer care quality initiatives launched in 2008. Specifically, the ratio ofsubscribers with a prime credit score to those with a 
subprime credit score improved in 2008 as compared to 2007. 

General and administrative costs decreased SI. 1 billion, or 22%, in 2009 from 2008 and $382 million, or 7%. in 2008 t o m  2007. The decline in general and 
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Segment Earnings - Wireline 

Operating expenses. Network costs primarily represent special access costs and interconnection costs which generally consist of domestic and international per- 
minute usage fees paid to other carriers. The remaining costs associated with operating the Wireline segment include the costs to operate our customer care and 
billing organizations in addition to administrative support. Wireline servicerevenue, and variable network and interconnection costs fluctuate with the changes in 
our customer base and their related usage, but some cost elements do not fluctuate in the short term with the changes in our customer usage. Our Wireline 
segment provides services to our Wireless segment which are generally accounted for based on market rates which we believe approximate fair value. The 
following table provides an overview ofthe results ofoperations of our Wireline segment for the years ended December 3 I, 2009,2008 and 2007. 

Wireline segment earnings are primarily a function of wireline Service revenue, network and interconnection costs and other Wireline segment 

VOW 
Data 
Internet 
Other 1 M __ - . ._. - ... 

Total net service revenue 5,629 
Cost ofservices and products (3,663) (4,192) (4,446) 
Service gross margin a 
Service gross margin percentage 35% 34% 31% 
Selling, general and administrative expense (745) (965) 0) 

$ 1,175 _. Wireline segment earnings $ 1,221 - 
Wireline Revenue 

Voice Revenues 
Voice revenues decreased $5 16 million, or I7%, im 2009 as compared to 2008 and decreased $430 million, or 12%, in 2008 as compared to 2007. The 2009 

and 2008 decreases were primarily driven by volume declines due to customer churn as well as overall price declines. Voice revenues generated from the sale of 
Services to our Wireless segment represented 3 I %  oftotal voice revenues in 2009 as compared to 26% in 2008 and 23% in 2007. 

Data Revenues 

Data revenues reflect sales of data services, including ATM, frame relay and managed network services. Data revenues decreased $297 million, or 
3 I%, in 2009 as compared to 2008 and decreased $251 million, or 21%, in 2008 as compared to 2007 due to declines in frame relay and ATM services as 
subscribers migrated to IP-based technologies. These declines were partially offset by growth in IP revenues. Data revenues generated from the provision of 
services to the Wireless segment represented 19% of total data revenue in 2009 as compared to 13% in 2008 and 8% in 2007. 

Internet Revenues 

Internet revenues reflect sales oflP-based data services, including MPLS. Internet revenues increased $145 million, or 7%, in 2009 as compared to 2008 
and increased $573 million, or 36%, in 2008 as compared to 2007. The increases were due to higher IP revenues as business subscribers are increasing 
requirements to support wireless customer’s data traffic, as well as revenue growth in our cable VolP, which experienced a 15% increase in subscribers in 2009 as 
compared to 2008 and a 32% increase in 2008 as compared to 2007. Internet revenues generated from the provision ofservices to the Wireless segment 
represented 11% oftotal Internet revenues in 2009 as compared to 9% in 2008 and 5% in 2007. 
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Olhsr Revenues 

Net cash orovtded bv ooerattne activttte~ 

Ycsr E n d d  Dnembn 31. 
2W8 IW7 - - 2W9 - 

6" nuli,om) 

. .  - S 4.891 $ 6,179 S 9,245 
Net cash used in investmg activities (3,844) 250) (6,377) 
Netcash used In financing activities (919) 484) (2,668) 

Operating Aciivilies 

Net cash provided by operating activities ofP4.9 billion in 2009 decreased by $1.3 billion from 2008, primarily due to a $3.6 billion decrease in cash 
received from our subscribers as a result of declining service revenues from our loss ofpost-paid subscribers and a $200 million contribution to the Company 
pension plan during 2009. These declines were offset by a decrease of $2. I billion in cash paid to our suppliers and employees primarily due to reductions in 
variable cost ofservices and products and selling, general and administrative expenses due 10 the various cost cutting initiatives implemented over h e  past year. 

received from our subscribers as a result of declining service revenues from our loss of postpaid subscribers. This w85 offset by a decrease of $1 .2  billion in cash 
paid to our suppliers and employees. 

to our operations Ihat were conuibuted to Clearwire in November 2008. 

Net cash provided by operating activities of $6.2 billion in 2008 decreased $3.1 billion from 2007, primarily due to a $3.8 billion decrease in cash 

Net cash provided by operating activities for both 2008 and 2007 i s  net of cash used for operating activities of approximately $300 million that related 
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Investing Activities 
Net cash used in investing activities for 2009 decreased by $406 million from 2008, pimarily due to an increase of1369 million in proceeds from short- 

term investments and a decrease in capital expendihlres of $2.3 billion in 2009 as compared to 2008 mainly due to fewer cell sites built in 2009, fewer IT and 
network development projects and costs incurred related to the build-up of WiMAX in 2008 that are no longer being incurred in 2009 due to the close of the 
Vansaction with Cleanvire in November 2008. The decreases were offset by increased purchases of $599 million in short-term investments, a $1.1 billion increase 
of Sprint's investment in Cleanvire and $560 million used to acquire VMU and iPCS in the fourth quaner 2009. 

Net cash used in investing activities for 2008 decreased by $2. I billion from 2007, primarily due to the decrease in capital expendiNres of $2.4 billion in 
2008 as compared to 2007 mainly due to lower number ofcell sites built i n  2008, reduced oapacity needs, fewer IT projects as well as substantial completion in 
2007 ofvarious initiatives that were undertaken in our Wireless business, an increase in the proceeds from sales and maturities ofshort-tern, investments of $189 
million and a decrease in the purchase of short-tern investments ofS143 million in 2008 compared to 2007. In addition, we used $287 million in 2007 to acquire 
Northern PCS, a PCS Affiliate. These decreases were partially offset by the $866 million in cash collateral received from our securities loan agreements initiated in 
2007. 

capital assets and FCC licenses that were contributed to Cleanvire in November 2008. 
Net cash used in investing activities far 2008 and 2007 include expenditures ofapproximately $600 million and $700 million, respectively, related to 

Financing Activities 
Net cash used in financing activities was $919 million during 2009 as compared to net cash used in fmancing activities of $484 million in 2008. 

Activities in 2009 include debt repayments of $600 million of senior notes in May 2009, the early redemption of $607 million ofour convertible senior notes in 
September 2009, and a $I billion payment an our revolving bank credit facility in November 2009 offset by the issuance o f $  I .3 billion ofsenior notes in August 
2009. 

in 2008 include the draw-dawn of $2.5 billion under our revolving bank credit facility in FebNary 2008, the net proceeds from the financing obligation with 
TowerCo Acquisition LLC related to a sale and subsequent leaseback ofmultiple tower locations in September 2008 af$645 million, and proceeds from the 
issuance ofcommercial paper afS68 I million, offset by the early redemption of $I .25 billion ofour senior notes in June 2008, the extinguishment in September 2008 
afS235 million ofUS Unwired Inc.'s IO% Second Priority Senior Secured Nates due 2012, the extinguishment in September 2008 of $250 million of Alamosa 
(Delaware), Inc.'s 8.5% Senior Notes due 2012, lhe repayment oflEl.5 billion ofour revolving bank credit facility in the third and fourth quarters Of2008 and 
maturities ofcommercialpaperof$I.I billion. 

shares under this program during 2008, which was the year the program expired. We received $4 million, $57 million and $344 million in 2009,2008 and 2007, 
respectively in proceeds from common share issuances, primarily resulting from exercises ofemplayee options. We did not pay any cash dividends in 2009 or 
2008 and paid cash dividends ofS286 million in 2007. 

Capital Requirements 

Net cash used in financing activities was $484 million during 2008 as compared to net cash used in financing activities ofS2.7 billion in 2007. Activities 

We repurchased about 87 million of our common shares for $1.8 billion in 2007 pursuant to our share repurchase program. We did not repurchase any 

We currently anticipate that future funding needs in the near term will include: 
* 
* 

* scheduled debt service requirements: 

operating expenses relating to our operations; 
capital expenditures, including the capacity and upgrading of our networks and the deployment of new technologies in our networks; 

amounts required to be expended in connection with the Report and Order; 
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any additional investment we may choose to make in Clearwire; 
certain costs ofcompliance with regulatory mandates; and * 

* other general corporate expenditures. 

Liquidily 
As of December 3 1,2009, our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $3.9 billion. In addition, we have $2.1 billion available 

under our existing revolving bank credit facility, which expires in December 2010. 
The terms and conditions ofour revolving bank credit facility require the ratio of total indebtedness to trailing four quarters earnings before interest, 

taxes, depreciation and amortization and certain other non-recurring items, as defined by the credit facility (adjusted EBITDA), to be no more than 4.25 to 1 .O. AS 
ofDecember31,2009,theratio was3.510 1.0aswmparedto3.0ta I.OasofDecember3l,2008resulting fromowdeclineinadjustedEBITDA. Underthis 
revolving bank credit facility, we are currently restricted from paying cash dividends because our ratio oftotal indebtedness to adjusted EBITDA exceeds 2.5 10 
1 .O. The terms ofthe revolving bank credit facility provide for an interest rate equal to LIBOR, plus a margin ofbetween 2.50% and 3.00%, depending an our debt 
ratings. Certain ofaur domestic subsidiaries have guaranteed the revolving bank credit facility. As of December 3 I ,  2009, we had $1.8 billion in letters ofcredit 
outstanding, including a SI .7 billion letter nfcredit required by the Report and Order to recanfigure the 800 MHz band, and no outstanding balance under our 
$4.5 billion revolving bank credit facility. As a result ofthe outstanding letters of credit, which directly impacts the availability ofthe revolving bank credit facility, 
we had $2.7 billion ofborrowing capacity available under our revolving bank credit facility as of December 3 I, 2009. 

A default under our credit facilities could trigger defaults under our other debt obligations, including our senior notes, which in turn could result in the 
maturities of certain debt obligations being accelerated. The indentures that govern our outstanding senior notes also require that we comply with various 
covenants, including limitations on the incurrence of indebtedness and liens by us and our subsidiaries. We expect to remain in compliance with these covenants 
through at least the end of201 1, although there can be no assurance that we will do so. Although we expect to improve our past-paid subscriber results, ifwe do 
not meet our plan, depending on the severity of the actual subscriber results versus what we currently anticipate, it is possible that we would not remain in 
compliance with our covenants or be able to meet our debt service obligations, which could result in acceleration ofour indebtedness. lfsuch unforeseen events 
occur, we may engage with our lenders to obtain appropriate waivers or amendments ofour credit facilities or refinance borrowings, although there is no 
assurance we would be successful in any oftheae actions. 

Sprint's current liquidity position makes it likely that we will be able to meet our debt service requirements and other funding needs at least through 
201 1. Specifically, we expect to be able to meet our currently identified funding needs through at least the end of201 1 by using our anticipated cash flows from 
operating activities as well as our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments on hand. In addition, we also have available the remaining borrowing 
capacity under our revolving bank credit facility of $2.7 billion through December 19,2010. Nevertheless, ifwe arc unable to reduce the rate oflosses ofpost-paid 
subscribers in 2010, it would have a significant negative impact on cash provided by operating activities and our liquidity in future years. 

In determining that we expect lo meet our funding needs through at least 201 1, we have considered: - 
* 
* 

anticipated levels ofcapital expenditures and FCC license acquisitions; 
anlicipated payments under the Report and Order, as supplemented; 
any contributions we may make to our pension plan, which has been negatively impacted by the high degree ofvolatility in the global financial 
markets; 

* scheduled debt service requirements; 
* 

* other future contractual obligations. 
m y  additional investment we may choose to make in Clearwire; and 
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Our assessment above does not take into account, among other things: 
any significant additional acquisition transactions or the pursuit o f  any significant new business opportunities or spectrum acquisition 
suategies; and 
any material increases in thr cost ofcompliance with regulatory mandates. * 

Any of these events or circumstances could involve significant additional funding needs in excess of anticipated cash flows from operating activities 
and the identified currently available funding sources, including existing cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and honawings available under our 
existing revolving credit facility. Ifexisting capital resources are not sufficient to meet these funding needs, it would be necessary to raise additional capital to 
meet those needs. 

Our ability to fund our capital needs from outside sources is ultimately affected by the overall capacity and terms ofthe banking and securities 
markets. Given our recent financial performance as well as the volatility in these markets, we continue to monitor them closely and to take steps to maintain 
financial flexibility and a reasonable cnst of capital. 

ratings to certain ofour outstanding obligations: 
As of December 3 I ,  2009, Moody's Investor Service, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services (S&P), and Filch Ratings had assigned the following credit 

Rathe 

Bank Credit SI"iW 
S d o r  Unsecured 

Racing A p n c y  Facility Unsecured Debt OUUOOk 

Moody's Baa2 Ba3 Negative 
Standard and Poor's Not Rated BB Watch Negative 
Filch BB BB Negative 



Table ofCootrols 

FUTURE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

including additional purchases afour  securities and refinancing of those securities, could cause actual payments to differ significantly from these amounts. See 
"-Forward-Looking Statements." 

Future Coatr8clu.l Oblixatiomi Total 1010 2011 > o n  1013 20,. there.ner 
0" ,"llli""*, 

Senior notes. bank credit facilities and debentures(') S 32~854 S 2.158 S 2.993 S 3~932 

The following table sets forth our best estimates as to the amounts and timing ofcontractual payments as of December 31,2009. Future events, 

1015 snd 

(1) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 

hcludesprincipol and estimated 8nteresrpayments. interest payments are based on manogemen1 S erpectations/or/uture inteie~t rates. 
Represents capital lease payments including interest ondfrnancing obligatron related to the sale and subsequent leaseback qlmulriple tower siles. 
includesfurure lease costs related lo cell and swirch sites. real estate, network equipment and o/frce space. 
Includes service. spectrum. network capacity and other executory c o n l i a ~ t ~ .  Excludes blanketpurchase orders m the amount0/%50 millron. See 
below/or/urlher dzscussion. 

"Purchase orders and ather commitments" include minimum purchases we commit to purchase from suppliers over time and/or the unconditional 
purchase obligations where we guarantee to make a minimum payment to suppliers for goods and sewices regardless ofwhether suppliers fully deliver them. 
Amounts actually paid under some ofthese "other" agreements will likely be higher due to variable components ofthese agreements. The more significant 
variable components that determine the ultimate obligation owed include hours contracted, subscribers and other factors. In addition, we are party to various 
arrangements that me conditional in nature and create an obligation to make payments only upon the occurrence of certain events, such as the delivery of 
functioning software orproducts. Because it is not possible to predict the timing or amounts that may be due under these conditional arrangements, no such 
amounts have been included in the table above. The table above also excludes about $50 million ofblanket purchase order amounts since their agreement terms 
are not specified. No time frame is set for these purchase orders and they are not legally binding. As a result, they are not firm commitments. Our liability for 
uncertain tax positions was $284 million as of December 3 I ,  2009 Due to the inherent uncertainty ofthe timing of the resolution of the underlying tax positions, it 
is not practicable to assign this liability to any particular year(s) in the table. 

Report and Order requires us to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury at the conclusion of the band reconfiguration process to the extent that the value of the 1.9 
GHz spectrum we received exceeds the total of the value oflicenses for spectrum in the 700 MHz and 800 MHz bands that we surrendered under the decision plus 
the actual costs, or qualifying costs, that we incur to retune incumbents and our own facilities. The total minimum cash obligation for the Report and Order is 
$2.8 billion. From the inception ofthe program through December 31,2009, we have incurred approximately $2.4 billion afcosts directly attributable to the 
speclmm reconfiguration program. This amount does not include any of our internal network costs that we have preliminarily allocated to the reconfiguration 
program for capacity sites and modifications for which we may request credit under the reconfiguration program. We estimate, based on our experience to date 
with the reconfiguration program and on information currently available, that our total direct costs attributable to complete the spectrum reconfigurations will 
range between $3.4 and 53.7 billion. Accordingly, we believe that it is unlikely that we will be required to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury. 

The table above does not include remaining costs to be paid in connection with the fulfillment of our obligations under the Report and Order. The 
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCING 
We do not parlicipate in, or secure, financings for any unconsolidated, special purpose entities 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 
Sprint applies those accounting policies that management believes best reflect the underlying business and economic events, consistent with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Sprint's more critical accounting policies include those related to the basis of presentation, 
allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation and recoverability of our equity method investment in Clearwire, valuation and recoverability of long-lived assets, 
evaluation ofgoodwill and indefinite-lived assets far impairment, and accruals for taxes based on income. Inherent in such policies are certain key assumptions 
and estimates made by management. Management periodically updates its estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements based on its latest 
assessment of the current and projected business and general economic environment. There critical accounting policies have been discussed with Sprint's Board 
of Directors. Sprint's significant accounting policies are summarized in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Basis of Presentofion 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Sprint and its consolidated subsidiaries. Investments where Sprint maintains majority 

ownership, but lacks full decision making ability over all major issues, are accounted for using the equity method. Governance for Sprint's major unconsolidated 
investment, Clearwire, is based on Clearwire board representation far which Sprint does not have a majority vote. 

Allowoncefor Doubtful Accounts 
We maintain an allowance far doubtful accounts for estimated losses that result from failure ofour subscribers to make required payments. Our 

estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts considers a number of factors, including collection experience, aging of the accounts receivable portfolios, credit 
quality ofthe subscriber base, estimated proceeds from future bad debt sales and other qualitative considerations. To the extent that actual loss experience 
differs significantly from historical trends, the required allowance amounts could differ from our estimate. A 10% change in the amount estimated to be 
uncollectible would result in a corresponding change in bad debt expense of about $20 million for the Wireless segment and $ I  million for the Wireline segment. 

Valuation and Recoverability ofour Equity Methodlnvestment in Ciconvire 
We assess our equity method investment for other-than-temporary impairment when indicators such as decline in quoted prices in active markets 

indicate a value below the carrying value of our investment. This evaluation requires significant judgment regarding, but not limited to, the severity and duration 
of decline in market prices; the ability and intent to hold the securities until recovery; financial condition, liquidity, and near-tern prospeots a f the  issuer, specific 
events, and other factors. Sprint's assessment that an investment is not other-than-temporarily impaired could change in the fuuhlre due to changes in facts and 
circumstances. 

investment based on Clearwire's closing stock price was $3.5 billion. Sprint continues to believe that we will fully recover the carrying value ofour invesunent. 
Sprint owns a 56% ownership interest in Clearwire for which the canying value as of December 3 1,2009 was $4.3 billion while Ihe value ofsuch 

Valuation and Recoverability of Long-lived Asseb 

Long-lived assets consist primarily ofproperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization. Changes in technology or in our 
intended use of these assets, as well as changes in economic or industry factors or in our business 01 prospects, may cause the estimated period of use or the 
value ofthese assets to change. 

depreciated using the group life method. Depreciable life studies are performed periodically to confirm the appropriateness of depreciable lives for certain 
categories of 

Property, plant and equipment are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over estimated economic useful lives. Certain network assets are 
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property, plant and equipment. These studies take into account actual usage, physical wear and tear, replacement history and assumptions about technology 
evolution. When these factors indicate that an asset's useful life is different from the previous assessment, we depreciate the remaining book values 
prospectively over the adjusted remaining estimated useful life. Depreciation rates for assets using the group life method are revised periodically as required 
under this method. Changes made as a result ofdepreciable life studies and rate changes generally do not have a material effect on depreciation expense 

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. Long-lived asset groups were determined based upon certain factors including assessing the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are 
largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities. l f the total of the expected undiscaunted future cash flows is less than the carrying 
amount ofour assets, a loss i s  recognized for the difference between the estimated fair value and carrying value of the assets. Impairment analyses, when 
performed, are based on our current business and technology strategy, views of growth rates for our business, antioipated future economic and regulatory 
conditions and expected technological availability. During 2009, we tested long-lived assets in our Wireless segment for recoverability and, based on our estimate 
afundiscounted cash flows, determined the carrying value to be recoverable. Our estimate of undiscounted cash flows exceeded the carrying value ofthese 
assets by more than 10%. If we continue to have operational challenges, including obtaining and retaining subscribers, future cash flows ofthe Company may 
not he sufficient to recover the carrying value of our wireless asset group, and we could record asset impairments that are material to Sprint's consolidated results 
of operations and financial condition. 

In addition lo the analyses described above, certain assets that have not yerheen deployed in the business, including network equipment, cell site 
development costs and software in development, are periodically assessed to determine recoverability. Network equipment and cell site development cos& are 
expensed whenever events or changes in circumstances cause the Company to conclude the assets are no longer needed to meet management's strategic 
network plans and will not be deployed. Software development costs are expensed when it is no longer probable that the soflware project will be deployed. 
Network equipment that has been removed from the network is also periodically assessed to determine recoverability. l fwe  continue to have challenges retaining 
subscribers and as we continue to assess the impact of rebanding the iDEN network, management may conclude in future periods that certain CDMA and iDEN 
assets will never be either deployed or redeployed, in which case non-cash charges that could be material to our consolidated financial statements would he 
recognized. 

Evaluation of Goodwill and Indepnife-Lived Intangible Assets for  Impairment 
Goodwill represents the excess ofpurchase price paid over the fair value assigned to the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets of acquired 

businesses. Sprint evaluates the carrying value of goodwill annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may exceed estimated fair value. Our analysis includes a comparison ofthe estimated fair value ofthe reporting unit to which goodwill applies to the carrying 
value, including goodwill, of that reporting unit. 

sustained significant decline in our share price and market capitalization: a decline in our expected future ca8h flows, a significant adverse change in legal factors 
or in the business climate; unanticipated competition; the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group within a reporting unit: andlor slower growth 
rates, among others. Any adverse change in these factors could result in an impairment that could be material to our consolidated financial statements. 

significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions primarily include, but are not limited to, the discount rate, terminal growth rates, 
operating income before depreciation and amortization (OIBDA) and capital expenditures forecasts. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making those 
estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates. The merits of each significant assumption, both individually and in the aggregate. used to estimate the 
fair value of a reponing unit, as well as the fair values of the corresponding assets and liabilities of the reporting unit, are evaluated far reasonableness. 

We regularly assess whether any indicators ofimpairment exist, which requires a significant amount ofjudgment. Such indicators may include a 

The determination of the estimated fair value of the wireless reporting unit and other assets and liabilities within the Wireless reporting unit requires 
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sold a proportionate share of its investment, with the recognition ofany resulting gain or loss in earnings. The Company adopted these requirements effective 
January I, 2009. As a result, we recognized a pre-tax loss of3154 million ($96 million aflcr tax) related to the dilution ofaur investment in Clearwire resulting from 
their first quarter 2009 share issuance. 

disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies (ii) Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than- 
Temporary Impairmenis. which amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve 
the presentation and disclosure afatherthantemporary impairments on debt and equity securities in the financial statements and (iii) Determining Fair Value 
When the Volume and Level ofActrviQfor the Amel or Liabrlip Have Signficanrly Decreased and ldenttfying Tranracrions Tho1 Are Not Orderly which 
provides additional guidance on determining fair value when the volume and level of trading activity for an asset or liability have significantly decreased when 
compared wilh normal market activity These pronouncements were effective beginning in thc second quarter 2009 and did not have a material effect on our 
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the FASB issued further guidance related to Accountrngfor Assers Aequaed and Liabilities Assumed in 0 

Business Combtnatron That Arse/rom Conrmngencies. to address application issues relevant to initial recognition and measurement, subsequent measurement 
and accounting, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a business combination, This guidance, which did not have a material effect 
on our consolidated financial statements, is effective far business combinations on or after January I ,  2009 and was utilized in the accounting far the acquisitions 
outlined in our notes to the consolidated financial Statements. 

accounting for and disclosures of interests in variable interest entities, and the Accounting for Transfers ofFinancia1 Assefs, which was issued in order to 
improve the relevance, representational faithfulness, and comparability of the information that a reporting entity provides in its financial statements about a 
transfer of financial assets; the effects a l a  transfer on its financial position, financial performance, and cash flows; and a transferor's continuing involvement, if 
any, in transferred financial assets. This guidance will be effective beginning in January 2010 and is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated 
financial statements. 

Include Soflore Elements. These modifications alter the methods previously required for allocating consideration received in multipleelement arrangements 10 
require revenue allocation to elements containing sonware components and nan-software components that function together lo deliver the product's essential 
functionality. These modifications will be effective prospectively for the fiscal year ended December 3 1,201 I and are currently being evaluated to determine the 
effect, if any, on our consolidated financial statements. 

amended disclosure requirements for classes of assets and liabilities, inputs and valuation techniques and Vansfers between levels of fair value meaSurementS 
and Accountingfor Dislributions I O  Shareholders wirh Components of Stock and Cash, which clarifies the accounting for distributions to shareholders that 
offer them the ability to elect to receive their entire distribution in cash or shares ofequivalent value. This guidance will be effective beginning in January 2010, 
and is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial Statements, 

In Apnl2009, the FASB issued authoritative literamre regarding (i) Inrerim Disclosures abour Fair Volue qlFinoncio1 Instruments, to require 

In June 2009, the FASB issued authoritative literature regarding Amendments IO FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). which changes various aspects of 

In September 2009, the FASB modified the accounting for Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements and Certarn Revenue Arrangemenrs that 

In January 2010, the FASB issued authoritative guidance regarding lmprovrng Disclosures abour Fair Value Measurements, which requires new and 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

available material. Statements regarding expectations, including performance assumptions and estimates relating to capital requiremen@, as well as other 
Statements that are not historical facts, arc forward-looking statements. 

Cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. With respect to these forward-looking statements, management has made 
assumptions regarding, among other things. subscriber and network usage, subscriber growth and retention. pricing, aperating costs, the timing of various 
events and the economic and regulatory environment, 

cause actual results to differ include: 

We include certain estimates, projections and other forward-looking statements in our annual, quarterly and current reports, and in other publicly 

These statements reflect management's judgments based on currently available information and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could 

Future performance cannot be assured. Actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. Some factors that could 

our ability to attract and retain subscribers; 

the effects ofvigorous competition on a highly peneuated market, including the impact of competition on the price we are able to charge 
subscribers for services and equipment we provide and our ability to attract new subscribers and retain existing subscribers: the overall 
demand for our service offerings, including the impact of decisions ofnew or existing subscribers between our postpaid and prepaid services 
offerings and between our two network platforms; and the impact ofnew, emerging and competing technologies on our business; 
the effect of limiting or reducing capital and aperating expenditures on our ability to improve and enhance our networks and service offerings, 
implement our business strategies and provide competitive new technologies; 
our ability to obtain additional financing on terms acceptable to us, including at the expiration of our cuncnt credit facility, which expires on 
December 19,2010; 
volatility in the uading price ofour common stock, current economic conditions and our ability to access capital; 
the impact of unrelated parties not meeting our business requirements, including a significant adverse change in the ability or willingness of 
such parties lo provide devices or infrastructure equipment for our CDMA network, or Motorola, Inc.'s ability or willingness to provide related 
devices, infrastructure equipment and sof~ware applications, or to develop new technologies and devices or features, for our iDEN network; 
the costs and business risks associated with providing new services and entering new geographic markets; 
the financial performance ofCleanuire and its deployment a l a  4G network; 
the impact of difficulties we may encounter in connection with the integration af the businesses and assets of Virgin Mobile USA, Inc. and 
iPCS, Inc., including the risk that these diffkultier may limit our ability to fully integrate the operations of these businesses and the risk that we 
may be unable to continue to retain key employees; 
the effects of mergers and consolidations and new entrants in the communications industry and unexpected announcements or developments 
from others in the communications industry; 
unexpected results of litigation filed against us or our suppliers or vendors; 
the impact of adverse network performance: 
the costs or potential customer impacts ofcompliance with regulatory mandates; 
equipment failure, natural disasters, terrorist acts or other breaches of network or information technology security; 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* - 

* 
* 
* 
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exposure to optimize consolidated cash f l o ~ , .  We use foreign currency derivatives to hedge our foreign currency exposure related to settlement of international 
telecommunications access charges and the operation of our international subsidiaries. The dollar equivalent of our net foreign currency payables from 
international senlements was $4 million and the net foreign currency receivables from international operations was $ 5  million as of December 3 I ,  2009. The 
potential immediate pre-tax loss to us that would result from a hypothetical 10% change in foreign currency exchange rates based on these positions would be 
insignificant. 

Equity Risk 

companies for operational and strategic business purposes. These securities are subject to significant fluctuations in fair market value due to volatility of the 
stock market and industries in which the companies operate. These securities, which are classified in investments and short-term investments an the consolidated 
balance sheets, include equity method investments, such as our investment in Clearwire, investments in private securities, and available-forsale securities. 

In certain business transactions, we are granted warrants 10 purchase the securities afother companies at fixed rates. These warrants are supplemental 
to the terms of the business transaction and are not designated as hedging instruments. 

Item 8. 

reference. The financial statements ofclearwire, as required under Regulation S-X, are filed pursuant to Item 15 ofthis annual report on Form 10-K and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

We are exposed to market risk as it relates to changer in the market value ofour investments. We invest in equity inslNments of public and private 

Financial Statements sod Supplcmeotary Data 
The consolidated financial statements required by this item begin on page F-I afthis annual report on Form IO-K and are incorporated herein by 

Item 9. Changes i n  and Disagrrrmeots with Accountants 00 Accounting and Finaocial Disclosure 
Not applicable. 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Evalustiaa ofDisclosvrr Controls aod Procedures 
Disclosure controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be disclosed in our repofis under the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as this Form IO-K, is reported in accordance with the SEC's rules. Disclosure controls are also designed with the objective 
of ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow 
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 

In connection with the prepantion ofthis Farm 10-K as of December 31,2009, under the supervision and with the parlicipation ofour management, 
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offker, w,e carried out an evaluation ofthe effectiveness ofthe design and operation ofour disclosure 
controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer concluded that the design and operation ofthe 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31,2009 in providing reasonable assurance that information required 10 be disclosed in repans 
we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicaled to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and in providing reasonable assurance that the information is recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. 

Internal controls over our financial reporting continue to be updated as necessary to accommodate modifications to our business processes and 
accounting procedures. There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarler 2009 that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 
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Mrnagemeol’s Report om la leror l  Coohol over Fioracinl Reparling 

designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes. 

assessment was based on the niteria set forth by the Comminee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework. Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of December 3 1,2009, OUT inlernal control aver financial reporting was effective. 

appears on page F-2. 

Item 9B. Other Information 
Not applicable. 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control system was 

Our management conducted an assessment ofthe effectiveness ofour internal control over financial reponing as of December 3 I ,  2009. This 

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. This repon 
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PART 111 

Item 10. 

Directors-Nominees for Director,” “-Board Committees and Director Meetings-The Audit Committee” and “-Board Committees and Director Meetings- 
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee” in our proxy statement relating to our 2010 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the 
SEC, and with respect to family relationships, to Part I of this report under “Executive Officers ofthe Registrant.” The information required by this item regarding 
our executive officers is incorporated by reference to Pan I ofthir report under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” The information required by 
this item regarding compliance with Section I6(a) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by our directors, executive officers and holders often percent a f a  
registered class of our equity securities is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting 
Compliance” in our proxy statement relating to our 2010 annual meeting ofshareholders, which will be tiled with the SEC. 

available an our website at hrrp://www.sprinr,com/governonce. lfwe make any amendment to our Code ofconduct, other than atechnical, administrative or non- 
substantive amendment, or i fwe grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision ofthe Code ofconduct that applies to ow principal executive 
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, we will disclose the nature ofthe amendment or waiver an our website at the same 
location. Also, we may elect to disclose the amendment or waiver in a current report an Fomi 8-K filed with the SEC. 

Item I I .  Executive Comprosatiaa 
The information required by this item regarding Compensation ofexecutive Officers and directors is incorporated by reference to the information set 

forth under the captions “Election of Directors~ompensat ion of Directors,’’ “Executive Compenaaion” and “Compensation Committee Report” in our proxy 
statement relating to our 20 10 annual meeting afshareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. No information is required by this item regarding compensation 
commitlee interlocks 

Item 12. 

information set forth under the captions “Security Ownership ofcertain Beneficial Owners” and ‘Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers” in our 
proxystatementrelatingtoour2010 annual meetingofshareholders,whichwill be filedwiththe SEC. 

Campeosntioa Plan Information 

We also sponsor the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Program (1997 Program); the Nextel Incentive Equity Plan (Nextel Plan) and the Management Incentive Stock 
Option Plan (MISOP). On May 8,2007, our shareholders approved the 2007 Plan, under which we may grant stock options, stack appreciation rights, restricted 
stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units and other equity-based and cash awards to our employees, outside directors and certain 
other service providers. Under the 2007 Plan, the Compensation Committee of our board afdirectars, or one or more executive officers should the Compensation 
Camminee so authorize, will determine the terms ofeach equity-based award. No new grants can be made under the 1997 Program, the Nextel Plan or the MISOP. 
In 2009, the Board of Directors authorized an additional 80 million shares for future purchases under the ESPP. 

Dirrctors, Executive Onicers and Corporate Gaveraanrr 
The information required by this item regarding our directors is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the captions “Election of 

We have adopted the Sprint Nextel Code ofconduct, which applies to all ofaur  directors, officers and employees. The Code ofconduct is publicly 

Security Ownership ofCertaio Bcoefieid Owners and  Mamagemen1 and Related Storkbolder Matters 
The information required by this item, other than the equity compensation plan information presented below, is incorporated by reference lo the 

Currently we sponsor two active equity incentive plans, the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (2007 Plan) and our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). 
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The following table provides information about the shares of Series I common stack that may he issued upan exercise of awards as of December 3 1, 
2009. 

compensation plans approved by 
eholders ofSertes 1 commonstock 

Equity compensation plans not approved by 

Total I25,?19,152 
shareholders of Series 1 common stock l7,753,2451’1 22 08 

~ 

Includes 37,203,639 shares covered by options and 12,510,536 restricredsrock uni0 under rhe 2007 Plan, 35,235,272 shares covered by oprrons and 
3,615,654 reslricredslock Uni ls  outstanding under the 1997 Program and 18,066,607 shares covered by options outstanding under the MISVP. Also 
includespurchase rights to acquire 1,194,199 shares ofcommon stock accruedat December 31.  2009 under the ESPP. Under the ESPP, each eligible 
employee mqpurchase common m c k  (11 quarterly mrervals at apurchaseprice per share equal io  95% o/the market value on the lasr business day 
o/ihe ofleringperiod. 
lncluded in /he total o/l08,025,907shares ore 12,510,536 resrricredslock units u n d u  the 2007 Plan. which w i l l  be counredogainst the 2007 Plan 
mmimum in a 2.5 I D  I r a o .  
The we,ghled overage exercise price does no1 lake inro amount the shores qfcommon stock issuable upon vesting qfreslrictedstock  unit^ issued 
under the 1997 Program or the 2007 Plan. These resmcredsrock uniis hove no exeicise price. The weighredaverogepurchaseprice also does not 
lake into account the 1,194,199 shares qfcommon stock rssuable a$ LI resull o/lhepurchase righis accrued under the ESPP; thepurchaseprice sf 
these shares WLIS $3.53/or each shore. 
Ofthese shares, 174,459,793 shares qfcommon srock were available under the 2007 Plan. Through December 31,  2009, 85,971,239 cumulative shares 
camegom the 1997 Program, the NexrelPlan ondlhe MISOP. 
Includes 55.036. I79 shares o/common stock available/or issuance under the ESPP afler issuance ofthe I ,  194, 199 shares purchased ,n the/ourth 
quarrer 2009 ofleering. See note I above. 
No new owordr may be granted under the 1997 Program or /he Nextel Plan afier April I S ,  2007. 
No new oplions may be granted under rhe MISOP and there/oore rhisfigure does nor include any shares qfour common slock tho! may be issued under 
ihe MISOP. Most oplions oulslanding under rhe MISOP, however, gram rhe holder the right to receive additional oplions topurchase our common 
stock f rhe  holder, when exercising a MlSVP option, makes payment o/the purchase price usrng shares qlpreviously ownedsrock. The addrtional 
oprion gives the holder rhe right Io purchase the number ofshores sfour common stock ulilized inpaymenr qlthe purchase price and tm wilhholding. 
The exercise pricefor this oplioon is equal to rhe marker price ylrhe stock on the date the option i~ granted, and fhi3 oplion becomes exercisable one 
yearfrom the dare the original option is exercrred. This option does not include a right to receive addrtional options. 
Consis l~ 0/17,753,245 options ouLrranding under the Nextel Plan. There are no deferredshares ou/stonding under the Nextel Plan. 

Item 13. 

Transactions’’ and “Election of Directors-Independence of Directors’’ in our proxy statement relating to our 2010 annual meeting of shareholders, which will he 
filed with the SEC. 

Item 14. 

Registered Public Accounting Firm” in our proxy statement relating to our 2010 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. 

Certain Rclitioosbips pad Related Transactions, nod Director lodepeadenre 
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the captions “Certain Relationships and Other 

Principal Accountsot Fees and Sewices 
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Ratification aflndependent 
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PART IV 

Item 15. 
1. 

2. 
3. 

Exhibits and Finmeid Statement Schedules 
The consolidated financial statements of Sprint Nextel Corporation filed as part of this report are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
The consolidated financial statements o f  Clearwire Corporation filed as part of thin report are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
The following exhibits are filed as part ofthis report: 

Incorpomtrd hy Referenre 

File No. Exhibit Filinq Dale 
SEC Fi ld -- Elhihit No. Exhibit Description F0.W 

(2) Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidstion or Succession 
2.1'' Separation and Distribution Agreement by and between Sprint Nextel 10-1 2BIA 00 1-32732 2.1 05/02/2006 

2.2 Transaction Agreement and Pian ofMerger dated as ofMay 7,2008, by and 8-K 001-04721 2. I 05/07/2008 
Corporation and Embarq Corporation, dated as ofMay I ,  2006 

among Spnnt Nextel Corporation, Clearwire Corporation, Corncast Corporation, 
Time Warner Cable Inc., Bright House Networks, LLC, Google Inc. and Intel 
Corporation 
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as ofluly 27,2009, by and among Sprint 
Nextel Corporation, Sprint Mozart, Inc. and Virgin Mobile USA, Inc. 

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation 

2.3 

(3) Articles of lacorporatioo and Bylaws 
3. I 
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws 

(4) Instruments Defining the Righfs of Sprint Nextel Securily Holders 
4.1 The rights o f  Sprint Nextel's equity security holders are defined in the Fifth, 

Sixth, Seventh and Eighth Articles of Sprint Nextel's Articles o f  Incorporation. 
See Exhibit3.1 
Provision regarding Kansas Control Share Acquisition Act is in Article 1, 
Section 2.5 of the Bylaws. Provisions regarding Stockholders' Meetings are set 
forth in Article 3 afthe Bylaws. See Exhibit 3.2 
Indenture, dated as ofOctober I ,  1998, among Sprint Capital Corporation, 
Sprint Corporation and Bank One, N.A., as Trustee 
First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofJanuary 15, 1999, among Sprint 
Capital Corporation, Sprint Corporation and Bank One, N.A., as Trustee 

4.2 

4.3.1 

4.3.2 
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8-K 001-04721 2.1 0712812009 

8-K 001-04721 3.1 08/18/2005 
8-K 001-04721 3.1 I111212WY 

8-K 001-04721 3.1 0811812005 

8-K 001-04721 3 0212812007 

IO-Q 001-04721 4(b) 1110211998 

8-K 001-04721 4(b) 02/03/1999 
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Incorporaled by RsCrmre 
SEC Filed 

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description Forlo FilsNo. Elhibil Filin8D.L. 

4 3 3  Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofOctober IS, 2001, among Sprint Capital 8-K 001-04721 

(IO) Material AEreements: 

Corporation, Sprint Corporation and Bank One, N.A., as TNStee 

10.1 

10.2.1'" 
10.2.2*** 

10.2.3*** 

10.2.4 

10.2.5*** 

10.3.1 

10.3.2 

10.4.1 

10.4.2 

. 
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 23, 1998, among Sprint 
Corporation. TCI Telephony Services, Inc., Cox Communications, Inc. and Comcast 
corporation 
Letter Agreement between Motorola, Inc. and Nextel, dated November 4, 1991 

iDEN Infrastructure Supply Agreement between Motorola and Nextel, dated April 
13,1999 

Term Sheet far Subscriber Units and Services Agreement, dated December 3 I ,  2003 
between Nextel and Motorola 
Second Extension Amendment to the iDEN Infrastructure 5 Year Supply Agreement, 
dated December 14,2004, between Motorola, Inc. and Nextel Communications, Inc. 
Amendment Seven to the Term Sheet for Subscriber Units and Services Agreement, 
dated December 14,2004, behveen Motorola, Inc. and Nextel Communications, Inc. 
Credit Agreement, dated as of December 19,2005, among Sprint Nextel Corporation, 
Sprint Capital Corporation and Nextel Communications, Inc., the lenders named 
therein, and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent 
Amendment No. I to Credit Agreement, dated as ofNovember 3,2008, among Sprint 
Nextel Corporation, Sprint Capital Corporation and Nextel Communications, Inc., lhe 
lenders named therein, and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent 
Voting Agreement, dated as ofJuly 27,2009, by and among Sprint Nextel 
Corporation, Covina Holdings Limited andcortaire Limited 
Voting Agreement, dated as of July 27,2009, by and among Sprint Nextel 
Corporation and SK Telecom Co., Ltd. 
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Form of Award Agreement (awarding stock options and restricted stock units) under 
the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Program for 2007 for executive officers with Nextel 
employment agreements 
Form of Award Agreement (awarding stock options and restricted stock units) under 
the 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program far 2007 for other executive offtcers 
Management Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended 
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective December 3 1,2008, 
between Daniel R. Hesse and Sprint Nextel Carparadon 
First Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective 
December 22,2009, between Robert H. BNst and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective December 3 I ,  2008, 
between Keith 0. Cowan and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
Compensatory Agreement, dated June I I ,  2008, between Keith 0. Cowan and Sprint 
Nextel Corporation 
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective December 3 1,2008, 
between Robert L. Johnson and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
Compensatory Agreement, dated June I I ,  2008, between Robert L. Iohnion and 
Sprint Nextel Corporation 
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective December 3 I ,  2008, 
between Steven L. Elfman and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
Litigation Release Arrangement with Steven L. Elfman 
Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenl, effective December 3 I ,  2008, 
between Paget L. Alves and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective December 3 I ,  2008, 
between Charles R. Wunsch and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
Employment Agreement, effective as of May 20,2009, between Robert H. Johnson 
and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
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12 

21 Subsidiaries ofthe Registrant 
23 1 
2x2 
2x3 

31.1 

31.2 

Computation of Ratio ofEamings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred 
Stock Dividends 

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public 
Accounting Firm 
Cenification ofchief Executive Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act 
of1934 Rule 13ar14(a) 
Certification ofchief  Financial Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act 
of1934 Rule 13a-I4(a) 

1neor.or.led by Rdersner 
SEC Filing Filed 

Fils No. Elhibi( - Data - Herewith 

32. I 

32.2 

Certification of ChiefExecutive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
As Adopted Pursuant lo Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes Oxley Act of2002 
Cenification ofChiefFinancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As 
Adopled Pursuant to Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes Oxley Act of2002 

' Filed herewith **  
***  Schedules andior exhibits not tiled will be furnished to the SEC upon request. 

Ponions ofthis exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the SEC pursuant to a request far confidential treatment. 

Sprint will furnish to the SEC, upon request, copies o f  instruments defining the rights ofholders of long-term debt not exceeding 10% ofthe total 
assets ofSprint. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements afSection 13 or IS(d) af the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed an 
its behalfby the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

BY Is1 DANIEL R. HESSE 
Dmid  IL Hesse 

ChidErerutive Omrsr and Pnsidenl 

Date: February 26,2010 

registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 26uI day of Februaly, 2010 
Pursuant to the requirements af the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been slgned below by the following persons on behalfof the 

Is1 DANIEL R. HESSE 
D m i d  R. Haws 

Chid  Exw'utirs Omcrr and President 

is1 ROBERT H. Bnusr 

Chid Financial omur 
Robrrt H. Brud 

Is1 Ryan H.  Siurek 
Ryan H. Siurrk 

Vice President and Principal Accounting Omcsr 
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SIGNATURES 
SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

(Registrant) 

Pursuant to the requirements of lhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalfof the 
registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 26" day ofFebtuary. 2010. 

/ s i  JAMES H. HAKE, JR.  Id V. JANET HILL 
James H. Hmce, Jr.. Chairman V. Janet Hill, Director 

id ROEERTR. BENNETT / s i  FRANK IANNA 
Robert R. Bennett. Dirmlor Frank lam., Dlr-tor 

Is1 GORGON M. RETHUNE isi SVEN-CHRISTER NILSSON 
Gordon M. Btlhune, Director SvmChrisbr Nihaon, Diralor 

Is/ LARRY C. GLASSCOCK /si William R. Nuti 
L.,? c. GI.S.C~L.  Director William R. Nuti. Dirseor 

is/ DANIEL R. HESSE Is1 RODNEY O'NEAL 
DmU R. H a i r ,  Director Rodney O'Nul, Direct* 

64 



Table ofcontents 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
Index to Consolidated Fiaaocial Statemcats 

F-2 
F-3 
F-4 
F-5 
F-6 
F-8 

F-44 
F-45 
F-46 
F-47 
F-48 
F-49 
F-50 

F-l 



Table ofControts 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board ofDirectors and Shareholders 
Sprint Nextel Corporation: 

the related consolidated statemcntr ofoperations, cash flows and shareholders’ equity far each a f the  years in the three-year penad ended December 3 I ,  2009. 
We also have audited Sprint Nextel Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 3 I ,  2009, based on criteria established in Inrernal 
Conm-Infegrored Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Sprint Nextel Corporation’s 
management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and far its assessment 
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reponing. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion an the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our 
audits. 

require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are Free ofmaterial misstatement and whether 
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included examining, 
On a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis forouropinians. 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
convol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that ( I )  penain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations ofmanagement and directors ofthe company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection ofunauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

evaluation ofeffectiveness to future periods are subject lo the risk that controls may become inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position ofsprint Nextel 
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 3 I ,  2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each ofthe years in the three-year 
period ended December 3 1,2009, in conformity with U S  generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, Sprint Nextel Corporation maintained. h 
all material respects, effective internal Control over financial reponing as of December 3 1,2009, based an criteria established in lnrernol Conrrol--htegrored 
Fromework issued by the Commitlee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

business combinations and equity method investments in 2009. 

/si KPMG LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri 
February 26,2010 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sprint Nextel Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 3 1,2009 and 2008, and 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 

A company’s internal control over financial reponing is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reponing may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, pr0;ections ofany 

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adapted recently issued accounting guidance regarding accounting for 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

Decunb~r l l .  
IW9 IWB 

On rmllrons, urrplrhnrara and 

Cash and cash equivalents 
on-term investments 
counts and notes receivable, net 
vice and accessory inventory 
ferred tax assets 295 391 

750 643 

Property, plant sod eqoiprnrat, net 
lntnngible assets 

Goodwill 
FCC l icen~es and other 
Other intangible assets, net 

Current liabilities 

Other lisbilitres 
Total liabilities 

mitmentS and contingencies 

Treasury shares, at cost 
Accumulated deficit 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total shareholders’ equity 
S 55,424 - $ 58,550 

See Noles IO the Consolidaled FinancialSiolemenls 

F-3 



Table of Cootcars 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Ne1 operating revenues 

Cost of Services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization included below) 
Selling, general and administratwe 
Severance, exit costs and asset impairments 
Goodwill impairment 

Operating loss 
Other (expense) income 

Interest expense 
Equity In losses of unconsolldated Investments, net 
Other income, net 

Loss before income taxes 
Income tax benefit 
Net loss 

Basic and diluted loss per common share 
Basic r ad  diluted weighted average common shares ourstsadlag 

Year Ended December 31. 
lW9 IWS IW? 

963 29,649 

See Notes IO rhe Consolidated Finonciol Siaremenrs 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

See Notes io ihe Consolidated Financial Slatemenis 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUl'IY 

(in milltons) 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUlTY-(Contiourd) 

(In millions) 

(1) 
(2) 

(3) 

See note 14for rnformafion regarding common shares. 
On November 28. 2008. we recordeda $424 millron gain on Ihe deconsolidarron ofnet assels contributed to Clearwrre. net of$260 mrllion in related 
laze$. See nole 4for details o/rh;s fransaciion. 
We made an immaterial correction to previously reportedshoreholders 'equity. P o d i n  Capital and (Accumulated Deficit)/Retoined Earnrngs as of 
December 31, 2006 has been adjusted by $18 million and $292 million, respectively, related to a reduction in deferredtar liabilities. In compleling a 
detorledreconcilrolion of the net deferred tar liabilities in 2009, it was determined Ihr net deferred mr liabilities were overstored by $3 IO million. 

See Notes lo the Consolida1edF;nancialStatements 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FlNANClAL STATEMENTS 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Allowoncefor Doubrful Accounts 

accounts, it is not practical to review the collectibility of each ofthose accounts individually to determine the amount of allowance for doubtful accounts each 
period, although some account level analysis is performed with respect to large wireless and wireline subscribers. The estimate of allowance for doubtful 
accounts considers a number of factors, including collection experience, aging of the accounts receivable portfolios, credit quality of the subscriber base, 
estimated proceeds from fuhrre bad debt sales and other qualitative considerations, including macroeconomic factors. Amounts written off against the allowance 
for doubtful accounts, net ofrecaveries, were $487 million, $826 million, and $952 million in 2009,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Device and Accessory Invenrory 

Inventories are stated at the lower ofcost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, f i r ~ t d u t  (FIFO) method. Costs ofdevices and relatedrevenues 
generated from device sales (equipment net subsidy) are recognized at the time ofsale. Expected equipment net subsidy is not recognized prior to the time ofsale 
because the promotional discount decision is generally made at the paint of sale and because the equipment net subsidies are expected to be recovered through 
service revenues. 

product life cycle, marketplace and other considerations. lfassesrments regarding the above factors adversely change, we may be required to sell devices at a 
higher subsidy or potentially record expense in future periods prior to the point ofsale. 

Proper@, Plan1 and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment (PP&E), including improvements that extend useful lives, are recognized at cost. Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipmenl is generally calculated using the straight-line method based on estimated economic useful lives o f 3  to 30 years for buildings and improvements and 
network equipment, site costs and related software and 3 to 12 years for "on-network internal use software, office equipment and other. Leasehold improvements 
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the respective assets. We calculate depreciation an certain network assets using 
the group life method. Accordingly, ordinary asset retirements and disposals on those assets are charged against accumulated depreciation with no gain or loss 
recognized. Gains or losses associated with all other asset retirements or disposals are recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. Depreciation 
rates for assets using the group life method are revised periodically as required under this depreciation method. Repair and maintenance costs and research and 
development costs are expensed as incurred. 

costs are included in PP&E and, when the software is placed in service, are depreciated over estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years. Costs incurred during the 
preliminary project and post-implementation stage, as well as maintenance and training costs, are expensed as incurred. 

Investments 

Short-term investments are recognized at amortized cast and classified as current assets an the consolidated balance sheets when the original 
maturities at purchase are greater than three months but less than one year. Certain investments are accounted for using the equity method based on the 
Company's ownership interest and ability to exercise significant influence. Accordingly, the initial investment is recognized at cost and subsequently adjusted to 
recognize the Company's share of earnings or losses of the investee in each reporting period subsequent to the investment dale. 

An allowance for doubtful accounts is established sufficient to cover probable and reasonably estimable lasses. Because ofthe number of subscriber 

The net realizable value ofdevices and other inventory is analyzed on a regular basis. This analysis includes assessing obsolescence, sales forecasts, 

We capitalize costs for network and "on-network software developed or obtained for internal use during the application development stage. These 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Investments are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment an a regular basis. Other-than-temporary impairment occurs when the estimated fair 
value of an investment is below the carrying value, and the difference is determined to not be recoverable. This evaluation requires significant judgment 
regarding, hut not limited to, the severity and duration ofthe impairment; the ability and intent to hold the securities until recovery; financial condition, liquidity, 
and near-term prospects of the issuer, specific events, and other factors. 

Long-Lived Asset Impoirmenr 

Sprint evaluates long-lived assets, including intangible assets subject to amortization, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount ofan asset group may not he recoverable. When it is probable that undiscounted future cash flows will not be suffcient to 
recover an asset group's carrying amount, an impairment is determined by the excess of the asset group's net carrying value over the estimated fair value. Refer 
to note 9 for additional information on asset impairments. 

Certain assets that have not yet been deployed in the business, including network equipment, cell site development costs and software in 
development. are periodically assessed to determine recoverability. Network equipment and cell site development costs are expensed whenever events or 
changes in circumstances cause the Company to conclude the assets are no longer needed to meet management's strategic network plans and will not be 
deployed. Software development costs are expensed when it is no longer probable that the software project will be deployed. Network equipment that has been 
removed from the network is also periodically assessed to determine recoverability. l fwe  continue to have operational challenges, including obtaining and 
retaining subscribers, future cash flows ofthe Company may not he sufficient to recover the carrying value of our wireless asset group, and we could record 
asset impairments that are material to Sprint's consolidated results of operations and financial condition 

Indefinite-Livedlnfongible A S S ~ S  

business combinations. During the fourth quarter 2009, in connection with our acquisitions of VMU and iPCS, we recognized goodwill of $373 million, 
representing the entire balance of our goodwill as of December 3 I ,  2009. Our indefinite-lived intangible assets include Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 
licenses, acquired primarily through FCC auctions and business combinations, to deploy our wireless services, and certain of our trademarks. In determining 
whether an intangible asset, other than goodwill, is indefinite-lived, we consider the expected use of the assets, the regulatory and economic environment within 
which they are being used, and the effects of obsolescence on their use. We assess our indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually or, if 
necessary, more frequently, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset may be impaired. Such indicators may include a sustained, 
significant decline in our market capitalization since our previous impairment assessment, a significant decline in our expected future cash flows, a significant 
adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate, unanticipated competition, andlor slower growth rates, among others. 

Senefit Plms 

for all employees. The objective for the investment portfolio of the pension plan is to achieve a long-term nominal rate ofreturn, net of fees, which exceeds the 
plans long-term expected rate ofreturn on investments for funding purposes. To meet this objective, our investment strategy is governed by an asset allocation 
policy, whereby a targeted allocation percentage is assigned to each asset class as fallows: 50% to U.S. equities; 15% to international equities; IS% to fixed 
income investments; 10% to real estate investments; and 10% to other investments including hedge funds. Actual allocations are allowed to deviate from target 
allocation percentages by plus or minus 5%. 

Investments ofthe pension plan are measured at fair value on a recurring basis which i s  determined using quoted market prices or estimated fair 
values. As of December 3 I ,  2009.59% ofthe investment portfolio was valued at quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; 26% was valued using 
quoted prices for similar 

Goodwill represents the excess ofconsideration paid over the estimated fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible w e t s  acquired in 

We provide a defined benefit pension plan and certain other postretirement benefits to certain employees, and we sponsor a defined contribution plan 

F-ll 



Table ofCooteots 

SPHI\T Y E S I  t:I. CORPOHXTIOS 
VOTES'I'O I I I E  ('ONSOI.ID..\TEI) CIV \S('lAl. Sl . \TE\ IEN' IS 

assets in active or inactive markets, or other observable inputs: and 15% was valued using unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. 
As ofDecember 3 1,2009 and 2008, the fair value afour  plan assets in aggregate was $1 .2 billion and $896 million, respectively, and the fair value of our projected 
benefit obligations in aggregate was $1 .6 billion and $1.1 billion, respectively. As a result, the plans are underfunded by $403 million at December 3 I, 2009 and 
$805 million at December 3 1,2008, and are recorded as a net liability in our consolidated balance sheets. The offset to Ihe liability is recorded in equity as a 
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net oftax, including the 2009 and 2008 adjustments of $140 million and $379 million, respectively. The 
funded Status of the plan was affected primarily by the improvement in the fair value a f the  plan assets resulting in recovery of some of the losses caused by the 
poor performance in the financial markets during 2008. This improvement was combined with an increase in the discount rate, from 6.20% to 6.75%, used to 
estimate the projected benefit obligation and by the cash contribution of $200 million in 2009. We intend to make future cash contributions to the pension plan in 
an amount necessary to meet minimum funding requirements according to applicable benefit plan regulations. As of December 3 1, 2005, the pension plan was 
amended to freeze benefit plan accruals for participants. 

compensation paid aRer March 6,2009, the amount of matching contribution is discretionary as determined by the Board of Directors ofthe Company, based 
upon a formula related to the profitability ofthe Company. If such profitability level is attained, the Company could match 100% ofthe participant's contributions 
up to a maximum of4% oftheir eligible compensation. From January I, 2009 to March 6, 2009, we matched in cash 100% ofparticipants' contributions up to 4% of 
their eligible compensation. In 2008 and 2007, we matched 100% ofparticipants' contributions up to 5% oftheir eligible compensation in cash. Fixed matching 
contributions totaled $32 million, $I 19 million and $128 million in 2009,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Revenue Recognition 

Operating revenues primarily consist ofwireless service revenues, revenues generated tiom device and accessory sales, revenues from wholesale 
operators and third party affiliates (PCS Affiliates), as well as long distance voice, data and Internet revenues. Service revenues consist of fixed monthly recurring 
charges, variable usage charges such as roaming, directory assistance, and operator-assisted calling and miscellaneous fees, such as activation, upgrade, late 
payment, reconnection and early termination fees and certain regulatoty related fees. We recognize service revenuer as services are rendered and equipment 
revenue when title passes to the dealer or end-user subscriber. We recognize revenue for access charges and other services charged at fixed amounts ratably 
over the service period, net of credits and adjustments for service discounts, billing disputes and fraud or unauthorized usage. We recognize excess wireless 
usage and long distance revenue at contractual rates per minute as minutes are used. Additionally, we recognize excess wireless data usage based on kilobytes 
and one-time use charges, such as for the use ofpremium services, when rendered. As a result ofthe cutoff times ofour multiple billing cycles each month, we are 
required to estimate the amount ofsubscriber revenues earned but not billed from the end ofeach billing cycle to the end ofeach reporling period. These 
estimates are based primarily on rate plans in effect and our historical usage and billing patterns. Regulatory fees and costs are recorded gross. The largest 
component ofthe repulatoty fees is universal service fund, which represented about 2% of net operating revenues in 2009,2008 and 2007. 

adjustments for disputes with subscribers, unauthorized usage, future returns and mail-in rebates on device sales. 

Dealer Commissions 
Cash consideration given by us to a dealer or end-user subscriber is presumed to be a reduction of revenue unless we receive, or will receive, an 

identifiable benefit in exchange far the consideration, and the fair value of such benefit can be reasonably estimated, in which case the consideration will be 
recorded as a selling 

Under our defmed contribution plan, participants may contribute a portion of their eligible pay to the plan through payroll withholdings. Effective for 

The accounting estimates related to the recognition ofrevenue in the results ofoperations require us to make assumptions about future billing 
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expense. We compensate our dealers using specific compensation programs related to the sale of our devices and our subscriber service contracts, or both. 
When a commission is earned by a dealer solely due to a selling activity relating to wireless service, the cost is recorded as a selling expense. When a commission 
is earned by a dealer due to the dealer selling one of our devices, the cost is recorded as a reduction to equipment revenue. 

Advertising Cosrs 

and $1.8 billion for the years ended December 3 I ,  2009,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

New Accounting Pranouncemmts 

Accounring Standards Codification and the Hierarchy ofijenernlly Accepled Accounlrng Principles, which establishes the FASB Accounting Sfandards 
Codi/kation (Codification) as the only source of authoritative GAAP in the United States, except that rules and interpretive releases issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) also are sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. Subsequent to the issuance afSFAS No. 168, the FASB will no longer 
issue Statements, Staff Positions, or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts, but will issue Accounting Standards Updates (ASU) which will amend the 
Codification. As a result, the Codification supersedes authoritative literature effective prior to June 2009. 

Slalemenrs and Disclosures oboul Derivolive lnstrumenls andHedging AcfivifieS which were effective for the quaner ended March 3 I ,  2009. The Business 
Combinarions guidance was adopted on January 1,2009. As a result of adoption, far our fourth quarter acquisitions (see Note 3), we recognized a gain of $ 15 1 
million ($92 million afler tax) related to the increase to estimated fair value ofour non-controlling interest in VMU. In addition, under the new guidance, 
transaction costs and costs associated with exit activities are expensed as incurred. The remaining guidance did not have a material effect on our consolidated 
financial statements. 

In June 2008, the FASB issued authoritative literalure regarding Determining Whelherlnstmmenls Granfed inShare-BasedPoymenl Trmsacfionr 
are Parlioipating Securilies, which was effective beginning January I ,  2009. Based an this pronouncement, our outstanding "on-vested restricted stock units 
that contain a nan-forfeitable right to receive dividends, whether paid or unpaid, are participating securities and therefore, should be included in the computation 
ofbasic and diluted earnings per share. As required by this pronouncement, prior period basic and diluted earnings per share and weighted average common 
shares outstanding were adjusted. The impact to basic and diluted earnings per share and weighted average common shares outstanding did not have a material 
effect an our consolidated financial statements. 

In November 2008, the FASB issued authoritative literature regarding Equify Melhod Inveslmenr Accounting Considerations, to clarify the 
application of equity method accounting. Among other things, this literature requires equity method investors to account far equity investee share issuances as 
ifthe investor had sold a proportionate share of its investment, with the recognition ofany resulting gain or loss in earnings. The Company adopted these 
requirements effective January I ,  2009. As a result, we recognized a pre-tax loss of$I54 million ($96 million afler tax) related to the dilution afaur  investment in 
Clearwire resulting h m  their first quaner 2009 share issuance. 

disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies (ii) Recognilion andPrresenrarion of Other-Than- 
Temporary Impairmenls, which amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve 

We recognize advertising expense when incurred 2.3 selling, general and administrative expense. Advertising expenses totaled $I .5 billion, $1.5 billion 

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement afFinancia1 Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 168, The FASB 

The F ASB issued authoritative literature regarding accounting for Business Combmallom, Non-conrrolling Interest$ in Consolidaled Financial 

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative literature regarding (i) Inlerim Disclosures abour Fair Value of Finaneiollnslrumenfs, to require 

the presentation and disclosure ofother-than-temporary impamnenw 
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have a material adverse effect on us. In  addition, iDEN technology is not as widely adopted and has fewer subscribers than other wireless technologies and we 
expect that aver time it is less likely that manufacturers other than Motorola will be willing to make the significant financial commitment required to license, 
develop and manufacture iDEN infraslructure equipment and devices. Further our ability to complete the spectrum reconfiguration plan in connection with the 
FCC's Reporl and Order, described in note 12, is dependent, in part, on Motorola. 

Note 3. 
During the foulih quarter 2009, we completed the acquisitions of Virgin Mobile USA, Inc. and iPCS, Inc gether, Acquisitions) within our Wireless 

segment. The consideration paid for each of the acquired entities has been allocated to the assets acquired and liab es assumed based on their estimated fair 
values at the respective acquisition dates. The excess ofconsideration paid over net tangible and identifiable intangible assels is recognized as goodwill. As a 
result ofthese Acquisitions, Sprint recognized $373 million of goodwill representing our balance as of December 3 1,2009. The purchase price allocation used in 
the preparation of these financial statements is preliminary due to the continuing analyses relating to the determination of the estimated fair values of the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. Any changes to the valuation of net assets acquired, based on information as of the acquisition date, will result in an adjustment 
to the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and a corresponding adjustment to goodwill. Management does not expect the 
finalization ofthese matters to have a material effect on the allocation. Goodwill recognized in connection with the Acquisitions is not deductible far tax purposes. 
The results of operations for each acquired entity arc included in Sprint's consolidated results of operations prospectively from the respective date of each 
acquisition. 

The fair value measurements were primarily based on significant inputs that are not observable in the market, other than long-term debt assumed in the 
acquisition of iPCS. Discounted cash flows, an income approach, were primarily used to value the identifiable intangible assets, consisting primarily of customer 
relationships, reacquired rights and the Virgin Mobile lrademark, as well as the effective settlement of litigation. Depreciated replacement cost, a cost approach, 
was used to estimate the fair value of properly, plant and equipment. In accordance with the recently adapted guidance on accounting for business 
combinations, Sprint measured 100% ofthe acquiree's assets and liabilities at fair value, including the noncontrolling interest in VMU held by Sprint prior to the 
acquisition. Sprint's previously held nowcontrolling interest in VMU was valued based on a market amroach considering the amounts paid to acquire the 
remaining 85.9%o\\nership in VMU. 

VMU and IPCS Acquisitions 
On November 24,2009 we completed the acquisition afthe remaining 85.9% of VMU, a national provider ofpredominantly prepaid wireless 

communications services, in a cash and stock business cornbination, to, among other things, broaden the Company's position in the prepaid wireless market. The 
aggregate consideration. including the fair value of Sprint's "on-controlling interest in VMU, was $70 I million consisting of 96.2 million shares of Sprint common 
stock valued at 5361 million, share-based consideration ofSl8 million and $265 million in net cash. The value ofthe 96.2 million shares ofSprint common stock 
issued was determined based on Sprint's common stock share price of $3.75, the closing price on the date afacquisition. As a result of the acquisition, we 
recognized a gain of $151 million resulting From the excess ofthe estimated fair value of $9 million for our previously held 14.1% interest over our carrying value. 
Sprinl's historical c a v i n g  value of its previously held interest in VMU was reflected as a $94 million liability resulting From a return ofcapital in excess ofour 
investment in VMU. 

for aggregate consideration ofS295 million to, among other things, expand our direct subscriber base, grow our direct coverage area and simplify our business 
operations. 

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were preliminarily determined using the income, cost or market approaches. 

On December 4,2009, we completed the acquisition of 100% ofthe common stock ofiPCS, a Sprint PCS affiliate, in an all-cash business combination 
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The acquisition of iPCS resulted in the effective settlement afprecxisting litigation. On September 24,2008 the Illinois Supreme Court denied the 
Company's petition for appeal in a contract dispute with iPCS. The decision resulted in a previous ruling being upheld that required Sprint to cease owning, 
operating or managing the iDEN network in puts  ofcertain Midwestern states including Illinois, Iowa, Michigan, Missouri, Nebraska, Wisconsin and a small 
portion of Indiana. As a result of the acquisition, all disputes have been resolved and the Company recorded a $23 million charge as an increase to operating 
expenses, representing the estimated fair value of the settled litigation. 

The following table summarizes the consideration paid for each afthe Acquisitions and the amounts recognized for assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed at each acquisition date. 

VMU IPCS Af6liate 
A<q""ll,*" 

Coasidcrrtio~: 

Property, plant and equipment 41 IS0 
Identifiable mtangibles 

Other long-term liabilities 
Deferred tax liabilities 

Goodwill 
Total idenfifiable net assets 

S 295 - S 701 - 
Identifiable intangible assets acquired in the Acquisitions include the following: 

Ealm.lrd Weighted Avera~e 
Fair Vslur u S m  Lire 

Trademarks 
Customer relationships 
Reacquired rights 
Othe ibles 
Total 

b 
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Common Interests”). Sprint agreed to contribute $ I .  I76 billion in ihree installments in exchange for approximately 160.4 million Class B Common Interests. Dunng 
the fourth quarter 2009, Sprint’s net investment increased by approximately $1. I billion in exchange for I55 million shares ofclass  B Common Interests. Sprint’s 
final installment of $50 million is expected to be contributed in the first quarter 2010 upon Clewire’s  satisfaction of certain closing conditions. In conjunction 
with Sprint’s additional contribution, we refinanced our note receivable from Clearwire which extended the maturity date to December 2015, fixed the interest rate 
at 12% and increased the face moun t  to $184 million. 

Clearwire Corporation and 525 million Class B common interests in Clearwire Communications LLC, as of December 3 I ,  2009 for which the carrying value totaled 
$4.3 billion. Each share ofClemwire Corporation Class B common stock, together with one C l e w i r e  Communications LLC Class B common interest, is 
exchangeable for one share ofclearwire Corporation’s Class A common stock, a publicly waded security. Spnnt’s investment in Clearwire represents $8.25 per 
share based on the assumed exchange ofaur  Class B common interests for Class A common shares. The market price ofclearwire’s publicly waded stock was 
$6.16 per share as ofDecember 3 I ,  2009. Sprint’s investment in Clearwire is part ofour long-term plan to participate in the 4G wireless broadband market, and to 
benefit earn Clearwire’s advantaged position in that market. Clearwire is continuing to execute its business plan, including building its 4G wireless broadband 
network, and Clearwire, Sprint and ather investors are beginning to offer 4G products utilizing that network. Sprint does not intend to sell this investment in the 
foreseeable future, and recoverability of our investment is not affected by short-term fluctuations in Clewire’s  stack price. Sprint continues to believe the 
decline in Cleanvire’s stock price is temporary and expects to recover fully the carrying value af the investment. 

As a result of these transactions, Sprint owns a 56% non-controlling interest in Clearwire, in the form of 525 million shares ofclass  B common stock in 

Summarized fmancial information far Clearwire is as follows: 

Current assets 
Noncurrent assets 

$ S 3,166 
7,391 5,958 

Current liabilities 543 S 171 
Noncurrent liabilities 2,952 1,450 

Year Ended D e c r m k r  31, 
2w7 _. lW8 - 1009 

Revenues 
Operating expenses 

Operating loss $0,183) S(493) 

Net loss S(I,ZS4) S(592) S(225) 
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Note 5. Financial Iastrumeals 

not included in the table below. Short-term investments (consisting primarily oftime deposits and treasury securities) and marketable equity securities are 
measured an a recurring basis at amounts which approximate fair value. Any changes in fair value of assets or liabilities carried at fair value are recognized in 
other comprehensive inwme (loss) each period. The following table presents information regarding the method of valuation bases for assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 3 I, 2009: 

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, and accounts payable are carried at cost which approximates fair value and, as such, are 

Quoted Prices in signinc.nt €M.nrs 

Idsnltal  Assee I"."l. ZW9 
~ c t i r .  M..M, ror Other Obsensble Unobssrrablt Decnnber3l. 

Short-term invesancnu 

The estimated fair value of long-term debt, financing and capital lease obligations, including current maturities is based on current market prices or 
interest rates. The following table presents carrying amounts and estimated fair values for these financial instruments: 

Decemkr 31, 

Carrying E.limaltd Carving Estimslrd 
Alnounl Fair Value Amount 

1009 m a  

- -  - 
Long-term debt, financing and capital lease obligations $21, ,449 

Note 6. 
Network equipment, site costs and related software includes switching equipment, cell site towers, site development costs, radio frequency 

equipment, network software, digital fiber optic cable, mansport facilities and transmission-related equipment. Buildings and improvements principally consists of 
awned general office facilities, relail stores and leasehold improvements. Non-network internal use software, office equipment and other primarily consists of 
furniture, information technology systems and equipment and vehicles. Constmction in progress, which is not depreciated until placed in service, primarily 
includes materials, transmission and related equipment, labor, engineering, site development costs, interest and other costs relating to the construction and 
development ofour network. Interest incurred in connection with the construction of long-lived assets totaled $12 million, $123 million and $127 million for !he 
years ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2001, respectively. 

Properly, Plant and Equipment 

The components of property, plant and equipment, and the related accumulated depreciation were as follows: 

Land 
Network equipment, sile costs and  re 
Buildings and improvements 
Non-network internal use software, o 
Construction in progress 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

F-I9 



TablcofCootrotr 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 7. loliogible Assets 

ladelioitc-Lived lotrogiblcs 

Goodwill 
Imp.i,.."l, 

D ~ s m b r 3 l ,  Adjustments Decnnbsr31, Nd Ikcnnber31, 
IW7 dr Olhrr fW8 Additions 2009 

(i" millions) 

FCC licenses(11 $ 20,707 s 18.911 
Trademarks 409 
GocdwilK'I - 

s 22,101 -1 $ 19,320 - $ 20,284 

(I)  Dwing 2008. we conlributed $2.5 billion ofFCC licenses to Clearwire and acquired $1.0 billion ofFCC licenses in our normal C D U P S ~  qlhusiness, 
including our requirements under the Report and Order. In additron, we reduced FCC licenses hy $265 million due lo the reversal o/unrecogni:edlar 
hene/its. See note I l for  addirionol information. 
During2009, we recogniredgoohuillqf$373 million ossooatedwith the a ~ q u i ~ , l i o n ~  ofVMUond rPCS (see Note 3). (2)  

We hold FCC licenses authorizing the use ofradio frequency spechum to deploy our wireless services: 1.9 GHz licenses utilized in the CDMA 
network, and 800 megahem (MHz) and 900 MHz licenses utilized in the iDEN network. We also hold 1.9 GHz and other FCC licenses that are not currently being 
utilized. As long as the Company acts within the requirements and constraints ofthe regulatory authorities, the renewal and extension ofthese licenses is 
reasonably certain at minimal cost. We are not aware of any technology being developed that would render this spectrum obsolete and have concluded that 
these licenses are indefinite-lived intangible assets. Our Sprint and Boost Mobile trademarks have been identified as indefinite-lived intangible assets. 

Goodwill 
Goodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over the estimated fair value ofnet tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in 

business wmbinations. During the fourth quarter 2009, we acquired VMU and iPCS (see Note 3) and, based on our preliminary purchase price allocation, 
recorded $373 million of goodwill. 

Goodwill Reeoveroblliry Assessment 

The carrying value of Sprint's goodwill is included in the Wireless segment which represents our wireless reporting unit. We estimate the fair value of 
the wireless reponing unit using discounted expected future cash flows, supported by the results of market approach valuation models. If the fair value of the 
wireless reponing unit exceeds its net book value, goodwill is not impaired, and no further testing is n e c e s s a ~ .  If the net book value of our wireless reporting unit 
exceeds ils estimated fair value, we estimate the fair value ofgoadwill to determine the amount ofimpairment loss, ifany 

The determination of the estimated fair value of the wireless reporting unit and other assets and liabilities within the wireless reponing unit requires 
significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions primarily include, but are not limited to, discount rate, terminal growth rate, operating 
income before depreciation and amortization (OIBDA) and capital expenditure forecasts. Due to the inherent uncertainly involved in making those estimates, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. We evaluate the merits ofeach significant assumption, both individually and in the aggregate, used to determine 
the fair value of the wireless reponing unit, as well as the fair values ofthe corresponding assets and liabilities within the wireless reponing unit, for 
reasonableness. 
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Goodwill Assessments 

connection with prior business combinations including Nextel Communications, Inc., Nextel Partners, Inc., and other acquisitions such as certain PCS affiliates 
that provide services on the CDMA network. During the fourth quarter 2007, economic conditions began to decline and we experienced a sustained, significant 
decline in our stock price. The reduced market capitalization reflected the Wireless segment's lower than expected performance, due in large part to net subscriber 
losses. Based on the results ofour 2007 assessment, we estimated the fair value of our goodwill to be $978 million resulting in a goodwill impairment ofS29.6 
billion during the fourth quarler2007. 

During 2008, economic conditions continued to significantly deteriorate due, in part, to the ongoing credit crisis in the financial markets. Our updated 
forecasted cash flows ofthe wireless reponing unit resulted in a further reduction in the estimated fair value of the wireless reporting unit as compared to the 2007 
estimate of fair value primarily reflecting several factors including, among others, the discount rate, our ability to attract and retain subscribers, particularly post- 
paid subscribers, expected reductions in average voice revenue per past-paid subscriber, and the costs of operating our wireless networks. Based on the results 
of our 2008 assessment, the estimated fair value of our goodwill was zero resulting in a goodwill impairment of $963 million during the fourth quarter 2008. 

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortizstion 

primarily include certain rights under affiliation agreements that were reacquired in connection with the acquisitions of PCS Affiliates, and Nextel Partners, Inc., 
which are being amortized over the remaining terms ofthose affiliation agreements on a straight-line basis, and the Nextel, Direct Connect and Virgin Mobile trade 
names, which are being amortized an a straight-line basis. 

In 2007, we conducted our annual impairment assessment of our then $30.7 billion ofgoodwill. The majority of our goodwill was recorded in 

Sprint's customer relationships are amortized over a period oftwo to five years using the sum a f the  years' digits method. Other intangible assets 

Customer relationslups 
Other intangible assets 

Trademarb 
Reacquired rights 
Other 

Total other intangible assets 

Eslunated amortmtion expense 

2,861 (820) 2,047 2,252 (618) - 1,634 
S 14472 & S 15,091 

2010 1011 2011 2013 1014 - _ _ - -  

In conjunction with our annual assessments of indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment, we performed a recoverability test of lhe wireless long-lived 
assets. We included cash flow projections from wireless operations along with cash flows associated with the eventual disposition of the long-lived assets, 
which included estimated proceeds from the assumed sale of FCC licenses, trademarks and customer relationships. The estimated undiscounted &lure cash flaws 
of the wireless long-lived assets exceeded their carrying amount and, as a result, no impairment charge WBS recorded. In addition, we re-assessed the remaining 
useful lives of these long-lived assets and concluded they were appropriate. 
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Note 8. Long-Term Debt, Fiaaoeiog .ad Capital Lease Obligations 

I","", Dscembvfl ,  Detmbrr31, 
R.1U M.lW,bW 2w9 2008 

Notes 
Senior notes 

S p m t  Nextel Corporatio 
Sprint Capital Corporation 

Nextel Cammumcatmns, Inc 

Nextel Communications Inc 595-738% 2013-2015 4 780 4.780 

Convertible senior notes 

Serial redeemable senior notes 

- 9 2 5 %  2010 
8 7  

% 

Secured Notes 
IPCS, Inc 

Bank credit facility 
Export Development Canada 

w-Sprint Nextel Corporation 

Fiaaoeing obligation 
Capihlleasc obligations rod Dther(1) 

"" 
21,061 21,610 

( I )  
As ofDecember 3 I ,  2009, Sprint Nextel Corporation. the parent corporation, had $5.0 billion in principal ofdebt outstanding, including the credit 

facilities. In addition, $14.6 billion in principal ofour long-term debt issued by whally-owned subsidiaries is guaranteed by the parent, ofwhich approximately $9.9 
billion issued by our finance subsidiary, Sprint Capital Corporation, is fully and unconditionally guaranteed. The indentures and financing arrangements of 
certain subsidiaries' debt contain provisions that limit cash dividend payments on subsidiary common stock. The transfer ofcash in the form of advancer from 
the subsidiaries to the parent corporation generally is not restricted. 

As of December 3 I ,  2009, about $I .4 billion ofour outstanding debt, comprised of certain secured notes, financing and capital lease obligations and 
mortgages, is secured by $1 .Z billion of gross pcopeny, plant and equipment and other assets. Cash interest payments were $1.4 billion, $1.4 billion and $1.5 
billion during each ofthe years ended December 3 1,2009,2008 and 2007. 

Nates 

assets of iPCS. Cash interest an these notes is generally payable semiannually in arrears. Approximately $18.4 billion of the notes are redeemable at the 
Company's discretion including accrued interest. Our weighted average effective interest rate related to our senior notes was 6.5% in 2009 and 2008 

the acquisition of iPCS. The Company may redeem some or all ofthese nates at any time prior to maturity I f a  change ofcontrol event (as defined in the iPCS 
indenture) occurs, iPCS will be required to make an offer to repurchase lhe outstanding principal in cash at a price equal to 101% oftheir principal mount .  

includes 8105 million h oulsrandingprincipol reloled Io a consolidoredvariable inrwesl enti/y. 

Notes consist of senior and serial redeemable senior notes that are unsecured and secured notes of iPCS, which are secured solely with the underlying 

In December 2009, the Company assumed $417 million (net of a $62 million discount) of Secured Floating Rate Notes due in 2013 and 2014 as part of 
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On August 11,2009, the Company issued $1.3 billion in principal of senior notes due 20 17. Interest is payable semi-annually on February I S  and 
August IS at a fixed rate of 8.375% The Campany may redeem some or all of these notes at any time prior to maturity. The notes are unsecured senior obligations 
and rank equally with the existing unsecured senior indebtedness. I f  a change ofcontrol event (as defined in the related indenture) occurs, Sprint will be required 
10 make an offer to repurchase the notes in cash at a price equal to 101% oftheir principal amount. In May 2009, all outstanding 6.38% senior notes due 2009 were 
repaid totaling $600 million plus accrued and unpaid interest. On September 16,2009, all outstanding 5.25% convertible senior notes due 2010 were redeemed at 
100% ofthe principal moun t  totaling $607 million plus accrued and unpaid interest. 

2008, the extinguishment of US Unwired, Inc.'s 10% Second Priority Senior Secured Notes due 2012 and the extinguishment of Alamosa (Delaware), I m ' s  8.5% 
Senior Nates due 2012, respectively. 

Credit Facilities 
As ofDecember 3 I ,  2009, $1.8 billion in letters ofcredit, including a $1.7 billion lelter ofcredit required by the FCC's Report and Order to reconfigure 

the 800 MHz band, were outstanding under our $4.5 billion revolving bank credit facility whioh expires on December 19,2010. As a result, the Company had $2.7 
billion ofbonowing capacity available under this revolving bank credit facility as ofDecember 3 I, 2009. The terms ofthis loan provide for an interest rate equal to 
the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a spread that varies depending on the Company's credit ratings. The unsecured loan agreement with Export 
Development Canada will mature in March 2012 and has terms similar to those ofthe revolving bank credit facility 

during the second and third quarlers of 2008. During the second halfof2008, we repaid $1 . S  billion ofour revolving bank credit facility and, in the fourth quarter 
of2009, we repaid the remaining outstanding balance of $1 .O billion. 

Cammerciol Paper 

was backed by our revolving credit facility and reduced the amount we could borrow under the facility to the extent ofthe commercial paper outstanding. 

Financing, Capital L a s e  and Other Obligatioos 
In 2008, we closed a transaction with TowerCa Acquisition LLC under which we sold approximately 3,000 cell sites, and subsequently leased space on 

those cell sites over a period often years with renewal options for an additional 20 years. Due to our continued involvement with the property sold, we accounted 
for this transaction BS a financing. The cell sites continue to be included in property, plant and equipment. Our capital lease and other obligations are primarily for 
the use of communication switches 

CO"~ll.lltS 

af the borrowings may accelerate if we do not oamply with these covenants A default under any ofour borrowings could trigger defaults under other debt 
obligations, which in turn could result in the maturities being accelerated. The indentures that govern our outstanding senior notes also require compliance with 
various covenants, including limitations on the incurrence of indebtedness and liens by the Company and its subsidiaries 

In 2008, the Company made payments ofSl .3  billion, $235 million and $250 million toward the early redemption af6.125% senior notes due November 

In February 2008, we drew down $2.5 billion under our revolving bank credit facility. The proceeds were used to repay $I .7 billion in senior notes 

In 2008, we repaid in full our commercial paper outstanding under our commercial paper program which commenced in 2006. The $2.0 billion program 

As of December 3 I ,  2009, the Company is in compliance with all restrictive and financial covenants associated with its borrowings. The maturity dates 
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We are currently restricted from paying cash dividends because our ratio oftotal indebtedness to trailing four quarters earnings before interest, taxes, 
depreciation and amorlization and certain other "on-recurring items, as defined in the credit facility (adjusted EBITDA), exceeds 2.5 to 1.0. The Company also is 
obligated to repay the credit facilities if certain changedfsontrol events occur. 

Future Maturities of Long-Term Debl, Financing Obligation and Capital Lease Obligations 

obligations outstanding as of December 3 1,2009, are as fallows: 
For the years subsequent to December 3 I ,  2009, scheduled annual principal payments of long-term debt, financing obligation and capital lease 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 and thereafter 

Add premiums, discounts and adjustments, net 

Note 9. Severance, Exit Costs and Asset Impairments 

Liabilities for severance and exit costs are recognized based upon the nature af the cost lo be incurred. Far involuntary separation plans that are 
completed within the guidelines afour  written involuntary separation plan, a liability is recognized when it is probable and reasonably estimable. For voluntary 
separation plans (VSP) a liability is recognized when the VSP is irrevocably accepted by the employee. For one-time termination benefits, such as additional 
severance pay or benefit payouts, and other exit costs, such as lease termination costs, the liability is measured and recognized initially a1 fair value in the period 
in which the liability is incurred, with subsequent changes to the liability recognized as adjustments in the period ofchange. Severance and exit costs associated 
with business combinations were recorded as a component ofthe purchase price allocation in periods prior to 2009, generally resulting in additional goodwill. 
Beginning in 2009, in conjunction with recently adopted guidance on accounting for business combinations, the Company records severance and exit costs 
associated with business combinations in the results of operations when incurred. 

Severance and ExiI Cosfs Acrivify 

mounts, $307 million related to the Wireless segment and $93 million related to the Wireline segment. During 2008, we recognized $355 million ofseverance and 
exit costs related to the separation of employees and continued organizational realignment initiatives. Of these amounts, $270 million related to our Wireless 
segment, $61 million related to our Wireline segment and the remaining $23 million related to Colporate and other. In 2007 we recognized $230 million and $47 
million of expenses for severance and exit costs relaled to our Wireless and Wireline segments, respectively. 

During 2009, we recognized $400 million ofseverance and exit costs related primarily to the reduction in workforce announcemenls in 2009. Of these 
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The following provide the activtt) in the severance and exit costs liability, included In "Accrued expenses and other current liabilities '' 

I W 9  A c t w b  
Wcmmber 31. Nd Cash Payments Doeember 31, 

lW8 and Other 1W9 

Exit wsts $ 38 89 
SC!WP,"W 

Total costs 
90 362 (342) 110 

s 4 w  $ (404) - $ 203 - 

Asset Impairment 
In 2009, we recorded asset impainnenls of $47 million primarily related to network asset equipment in our Wireless segment, no longer necessary for 

management's svategic plans. In 2008, we recorded asset impairments of $480 million primarily related to cell site development costs and network asset equipment 
in our Wireless segment, no longer necessary for management's strategic plans. In 2007, we had asset impairments of SI63 million, primarily attributable to OUT 

Wireless segment, which included the writedffofcell site development costs that we abandoned as the sites would not be used based on management's 
strategic network plans, the sale of Velacita Wireless, and the closing afretail stores due to integration efforts. 
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S 412 $ 380 
261 

$ 643 

1,575 $1,574 
465 I91 
121 - I73 - 

AeeouuLS and notes reeeivablr. nrt 
Trade 
Unbilled trade and other 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Prepaid expenses 
Deferred charges and other 

Trade 
Accrued interconnectaon costs 
Construction obligations and other 

Accrued cxpcuvc8 and other current liab 
Deferred revenues 
Accrued taxes 
Payroll and related 
Accrued interest 
Other 

Other liabilities 
Deferred rental income+mmunications towers 
Deferred rem 
Accrued taxes-unrecognized tax benefits 
Deferred revenue 
Post-retirement benefits and other non-current employee related llabhttes 
Other 

( I )  Includes liabilifres in rhe amouniz of $150 million and $153 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for checks issued in excess oJ 
associaled bank balances but nolyerpresenied for collection. 
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( I )  
(2) 

purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax ~ S S E ~ S  are also recorded for operating loss, capital loss and tax credit carryforwards. The sources o f  the differences that 
give rise to the deferred income tax assets and liabilities as ofDecember 3 I ,  2009 and 2008, along with the income tax effect ofeach, were as follows: 

These amounls have been recorded directly I O  shareholders ' equity-accumulated other comprehensive loss on the consolidated balance sheets 
These amounts have been recorded directly io shareholders' equi tppaid- in  capital on the consolidoled balance sheets. 

We recognize deferred income taxes for the temporary differences between the carrying amounts ofour assets and liabilities for financial statement 

Deferred tax assets 
Net operating loss carryforwards 
Capital loss carryforwards 

er l iab i l i t i  
rwards 

Valuation rllowaocc 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangibles 
Investments 

Current deferred tax asset 

Long-term deferred tax liability 

2,658 
6,667 
1,048 

112 
10,485 

$ 391 - $ 295 - 
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A reconciliation af the beginning and ending amount ofunrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

tW8 - 2009 - 
Balance a t  January 1 
Additions based on current year t m  positions 
Additions based on prior year tax positions 
Reductions for prior year tax positions 
Reductions for settlements 
Reductions for lapse of statute of limitations 
Balance at December 31 

The 2009 reduction in unrecognized tax benefits was principally attributable to income tax settlements with the U.S. federal jurisdiction. We file income 
tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and each state jurisdiction which imposes an income tax. We also file income tax retums in a number of foreign 
jurisdictions. However, our foreign income tax activity has been immaterial. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) is currently conducting an examination ofour 2007 
and 2008 consolidated income tax returns. They have completed the examination ofour consolidated reNm for years prior to 2007. We have reached settlement 
agreements with the Appeals division ofthe IRS for examination issues in dispute far years prior to 2005 with the exception of one issue which is immaterial lo our 
consolidated financial position and results ofoperations. Resolution of the 2005 and 2006 disputed issues with the Appeals division ofthe IRS may be reached 
during the next 12 months; however, they are immaterial to our consolidated financial position and results of operations. 

resolved with the Appeals division and are immaterial to our consolidated financial position and results afoperations. In addition, we are involved in multiple 
state income tax examinations related to various years beginning with 1996, which are in various stages ofthe examination, administrative review or appellate 
process. Based on our current knowledge ofthe examinations, administrative reviews and appellate processes, we believe it is reasonably possible many of our 
uncertain tax positions may be resolved during the next twelve months which could result in a reduction o fup  to approximately SI00 million in our unrecognized 
lax benefits. 

Note 12. Commitrnrnts and Contingencies 
Litigation, Claims and A ~ s ~ s s m e n l s  

optic network in the 1980's have been filed in various courts. Several ofthese cases sought certification ofnationwide classes, and in one case, a nationwide 
class was certified. In 2003, a nationwide settlement afthese claims was approved by the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, but objectors 
appealed the preliminary approval order to the Seventh Circuit Court ofAppeals, which averhlrned the settlement and remanded the case to the trial court for 
further proceedings. The parties proceeded with litigation andlor settlement negotiations on a state by state basis, and settlement negotiations have been 
coordinated in all cases but those pending i n  Louisiana and Tennessee. The Louisiana claims have been separately settled for an amount not material to our 
consolidated financial position or results of operations, and that settlement was given final approval by the Court, and the time 10 appeal that approval has 
expired. We reached an agreement in principle to settle the claims in all the other stales, excluding Tennessee, for an amount not material to our consolidated 
financial position or results afoperations. The Court issued its preliminary approval ofthe settlement on July 17, 2008, but an September I O ,  2009, the Court 
announced that it would not approve the settlement. The Court did not decide whether the settlement was fair or in the best interest ofclass members, but denied 
on jurisdictional grounds. As a result, the agreement terminated, and the Company 
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continues to defend the matters vigorously. We do not expect the resolution ofthis matter lo have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or 
results of operations. 

proxy statements were false and misleading in violation of federal securities laws to the extent they described new employment agreements with certain senior 
executives without disclosing that, according to the allegations, replacement of those executives was inevitable. These allegations, made in an amended 
complaint in a lawsuit originally filed in 2003, are asserted against us and certain former officers and directors, and seek to recover any decline in the value ofaur  
tracking stocks during the class period. The parlies have stipulated that the case can proceed as a class action. All defendants have denied plaintiffs' allegations 
and intend to defend this matter vigorously. Allegations in the original camplaint, which asserted claims against the same defendants and our former independent 
auditor, were dismissed by the Court in April 2004. Our motion to dismiss the amended complaint was denied, and the parlies are engaged in discovery We do 
not expect the resolution ofthis matter to have a material effect an our consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

Various other suits, proceedings and claims, including purported class actions typical for a large business enterprise, are pending against US or our 
subsidiaries. While it is not possible to determine the ultimate disposition ofeach ofthese proceedings and whether they will be resolved consistent with our 
beliefs, we expect that the outcome of such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial 
position or results of operations. 

Spectrum Reconfiguration Obligations 

reconfigure the 800 MHz band. The Repon and Order provides for the exchange of a portion of our 800 MHz FCC spectrum licenses, and requires us to fund the 
cost incurred by public safely systems and other incumbent licensees lo reconfigure the 800 MHz spectrum band. In addition, we received licenses for IO MHz of 
nationwide spectmm in the I .9 GHz band; however, we are required to relocate and reimburse the incumbent licensees in this band for their costs ofrelocation 10 
another band designated by the FCC. 

The minimum cash obligation is approximately $2.8 billion under the Report and Order. We are, however, obligated to pay the full amount ofthe costs 
relating to the recanfiguration plan, even ifthose costs exceed $2.8 billion, As required under the terms af the Report and Order, a letter of credit has been 
secured to provide assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs af the incumbent users ofthe 800 MHz spectrum. These relocation costs are 
reviewed periodically based an achlal costs incurred. As a result afthis review, our letter of credit was reduced from $2.0 billion to $1.9 billion in June 2009, 
reduced lo SI .8 billion in September 2009, and further reduced to $I .7 billion in November 2009 as approved by the FCC. 

In September 2004, the U.S. District Court far the District of Kansas denied a motion to dismiss a shareholder lawsuit alleging that our 2001 and 2002 

In 2004, the FCC adopted a Report and Order that included new rules regarding interference in the 800 MHz band and a comprehensive plan 10 
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The following table represents payments directly atvibutable to our performance under the Report and Order from the inception ofthe program 

Through Through 
Oeeember3l. 2M8 Net Additions DeConbsr3l.ZM9 

1," rndl,Onr) 
FCC licenses s 579 
Properly, plant and equipmentlU 7 
Costs not benefiting our infrastructure or spectrum positions 31 

s 1,765 S 623 S 2,388 - 
( I )  Excludedfrom rhe table above ore ieconfigumlion cmls incurred Io date which are based on allocarions bemeen reconfgurarion activifim and our 

normal network rmprovements. The me tho do log^ with which we hove calculated rhese costs has nor been approved by the independen: Transifion 
Administrator designated by the FCC to review our expenditures. As a result. the amount allocated I O  reconfguiation acrivity is subject Io ehonge 
based on additional assessments made over fhe C O W S ~  ofrhe reconflprationprogrom. 

When expended, these casts are generally accounted for either as property, plant and equipment or as additions to the FCC licenses intangible asset. 
Total direct costs attributable to the spectrum reconfigurations are estimated lo exceed the minimum cash obligation ofS2.8 billion. This estimate is dependent on 
significant assumptions including the final licensee costs and costs associated with relocating licensees in the Canadian border region under the border plan that 
was adopted by the FCC and the Mexican border region far which there is currently no approved border plan. In addition, we are entitled to receive 
reimbursement from the mobile Satellite Service licensees for their pro rata poltian ofour costs of clearing a portion of the 1.9 GHz spectrum. Those licensees may 
be unable or unwilling to reimburse US for their share afthe costs, which are estimated to be approximately $200 million. 

Completion ofthe 800 MHz band reconfiguration was initially required by June 26,2008; however, the FCC has issued a significant number of waivers 
to 800 MHz licensees giving them additional time to complete their band reconfigurations, which may delay access to some ofour 800 MHz replacement spectrum. 
Based On progress to date, a significant number of additional extension requests have been filed and more are expected. Under an October 2008 FCC Order, we 
may be required, on March 3 I ,  2010, to relinquish some ofour 800 MHz specmm on a region-by-region basis prior to receiving 800 MHz replacement specrmm. 
On January 27,2010, we asked the FCC to waive the requirement in certain regions where most public safety agencies have not yet vacated our replacement 
channels. This request is pending before the FCC. The Report and Order also contained an exception with respect to markets that border Mexico and Canada. The 
exception with respect to markets that border Canada was clarified on May 9,2008 when the FCC issued the Canadian border plans to include a 3Omonth 
deadline for wmpletion 

Operating Leases 
We lease various equipment, offke facilities, retail outlets and kiosks, switching facilities, transmitter and receiver sites under operating leases. The 

non-cancelable portion ofthese leases ranges from monthly up to 25 years. These leases, with few exceptions, provide for automatic renewal options and 
escalations that are either fixed or based on the consumer price index. Any rent abatements, along with rent escalations, are included in the computation of rent 
expense calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease tern. Our lease term for most leases includes the initial "an-cancelable term plus at least one renewal 
period, as the exercise ofthe related renewal option or options is reasonably assured. Our cell site leases generally provide for an initial non-cancelable term of 
five to seven years with up to five renewal aplions for five years each. 

F-32 



Table of Cootrots 

20lO 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
Thereafter 

Total rental expense was $1.8 hillion in 2009 and 2008 and $2.0 hillion in 2007. 

Commitmrab 

provisioning and maintenance far the Company's wireless and wireline networks. The agreement, which contains an option to renew, w i l l  result in payments for 
services estimated to be between $4.5 billion and $5.0 hillion over the initial term of the contract. We are also a p"ty to other commitments, which includes 
service, spectrum, network capacity and other executoly contracts in connection with conducting our business. As of  December 3 1,2009, the minimum amounts 
due under these commitments were as follows (in millions): 

On July 7,2009, Sprint entered into a seven-year agreement with an unaffiliated party which wi l l  msume the day-to-day execution of services, 

2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
Thereafter 
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purchase price is equal to 95% ofthe market value on the last trading day ofeach quarterly offering period, modified from 90% of the market value in previous 
periods. The aggregate number of shares purchased by an employee may not exceed 9,000 shares or $25,000 of fair market value in any calendar year, subject to 
limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. As ofDecember 3 1,2009, the ESPP has approximately 85 million shares authorized for fuhlre purchases. This 
includes 80 million shares authorized in the second quarter 2009 and is net ofelections made in 2009 by employees participating in the fourth quarter 2009 offering 
period under the ESPP to purchase about I million ofour common shares, which were issued in the first quaner 201 0. Employees purchased these shares for 
$3.53 pershare. 

Currently, we use treasury shares to satisfy share-based awards or new shares i fno treasury shares are available. 

Compensation Costs 
The cost ofemployee services received in exchange far an award of equity-based securities is measured using the fair value a f the  award on the date 

ofthe grant, and that cost is recognized over the period that the award recipient is required to provide service in exchange for the award. Any awards of liability 
insfmments lo employees are measured at fair value at each reporting date through Settlement. Share-based compensation cost related to awards with graded 
vesting is recognized using the straight-line method. 

Re-tax share-based compensation charges included in net loss from our share-based award ~ l a n ~  were $81 million for 2009. $272 million for 2008 and 
5265 million for 2007. The net income tax benefit (ixpense) recognized in the consolidated financial staiements for share-based campehsatian awards was $(3) 
million for 2w9, $101 million for 2008 and $96 million far 2007. 

AS of December 3 I ,  2009, there was $97 million oftotal unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based awards that are expected 
to he recognized over a weighted average period of 2.12 years. Cash received from exercise under all share-based payment arrangements, net of shares 
surrendered for employee tax obligations, was insignificant for 2009, $51 million far 2008 and $344 million for 2007. 

share-based awards using a 10.2% weighted average annual rate. 

Options 

including the risk-free interest rate, volatility, expected dividend yield and expected term. The risk-free interest rate used is based on the zero-coupon U.S. 
Treasury bond, with a term equal to the expected term ofthe options. The volatility used is the implied volatility from traded options on our common shares. The 
expected dividend yield used is estimated based on our historical dividend yield and other factors. The expected term ofoptions granted is estimated using the 
simplified method, defined BE the average af the vesting term and the contractual term as our historical data is not expected to represent the future expected term 
ofequity awards due to our severance activities over the last several years. Options outstanding as of December 3 I ,  2009 include options granted under the 2007 
Plan (including options exchanged in business combinations), the I997 Program, the Nextel Plan and the MISOP, as discussed above. 

Under our share-based payment plans, we had options and restricted stack units outstanding as of December 3 1,2009. Forfeitures were estimated far 

The fair value ofeach option award is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, based on several assumptions 
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The following table provides the estimated fair value and assumptions used in determining the fair value afaption awards granted dunng 2009,2008 
and 2007: 

Weighted average grant date fair value 
Risk free interest rate 

average expected volatility 
Expected divtdend yield 

Weighted average expected dividend yield 
Expected term (years) 

Options granted (millions) 

fW8 IMI - 

8 17 

A summary ofthe status af the options under our option plans as of December 3 I ,  2009, and changes during the year ended December 3 I ,  2009, is 
presented below: 

Outstanding January 1,2009 
Granted 
Business combination exchange 
Exercised 
ForfeitedJexpuPd 

Outstanding at December 31,2009 
Vested or expected to vest at December 3 1,2009 
Exercisable at December 31.2009 

Weighted 
A"W.ge 

P' 
Shares Share Weighted *gg.*g.te 
Under E.e.c"e Average Ren.monp l"t.l",K 

Rler  Cnntrxtud Term V.lW 

$ 2305 
$ 360 
$ 078 

$ 2549 
$ 1642 5 25 7 
$ 1720 
$ 21 65 3 53 $ 0 

- 

- 108 - - - 13 - 
As of December 3 I ,  2009, there was $69 million oftotal unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested options and that cost is expected to be 

recognized over a weighted-average period af2.5 1 years. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was insignificant during 2009, $9 million during 2008 and 
$150 million during 2007. 
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Restricted Stock Units 

Outstandmg January 1,2009 
Granted 
Business combination exchange 
Vested 
Forfeited 
Performance met 
Performance not met 

Outstanding December31,2009 

As ofDecember 3 I, 2009, there was $28 million oftotal unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock units that is expected ta be 
recognized over a weighted-average period of I .  14 years. The total fair value afresuicted stock units vested during the years ended December 3 I ,  2009,2008 and 
2007 WBS $53 million, $41 million and $78 million, respectively. The weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted stock units granted during 2009 was 
S2.96perunit,comparedwith$6.03perunitfor2008and$18.43perunitfor2007. 

stack units are not entitled to dividend equivalent payments until the applicable performance criteria has been met. 

Note 14. 

Most restricted stock units outstanding as of December 3 1, 2009 are entitled to dividend equivalents paid in cash, but performance-based restricted 

Shareholders' Equity and Per Share Data 
Our articles of incorporation authorize 6,620,000,000 shares o f  capital stock as follows: 

6,000,000,000 shares ofseries I voting common stock, par value $2.00 per share; 
soo,ooo,oon shares of Series 2 voting common stock, par value $2.00 per share; 
ion,ono,non shares ofnon-voting common stock, par value $n.oi per share; and 
20,000,000 shares ofpreferred stock, no par value per share. 

- - 
* - 

Classes ofCommon Stock 
Series I Common Sfock 

The holders ofour Series 1 common stack are entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted for action by the shareholders. There were about 

Series 2 Common Sfock 

The holders ofour Series 2 common stock are entitled to 10% ofone vote per share, but otherwise have rights that are substantially identical to those 

3.0 billion shares of Series 1 common stock outstanding as o f  December 3 I ,  2009. 

ofthe Series 1 common stock. There were about 35 million shares 
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of Series 2 common stock outstanding as af December 3 I ,  2009. In 2009, certain holden ofour Series 2 common stock exercised their rights to convert 39.8 million 
Series 2 shares to 39.8 million Series 1 shares, resulting in a $80 million and $785 million reduction to common shares and paid in capital, respectively, and a 
corresponding $865 million reduction in treasury shares. 

Treasury Shares 
Shares of common stock repurchased by us are recorded at cost as treasury shares and result in a reduction ofshareholders' equity. We reissue 

treasury shares as part of our shareholder approved stock-based compensation programs, as well as upon conversion of outstanding securities that are 
convertible into common stock. When shares are reissued, we determine the cost using the FIFO method. 

Dividends 

stock and the Series 2 common stock in each ofthe quarters of2007. We are currently restricted from paying cash dividends by the terms ofour revolving bank 
credit facility as described in Note 8. 

Share Repurchase Program 

purchases. We repurchased 185 million shares ofaurSeries 1 common stock for $3.5 billion at an average price ofs18.77 per share through 2007. The program 
expired in January 2008 and no additional repurchases were made. 

Common Stock Reserved for Future Grants 

based awards, future grants under the employees stock purchase plan or future issuances under various other arrangements included: 

We did not declare any dividends on our common shares in 2009 or 2008. We declared and paid a dividend of $0.025 per share an the Series I common 

On July 25,2006, our board of directors authorized a program for the purchase ofup  to $6.0 billion ofour Series I common stock through open market 

As of December 3 1,2009, Series I common stock resewed for future grants under plans providing for the grant ofstock options and other equity- 

Shares 

Employees stock purchase plan 
Officer and key employees' and directors' stoc 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 
The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss are as follows: 

Unrecognized net periodic penslon and postretirement benefit cost 
Unrealized net (losses) gains related to investments 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 
Accumulated other comprehenswe loss 
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Per Share Data 

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share adjusts basic earnings (loss) per common share for the effects of potentially dilutive common shares, if the effect is not 
antidilutive. Potentially dilutive common shares consist of28 million, 130 million and 124 million average shares issuable underaurequity-based compensation 
plans as of December 3 I ,  2009,2008 and 2007, respectively, computed using the Veasury stock method. All such potentially dilutive shares were antidilutive for 
2009,2008 and 2007 and, therefore. have no effect on our determination afdilutive weighted average number of shares outstanding. 

Note 15. Segments 

Basic loss per common share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. 

Sprint operates two reponable segments: Wireless and Wireline. 
* Wireless primarily includes retail and wholesale revenue from a wide array ofwireless mobile telephone and wireless data transmission 

services and the sale ofwireless devices and accessories in the U.S., Pueno Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. 
Wireline primarily includes revenue from domestic and international wireline voice and data communication services, including services 
to the cable multiple systems operators that resell our local and long distance service and use our back office systems and network 
assets in suppan aftheir telephone services provided over cable facilities. 

- 
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We define segment earnings as wireless or wireline operating (loss) income before other segment expenses such as depreciation, amortization, 
severance, exit costs, goodwill and asset impairments, other and merger and integration expenses solely and directly attributable to the segment. Expenses and 
income items excluded from segment earnings are managed at the corporate level. Transactions between segments are generally accounted for based on market 
rates which we believe approximate fair value. Segment financial information is as follows: 

st.tm.nt or O.rr.,>on" Inror..tlon 

2009 
Net operaling revenues 
Inter-segment revenues1U 
Total segment operating expenses 
Segment earnings 
Less 

Depreciation and amorlization 
Other, net(') 

Operating loss 
Interest expense 
Equity in losses of unconsolidated investments, net 
Other mcome, net 
Loss before income taxes 

s~.t..~~t or o ~ ~ . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  inrorm.tlon 

2008 
Net operating revenues 
Inter-segment revenuesill 
Total segment operating e 
Segment earnings 
Less 

Depreciatioo and amortmtion 
Goodwill impairment 
Other, net(]) 

Operating loss 
lnterest expense 
Equity tn losses of unconsolidated investments 
Other Income, net 
Loss before income taxes 

I C ?  

S (4,060) 
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Other and 
wmre1es. W"elme Elmmations Consohdalrd 

(,a rn'Ill""*} 
2007 
Net operating revenues 8 
Inter-segment revenues111 2 
Total segment operating expensed? (24,786) 
Segment earnings S 9,914 - 
Less 

Depreciation and amartization 
Goodwill impairment 
Other, net(') 

Operatmg loss 
Interest expense 
Equity in losses of unconsolidated Investments, net 
Other income, net 
Loss before income taxes 

0th.. inroorn.tlon 

2009 
Capital expendihrresia 
Total assetsl'l 
2008 

.. 
Wlrek,, Wlrollne El,.,".t,O". Consolidated 

,149 $ 267 $ 1,603 
,338 2,987 55,424 

Capital expenditures*) 
Total asaelW 
2007 
Capital expenditures*) 
Total assetsl'l 
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Net operating revenues by service and products were as follows 

Operatmc Rerenuts by Service and Produrts 

2009 
Wireless services 
Wireless equipment 
V o w  
Data 
Internet 
Other 
Total net operating revenues 

2008 
Wireless sewices 
Wireless equipment 
V O l C t  

Data 

Total net operating rcvcnucs 

2007 
Wireless services 
Wireless equipment 
VOlCe 
Data 
Inter 
Othe 
Total net operating ~ C V ~ O Y I S  

(I) Revenues eliminated in consolidorion consrstprimarily sf Wirelrne servrcesprovided I D  the Wfrrless segmenrfor resale lo wtreless subscribers. 
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Note 16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

2009 
Net operating revenues 
Operating loss 
Net IosslIl 
Basic and diluted loss per common share]) 

Q".rtW 
2nd 3rd 4th - -  I d  - 

2008 
Net operaling revenues 
Operating loss(') 
Net losslli 
Basic and diluted loss per common share 0) 

(I) In thefrrsr quarter 2009, we recordeda %IS4 million "on-cash loss representing thefmolcation of our ownership percentages in Clearwire. In the 
fourth quarter 2009, we recordeda noneash gain of5 lS I  million related Io our nonsonbolllng inteiest in VMUas well as an increase in our IIU 
valuotion allowance of 5306 million. 
The sum ofthe quarterly earningsper share omounts may not equal the annual ornount~ because ofthe changes in the weighted overage number of 
shares outstanding during the year. 
In the fourth quarter 2008. we performed our annual goodwill onalysrs andrecordedo non-cash goodwdl imparrmenr charge of $963 million. In 
addition, we recordedasser impairments, gams on dispositions ofossers and lease exrt cosls of $493 million. 

(2) 

(3) 
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders o f  
C l e w i r e  Corporation 
Kirkland, Washington 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Clearwire Corporation and subsidiaries (formerly the WiMAX Operations of Sprint Nextel 
Corporation) (the ”Company”) as of December 3 I, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statemenh of operations, cash flaws, and stockholders’ equity and 
comprehensive loss for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2009. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenh are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in a11 material respects, the financial position of the Company ar of December 31, 2009 and 
2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. 

As discussed in Note I to the consolidated financial statements, on November 28, 2008, Clearwire Corporation and the WiMAX Operations of Sprint Nextel 
Corporation (the ‘,Sprint WiMAX Business”) completed a business combination. The accounts of the Sprint WiMAX Business for the period from January 1, 
2008 through November 28,2008, have been prepared from the separate records maintained by Sprint Nextel Corporation and reflect allocations of expenses from 
Sprint Nextel Corporation and, therefore, may not necessarily be indicative o f  the financial position, resulh of operations, and cash flows that would have 
resulted had the Sprint WiMAX Business functioned as a stand-alone operation. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Inlernol Control-Inregrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our repon dated February 24, 2010 (not presented herein), expressed an adverse opinion on the 
Company’s internal control over financial reponing because o f  a material weakness. 

Id DELOI7TE & TOUCHE LLP 

Seattle, Washington 
February 24,2010 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors of Cleanvim Corporation (formerly the WiMAX Operations of Sprint Nextel Corporation): 

We have audited the statements of operations, cash flows and business equity (included within the statement of stockholders' equity and comprehensive 
lass) of the WiMAX operations of Sprint Nextel Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of Sprint 
Nextel Corporatian's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, an a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial Statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of the WiMAX 
Operations of Sprint Nextel Corporation for the year ended December 3 I ,  2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

is/ KPMG LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri 
August 4,2008 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Revenues 
Operating expenses 

Cost ofgoods and services and network costs (excluswe of items shown separately below) 
elling, general and administrative expense 
eprecistion and amortization 

Spectrum lease expense 
Transaction related expenses 

Total operating expenses 
Operating loss 
Other income (expense) 

terest mcome 
teres1 expense 
her income (expense), net 
Total other income (expense), net 

Loss before income taxes 
Income tax provision 

Net loss 
Less non-controlline interests in net loss ofconsolidated subsidiaries 
Ne1 loss attributable to Clearwire Corporation 
Net loss attributable to Clearwire Corporation per Class A Common Share 

Basic 
Diluted 

Basic 
Diluted 

Weighted average Class A Common Shares outstandmg 

See notes to consolidated financial statements 
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Year Ended DoromherJI, 
1W9 2W8 1W7 

(In thousandi, except per share data) 

$ 274,458 $ 20,489 S - 

259,359 90,032 60,051 
82,960 - - 

1,457,801 513,567 - 212,385 - 
(1,183,343) (493,078) (212,385) 

- 

(69,791) 4,022 

(61,607)- 

s(432,626)s(z24,72J) 

u u  a 
694,921 

(530,740) (208,363) 

(592.347) (224,725) 
- 159,721 

189,921 - 
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CLEARWIRE CORPOUTION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended December 31. 
2w9 2W8 2w7 

S 89.792 S 40,761 

5 10560 I 

See notes to consolidated financial statements 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDLARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

* Accounts payable, which were processed centrally by Sprint and were passed to us through intercompany accounts that were included in business 
equity; and 
Certain accrued liabilities, which were passed through to us through intercompany accounts that were included in business equity. * 

Our statement of cash flows prior to the Closing presents the activities that were paid by Sprint on our behalf. financing activities include funding 
advances from Sprint, presented as business equity, since Sprint managed our financing activities on a centralized basis. further, the net cash used in operating 
activities and the net cash used in investing activities for capital expenditures and acquisitions of  FCC licenses and patents represent transfers of  expenses or 
assets paid for by other Sprint subsidiaries. No cash payments were made by us for income taxes or interest prior to the Closing 

We will be focused on expediting the deployment of the first nationwide 4G mobile broadband network to provide a true mobile broadband experience for 
consumers, small businesses, medium and large enterprises, public safety organizations and educational institutions. We expect to deploy our mobile WiMAX 
technology, based on the IEEE 802.16e standard, in our planned markets using 2.5 GHz FCC licenses. 

2. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
and pursuant to the rules and regulalions of the Securities and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as the SEC. The following is a summary ofour  significant 
accounting policies: 

Principles of Consolidnrion- The consolidated financial statements include all of the assets, liabilities and results of operations of our wholly-awned 
subsidiaries, and subsidiaries we control or in which w e  have a controlling financial interest. Investments in entities that we do not control and are not the 
primary beneficiary, but for which we have the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies, are accounted for under the equity 
method. All intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation. 

Non-controlling interests on the consolidated balance sheets include third-party investments in entities that we consolidate, but do not wholly own. We 
classify our non-controlling interests as part of equity and include net income (loss) attributable to our non-controlling interests in net income (loss). We allocate 
net income (loss), other comprehensive income (loss) and other equity transactions to OUT "on-controlling interests in accordance with their applicable ownership 
percentages. We also continue to attribute our non-controlling interests their share of losses even i f  that attribution results in a deficit non-controlling interest 
balance. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Rec/os$imi;ons- Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform with the current period presentation. 
Use of Es1;males- Our accounting policies require management to make complex and subjective judgments. By their nature, these judgments are subject 

to an inherent degree of uncertainty. These judgments are based on our historical experience, terms of existing contracts, observance of trends in the industry, 
information provided by our customers and information available from other outside sources, as appropriate. Additionally, changes in accounting estimates are 
reasonably likely to occur from period to period. These factors could have a material impact on  our financial statements, the presentation of our financial 
condition, changes in financial condition or resuits of operations. 

Significant estimates inherent in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements Include: impairment analysis of spectrum licenses with indefinite 
lives, the recoverability and determination of useful lives for long-lived assets, which include property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets, tax 
valuation allowances, and share-based compensation related to equity-based awards granted. 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Subsequent Evenrs - We evaluated subsequent events occurring through the date the financial statements were issued. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of money market mutual funds and highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities of 
three months or less. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash that i s  contractually 
restricted for operational purposes. We maintain cash and cash equivalent balances with financial institutions that exceed federally insured limits. We have not 
experienced any losses related to these balances, and management believes the credit risk related to these balances to be minimal. 

RemicredCash- Restricted cash consists primarily of amounts we have set aside to satisfy certain contractual obligations and i s  classified as a current 
or noncurrent asset based on i t s  designated purpose. The majority of this restricted cash relates to outstanding letters o f  credit 

fnvesfmmts- We have an investment portfolio comprised of U S .  Treasuries and other debt securities. The value of these securities i s  subject to market 
and credit volatility during the period the investments are held and until their sale or maturity. We classify marketable debt securities as available-for-sale 
investments and these securities are stated at their estimated fair value. Our investments that are available for current operations are recorded as short-term 
investments when the original maturities are greater than three months but remaining maturities are less than one year. Our investments with maturities o f  more 
than one year are recorded as long-term investments. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Realized 
gains and losses are measured and reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the basis o f  the specific identification method. 

We recognize realized losses when declines in the fair value of our investments below their cost basis arc judged to be other-than-temporary. In 
determining whether a decline in fair value i s  other-than-temporary. we consider various factors including market price (when available), investment ratings, the 
financial condition and near-term prospects o f  the issuer, the length of t ime and the extent to which the fair value has been less than the cost basls, and our intent 
and ability to hold the investment until maturity or for a period of time sufficient to al low for any anticipated recovery in market value. We make significant 
judgments in considering these factors. If it i s  judged that a decline in fair value IS other-than-temporary, a realized loss equal to the decline i s  reflected in the 
consolidated statement ofoperations, and a new cost basis in the investment i s  established. 

We account for certain of our investments using the equity method bared on O U T  ownership interest and our ability to exercise significant influence. 
Accordingly, we record our investment initially at cost and we adjust the carrying amount of the investment to recognize our share of the earnings or losses o f  
the investee each reporting period. We cease to recognize investee losses when our investment basis i s  zero. 

Fair Value A4emwernent~- Facr value i s  the price that would be received to  ell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, we use various methods including market, cost and income approaches. Based on these 
approaches, we utilize certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Based on the 
observability ofthe inputs used in the valuation techniques, we are required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair 
value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values, Financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value wil l be 
classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories: 

Level I: 

Level 2: 

Level 3 :  

Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data 

Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

We maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value measurements. If listed prices or quotes 
are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use, as inputs, market-based or independently sourced market parameters, 
including but not limited to interest ratc yield curves, volatilities, equity or debt prices, and credit curves. We utilize certain assumptions that market participants 
would use in pricing the financial instrument, including assumptions about risk, such as credit, inherent and default risk. The degree of  management judgment 
involved in determining the fair value of  a financial instrument is dependent upon the availability of  quoted market prices or observable market parameters. For 
financial insmments that trade actively and have quoted market prices or observable market parameters, there is minimal judgment involved in measuring fair 
value. When observable market prices and parameters are not fully available, management judgment is necessary to estimate fair value. In addition, changes in 
market conditions may reduce the availability and reliability of  quoted prices or observable data. In these instances, we use certain unobservable inputs that 
cannot be validated by reference to a readily Observable market or exchange data and rdy ,  to a certain extent, on our awn assumptions about the assumptions 
that a market participant would use in pricing the security. n e s e  internally derived values are compared with non-binding values received from brokers or other 
independent sources, as available. See Note 12, Fair Value, far funher information. 

Accounls Receivable - Accounts receivables are stated at amounls due from customers net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. 
Ivvmtory- Inventory primarily consists of customer premise equipment, which we refer to as CPE, and other accessories sold to customers and is stated 

at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined under the average cost method. We record inventory write-downs for obsolete and slow-moving 
items based on inventory turnover trends and historical experience. 

Properly, Planr and E p ; p m m -  Property, plant and equipment, which we refer to as PP&E, is stated st cost, net of accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation IS calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets once the assets are placed in service. Our network construction 
expenditures are recorded as construction In progress until the network or other asset is placed in service, at which time the asset is transferred to the appropriate 
PP&E category. We capitalize costs of additions and improvements, including direct costs of constructing PP&E and interest costs related to construction. The 
estimated useful life of equipment is determined bared on historical usage of identical or similar equipment, with consideration given to technological changes 
and industry trends that could impact the network architecture and asset utilization. Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost and amortized over the lesser 
of their estimated useful lives or the related lease term, including renewals that are reasonably assured. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 

PP&E is assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount o f  an asset may not be recoverable. 
When such events or circumstances exist, we  would determine the recoverability of the asset's carrying value by estimating the expected undiscounted future 
cash flaws thatare directly associated with and that are expected to arise as B direct result o f the  use of the  asset. lf the expected undiscounted future cash flows 
are less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the diffcrence. For purposes of recognition and measurement, we group our long-lived 
assets, including PP&E and intangible assets with definite useful lives, at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows which are largely 
independent of other assets and liabilities, and we test for impairment on an aggregated basis for assets in the United States consistent with the management of 
the business on a national scope. There were no PP&E impairment losses recorded in  the years ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007. 

In addition to the analyses described above, we periodically assess certain assets that have not yet been deployed in our network, including equipment 
and cell site development costs This assessment includes the write-off of network equipment for estimated shrinkage experienced during the deployment process 
and the write-offof network equipment and cell site development costs whenever events or  changes in circumstances cause us to conclude that such assets are 
no  longer needed to meet management's strategic network plans and will not be deployed. 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Cootiaurd) 

Internally DevelopedSojmare - W e  capitalize costs related to computer software developed or obtained for internal use. Software obtained for internal 
use has generally been enterprise-level business and finance software customized lo meet specific operational needs. Costs incurred in the application 
development phase are capitalized and amortized over the useful life of the software, which is generally three years. Costs recognized in the preliminary project 
phase and the post-implementation phase, as well as maintenance and training costs, are expensed 8s incurred. 

Spectrum Licenses - Spectrum licenses primarily include owned spectrum licenses with indefinite lives. awned spectrum licenses with definite lives, and 
favorable spectrum leases. Indefinite lived spectrum licenses acquired are stated at cost and are not amortized, While awned spectrum licenses in the United 
States are issued for a fixed time, renewals of  these licenses have occurred routinely and at nominal cost. Moreover, we have determined that there are currently 
no legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factors that limit the useful lives ofour owned spectrum licenses and therefore, the licenses are 
accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite lives. The impairment test far intangible assets with indefinite useful lives consists of a comparison of the fair 
value of an intansible asset with its c q i n g  amount. If the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss will be recognized in 
an amount equal to that excess. The fair value is determined by estimaling the discounted future cash flows that are directly associated with, and that are 
expected to arise as a direct result of the use and eventual disposition of, the asset. Spectrum licenses with indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairment 
annually, or more frequently, i fan  event indicates that the asset might he impaired. We had no impairment ofour indefinite lived intangible assets in any of the  
periods presented. 

Spectrum licenses with definite useful lives and favorable spectrum leases ace stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization, and are assessed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount o fan  asset may not be recoverable. The carrying value of the definite 
lived licenses and spectrum l a s e s  are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives or lease term, including expected renewal periods, as 
applicable. There were no impairment losses for spectrum licenses with definite useful lives and favorable spectrum leases in the years ended December 31, 2009, 
2008 and 2007. 

Other lnlangible Assets-Other intangible assets consist of subscriber relationships, trademarks and patents, and are stated at cost net of accumulated 
amortization, for those other intangible assets with definite lives. Amortization is calculated using either the straight-line method or an accelerated method over 
the assets' estimated remaining useful lives. Other intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount ofthe m e t  may not be recoverable. There were no impairment losses for our other intangible assets in the years ended December 3 I .  2009, 2008 
and 2007. 

Derivative llrsrruments and Hedging Activities- In  the normal course ofbusiness, we may he exposed to the effects of interest rate changes. W e  have 
limited our exposure by adopting established risk management policies and procedures, including the use of derivative instruments. I t  is our policy that derivative 
transactionS are executed only to manage exposures arising in the normal course of business and not for the purpose ofcreating speculative positions or trading. 
We record 811 derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value as either ~ s s e t s  or liabilities. The accounting far changes in the fair value of derivatives depends On 
the intended use of the derivative and whether i t  qualifier far hedge accounting. Our derivative instruments are undesignated, with changes in fair value 
recognized currently in the consolidated statement of operations. See Note I I ,  Derivative Instruments, for further information. 

Debt Issuance Costs - Debt issuance costs are initially capitalized as a deferred cost and amortized lo interest expense under the effective interest method 
over the expected term of the related debt Unamortized debt issuance costs related to extinguishment ofdebt are expensed at the time the debt IS extinguished 
and recorded in other income (sxpenses), net in the consolidated statements of operations. Unamortized debt issuance costs are recorded in other assets in the 
consolidated balance sheets. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Inleresr Capitalizarion - We capitalize interest related lo our owned spectrum licenses and the related construction of our network infrastructure ~ S S C ~ S .  

Capitalization of interest commences with pre-conatruction period administrative and technical activities, which includes obtaining leases, zoning approvals and 
building permits, and ceases when the construction is substantially complete and available for use (generally when a market is launched). Interest i s  capitalized 
On Construction in progress and spectrum licenses accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Interest capitalization is based on rates 
applicable to borrowings outstanding during the period and the balance of qualified assets under construction during the period. Capitalized interest is reported 
as a cost of the network assets and depreciated over the useful life ofthase assets. 

Income Tares- We record deferred income t a x a  based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax basis of 
assets and liabilities using the tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse. Deferred tax assets are also recorded for net operating 
loss, capital loss, and tax credit carryforwards. Valuation allowances, if any, are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount considered more likely than 
not to be realized. We also apply a recognition threshold that a tsx position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. 

Revenue Recognitron- We primarily earn revenue by providing access to our high-speed wireless network. Also included in revenue are leases of CPE 
and additional add-on services, including personal and business email and static Internet Protocol Revenue from customerS i s  billed one month in advance and 
recognized ratably Over the contracted Service period. Revenues associated with the Sale o f  CPE and other equipment to customers i s  recognized when title and 
risk of loss is transferred to the customer. Shipping and handling costs billed to customeiS are classified as revenue. Activation fees charged to the customer are 
deferred and recognized as revenues on B straight-line basis over the average estimated life ofthe customer relationship o f 3  years. 

Revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are divided into separate units of accounting based on the deliverables' relative fair values if the there i s  
objective and reliable evidence of fair value for all deliverables in the arrangement. When we are the primary obligor in a transaction, are subject to inventory risk, 
have latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or have several but not all o f  these indicators, gross revenue i s  recorded. I f  we are not the primary 
obligor and amounts earned are determined using a fixed percentage, a fixed-payment schedule, or a combination of the two, we record the net amounts as 
commissions earned. Promotional discounts treated as cash consideration are recorded as a reduction of revenue. 

Adverrising Costs- Advertising costs are expensed as incurred or the first time the advertising occurs Advertising expense was $99. I million, $7.5 million 
and $0 for the years ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Research and Development- Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expense was $6.4 million, $350,000 
and $0 forthe years ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Ne1 Lossper Share- Basic net loss per common share i s  computed by dividing loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average 
number ofcommon shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per common share is computed by dividing loss attributable to common stockholders 
by the weighted-average number of common shares and dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period. Common stock equivalents typically 
consist ofthe common stock issuable upon the exercise ofoutstanding stock options, warrants and restricted stock using the treasury stock method. The effects 
of potentially dilutive common stock equivalents are excluded from the calculation o f  diluted loss per share if their effect is antidilutive. We have two classes of 
common stock, Class A and Class 6.  See Note 16, Net Loss Per Share, for further information. 
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Share-BasedCompensarron - The estimate of share-based compensation expense requires complex and subjective assumptions, including the stock price 
volatility, employee exercise patterns (expected life of the options), future forfeitures, and related tax effects. Share-based compensation expense on new awards 
and far awards modified, repurchased, or cancelled is based on  the estimated grant-date fair value, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and is 
recognized, net of a forfeiture rate on those shares expected to vest over a graded vesting schedule on a straight-line basis over the requisite Service period for 
each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. 

OperaringLeases- We have operating leases for spectrum licenses, towers and certain facilities, and equipment for use in our operations. Certain of our 
spectrum licenser are leased from third-party holders of Educational Broadband Service, which we refer to as EBS, spectrum licenses granted by the FCC. EBS 
licenses authorize the provision of certain communications services an the EBS channels in certain markets throughout the United States. We account for these 
spectrum leases as executory contracts which are similar to operating leases. Signed leases which have unmet conditions required 10 become effective are not 
amortized until such conditions are met and are included in spectrum licenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, if such leases require upfront 
payments, For leases containing scheduled rent escalation clauses, we record minimum rental payments on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, 
including the expected renewal periods as appropriate For leases containing tenant improvement sl lowance~ and rent incentives, we record deferred rent, which 
is a liability, and that deferred rent is amortiled over the term ofthe lease, including the expected renewal periods as appropriate, as a reduction to rent expense. 

Foreign C u r r e w -  Our international subsidiaries generally use their local currency as their functional currency. Assets and liabilities are translated at 
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Resulting translation adjustments are recorded within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Income 
and expense accounts are translated at the average monthly exchange rates, The effects of changes in exchange rates between the designated functional 
currency and the currency in which a transaction is denominated are recorded as foreign currency transaction gains (losses) and recorded in the consolidated 
statement of operations. 

Concenrrorion of Risk- We believe that the geographic diversity of our customer base and retail nature of OUT product minimizes the risk of incurring 
material losses due to concentrations of credit risk. 

Recenl Accounting Pronouneemenls 

In June and December 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, which we refer to as the FASB, issued new accounting guidance that amends the 
consolidation guidance applicable to variable interest entities. The amendments will affect the overall consolidation analysis under the currenl accounting 
guidance. The new accounting guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning afler November I S ,  2009. We are currently evaluating the 
impact of the new guidance an our financial condition and results afoperations. 

In August 2009, the FASB issued new accounting guidance for the fair value measurement of  liabilities when a quoted price in an active market is not 
available. We adopted the new accounting guidance on October I ,  2009. The adoption did not have any impact on our financial condition or results of  
operations. 

In October 2009, the FASB issued new accounting guidance that amends the revenue recognition for multiple-element arrangements and expands the 
disclosure requirements related to such arrangements The new guidance amends the criteria far separating consideration in multiple-deliverable arrangements, 
establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a deliverable, eliminates the residual method ofallocation, and requires the application of 
relative selling price method in allocating the arrangement consideration to all deliverables. The new accounting guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning 
afler June 15,2010, We are currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on our financial condition and results ofoperations. 
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In January 2010, the FASB issued new accounting guidance that requires new disclosures related to fair value measurements. The new guidance requires 
separate disclosure for transfers between Level I and 2 and the activities in Level 3 reconciliation an a grass basis. The new accounting guidance is effective for 
fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15,2009, except for the new disclosures related to Level 3 activities, which are effective for fiscal years 
and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2010. The new accounting guidance only amended the disclosure requirements related to fair value 
measurements, therefore we do not expect the adoption to have any impact on our financial condition or results of operations. 

3. StrategieTrpnssrtians 

Private Placement 

On November 9, 2009, we entered into an investment agreement, which we refer to as the Investment Agreement, with each ofSprint, Comcast Corporation, 
which we refer to as Comcast, Intel Corporation, which we refer to as Intel, Time Warner Cable Inc., which we refer to as Time Warner Cable, Bright House 
Networks, LLC, which we refer to as Bright House, and Eagle River Holdings LLC, which we refer to as Eagle River, who we collectively refer to as the 
Participating Equityholders, providing for additional equity investments by the Participating Equityholders and new debt investments by certain of these 
investors. The Investment Agreement sets forth the terms of the transactions pursuant to which the Participating Equityhalders will invest in Clearwire 
Communications an aggregate of approximatclg $1.564 billion in exchange for 213,369,711 shares of Cleanvire Communications non-voting Class B equity interests 
and Clearwire Communications voting interests, which we refer to as the Private Placement, and the investment by certain of the participating Equityholders in 
senior secured notes, discussed below, which we refer to as the Rollover Notes, in replacement of equal amounts of indebtedness under the senior term loan 
facility that we assumed from Old Cleatwire, which we refer to as the Senior Term Loan Facility. 

Additionally, an November 24, 2009, Clearwire Communications completed an offering of $1.85 billion 12% senior secured notes due 2015 (including the 
Rollover Notes), followed by a second offering of $920 million 12% senior secured notes due 2015 that closed on December 9,2009, which we refer lo collectively 
as the Senior Secured Notes. See Note IO, Long-term Debt. 

The Private Placement was to be consummated in three closings. On Navember9, 2009, the Participating Equityhalders contributed in aggregate 
approximately $1.057 billion in cash in exchange for 144,231,268 Cleatwire Communications non-vating Class B equity interests, which we refer to as Cleanvire 
Communications Class B Common Interests, and Clearwire Communications voting interests, which we refer to as Clearwire Communications Voting Interests, pro 
rata based on their respective investment amounts. We refer to this closing as the First Investment Closing. On DecemberZI, 2009, the Participating 
Equityholders contributed in aggregate approximately $440.3 million in cash in exchange for 60,066,822 Cleanvire Communications Class B Common Interests and 
Cleanvire Communications Voting Interests. We refer to this closing as the Second Investment Closing. The remaining approximately $66.5 million to be 
contributed under the Investment Agreement will close when certain financial information is provided to Sprint for use in its financial reporting with respect to the 
fiscal year ending December 3 I ,  2009. We refer to the consummation of this purchase as the Third Investment Closing. 
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In the Private Placement, the Pmticipating Equilyholders agreed to invest in Cleanvire Communications a total of $1.564 billion in exchange for Cleanvire 
Communications Class B Common Interests and Cleanvire Communications Voting lnteresls in the following amounts (in millions, except for Interests): 

Inra(or 

Comcast 
Time Warner Cable 
Bright House 
Intel 
Eagle River 

SpMl  

Immediately fallowing the receipt by the Participating Equilyholders of Clearwire Communications Class B Common Interests and Clearwire 
Communications Voting Interests, each of the Participating Equilyholders agreed to contribute to C l e w i r e  its Clearwire Communications Voting Interests in 
exchange for an equal number ofshares ofclearwire's Class B common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, which we refer to as Class B Common Stock. 

Under the Investment Agreement, in exchange for the purchase by Sprint, Comcast, Time Warner Cable and Bright House of Clearwire Communications 
Class B Common Interests and Cleanvire Communications Voting Interests in amounts exceeding certain amounts stipulated in the Investment Agreement, 
Clearwire Communications agreed to pay a fee, which we refer to as an Over Allotment Fee, equal to the following amounts. Such fee is payable in cash, or 
Cleanvire Communications Class B Common Interests and Clearwire Communications Voting Interests, at the option of the Participating Equityholder: 

l""Ut0. Over Allolmsnl Foe 
sprint 
Corneas1 
Time Warner Cable 
Bright House s 315,325 

At the Secnnd Investment Closing, Clearwire Communications delivered a ponian of the Over Allotment Fee, $6.9 million in cash and $9.5 million in 
Clearwire Communications Class B Common Interests, valued at $7.33 per interest, and an equal number of Clearwire Communications Voting Interests to Sprint, 
$2.7 million in cash to Comcast, $1.4 million in cash to Time Warner Cable and $275,000 in cash to Bright House. The remaining Over Allotment Fee of $3.2 million 
will be paid in cash or Cleanvire Communications Class B Common Interests and Clearwire Communications Voting lnteresls a1 the Third Investment Closing. 

Immediately after the Third lnvestment Closing, Sprint will own 71.5% of the Class B Common Stock, Comcast will own 11.9% of Ihe Class B Common 
Stock, Time Warner Cable will own 6.2% of the Class B Common Stock, Bright House will awn 1.1% of the Class B Common Stock, Intel will own 8.9% ofthe 
Class B Common Stock and Eagle River will own 0.4% of the Class B Common Stack. These percentlges include 1,287,785 of Cleanvire Communications Class B 
Common Interests and Cleanvire Communications Voting Interests to be issued to Sprint, as Sprint has agreed to accept half of its Over Allotment Fee in 
Cleanvire Communications Class B Common Interests. 

Cleanvire holds all of the outstanding Clearwire Communications non-vating Class A equity interests, which we refer to as Clearwire Communications 
Class A Common Interests, and all the outstanding Cleanvire Communications Voting Interests, representing 11.1% of the economics and 100% of the voting 
rights o fC lemi re  Communications as ofDecember 31,2009. 

F-58 



Table of Coaknts 

CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDLARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Caohoued) 

The following table lists the interests in Clearwire as ofDecember 31,2009 
C1as.A Common CI... B common 

CIS,. A Stock *A ChssBCommon Stock *A 
1""C"to. Common Stock - 
Spnn 
Comcast 
Time Warner Cable 
Bright House 
Intel 
Eagle River 
Google h c  
Other Shareholders 

196,766,715 100 0% 734,238,872 1000% 931,005,587 - 1000% 

( I )  The holders ofclass B Common Stock hold an equivalent number ofclearwire Communications Class B Common Interests 
Sprint and the Investors, other than Google, Inc, which we refer to as Google, own shares of Class B Common Stock, which have equal voting rights to 

C l e m ' s  Class A, $0 0001 par value, common stock, which we refer to as Class A Common Stack, but have only limited economic rights Unlike the holders of 
Class A Common Stock, the holders ofclass B Common Stack, have no right to dividends and no right to any proceeds on liquidation other than the par value of 
the Class B Common Stock Sprint and the Investars, other than Google, hold their economic rights through ownership of Clearwire Communications Class B 
Common Interests Google owns shares ofclass A Common Stack 

Under the Investment Agreement, C l e w i r e  committed lo a rights offering, pursuant to which rights to purchase shares of Class A Common Stack were 
granted to each holder of Class A Camman Stock along wilh certain participating securities as of December 17, 2009, which we refer to as the Rights Offering We 
distributed subscription rights exercisable for up to 93,903,300 shares of Class A Common Stock Each subscription right entitled a shareholder IO purchase 
0 4336 shares of Class A Common Stock at a subscription price of $7 33 per share The subscription rights will expire ifthey are not exercised by June 21,2010 
The Participating Equityholders and Google waived their respective rights to participate In the Rights Offering with respect to shares ofc lass  A Common Stock 
they each hold as af the  applicable record date 

Business Combinations 

On the Closing, Old Clearwire and the Sprint WiMAX business combined to form a new independent company, Clearwire The Investors contributed a total 
of $3 2 billion of new equity to Clearwire and Clearwire Communications In exchange for the contribution of the Sprint WiMAX business and the $3 2 billion, 
Sprint and the Investors received an aggregate of 25 million shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $0 0001 per share, and 505 million shares of Class B 
Common Stock, par value $0 0001 per share, and an equivalent number ofclearwire Communications Class B Common Interests, at an initial share price of $20 per 
share 

The number of shares issued to the Investors was subject to a post-closing adjustment based on the trading prices of the Class A Common Stack on 
NASDAQ Global Select Market over 15 randomly-selected trading days during the 30day  period ending on the 90th day after the Closing, which we refer to as 
the Adjustment Date, with a floor of $1 7 00 per share and a cap of $23 00 per share The adjustment resulted in an additional 28,235,294 shares being issued lo the 
Investors on February 26,2009 The adjustment did not affect the purchase 
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consideration, however it did result in an equity reallocation of $33.6 million to the "on-controlling interests. On February 21,2009, CW lnveslment Holdings LLC, 
which we refer to as CW Investment Holdings, an affliate ofJohn Stanton, a director ofclearwire, contributed $10.0 million in cash in exchange for 588,235 shares 
of Class A Common Stock. Concurrent with the Closing, we entered into commercial agreements with each of the Investors, which establish the framework for 
development ofthe combined WiMAX businesses. 

The combination was accounted for as a purchase and as a reverse acquisition with the Sprint WiMAX Business considered the accounting acquirer. As a 
result, the historical financial statemene of the Sprint WiMAX Business have become the financial statements of Clearwire effective as ofthe Closing. 

Purchase Consideration 

As a result of the Transactions, we acquired Old Clearwire's net assets and each share of Old Clearwire Class A common stock was exchanged for one 
share of Class A Common Stack, and each option and warrant to purchase shares of Old Clearwire Class A Common Stock and each share of restricted stock was 
exchanged for an option or warrant to purchase the same number of shares of Class A Common Stock, or a restricted share of Class A Common Stock, as 
applicable. 

Purchase consideration was based on the fair value of the Old Clearwire Class A common stock as of the Closing, which had a closing price of $6.62 an 
November 28,2008. 

The total purchase consideration to acquire Old Clearwire is approximately $1.12 billion, calculated as follows (in thousands, except per share amount): 

Number of shares of Old Clearwire Class A common stock exchanged in the Transactions 
Closing price per share of Old Clearwire Class A common sto 
Fair value o f o l d  Clearwire Class A common stock exchanged 
Fair value adjustment for Old Clearwire stoc 
Fair value adjustment for restricted stock un 
Fair value adjustment for warrants exchanged 
Transaction costs 
Purchase consideration for Old Clearwire before settlement loss 
Less: net loss from settlement of pre-existing relationships 
Purchase consideration far Old Clearwire 

Purchase Price Allocolion 

The total purchase consideration was allocated to the respective assets and liabilities based upon their estimated fair values on the date ofthe acquisition. 
At the date of acquisition, the estimated fair value a f the  net assets acquired exceeded the purchase price; therefore, no goodwill is reflected in the purchase price 
allocation. The excess of estimated fair value of net assets acquired over lhe purchase price was allocated to eligible non-current assets, specifically property, 
plant and equipment, other nan-current assets and intangible assets, based upon their relative fair values. 

Old Clearwire. In connection therewith, there was a reduction in Ihe amount allocated to consolidated property, plant and equipment of approximately 
$11.3 million, and a corresponding increase in the amount allocated to spectrum, primarily based on the receipt of additional information and final appraisal 
valuations. The following table sets forth the final allocation ofthe purchare 

During 2009, we finalized the allocation of the purchase consideration to Ihe identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liab 
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consideration to the identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Old Clearwire, including the allocation of the excess of the 
estimated fair value of net assets acquired over the purchase price (in thousands): 

Working capital 
Property, plant and equipment 
Other non-current assets 
Spectrum licenses 
Intangible assets 
Term debt 
Deferred tax liability 
Other non-current liabilities and no 
Total purchase price 

The following table includes the amounts assigned and estimated remammg useful lives for each class of property, plant and equipment (m thousands) 

V.l"C Estmated Remmnmg a ultrui LIre 

Network and base statmn equipment 
Customer premise equipment 
Funuhue, fixtures andequipment 

Leasehold improvements 
Construction in progress 

The fallowing table includes the amounts assigned and estimated weighted average remaining useful lwes for owned and leased spectrum l~censes (m 
thousands) 

Weighted Average 
Value R ~ ~ . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  ussrui 

Arsianed 

Indefmlte-lived owned SpecVum 
Definite-lived owned spectrum 
Spectrum leases 

S 1,644,825 

The following table includes the amounts asslgned and estimated weighted average remalnmg useful lwes for each class of intangible assets (m 
thousands) 

Subscriber relationships 
Trade names and trademarks 3,804 5 
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Nef Loss From Senlement of Pie-existing Relationships 

Before the Closing, Sprint leased spectrum to Old Clearwire through various spectrum lease agreements. As part of the Transactions, Sprint contributed 
both the spectrum lease agreements and the spectrum assets underlying those agreements to our business. As a result of the Transactions, the spectrum lease 
agreements were effectively terminated, and the settlement of those agreements was accounted for as a separate element apart from the business combination. 
The settlement gain or loss recognized from the termination was valued based on the amount by which the agreements are favorable or unfavorable to our 
business relative to current market rates. The spectrum lease agreements were considered to he unfavorable to our business by approximately $80.6 million on a 
net basis. AS such, we reduced the purchase consideration paid and recorded a "on-recurring expense of approximately $80.6 million, which is included in 
transaction related expenses, related to the settlement ofthe unfavorable spectrum lease agreements in connection with the Transactions. 

4. lovestmeots 

Investments as of December 3 I, 2009 and 2008 consist of the following (in thousands): 
Decembec31.2W9 hremb+r 3,, Zoo8 
Cros. Unr..lhd cIou unrt.rird 

Short-term 

Long-term 

Other debt secnrities 
Total long-term 
Total investments 

U S Government and Agency Issues 

U S Government and Agency Issues \ . - . I  

8,959 4212 13,171 - 18,974 
83,629 4,212 3) 87,687 18,974 - - 18,974 

S 2,190,213 $ 4,443 $1 S 2,194,348 s 1,918,503 $ 2,220 S, $ 1,920,723 

For the years ended December31, 2009 and 2008, we recorded an other-lhan-temporary impairment loss of $lO.Omillion and $17,0millian, respectively, 
related to our other debt securities. 

At December 31,2009, U.S. Government and Agency Issues securities with an amortized cost basis of $929.9 million had unrealized losses ofapproximately 
$308,000. All of these Securities have been in an unrealized loss position for less than two months and the unrealized losses resulted from changes in interest 
rates. 

Other debt securities include investments in collateralized debt obligations, which we refer to as CDOs, supported by preferred equity securities of 
insurance companies and financial institutions with stated final maturity dates in 2033 and 2034. These are variable rate debt instruments whose interest rates are 
normally reset approximately every 30 or 90 days through an auction process. Ar of December 31, 2009, the total fair value and cos1 of our security interests in 
C W s  was $13.2 million and $9.0 million, respectively. The total fair value and cost of our security interests in CDOs as of December31, 2008 was $12.9 million. 
We also own Auction Market Preferred securities issued by a monoline insurance company and these securities are perpetual and do not have a final stated 
maturity. In July 2009, the issuer's credit rating was downgraded to CC and Caa2 by Standard & Poor's and Moody's rating services, respectively and the total 
fair value and cost ofour Auction Market Prefened securities was written down to $0. The total fair value and cost of our Auction Market Preferred securities as 
ofDecember 31,2008 was $6. I million. Current market conditions do not allow us to estimate when the auctions for our other debt securities will resume, ifever, or 
i f a  secondary market will develop for these securities. AS a result, our other debt securities are classified 8s long-term investments. 
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The cost and fair value of investments at December 3 I ,  2009, by contractual years-to-maturity, are presented below (in thousands): 

Due within one year 
Due between one and five years 
Due in ten years or greater 
Total $ 2,190,213 $ 2,194,348 

5. Property, Plml mod Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment BS ofDecember 3 1,2009 and 2008 consisted ofthe following (in thousands): 

Network and base station equipment 
Customer premise equipment 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 

Leasehold unprovements 
Constructton I" progress 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortmatmn 

Year Ended Diconherl l .  
lW7 - lW9 1W8 - -  

S U D D h I C I I 1 1 ~  information (in thousands): 
Capitalized interest S 4,469 S - 
Depreciation expense S 5 4 3 1  ,936 

6. Spectrum Licenses 
Owned and leased spectrum licenses as of December 3 1,2009 and 2008 consisted ofthe following (in thousands): 
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temporary differences reverse or when the net operating loss, capital loss or tax credit carryforwards are utilized. 

Prior to the Transactions, the legal entities representing the Sprint WiMAX Business were included in the filing of Sprint's consolidated federal and certain 
state income tax returns. Income tax expense and related income tax balances were accounted for and presented in the financial statements, as if we were filing 
stand-alone separate returns using an estimated combined federal and state marginal tax rate of 39% up to and including the date of the Transactions. We 
recorded deferred tax assets related to the pre-closing net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and recorded a valuation allowance against our deferred tax 
assets, net of certain schedulable deferred tax liabilities. The net deferred tax liabilities reported in these financial statements prior to the Closing are related to 
FCC licenses recorded as indefinite-lived spectrum intangibles, which are not amortized for book purposes. The change to the deferred tax position as a result of 
the Closing was reflected as part of the accounting for the acquisition of Old Cleanvire and was recorded in equity. The net operating loss and tax credil 
carryforwards associated with the Sprint WiMAX Business prior to the Closing were not transferred to either Cleanvire Communications or Cleanvire, but instead 
were retained by Sprint. 

The income tax provision consists of the following for the years ended December 3 I ,  2009,2008 and 2007 (in thousands): 
Year Ended December3l. 

2009 1008 1w7 
Current taxes: 
International 25 s 
Federal - 

- - - 148 - - State 
325 - Total current taxes (241) 

Deferred taxes 
International 953 (87) 
Federal - 51,686 13,745 
State - 9,683 

- 

- 
Total deferred taxes 
Income tax provision 

~ 

953 __ 61,282 - 16,362 - 
$712 - 

The Sprint WiMAX Business incurred significant deferred tax liabilities related to the indefinite-lived spectrum licenses. Since certain of these specmm 
licenses acquired were recorded as indefinite-lived intangible aSsets for book purposes, they are not subject to amortization and therefore we could not estimate 
the amount of future period reversals, if any, of the deferred tax liabilities related to those spectrum licenses, As a result, the valuation allowance was increased 
accordingly and we continued to amortize acquired spectrum licenses for federal income tax purpose. The difference between book and tax amortization resulted 
in a deferred income tax provision prior to the Closing. 
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Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 3 I ,  2009 and 2008 were as fallows (m thousands) 
Decem bsr 31, 

2009 2008 
Noncumnt deferred tax assels 

Net operating loss carryforward 

Other assets 
apital loss carryforward 

Total deferred tax assets 
Valuation allowance (573,165) 
Net deferred tax assets 
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities 

Investment m Cleanvup Communications 
Spectrum licenses 
Other intangible assets 
Other 36 207 

Total deferred tax liabilities 
Net deferred tax liabilities 3 6,353 

Pursuant to the Transactions, the assets of Old Clearwire and its subsidiaries were combined with the spectrum and certain other assets of the Sprint 
WiMAX Business. In conjunction with thc acquisition of Old Clearwire by the Sprint WiMAX Business, these assets along with the $3.2 billion of capital from 
!he Investors were contributed to Clearwire Communications. Clearwire is the sole holder of voting interests in Clearwire Communications. As such, Clearwire 
controls 100% of the decision making of Clearwire Communications and consolidates 100% of ils operations. Cleanvire Communications is treated as a 
pannership for United States federal income tax purposes and therefore does not pay income tax in the United States and any current and deferred tax 
consequences arise at the partner level, including Clearwire. Other than balances associated with the non-United States operations, the only temporwy difference 
for Cleanvire afcer the Closing is the basis difference associated with our investment in the partnership. Consequently, we recorded a deferred tax liability for !he 
difference between the financial statement carrying value and the tax basis we hold in our interest in Clearwire Communications as of the date of the Transactions. 

As of December 3 1,2009, we had United States federal tax net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1.6 billion. A portion ofthe net operating loss 
carryforward is subject to Certain annual limitations imposed under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. The net operating loss carryfarwards begin 
to expire in 2021. We had $386.4 million of fax net operating loss carryforwards in foreign jurisdictions; $234.2 million have no statutory expiration date, 
$130.5 million begins to expire in 2015, and the remainder ofS21.7 million begins to expire in 2010. 

We have recorded a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets to the extent that we determined that it is more likely than not that these items will 
either expire before we are able to realize their benefits or that future deductibility is uncenain. As it relates to the United States tax jurisdiction, we determined 
that our temporary taxable difference associated with our investment in Cleanvlre Communications will reverse within the carryforward period ofthe net operating 
losses and accordingly represents relevant future taxable income. 
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As of December 31, 2009, $2.71 billion in aggregate principal amount was outstanding under the Senior Secured Notes and Rollover Notes. The weighted 
effective interest rate ofthe Senior Secured Notes and Rollover Notes was 13.02% at December 3 1,2009. 

The holders of the Senior Secured Notes and Rollover Notes have the right to require us to repurchase all ofthe nates upon the occurrence o f a  change of 
control event or a sale of certain assets at a price of 10 I % ofthe principal amount or 100% of the principal amount, respectively, plus any unpaid accrued interest 
to the repurchase date. Prior to December 1,2012, we may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount ofthe Senior Secured Notes at a redemption price 
of 112% of the aggregate principal amount, plus any unpaid accrued interest to the repurchase date. After December I ,  2012, we may redeem all or a part of the 
Senior Secured Notes by paying a make-whole premium as stated in the terms, plus any unpaid accrued interest to the repurchase date. 

Our payment obligations under the Senior Secured Nates and Rollover Notes are guaranteed by certain domestic subsidiaries on a senior basis and 
secured by certain assets of such subsidiaries an a first-priority lien. The Senior Secured Notes and Rollover Notes contain limitations on our activities, which 
among other things include incurring additional indebtedness and guarantee indebtedness; making distributions or payment of dividends or certain other 
restricted payments or investments: making certain payments on indebtedness; entering into agreements that restrict distributions from restricted subsidiaries: 
selling or otherwise disposing of assets; merger, consolidation or sales of substantially all of our assets; entering transactions with affiliates; creating liens; 
issuing certain preferred stack or similar equity securities and making investments and acquiring assets. 

Future payments of interest and principal an our Senior Secured Notes and Rollover Notes, for the remaining years are as follows (in thousands): 

2010 
201 I 
2012 
2013 332,699 
201 
2015 

Senior Term Loan Facdiw- In conjunction with the Transactions, we assumed from Old Clearwire the Senior Term Loan Facility, which had a balance as 
ofthe Closing ofSl 19 billion, net of discount The Senior Term Loan Facility was set to be due in 201 I ,  but was repaid wlth the proceeds from the Senior Secured 
Notes and Rollover Notes As of December 31, 2008, $ I  41 billion bn aggregate principal amount was outstanding under the Senior Term Loan Facility 

lnreresr Expense- Interest expense included ~n our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, 
consisted of the following (in thousands) 

Year Ended DeennbsrJI. 
IW8 

Interest coupon $- 
Accretion ofdebt discount 
Capitalized interest 

64,183 1,661 - 
(140,168)(4.469)= - S 69,468 s16,545 S, 
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II. Derivative lostrumeats 

During 2009 and 2008, we held two interest rate swap contracts which were based on 3-month LlBOR with a combined notional value of $600 million. We 
used these swaps as economic hedges of the interest rate risk related to a portion ofour  Senior Term Loan Facility. The interest rate swaps were used to reduce 
the variability of future interest payments on our LlBOR based debt. We were not holding these interest rate swap contracts for trading or speculative purposes. 
We did not apply hedge accounting to these swaps, therefore the gains and losses due to changes in fair value were reponed in other income (expense), net in 
our consolidated statements afaperations. 

The following table sets forth information regarding our interest rate swap contracts (in thousands): 

Type or 

Swap 
Swap 

D"n.l,"e 

$300,000 3 62% 3/5/201 I 3-month LIBOR 

Year Ended 
&cenbvfl,  

Nature 01 Adirihi: IW9 

Periodic swap payment $ 03,915) 
Unrealized gain on undesign ant 6,939 
Loss on undesignated swap contracts, net(1) $ (6,976) 

( I )  Included in Other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations. 
We computed the fair value of the swaps using an income approach whereby we estimate net cash flaws and discount the cash flows at a risk-based rate. 

See Note 12, Fair Value, far further information, We monitor the risk of our nonperformance as well as that ofour counterparties on an ongoing basis. 
At December 31, 2008, the swap fair value of $21.6 million was reported in other long-term liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet. During the fourth 

quarter of 2009, we terminated the swap contracls and paid the swap counterparties $18.4 million which consisted of $14.7 million mark to market losses and 
$3.7 million accrued interest. 

12. Fair Value 
The following table is a description of the pricing assumptions used for instruments measured and recorded at fair value on a recurring basis, including the 

general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based 
upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

Finanrid In$tumtnl  Hierarchy P r U q  A,,".ption. 

Cash equivalents: Money market mutual funds Level i Market quotes 
Short-term investment: U.S. Government and Agency Issues Market quotes 
Long-term investment: U S .  Government and Agency Issues Market quotes 
Long-term investment: Other debt securities Discount of forecasted cash flaws adjusted for defaulttloss 

probabilities and estimate affinal maturity 
Derivative: Interest rate swaps Discount of forecasted cash flows adjusted for risk of non- 

Level I 
Level i 
Level 3 

Level 3 
performance 
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Cash Equivalents ondlnvestmenfs 

Where quoted prices for identical Securities are available in an active market, we use quoted market prices to determine the fair value of investment 
securities and cash equivalents, and they are classified in Level I ofthe valuation hierarchy. Level I securities include U.S. Treasuries and money market mutual 
funds for which there are quoted prices in active markets. 

Far other debt securities which are classified in Level 3, we use discounted cash flow models to estimate the fair value using various methods including the 
market and income approaches. In developing these models, we utilize certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the investment, including 
assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. We maximize the use of Observable inputs in the pricing models where 
quoted market prices from securities and derivatives exchanges are available and reliable. We also use certain unobservable inputs that cannot k validated by 
reference to a readily observable market or exchange data and rely, to a certain extent, an management's own assumptions about the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the security. We use many factors that are necessary to estimate market values, including interest rates, market risks, market 
spreads, timing of contractual cash flows, market liquidity, review of underlying collateral and principal, interest and dividend payments 

DUiWfiWS 

Derivatives are classified in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. To estimate fair value, we use an income approach whereby we estimate net cash flows and 
discount the cash flaws at a risk-adjusted rate. The inputs include the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, payment frequency 
and dayzaunt conventions, and market-based parameters such as interest rate forward curves and interest rate volatility. A level of subjectivity is used to 
estimate the risk ofaur  "on-performance or that of our counterparties. 

The following table summarizes our financial assets and liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy at December 3 I ,  2009 (in thousands): 
Quoted SiB"ili<."l 
Prt" I. 0th" siBninc.nt 

Marken, I"Q"l, 1"Q"l. T0l.l 
Active 0brsrv.bla Vnobssrv8bIe 

a (LSVSl 3) Fair Vdur 
Financial assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents SI ,69 s -  $ 
Short-term investments $2,106,661 s -  s 
Long-term investments $ 74,516 s -  $ 13,171 $ 87,687 

The following table summarizes our financial 

Fmaocial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Short-term investments 
Long-term investments 

Financial liabilities 
Interest rate swaps 

assets and liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy at December 3 I ,  2008 (in thousands): 
Quoted Si."iliC.", 
Price, I" 0th- signific.nt 
Adire Observable Unobwwsble 

M..*eu hp",. I"p"& Total 
( L e d  3, Fair Value 

$1.20.. . 
$1,901,749 

6 141 F -  S I  206 143 

s -  s -  $ 21,591 $ 21,591 
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for the major classes of assets and liabilities measured at fair value 
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (in thousands) 

Lrvd 3 LWd 3 
Finaorid Lwbildw Fm.nOd Assots 

Balance at January 1.2008 
Balances acquired from Old Clearwire 
Total losses for2008 included In net loss(l) 
Balance at December 31,2008 
Total gains (losses) far 2009 included m 

Net loss( 1) 
Other comprehensive income 

Settlements 
Balance at December 31,2009 
Net unrealized losses included in net loss for 2009 relating to financial assets held 

- at December 3 I, 2009 s (10,015) s 

( I )  Included in Other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations. 
The following is the description ofthe fair value for financial instruments we hold that are not subject to fair value recognition. 

N o m  Receivable 

Notes receivable with a carrying value of $5.4 million and a fair value of $1.7 million were outstanding at December 31, 2009. Notes receivable with a 
carrying value of $4.8 million and a fair value of $1 .2 million were outstanding at December 3 1,2008. n e  notes receivable are not publicly traded. The fair value of 
these notes is estimated based on the fair value ofthe underlying collateral. 

D e l  ImfrumenlS 

Senior Secured Notes and Rollover Notes with a carrying value of $2.71 billion and an approximate fair value of $2.81 billion were outstanding at 
December 3 1,2009. TO estimate fair value ofthese notes we wed the average indicative price born several market makers. 

A Senior Term Loan Facility with a carrying value and an approximate fair value a f  $1.36 billion was outstanding at December 31, 2008. The Senior Term 
Loan Facility was not publicly traded. To estimate fair value of the Senior Term Loan Facility, we used an income approach whereby we estimated conlrachlal 
cash flows and discounted the cash flows at a risk-adjusted rate. The inputs included the contractual terms of the Senior Term Loan Facility and market-based 
parameters such as interest rate forward curves. A level of subjectivity and judgment was used to estimate credit spread. The Senior Tern  Loan Facility was 
retired in the fourth quarter of 2009. 
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13. Commitments and Contingencies 

as fallows (in thousands) 
Future m!nlmum payments under obligatmns listed below (includmg all optlonal expected renewal perm& an operatlng leases) as ofDecember 31,2009, are 

Thveanrr. 
including .I1 

Interest payments 
Operating lease obligations 

Network equipment purchase obligations 
Other purchase obligations 
Total 

Spectrum and operating leose obligations - Our commitments for non-cancelable operatmg leases consist malnly of leased spectrum llcense fees, office 
space, equipment, and leased sites, including towers and rooftop locations Certam of the leases provlde for mlnlmum lease payments, addltmnal charges and 
escalation clauses Certain o f  the tower leases specify a minimum number of new leases to commence by December 3 I ,  201 I Charges apply if these CommltmentS 
are not satisfied Leased spectrum agreements have terms of up to 30 years Operating leases generally have lnltlal terms of flve years wlth multlple renewal 
options far additional five-year terms totaling between 20 and 25 years 

Expense recorded related to spectrum and operalmg leases was as follows (in thousands) 
Ymr Ended DocambsrJI, 

1009 2007 
$ 201,461 $ 60,051 Spectrum lease expense 

Amortization of prepaid spectrum liccnses 57,898 
S 60,051 S 259,359 

Operating lease expense $ 245,351 $ 51,345 $ 2,000 

Other spectrum commitments - We have commitments to provide Clearwire services to certain lessors in launched markets, and reimbursement of capital 
equipment and third-party service expenditures of the lessors over the term of the lease We accrue a monthly obllgatton for the services and equlpment based on 
the total estimated available s e n w e  credits divided by the term of the lease The obligation IS reduced as actual lnvolces are presented and pald to the lessors 
Durlng the years ended December31, 2009 and 2008 we satisfied $779,000 and $76,000, respectwely, related lo these comm~tments The maxlmum remalnlng 
wmmihnent at December 31, 2009 IS $95 I million and IS expected to be incurred over the term of the related lease agreements. whlch generally range from 15- 
30 years 

- - - Total spectrum lease expense - 
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As of December 31, 2009, we have signed agreements to acquire approximately $30.0 million in new spectrum, subject to closing conditions. These 
transactions are expected to be completed within the next twelve months. 

Network equipment purehose obligotions -We have purchase commitments with take-or-pay obligations andior volume commitments for equipment 
that are non-cancelable and outstanding purchase orders for network equipment for which we believe delivery is likely to occur. 

Otherpurchase obligations- We have purchase obligations that include minimum purchases we have committed to purchase from suppliers over time 
and/or unconditional purchase obligations where we guarantee to make a minimum payment to suppliers far goods and services regardless of whether suppliers 
fully deliver them. They include, among other things, agreements for backhaul, customer devices and IT related and other services. In addition, we are parIy to 
various arrangements that are conditional in nature and create an obligation to make payments only upon the occurrence of  certain events, such as  the actual 
delivery and acceptance of products or services. Because i t  is not possible to predict the timing or amounts that may be due under these conditional 
arrangements, no such amounts have been included in the table above. The table above also excludes blanket purchase order amounts where the orders are 
subject to cancellation or termination at OUI discretion or where the quantity of goods or services to be purchased or the payment terms are unknown because 
such purchase orders are not firm commitments. 

AMDOCS Agreement-On March 3 1 ,  2009, we entered into a Customer Care and Billing Services Agreement, which we refer to as the AMDOCS 
Agreement, with AMDOCS Software Systems Limited, which we refer to as AMDOCS, under which AMDOCS will provide a customized customer care and billing 
platform, which we refer to as the Platform, to us. In connection with the provision of these services and the establishment of the Platform, AMDOCS will also 
license certain of its software to us. 

The initial term af the  AMDOCS Agreement commences on March 3 I ,  2009 and ends on the earliest to occur ofseven years from the date of the AMDOCS 
Agreement (to be extended under certain circumstances relating to conversion of subscribers to the new system) or the termination of the AMDOCS Agreement 
pursuant to its terms, as defined. Under the terms of the AMDOCS Agreement, we are required to pay AMDOCS licensing fees, implementation fees, monthly 
subscriber fees, and reimbursable expenses. In  addition, lhe AMDOCS Agreement contains delailed terms governing implementation and maintenance of the 
Platform; performance specifications; acceptance testing; charges, credits and payments; and warranties. We capitalized SS2.9 million in costs incurred during the 
application development stage associated with the Platform for the year ended December 31,2009. 

Legal proceedings -As more fully described below, we are involved in a variety of lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings concerning 
intellectual property, business practices, commercial and other matters. We determine whether we should accrue an estimated loss for a contingency in a 
particular legal proceeding by assessing whether a loss is deemed probable and can be reasonably estimated. We reassess our views on estimated losses on a 
quarterly basis to reflect the impact of any developments in the matters in which we are involved. Legal proceedings are inherently unpredictable, and the matters 
in which we are involved otten present complex legal and factual issues. We vigorously pursue defenses in legal proceedings and engage in discussions where 
possible to resolve these matters on terms favorable to us. It is possible, however, that our business, financial condition and results of Operations in future 
periods could be materially affected by increased litigation expense, significant settlement costs a d o r  unfavorable damage awards. 

On December I ,  2008, Adaptix, Inc., which we refer to as Adaptix, filed suit far patent infringement against us and Sprint in the United States District Cowl 
for the Eastern District ofTexas, alleging that we and Sprint infringed six patents purportedly owned by Adaptix. On February IO, 2009, Adaptix filed an Amended 
Complaint alleging infringement of a seventh patent. Adaptix alleges that by offerins 40 mobile WiMAX services to subscribers in compliance with the 802.16e 
WiMAX standard, and by making, using andiar selling 
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the supporting WiMAX network used to provide such WiMAX services, we and Sprint infringe the seven patents. Adaptiv is seeking monetary damages, 
attorneys’ fees and a permanent injunction enjoining us from further acts of alleged infringement. On February 25, 2009, we filed an Answer to the Amended 
Complaint, denying infringement and asserting several affirmative defenses, including that the asserted patents are invalid. We filed an Amended Answer on 
lune 25, 2009, adding a counter-claim for declaratory judgment afnan-infringement and invalidity of the subject patents. A trial is scheduled for December 2010, 
and the parties commenced discovery in early 2009. On December 21,2009, Adaptix filed but did not sene an additional suit for patent infringement in the United 
States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas. That wit  alleges infringement of one patent related to those asserted in the previously filed suit. We have 
not been served and therefore have not appeared in the newly-filed suit. On February 23, 2010, we reached a resolution with Adaptix and Sprint regarding 
Adaptix’s patent infringement litigations pending in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, whereby the pending litigations will be 
dismissed without prejudice. 

On April 22,2009, a purported class action lawsuit was filed against us in Superior Court in King County, Washington by a group of five plaintiffs from 
Hawaii, Minnesota, North Carolina and Washington. The lawsuit generally alleges that we disseminated false advertising about the quality and reliability of our 
services; imposed an unlawful early termination fee; and invoked unconscionable provisions ofour Terms of Service to the detriment of customers. Among other 
things, the lawsuit seeks a determination that the alleged claims may be asserted an a class-wide basis; an order declaring certain provisions of our Terms of 
Service, including the early termination fee provision, void and unenforceable; an injunction prohibiting us from collecting early termination fees and further false 
advertising, restitution of any early termination fees paid by our subscribers; equitable relief, and an award of unspecified damages and attorneys’ fees. On 
May 21,2009, an amended complaint was filed and served, adding seven additional plaintiffs, including individuals from New Mexico, Virginia and Wisconsin. On 
June 2, 2009, plaintiffs served the amended complaint. We removed the action to the United States District Court for the Western District of Washingtan. On 
July 23,2009, we filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint. The Court stayed discovery pending its ruling on the motion. The Court granted our motion to 
dismiss in its entirety on February 2, 2010. Plaintiffs have 30 days to move the Court far leave to amend the complaint, Whether plaintiffs will seek such leave is 
unknown. 

On September 1,2009, we were served with a purported class action lawsuit filed in King County Superior Court. The wmplaint alleges we placed unlawful 
telephone calls using automatic dialing and announcing devices. It seeks declaratoly, injunctive, andlor equitable relief and statutory damages under federal and 
state law. On October I ,  2009, we removed the case to the United States District Court for the Western Districl of Washington. On October 22, 2009. the Court 
issued a stipulated order granting plaintiff until October 29, 2009 to file an Amended Complaint. The parties further stipulated to allow a Second Amended 
Complaint, which plaintiffs tiled on December 23, 2009. We then filed a motion to dismiss that was fully briefed on January 15,ZOlO. Mar to the Court ruling on 
the motion to dismiss, plaintiff moved the Court for leave to file a further amended complaint. On FebruaIy 22, 2010 the Court granted our motion to dismiss in 
part, dismissing certain claims with prejudice and granting plaintiff20 days to amend the complaint. The Court dismissed plaintiffs motion for leave to amend as 
moot. This case is in the early stages oflitigation, and its outcome is unknown. 

In addition to the matters described above, we are oflen involved in certain other proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business and seek 
monetary damages and other relief, Based upon information currently available to US, none of these other claims are expected to have a material adverse effect an 
our business, financial condition or results of operations. 

Indemnificnfion ogreemenls -We are currently a party to indemnification agreements with certain officers and each of the memberr of our Board of 
Directors. No liabilities have been recorded in the consolidated balance sheets for m y  indemnification agreements, because they are not probable nor estimable. 
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14. Share-Based Payments 
In connection with the Closing, we assumed the Old Clearwire 2008 Stock Compensation Plan, whlch we refer to as the 2008 Plan, the Old Cleanvue 2007 

Stack Compensatlon Plan, which we refer to as the 2007 Plan, and the Old Clearwire 2003 Stock Optlon Plan, whlch we refer to as the 2003 Plan Share grants 
generally vest ratably over four years and expire no later than ten years after the date of grant Grants to be awarded under the 2008 Plan will be made available at 
the discretion ofthe Compensattlon Committee of the Board of Directors from authorized but unissued shares, authorized and issued shares reacquired and held 
as treasury shares, or a combmation thereot At December 31,2009, there were 62,229,805 shares available for granl under the 2008 Plan, whlch authorizes us to 
grant incentive stack options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation nghts, restncted stock, restricted stock unfs, and other stock awards to Our 
employees, duectors and consultants With the adoption ofthe 2008 Plan, no addrtianal stock options will be granted under the 2007 Plan or the 2003 Plan 

Share-based compensation expense IS based on the estimated grant-date fair value of the award and is recognized net of estimated forfeitures on those 
shares expected to vest over a graded vesting schedule on a straight-line basis over the requisite servlce period far each separately vestlng ponlon of the award 
as ifthe award was, m-substance, multiple w a r d s  

Stock Opfions 

In connection with the Transactions, all Old Cleanvire stock options issued and outstanding at the Closing were exchanged on a one-forone basis far 
stock options with equivalent terms Following the Closing, we granted optrons to certain officers and employees under the 2008 Plan All options vest over a 
four-year period The fair value of option grants was estimated on the date ofgrant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model 

A summary ofoption actrvlty from January I ,  2007 through December 31,2009 is presented below 
Wemghlrd- 
*YI..EI Agg.Cl.b 

Webghtad- Rl",.,"i"g t",.,"'k 
AVW.gC CO",..U".l value A, or 

Nulnbrrol EX.<"* Term l Z , , l i l O W  
ppllon, RlU (YI.n) 

Options outstanding - January 1,2007 
Options outstanding -December 3 I ,  2007 
Options acquired in purchase accounting -November 28,2008 
Granted 
Forfeited 
Exercised 
Options outstanding - December 31,2008 

Granted 
Forfeited 
Exercised 

Options outstaodmg --DeCember31,2009 
Vested and expected to vest - December 31,2009 
Exercisable outstanding - December 31,2009 
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The intrinsic value of options exercised dunng the years ended December 3 I ,  2009 and 2008 was $2.3 million and $15,000, respectively. 
Information regarding stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 3 1,2009 is as follows: 

00tk.m. OuUt*ndii% Ontiom Exercisable 
WeiEhtad 
A"e"ge 

Cootrsctud Weighted Weighted 
Lire A"a"ge AW,P 

RI..i"i"% EIl.C.iW Number or EX"&* 
Eirrcitr Ricer 

5225-$3o(I 
$3 03 

$353-$545 
$6 UU 

S607-Sl l03  
$11 15-$s1602 

$18 00- $23 30 
$23 52- $25 01 
$25 33 

$1711 

Total 

The fair value of each option grant IS estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option prrcing model using the following assumpoons for the 
years ended December 31,2009 and 2008 

Year Ended Decembrfl. 
1W9 tW# 

Expecled volatility 
Expected dividend yield 
Expected life (In years) 
Risk-free interest rate 
Weighted average fair value per option at grant date 
The fair value of option grants m 2009 was $18 6 million In addition to options issued in exchange as part of the Transactions, the fair value of option 

grants during 2008 WBS $954.000 The total fair value of options vested during the years ended December31, 2009 and 2008 was $5 8 million and $815,000, 
respectively The total unrecognized share-based compensation costs related to "on-vested stock options outstanding at December 31,2009 was approximately 
$1 1 5 million and IS expected to be recognized over a weighted average period orapproximately I 7 years 

For the years ended December 3 I ,  2009 and 2008, OUT forfeiture rate used m the calculation of stack option expense IS 12 66% 

Restricred Stock Units 
In connection with the Transactions, all Old Clearwire restricied stock units, which we refer to as RSUs, issued and outstanding at the Closing were 

exchanged on a one-fordne basis for RSUs with equivalent terms. Following the Closing, we granted RSUs to certain officers and employees under the 2008 Plan, 
All RSUs vest over a four-year period. The fair value of our RSUs is based on the grant-date fair market value of the common stock, which equals the grant date 
market pice. 
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A summary of the RSU activity for the years ended December 3 1,2009 and 2008 IS presented below 
Weighted- 

RSU'S Grant Prla 
Number or A"er.ge 

Resmctedstockunits outstanding - January I, 2007 
Restricted stock units outstanding --December 31 2007 
Restricted stock units acquired UL purchase a 

Granted 
Forfeited 

ed 
lled 
d stock units outstanding 

Granted 
Forfeited 
Released 
Cancelled 

Restricted stock units outstanding - December 31,2009 

The total fair value of grants during 2009 and 2008 was $48 0 million and $2 9 million, respectively The rntnnsic value o f  RSUs released during the years 
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $7 9 mllllon and $3 2 mdlton, respectlvely As of December 31, 2009, there were 11,853,194 unlls outstanding and total 
unrecognized compensation cost of approximately $30 9 million, which IS expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately I 8 years 

For the years ended December 3 I ,  2009 and 2008, we used a forfeltwe rate of 7 75% and 7 50%, respectively, In determmmng compensatlon expense for our 
RSUs 

Sprinl Equily Compensation Plans 

In connection with the Transactions, cenain ofthe Sprint W N A X  Business employees became employees ofclearwire and currently hold unvested Sprint 
stock options and RSUs in Spnnt's equity compensatmn plans, whlch we refer to collectively as the Sprmt Plans The underlying share for awards issued under 
the Sprmt Plans IS Sprint common stock The Sprint Plans allow for continued plan parlupatmn as long as the employee remalns employed by a Sprint subsldt;uy 
or affiliate Under the Sprint Plans, options are generally granted with an exerclse price equal to the market value of the underlying shares on the grant dare, 
generally vest over a period of up to four years and have a contractual term of ten years RSUs generally have both performance and service requirements wlth 
vesting periods ranging from one to three years RSUs granted after the second quaner 2008 included quanerly performance targets but were not granted until 
performance targets were met Therefore, at the grant date these awards only had a remaining service requirement and vesting period of stx months following the 
last day of the applicable quarter Employees who were granted RSUs were not required to pay for the shares but generally must remain employed wlth Sprint or a 
subsidiary, until the restrictions lapse, which was typically three years or less At December 31, 2009, there were 722,954 unvested options and 213,127 unvested 
RSUs outstanding 

The share-based compensation assouated with these employees IS incurred by Sprint on our behalf Sprint provided us with the fair value ofrlle optlons 
and RSUs for each reporting period, which must be remeasured based an the fair value of the equity instruments at each reporlmg period until the instruments are 
vested Total unrecognized share-based compensation costs related to unvested stock options and RSUs outstanding as of December 3 I ,  2009 was $70,250 and 
S I  86,100, respectively, and IS expected to be recognized over appraxlmately one year 
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Share-based compensation expense recognized for all plans for the years ended December 3 I ,  2009,2008 and 2007 is as follows (in thousands): 
Year Ended DecamborJI, 

3 2007 

3 
S 27,512 
_=_ 

15. Stockholders’ Equity 

Class A Common Stock 

The Class A Common Stock represents the common equity of Clearwire. The holders of the Class A Common Stack are entitled to one vote per share and, 
as a class, are entitled to 100% of any dividends or distributions made by Clearwire, with the exception of cenain minimal liquidation rights provided to the 
Class B Common Stockholders, which are described below. Each share of Class A Common Stock panicipates ratably in proponion to the total number of shares 
of Class A Common Stock issued by Clearwire. Holders of Class A Common Stock have 100% of the economic interest in Cleanvire and are considered the 
controlling interest far the purposes of financial reponing. 

Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the Class A Common Stock will be entitled to any assets remaining atler payment of all debts and liabilities of 
Clearwire, with the exception ofcenain minimal liquidation rights provided to the Class B Common StocWlolders, which are described below. 

Class B Common Sfock 

The Class B Common Stock represents nan+conomic voting interests in Clearwire and holders of this stock are considered the norrcontrolling interests 
for the purposes of financial reparling. Identical to the Class A Common Stock, the holders of Class B Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share, however 
they do not have any rights to receive distributions other than stock dividends paid proportionally to each outstanding Class A and Class B Common 
Stockholder or upon liquidation OfCleanvire, an amount equal to the par value per share, which is $0.0001 per share. 

Each holder of Class B Common Stock holds an equivalent number of Cleanvire Communications Class B Common Interests, which in substance reflects 
their economic stake in Clearwire. This is accomplished through an exchange feature that provides the holder the right, at any time, to exchange one share of 
Class B Common Stock plus one Clearwire Communications Class B Common Interest for one share ofclass A Common Stock. 
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Cleorwire Communications Interests 

Clearwire is the sale holder of voting interests in Cleatwire Communications. As such, Clearwire controls 100% of the decision malung of Clearwire 
Communications and consolidates 100% of its operations. Clearwire also holds all of the outstanding Clearwire Communications Class A Common Interests 
representing 21.1% of the economics of Clearwire Communications as of December 31, 2009. The holders of the Class B Common Interests own the remaining 
78.9% of the economic interests. The following shows the effects of the changes in Clewire’s  ownership interests in Clearwire Communications (in thousands): 

Period From 
Norembcr 19. 

Year Ended 2006 10 
M e m k r l l ,  Dwember31. 

1ow 20011 

Net loss amibutable to Clearwire 
Decrease in Cleawire’s additional paid-in capital for issuance of Class A and B Common Stock related to 

$ (319.199 

the post-closing adpstment (33,632) 
Decrease in Clearwire’s additional paid-in capital for issuance of Class B Common Stock 
Increase in Clearwire’s additional paid-in capital for issuance of Clas 
Change from net loss attnbuf3le to Clearwire and transfers to non-c 

The non-voling Clearwire Communication units are designated as either Clearwire Communications Class A Common Interests, which are 100% held by 
Cleanvire, or Clearwire Communications Class B Common Interests, which are held by Sprint and the Investors, with the exception ofGoogle. Both classes of non- 
voting Clearwire Communication units participate in distributions of Clearwire Communications on an equal and proponionate basis. 

Each holder of Clearwire Communications Class B Common Interests holds an equivalent number of Class B Common Stock and will he entitled at any time 
to exchange one share of Class B Common Slock plus one Clearwire Communications Class B Common Interest for one share ofclass A Common Stock. 

It is intended that at all times, the number of Cleanvire Communications Class A Common Interests held by Clearwire will equal the number of shares of 
Class A Common Stock issued by Clearwire. Similarly, it is intended that, at all times, Sprint and each Investor, except Google, will hold an equal number of 
Class B Common Stock and Cleatwire Communications Class B Common Interests. 

Dividend Policy 

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on Class A or Class B Common Stock since the Closing. We currently expect to retain future earnings, if 
any, for use in the operations and expansion ofour business, We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. In addition, covenants in 
the indenture governing our Senior Secured Notes impose significant restrictions on our ability to pay cash dividends to our stockholders. The distribution of 
subscription rights as part of the Rights Offering represents a dividend distribution. 

Non-eontrolfing Imtwests in Clenrwire Communications 

Clearwire Communications is consolidated into Clearwire. Therefore, the holders of the Cleanvire Communications Class B Common Interests represent 
non-controlling interests in a consolidated subsidiary. As a 
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result, the income (loss) consolidated by Clearwire is decreased in proportion lo the outstanding non-controlling interests. Currently, at the Clearwire level, non- 
conh-olling inlerests represent approximately 79% of the non-economic voting interests. 

WaVoIltS 

All Old Clearwire warrants issued and outstanding at (he Closing were exchanged on a one-for+ne basis for warrants to purchase our Class A Common 
Stock with equivalent terms. The fair value of the warrants exchanged of $18.5 million is included in the calculation of purchase consideration using the Black- 
Scholes option pricing model using a share price of $6.62. Holders may exercise their warrants at any time, with exercise prices ranging from $3.00 to $48.00. Old 
Clearwire granted the holders of the warrants registration rights covering the shares subject to issuance under the warrants. The number ofwarrants outstanding 
at December 3 I ,  2009 was 17,806,220, The warrants expire on August 5,2010, but the term is subject to extension in certain circumstances. 

16. Net Lass Per Share 
BosicNet Loss Pershore 

The net loss per share attributable to holders o fc l a s s  A Common Stock is calculated based an the following information (in thousands, except per share 
aIll0"nts): 

Periad From 
November 29, 

Year Ended zoos to 
h e a m t w l l .  D e c e m b ~ r l l .  

2009 1008 

928,264 
(325,582) 

Net loss 
ontrolling intercsls in net loss of consolidated 

Distribution to warrant and restricted stock unit hol 
Net loss attributable lo Class A Common Stockholders 
Weighted average shares Class A Common Stock outstandin 
Loss per share 
The subscription rights we distributed on December 21,2009 to purchase shares ofclass  A Common Stock to Class A Common Stockholders ofrecord on 

December 17, 2009, warrant holders, and certain holders of RSUs represent a dividend distribution. Certain Participating Equilyholders and Google, who were 
Class A Common Stockholders of record holding approximately 102 million shares and entitled to the subscription rights, agreed not to exercise or transfer their 
rights. The fair value of the rights disuibuted was $57.5 million or $0.51 per share of Class A Common Stock. Certain outstanding warrants meet the defmition of 
participating securities as their terms provide for participation in distributions with Class A Common Stock prior to exercise. Therefore, the two-class method is 
used to compute the loss per share and as a result, the fair value a f the  rights distributed to the warrant and RSU holders of $9.5 million increased the net loss 
attributable to Class A Common Stockholders. 

Diluted Loss Per Shore 

The potential exchange of Clearwire Communications Class B Common Interests together with Class B Common Stock for Class A Common Stock will have 
a dilutive effect an diluted loss per share due to certain tax effects. That exchange would result in both an increase in the number of Class A Common Stock 
outstanding and a corresponding increase in the net loss attributable to the Class A Common Stockholders through the elimination of the "an-controlling 
interests' allocation. Fullher, to the extent that all ofthe Clearwire Communications 
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The subscription rights to purchase in aggregate approximately 114 million shares of Class A Camman Stock are not included in the computation of diluted 
loss per share because the rights' subscription price of $7.33 per share was greater than the average market price of Class A Common Stock during the period 
such rights are outstanding in 2009 (autdf-themoney). 

We have calculated and presented basic and diluted net loss per sharc of Class A Common Stock. Class B Common Stock loss per share is not calculated 
since it does not contractually participate in distributions of Clemire. Prior to the Closing, we had no equity as we were a whollydwned division of Sprint. AS 
such, we did not calculate or present net lass per share far the period from January I ,  2008 to November 28,2008 and the year ended December 3 I ,  2007. 

11. Business Segments 
Information about operating segments is based on our internal organization and reporting of revenue and operating income (loss) based upon internal 

accounting methods. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated 
regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Our chief 
operating decision maker is our Chief Executive Officer. As of December 3 1,2009 and 2008, we have identified Bvo reportable segments: the United States and the 
International businesses. In 2007 we only had one reportable business segment: the United States, as we had no international operations prior to the Closing. 

We report business segmenl information as follows (in thousands): 
Year Ended Ikcmber3 l .  Z W 9  

1.trn.lian.l 

Revenues 
Cost of goods and services and network costs 

(exclusive of items shown separately below) 
Operating expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 

Total operating expenses 
Operating loss 

Other income (expense). net 
Income tax provision 
Net loss 
Non-controlling interest 
Net lass attributable to Clearwire 
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Year Ended lk~ember31,lWJ8 
,","".llO".l Told 

Revenues 
Cost of goods and services and network costs (exclusbve of items shown 

Operating expenses 
Transaction related expenses 

separately below) 

Total operating expenses 
Operating loss 

Other income (expense), net 
Income tax provision 
Net loss (592,547) 
Nan-controlling interest 
Net loss attributsblc to Clearwire 

Capital expcndihres 
United States 
International 

Total assets 
United States 
International 

18. Related Party Transactions 

Year Ended Uecembrrfl. 
1W9 lW8 

s 574957 - S 1,540,030 

I k c e n b v  31, .- - M e  

S 11,267,853 , $ 9124 , , I67 - 

We have a number of strategic and commercial relationships with third parties that have had a significant impact on our business, operations and financial 
results These relationships have been with Sprint, the Investors, Eagle River, Motorola, Inc. and Bell Canada, all ofwhich are or have been related parties. 
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The following amounts for related party transactions are included in our consolidated financial statements (in thousands): 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Debt 

O r o n b r 3 1 ,  
2w9 1W8 

S 22,521 S 33,872 
$ 246,494 $ 178,748 

Revenue 
Cost of goods and services and network costs (incl 
Selling, general and administrative (SGBA) 
Interest costs (mclusive of capitalized inlerest) 
Total contributions and advances from Sprint 

(I) The amounts presented for 2008 reflect the correction of a classification error between COGS and SG&A in the amount of $77.4 million that had been 
previously presented in SG&A and has  been reclassified to COGS to correct the presentation. 

ROIIOWNOIU - 1" connection with the issuance ofthe Senior Secured Notes, an November 24,2009, we also issued $252.5 million ofnotes to Sprint and 
Comcast with identical terms as the Senior Secured Notes. The proceeds from the Rollover Nates were used to retire the principal amounts owed to Sprint and 
Comcast under our Senior Term Loan Facility. From time to time, other related parties may hold debt under our Senior Secured Notes, and as debtholders, would 
be entitled to receive interest payments from us. 

Sprint Pre-Closing Financing Amount and Amended Credil Agreemeat- As a result of the Transactions, we assumed the liability to reimburse Sprint 
for the Sprint PreClosing Financing Amount. We were required to pay $213.0 million, plus related interest of $4.5 million, to Sprint in cash on the first business 
day after the Closing, with the remainder added as the Sprint Tranche under the Amended Credit Agreement for our Senior Term Loan Facility in the amount of 
$179.2 million. From time to time, other related parties may have held debt under our Senior Term Loan Facility, and as debtholders, would have been entitled to 
receive interest payments from us under the Amended Credit Agreement. During 2009, we repaid our Senior Term Loan Facility with proceeds from OUT Senior 
Secured Notes and Rollover Notes. 

Sprinl -Sprint assigned, where possible, certain costs to us based on our actual use of the shared services, which included office facilities and 
management services, including treasury services, human resources, supply chain management and other shared services, up through the Closing. Where direct 
assignment ofcosts was not possible or practical, Sprint used indirect methods, including time studies, to estimate the assignment a f i t s  costs to us, which were 
allocated to us through B management fee. The allocations of these costs were re-evaluated periodically. Sprint charged US management fees for such services of 
$171.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 and $I 15.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2007. Additionally. we have entered into lease agreements 
with Sprint for various switching facilities and transmitter and receiver sites for which we recorded rent expense of $28.2 million, $36.4 million and $2.0 million in 
the years ended December 3 I, 2009,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Relntlonships omong Cenain Stockholders, Directors, ond Omcers of Clearwire-Following the completion of the Transactions and the post-closing 
adjustments, Sprint, through a whollyawned subsidiary Sprint HoldCo LLC, owned the largest interest in Clearwire with an effective voting and economic 
interest in Clearwire of approximately 56% and the Investors collectively owned a 29% interest in Clearwire. See Note 3, Stategic Transactions, far discussion 
regarding the post-closing adjustment. 
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Eagle River is the holder of 35,922,958 shares of our outstanding Class A Common Stock and 2,612,516 shares of our Class B Common Stock, which 
represents an approximate 4% ownership interest in Cleatwire. Eagle River Inc., which we refer to as ERI, is the manager of Eagle River. Each entity is controlled 
by Craig McCaw, a director of Cleanuire. Mr. McCaw and his afftliates have significant investments in other telecommunications businesses, some ofwhich may 
compete with us currently or in the future. It is likely Mr. McCaw and his affiliates will continue to make additional investments in telecommunications 
businesses. 

As of December 3 1,2009, Eagle River held warrants entitling it to purchase 613,333 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $15.00 per share 
and warrants to purchase 375,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.00 per share. As of Decmber3l, 2009. the remaining life of the 
warrants was 3.9 years. 

Certain of our officers and directors provide additional services to Eagle River, ERI and their affiliates for which they are separately compensated by such 
entities. Any compensation paid to such individuals by Eagle River, ERI and/or their affiliates for their services is in addition to the compensation paid by US. 

fallowing the Closing, Cleatwire, Sprint, Eagle River and the Investors agreed to enter into an equityholders’ agreement, which set forth cenain rights and 
obligations of the equityholders with respect to governance of Cleanuire, transfer restrictions on our common stack, rights of first refusal and preemptive rights, 
among other things. In addition, we have also entered into a number of commercial agreements with Sprint and the Investors which are outlined below. 

Additionally, the wife of Mr. Salemme, our Executive Vice President, Strategy, Policy and External Affairs is a Group Vice President at Time Warner Cable. 
She was not directly involved in any of our transactions with Time Warner Cable. 

Dnvir Wrighr Tremaine LLP - The law firm of Davis Wright Tremaine LLP serves as our primary outside counsel, and handles a variety of corporate, 
transactional, tax and litigation matters. Mr. Wolff, our former ChiefExecutive Officer, is married to a partner at Davis Wright Tremaine. As a pamer, MI. Wolff s 
spouse is entitled to share in a portion of the firm’s total profits, although she has not received any compensation directly from us. Far the years ended 
December 3 1,2009 and 2008, we paid $4. I million and $907,000 to Davis Wright Tremaine for legal services. 7 h i s  does not include fees paid by Old C lewi re .  

Master Site Agreement- We entered into a master site agreement with Sprint, which we refer to as the Master Site Agreement, pursuant to which Sprint 
and we will establish the conlractual framework and procedures for the leasing of tower and antenna collocation Sites to each other. Leases for specific sites will 
he negotiated by Sprint and us on request by the lessee. The leased premises may he used by the lessee for any activity in connection with the provision of 
wireless communications services, including attachment of antennas to the towers at the sites. The term ofthe Master Site Agreement will be ten years from the 
Closing. The term of each lease far each specific site will he five years, but the lessee has the right to extend the term for up to an additional 20 yeus. The basic 
fee is $600 per month per Site. The monthly fee will increase 3% per year. The lessee is also responsible for the utility costs and for certain additional fees, such as 
an application fee of $1,000 per site. 

Mosfer Agreemen1 for Network Services - We entered into a master agreement for network services, which we refer to as the Master Agreement for 
Network Services, with various Sprint affiliated entities, which we refer to as the Sprint Entities, pursuant to which the Sprint Entities and we will establish the 
contractual framework and procedures for us to purchase network services from Sprint Entities. We may order various services from the Sprint Entities, including 
IP network transport services, data center ca-location, toll-free services and access to the following business platforms: voicemail, instant messaging services, 
location-based systems and media server services. The Sprint Entities will provide a service level agreement that is consistent with the service levels provided to 
similarly situated customers. Pricing is specified in separate product attachments for each type of service; in general, the pricing is based on the mid-point 
between fair market value of the service and the Sprint Entities’ fully allocated cost far providing the service. The term ofthe Master 
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Agreement for Network Services will be five years, but the lessee will have the right to extend the term for an additional five years. Additionally, in accordance 
with the Master Agreement for Network Services with the Sprint Entities, we assumed certain agreements for backhaul services with certain of the Investors that 
contain commitments that extend up to five years. 

IT Master Services Agreement- We entered into an IT master services agreement with the Sprint Entities, which we refer to as the IT Master Services 
Agreement, pursuant lo which the Sprint Entities and us will establish the confractual framework and procedures for us to purchase information technology, 
which we refer to as IT, application services from the Sprint Entities. We may order various information technology application services from the Sprint Entities, 
including human resources applications, supply chain and finance applications, device management services, data warehouse services, crediuaddress check, IT 
help desk services, repair services applications, customer trouble management, coverage map applications, network operations support applications, and other 
servi~es. The specific services requested by us will be identified in Statements of Work to be completed by the Sprint Entities and us. The Sprhl  Entities will 
provide service levels consistent with the service levels the Sprint Entities provide to their affiliates for the same services. Pricing will be specified in each 
separate Statement of Work for each type of service. The term of the IT Master Services Agreement will be five years, but we will have the right to extend the term 
far an additional five years. 

4G MVNO Agreement- We entered into a non+xclusive 4G MVNO agreement at the Closhg with Comcast MVNO 11, LLC, TWC Wireless, LLC, BHN 
Spectrum Inverments, LLC and Sprint Spectrum L.P., which we refer to as the 4G MVNO Agreement. We will sell wireless broadband services to the other parties 
to lhe 4G MVNO Agreement for the purposes of the purchasers marketing and reselling the wireless broadband services to each of their respective end user 
customers. The wireless broadband services to be provided under the 4G MVNO Agreement include standard networlt services, and, at the request ofany ofthe 
parties, certain nonstandard network services. We will sell these services at our retail prices less agreed upon discounts. 

IntelMarket Devetopmenr Agreemm- We entered into a market development agreement with Intel, which we refer to as the Intel Market Development 
Agreement, pursuant to which we committed to deploy mobile WiMAX an our network and to promote the use of certain notebook computers and mobile 
Internet devices on our network, and Intel would develop, market, sell and support WiMAX embedded chipsets for use in certain notebook computers and 
mobile Internet devices that may be used on our network. The Intel Market Development Agreement will last for a term of seven years from the date of the 
agreement, with Intel having the option to renew the agreement for successive one year terms up to a maximum of 13 additional years provided that Intel meets 
certain requirements. If Intel elects to renew the agreement for the maximum 20-year term, the agreement will thereafter automatically renew for successive one 
year renewal periods until either party terminates the agreement. Under the Intel Market Development Agreement, Clearwire Communications will pay to Intel a 
portion of the revenues received from certain retail customers using certain Intel-based notebook computers, or other mutually agreed an devices on the its 
network, for a certain period of time. Subject to certain qualifications, Clearwire Communications will also pay to Intel activation fees for each qualifying Intel- 
based device activated on its network during the initial term. 

Google Products andServlces Agreement - We entered into a products and services agreement with Google, which we refer to as the Google Products 
and Services Agreement, pursuant to which Google and we will collaborate on a variety ofproducts and services. Google will provide advertising services to us 
for use with certain webrites and devices, and we will utilize these Google advertising services on an exclusive basis for its retail customers. Google will pay us a 
percentage of the revenue that Google generates from these advertising services. Google will also provide a suite of hosted communications services, including 
email, instant messaging and calendar functionality, to us far integration into our desktop portal offering. Furthermore, we will support the open-source Android 
platform, will work with Google to offer certain other Google applications, and will explore working with Google on a variety of other potential products and 
services. The Google Products and Services Agreement will have a term of three years. 
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Google Spectrum Agreement - We entered into a SpcClNm agreement with Google, which we refer to as the Google Spectrum Agreement, pursuant 10 
which we will make available to Google certain of our excess 2.5 GHz spectrum in various markets for experimental usage by Google, and for development Of  
alternative applications by third-parties operating under the direction and approval of Google and US. The third-party use of our spectrum beyond that used for 
WiMAX technology cannot be utilized in a manner that will interfere with our use ofour spectrum for WiMAX technology, and will be subject to availability. The 
revenue generated from the spectrum usage other than for WiMAX technology will be shared by Google and us. In addition, both parties will agree to form a 
joint technolocy team to manage the activities outlined in the Coagle Specuum Agreement. The Google Spectrum Agreement provides for an initial term of five 
years h-am the date ofthe agreement. The Google Spectrum Agreement will be terminable by either party on default of the other party. 

19. Quarterly Financial loformatioa (unaudited) 

Summarized quarlerly financial information for the years ended December 3 I ,  2009 and 2008 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data): 
First Second Third Fourlh Total 

2009 quarur 
Total revenues 
Operating loss 
Net loss 
Net loss anributable to Clearwire Corporation 
Net loss 10 Clearwire Corporation per Class A Com 
Basic 
Diluted 

2008 quarter 
Total revenues 
Operating loss(l) 
Net loss 
Net loss attributable to Clearwire Corporatton(2) 
Net loss lo Clearwire Corporation per Class A Comm 
Basic 
Diluted $ (028) $ (028) 

( I )  Fourth quarter operating loss includes a "an-recurring charge of approximately $80.6 million related to the Settlement of spectrum lease contracts. 
(2) Clearwire Corporation was formed on November 28, 2008; therefore net loss attributable to Clearwire Corporation was not applicable for the first three 

quarters of 2008. 
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20. Parcot Company Only Condensed Finaocial Statements 

Under the terms of agreements governing the indebtedness of Clearwire Communications, a subsidiary of Clearwire, such subsidiary is significantly 
restricted from making dividend payments, loans or advances to Cleanvire. The restrictions have resulted in the restricted net assets (as defined in Securities and 
Exchange Commission Rule 4-08(e)(3) of Regulation S-X) ofcleamire’s subsidiary exceeding 25% of the consolidated net assets ofCleanvire and its subsidiaries. 

The following condensed parent-only financial statements of Clearwire accaunt for the investment in Cleatwire Communications under the equity method 
of accounting. The financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Clearwire and subsidiaries and notes thereto. 
As described in Note 1 - Description of Business, Cleanvire was formed November 28, 2008 and therefore, the condensed statement of operation and the 
condensed statement ofcash flow for 2008 only included activity from November 29,2008 to December 3 I ,  2008. 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION 
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS 

Dssmbrr31, Manber31 .  
1009 1W8 

(In lbourmds) 

Other assets 
Investments IO equity method investees 
Total assets 

LIABILlTlES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 
Other liabilities 
Stockholders' equity 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity S I602 162 $ 2,066,338 
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Revenues 
Operating expenses 
Operating loss 
Other income (expense) 
Other income 
Loss from equity investees 

Total other expense, net 
Net loss 

CLEARWIRE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

hOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

CLEARWIRE CORPORATION 
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Prnad From 
November 19, 

Year Ended I008 
D ~ r e m k 3 1 ,  4 0  Dersmh6r31, 

2 w 9  2W8 
(Is thousands) 

S (325,582) $12_9,933) 
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CLEARWIRE CORPORATION 
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Period From 
Navtmbar 19, 

Year Ended ZOO8 
D e c s m k 3 I .  to December31, 

IW9 20011 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used In operating activities 

Changes in assets and liabilities, net 
LOSS from equity investees 

Prepaids and other assets 
Other liabilities 

Net cash used in operating activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Investment in equity inve~tees 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advances from C l e w i r e  Communications 
Proceeds from issuance ofcommon stock 

Net cash provided by financing actwmes 

9,820 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

- End ofperiod s -  ~ s 
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Section 2: EX-10.33 (EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, DATED APRIL 29,2009) 

Exhibit 10.33 

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Anreement”) is made and entered into as of April 29, 
2009 and amends and restates the Employment Agreement (the “Prior Employment Agreement”) entered into as of December 31, 2008, 
which amended and restated the Employment Agreement originally entered into as of January 29,2007 (the “Effective Date”), by and between 
Sprint, Nextel Corporation, a Kansas corporation (the “Company”) on behalf of itself and any of its subsidiaries, affiliates and related entities, 
and Matthew Carter Jr. (the “Executive”) (the Company and the Executive, collectively, the ‘T’and each, a ‘Tpartv”). Certain capitalized 
terms are defined in Section 29. 

WHEREAS, the Executive serves the Company as Senior Vice President - Boost; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company desire to amend and restate the Prior Employment Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the covenants and agreements set forth herein and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Executive amend and restated the 
Prior Employment Agreement as follows: 

1.  Emuloyment. 

(a) The Company will continue to employ the Executive and the Executive will continue to be employed by the Company 
upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

(b) The employment relationship between the Company and the Executive shall be governed by the general employment 
policies and practices of the Company, including without limitation, those relating to the Company’s Code of Conduct, confidential information 
and avoidance of conflicts, except that when the terms of this Agreement differ from or are in conflict with the Company’s general employment 
policies or practices, this Agreement shall control. 



2. m. Subject to termination under Section 9, the Executive’s employment shall be for an initial term of24 months commencing 
on the Effective Date and shall continue through the second anniversary of the Effective Date (the ‘Initial Emuloment Term”). At the end of the 
Initial Employment Term and on each succeeding anniversary of the Effective Date, the Employment Term will be automatically extended by an 
additional 12 months (each, a “Renewal Term”), unlw not less than 12 months prior to the end of the Initial Employment Term or any Renewal 
Term, either the Executive or the Company has given the other ulitten notice (in accordance with Section 20) of  nonrenewal. The Executive 
shall provide the Company with ulitten notice of his intent to terminate employment with the Company at least 30 days prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 

3. Position and Duties ofthe Executive. 

(a) The Executive serves as Senior Vice President - Boost, and agrees to serve as an officer of any enterprise and/or 
agrees to be an employee of any Subsidiq as may be requested from time to time by the Board of Directon of the Company (the ‘BB’) ,  
any committee or person delegated by the Board or the Chief Executive Omcer of the Company (the “Chief Executive officer”). In such 
capacity, the Executive shall repat  directly to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company or such other officer of the Company as may be 
des ip ted  by the Chief Executive Omcer. The Executive shall have such duties, responsibility and authority commensurate with the Executive’s 
title and position, and such duties and responsibilities, as may be assigned to the Executive from time to time by the Chief Executive Officer, the 
Board or such other officer of the Company as may be designated by the Chief Executive Officer or the Board. 



(b) Durmg the Employment Term, the Executive shall, except as may from time to time be otherwise a g e d  to in witing by 
the Company, during reasonable vacations (as set forth in Section 7 hereof) and authorized leave and except as may fiom time to time 
otherwise be permitted pmuant to Section 3(c), devote his best efforts, hll attention and energies during his normal working time to the 
business of the Company, any duties as may be delineated in the Company’s Bylaws for the Executive’s position and title and such other 
related duties and responsibilities as may from time to time be reasonably prescribed by the Board, any committee or person designated hy the 
Board, or the Chief Executive officer, in each case, within the framework of the Company’s policies and objectives. 

During the Employment Term, andprovided that such activities do not contravene the provisions of Section 3(a) or 
Sections 10, 11, I 2  or 13 hereof and,providedfurther, the Executive does not engage, in any other substantial business activity for gain, 
profit or other pecuniary advantage which materially interferes with the performance of his duties hereunder, the Executive may participate in 
any governmental, educational, charitable or other community affairs and, subject to the prior approval of the Chief Executive Officer, serve as 
a member of the governing board of any such organization or any private or public for-profit company. The Executive may retain all fees and 
other compensation from any such service, and the Company shall not reduce his compensation by the amount of such fees. 

(c) 

4.  Compensation. 

(a) Base Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay to the Executive an annual base salary of not less 
than his base salary as of the Effective Date, subject to this Section 4(a), (the “Base Salary”), which Base Salary shall be payable at the times 
and in the manner consistent with the Company’s general policies regarding compensation of the Company’s senior executives. The Base 
Salary will be reviewed periodically by the Chief Executive Officer and may be increased (but not decreased, except for across-the-board 
reductions generally applicable to the Company’s senior executives) from time to time in the sole discretion of the Chief Executive Officer. 

(b) Incentive Comvensation 

(i) The Executive will continue to be eligible to participate in any short-term and long-term incentive 
compensation plans, annual bonus plans and such other management incentive programs or arrangements of the Company 
approved by the Board that are generally available to the Company’s senior executives, including, but not limited to, the STlP 
and the LTSlP Incentive compensation shall be paid in accordance with the terms and conditions of the applicable plans, 
programs and arrangements. 

- 2 -  



(ii) Annual Performance Bonus. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall continue to be entitled to 
participate in the STIP, with such opportunities as may be determined by the Chief Executive Officer in his sole discretion 
(“Target Bonuses”), and as may be increased (but not decreased, except for across-the-board reductions generally applicable to 
the Company’s senior executives) from time to time, and the Executive shall be entitled to receive full payment of any award 
under the STIP, determined pursuant to the STIP (a “Bonus Award”). 

(iii) Long-Term Performance Bonus. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall continue to be entitled to 
participate in the LTSIP with such opportunities, if any, as may be determined by the Chief Executive Officer (“LTSIP Target 
Award Ooportunities”). 

(iv) Incentive bonuses, if eamed, shall be paid when incentive compensation is customarily paid to the Company’s 
senior executives in accordance with the terms of the applicable plans, programs or arrangements. 

(v) Pursuant to the Company’s applicable incentive or bonus plans as in effect from time to time, the Executive’s 
incentive compensation during the term of this Agreement may be determined according to criteria intended to qualify as 
performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “G?&“). 

(c) Eauitv Compensation. The Executive shall continue to be eligible to participate in such equity incentive compensation 
plans and programs as the Company generally provides to its senior executives, including, but not limited to, the LTSIP. During the 
Employment Term, the Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, grant equity awards to the Executive, which would be subject to 
the terms of the respective award agreements evidencing such grants and the applicable plan or program. 

( i )  Restricted Stock Units. The Compensation Committee granted to the Executive 13,441 restricted stock units 
(the “w). Each RSU represents the unsecured right to require the Company to deliver to the Executive one share of 
common stock of the Company, Series 1, par value $2.00 per share. With respect to 100% of the RSUs, the “vesting date” and 
“delivery date” will be the third anniverswy of the Effective Date. The RSUs will be governed by the Standard Terms of Other 
Stock Unit Awards set forth in Section 9(c) of the Company’s 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program:provided, however, 
that 

(A) the Executive will not be permitted to elect to defer delivery of the RSUs pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 9(c)(ii) ofthe 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program; and 

(B) in the event that the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause, and such 
termination constitutes a Separation from Service, conditioned upon the Executive delivering a release to the Company 
pursuant to Section 9@), vesting of the RSUs will accelerate and any forfeiture provisions will lapse as of the date of 
Separation from Service (except that if the Executive is a Specified Employee with respect to any amount payable by 
reason of the Separation from Service that constitutes deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A of the 
Code, payment will not be made until the earlier to occur of (x) the f i s t  day of the seventh month following the date of the 
Executive’s Separation from Service, @) the date of the Executive’s death, or (2) the scheduled vesting date). 
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5 .  m. 
(a) During the Employment Term, the Company shall make available to the Executive, subject to the terms and conditions 

of the applicable plans, participation for the Executive and his eligible dependents in: (i) Company-sponsored group health, major medical, 
dental, vision, pension and profit sharing, 401 (k) and employee welfare benefit plans, programs and arrangements (the “Emplovee Plans”) and 
such other usual and customary benefits in which senior executives of the Company participate from time to time, and (ii) such liinge benefits 
and perquisites as may be made available to senior executives of the Company as a group. 

@) The Executive acknowledges that the Company may change its benefit programs from time to time which may result in 
certain benefit programs being amended or terminated for its senior executives generally. 

Executive in connection with his duties on behalf of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Enterprise Financial Services - Employee 
Travel and Expense Policy, as may be amended kom time to time, or any successor policy, plan program or arrangement thereto and any other 
of its expense policies applicable to senior executives of the Company, following submission by the Executive of reimbursement expense forms 
in a form consistent with such expense policies. 

policies applicable to senior executives generally, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in the Company’s vacation policy in accordance 
with the Company’s policy generally applicable to senior executives. The dmtion of such vacations and the time or times when they shall be 
taken will be determined by the Executive in consultation with the Company. 

Place of Performance. In connection with his employment by the Company, the Executive shall be based at the operational 
offices of the Company in the vicinity of either Overland Park, Kansas or Kine,  Califomia (the ‘?lace of Performance”), except for travel 
reasonably required for Company business. If the Company relocates the Executive’s place of work more than 50 miles fiom his place of work 
prior to such relocation, the Executive shall relocate to a residence within (a) 50 miles of such relocated executive offices or (b) such total miles 
that does not exceed the total number of miles the Executive commuted to his place of work prior to relocation of the Executive’s place of 
work. To the extent the Executive relocates his residence as provided in this Section 8, the Company will pay or reimburse the Executive’s 
relocation expenses in accordance with the Company’s relocation policy applicable to senior executives. 

6 .  Exwnses. The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for reasonable and necessary business expenses incurred by the 

7. m. In addition to such holidays, sick leave, personal leave and other paid leave as is allowed under the Company’s 

8. 
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9. Termination 

(a) Termination bv the Company for Cause or Resirnation bv the Executive Without Good Reason. If, during the 
Employment Term, the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for C a w ,  or if the Executive resigns without Good Reason, the 
Executive shall not be eligible to receive Base Salary or to participate in any Employee Plans with respect to future periods after the date of 
such termination or resignation except for the right to receive accrued but unpaid cash compensation and vested benefits under any Employee 
Plan in accordance with the terms of such Employee Plan and applicable law. 

(b) Termination bv the ComDanv Without C a w  or Resirnation bv the Executive for Good Reason outside ofthe CIC 
Severance Protection Period. If, during the Employment Term, the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause or 
the Executive terminates for Good Reason prior to or following expiration of the CIC Severance Protection Period, and such termination 
constitutes a Separation from Service or the Executive is entitled to receive severance compensation under this Section 9(b) pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 9(c), the Executive shall be entitled to receive from the Company: (1) the Executive’s accrued, but unpaid, Base Salary 
through the date of termination of employment, payable in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices, and (2) conditioned upon 
the Executive executing a Release within the Release Consideration Period and delivering it to the Company with the Release Revocation 
Period expired without revocation, in full satisfaction of the Executive’s rights and any benefits the Executive might be entitled to under the 
Separation Plan and this Agrement, unless otherwise specified herein: 

(i) periodic payments equal to his Base Salary in effect prior to the termination ofhis employment, which 
payments shall be paid to the Executive in equal installments on the regular payroll dates under the Company’s payroll practices 
applicable to the Executive on the date of this Agreement for the Payment Period, except that (A) if the Release Consideration 
and Revocation Period ends on or after December 156 of the calendar year of the Executive’s Separation from Service, such 
installments that are otherwise payable in the calendar year of the Executive’s Separation from Service shall be paid in a lump 
sum on the frst business day of the following calendar year or (B) if the Executive is a Specified Employee, with respect to any 
amount payable by reason of the Separation from Service that constitutes deferred compensation within the meaning of 
Section 4G9A of the Code, such installments shall not commence until &er the end of the six continuous month period following 
the date of the Executive’s Separation from Service, in which case, the Executive shall be paid a lump sum cash payment equal 
to the aggregate amount of the missed installments during such period on the first day of the seventh month following the date of 
the Executive’s Separation from Service; 

to the date of termination of his employment, (B) receive a pro rata payment of the Capped Bonus Award for the portion of the 
Company’s c m n t  fiscal year following the date of termination of his employment, (C) receive for the next fiscal year following 
the fiscal year during which termination of his employment occurs, the Capped Bonus Award, or if his Payment Period ends 
during such fiscal year, a pro rata portion of the Capped Bonus Award; and (D) if his Payment Period ends in the second year 
following the fiscal year during which the Ekecutive’s employment terminates, receive payment of a pro rata portion of the 
Capped Bonus Award for such fiscal year (for purposes of this Section 9(b)(ii) any pro rata payment shall be determined based 
on the methodology for determining pro rated awards under the STIP, each such payment shall be payable in accordance with 
the provision of the STlP in the calendar year in which the Bonus Award or each Capped Bonus Award, as applicable, is 
determined, and in all events, not later than December 3 1. of the year in which each such award is determined); provided, 
however, that to the extent the Executive’s employment is terminated for Good Reason due to a reduction of the Executive’s 
Target Bonus, in accordance with Section 29(x)(ii), the Executive’s Target Bonus for the purposes of this Sections 9(b)(ii) shall 
be the Executive’s Target Bonus immediately prior to such reduction; 

(ii) (A) receive a pro rata payment of the Bonus Award for the portion of the Company’s current fiscal year prior 

- 5 -  

cartnu Emplqmcnt *grm“.nt - April 29,1009 



(iii) continue participation at then-existing participation and coverage levels for the Payment Period in the 
Company’s medical, dental, vision and employee life insurance plans comparable to the terms in effect from time to time for the 
Company’s senior executives, including any co-payment and premium payment requirements, except that (A) following such 
period, the Executive shall retain any rights to continue coverage under the Company’s medical, dental, vision and employee life 
insurance plans under the benefits continuation provisions pursuant to Section 49808 of the Code by paying the applicable 
premiums of such plans; and (B) the Executive shall no longer be eligible to receive the benefits otherwise receivable pursuant to 
this Section 9(b)(iii) as of the date that the Executive becomes eligible to receive comparable benefits from a new employer; and 

(iv) receive outplacement services by a firm selected by the Company at its expense in an amount not to exceed 
$35,000; provided. however, that all such outplacement services must be completed, and all payments by the Company must be 
made, by December 31st ofthe second calendar year following the calendar year in which the Executive’s Separation from 
Sewice occurs. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 9(b) to the contrary, to the extent the Executive has not executed the Release within the Release 
Consideration Period and delivered it to the Company, or has revoked the executed Release within the Release Revocation Period, as 
determined at the end of such Release Revocation Period, the Executive will forfeit any right to receive the payments and benefits specified in 
this Section 9(b) (other than any accrued but unpaid payments and benefits through the date of termination o f  employment). 

Severance Protection Period. Subject to (i)-(iv) below, if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause, or the 
Executive terminates employment for Good Reason, before the Employment Term expires and during the CIC Severance Protection Period, 
and the termination constitutes a Separation from Service, subject to the terms of  the CIC Severance Plan, the Executive will become entitled 
to severance compensation and benefits under the CIC Severance Plan as of  (x) the date the Separation from Service occurs, or (y) in the 
event of a Pre-CIC Termination, the date the Change in Control occurs, as of which date all rights to severance benefits under this Agreement 
will cease. 

(c) Termination by the Comuanv Without Cause or Resignation by the Executive for Good Reason During the CIC 
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(i) The CIC Severance Plan will not apply and the Executive will be entitled to severance compensation and benefits 
under Section 9(b) of this Agreement if (x) as of his Separation from Service, the Executive is not a Participant in, or (y) the 
Executive is otherwise not entitled to severance compensation and benefits under, the CIC Severance Plan. 

(ii) If the Executive is entitled to severance benefits under the CIC Severance Plan as a result of a Pre-CIC 
Termination, any benefits payable before the Change in Control will be paid under this Agreement and any additional benefits 
payable after the Change in Control will be paid under the CIC Severance Plan. 

(iii) In no event may there be duplication of benefits under this Agreement and the CIC Severance Plan. 

(iv) The terms “Change in Control” and “Pre-CIC Termination” are defined in the CIC Severance Plan. 

(d) Termination by Death. If the Executive dies during the Employment Term, the Executive’s employment will terminate 
and the Executive’s beneficiary or if none, the Executive’s estate, shall be entitled to receive from the Company, the Executive’s accrued, but 
unpaid Base Salary through the date of termination of employment and any vested benefits under any Employee Plan in accordance with the 
terms of such Employee Plan and applicable law. 

(e) Termination by Disability. If the Executive becomes Disabled, prior to the expiration of the Employment Term, the 
Executive’s employment will terminate and, provided that such termination constitutes a Separation from Service, the Executive shall be entitled 
to: 

(i) receive periodic payments equal to his Base Salary in effect prior to the termination of his employment, which 
payments shall be paid to the Executive in equal installments on the regular payroll dates under the Company’s payroll practices 
applicable to the Executive on the date ofthis Agreement for 12 months (reduced by any amounts paid under a long-term disability plan 
(“LTD Plan”) now or hereafter sponsored by the Company (calculated on a monthly basis)) commencing on the Separation from 
Service date; provided, however, that in the event that the Executive is a Specified Employee, with respect to any amount payable by 
reason of the Separation from Service that constitutes deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code, such 
installments shall not commence until the earlier to occur of (A) the first business day after the end of the six continuous month period 
following the date of the Executive’s Separation from Service or (B) the date of death, except that on the first day of the seventh month 
following the date of the Executive’s Separation from Service (or date of the Executive’s death, if earlier), the Executive shall be paid a 
lumpsum cash payment equal to the aggregate amount of any such payments that constitutes deferred compensation within the meaning 
of Code Section 409A that the Executive would have been entitled to receive during such period following the Executive’s Separation 
from Service; and 
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(ii) continue participation at then-existing participation and coverage levels for 12 months (measured from the 
Executive’s Separation from Service) in the Company’s medical, dental, vision and employee life insurance plans comparable to the 
terms in effect from time to time for the Company’s senior executives, including any co-payment and premium payment requirements. 

No Mitigation Oblieation. No amounts paid under Section 9 will he reduced by any earnings that the Executive may 
receive from any other source. The Executive’s coverage under the Company’s medical, dental, vision and employee life insurance plans will 
terminate as of the date that the Executive is eligible for comparable benefits from a new employer. The Executive shall notify the Company 
within 30 days after becoming eligible for coverage of any such benefits. 

(0 

(8) Forfeiture. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any right of the Executive to receive termination payments and benefits 
hereunder shall be forfeited to the extent of any amounts payable after any breach of Section 10, 11, 12, 13 or 15 by the Executive. 

10. Confidential Information: Statements to Third Parties. 

(a) 
the Executive acknowledges that: 

During the Employment Term and on a permanent basis upon and following termination of the Executive’s employment, 

(i) all information, whether reduced to writing (or in a form from which information can be obtained, translated, or 
derived into reasonably usable form) or maintained in the mind or memory of the Executive and whether compiled or created by the 
Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any affiliates of the Company or its Subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company Group”), which derives 
independent economic value from not being readily known to or ascertainable by proper means by others who can obtain economic 
value from the disclosure or use of such information, of a proprietary, private, secret or confidential (including, without exception, 
inventions, products, processes, methods, techniques, formulas, compositions, compounds, projects, developments, sales strategies, 
plans, research data, clinical data, financial data, personnel data, computer programs, customer and supplier lists, trademarks, service 
marks, copyrights (whether registered or unregistered), artwork, and contacts at or knowledge of customers or prospective customers) 
nature concerning the Company Group’s business, business relationships or financial affairs (collectively, ‘Troprietw Information”) shall 
be the exclusive property of the Company Group; 
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(ii) the Proprietary Information of the Company Group gained by the Executive during the Executive’s association 
with the Company Group was or will be developed by and/or for the Company Group through substantial expenditure of time, effort 
and money and constitutes valuable and unique property of the Company Group; 

Information; 
(iii) reasonable efforts have been put forth by the Company Group to maintain the secrecy of its Proprietary 

(iv) 

(v) 

such Proprietary Information is and will remain the sole property of the Company Group; and 

any retention or use by the Executive of Proprietary Information after the termination of the Executive’s services 
for the Company Group will constitute a misappropriation of the Company Group’s Proprietary Information. 

(b) The Executive further acknowledges and agrees that he will take all affirmative steps reasonably necessary or required 
hy the Company to protect the Propriemy Information from inappropriate disclosure during and after his employment with the Company. 

notebooks, program listings, or other written, photographic, electronic, or other tangible material containing or constituting Proprietq 
Information, whether created by the Executive or others, which shall come into his custody or possession, regardless of medium, shall be and 
are the exclusive property of the Company to be used hy him only in the performance of his duties for the Company. All such materials or 
copies thereof and all tangible things and other property of the Company Group in the Executive’s custody or possession shall be delivered to 
the Company (to the extent the Executive has not already returned) in good condition, on or before five business days subsequent to the earlier 
of: (i) a request hy the Company or (ii) the Executive’s termination of employment for any reason or Cause, including for nonrenewal of this 
Agreement, Disability, termination by the Company or termination by the Executive. After such delively, the Executive shall not retain any such 
materials or portions or copies thereof or any such tangible things and other property and shall execute any statements or affirmations of 
compliance under oath that the Company may require. 

(c) The Executive further agrees that all files, letters, memoranda, reports, records, data, sketches, drawings, laboratoly 

(d) The Executive further agrees that his obligation not to disclose or to use information and materials of the types set forth 
in Sections lO(a), 10(b) and lO(c) above, and his obligation to return materials and tangible property, set forth in Section lO(c) above, also 
extends to such types of information, materials and tangible property of customers of the Company Group, consultants for the Company 
Group, suppliers to the Company Group, or other third parties who may have disclosed or entrusted the same to the Company Group or to the 
Executive. 

(e) The Executive further acknowledges and agrees that he will continue to keep in strict confidence, and will not, directly 
or indirectly, at any time, disclose, furnish, disseminate, make available, use or suffer to he used in any manner any Proprietary Information of 
the Company Group without limitation as to when or how the Executive may have acquired such Proprietary Information and that he will not 
disclose any Proprietary Information to any person or entity other than appropriate employees of the Company or use the same for any 
purposes (other than in the performance of his duties as an employee of the Company) without written approval of the Board, either during or 
after his employment with the Company. 
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(0 Further the Executive acknowledges that his obligation of confidentiality will survive, regardless of any other breach of 
this Agreement or any other agreement, by any party hereto, until and unless such Proprietary Information of the Company Group has become, 
through no fault of the Executive, generally known to the public. In the event that the Executive is required by law, regulation, or court order to 
disclose any of the Company Group’s Proprietary Information, the Executive will promptly notify the Company prior to making any such 
disclosure to facilitate the Company seeking a protective order or other appropriate remedy from the proper authority. The Executive further 
agrees to cooperate with the Company in seeking such order or other remedy and that, if the Company is not successful in precluding the 
requesting legal body from requiring the disclosure of the Proprietary Information, the Executive will furnish only that portion of the Proprietary 
Information that is legally required, and the Executive will exercise all legal efforts to obtain reliable assurances that confidential treatment will be 
accorded to the Proprietary Information. 

confidentiality under the Company’s policies, general legal or equitable principles or statutes. 
(9) The Executive’s obligations under this Section I O  are in addition to, and not in limitation of, all other obligations of 

(h) During the Employment Term and following his termination of employment: 

(i) the Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, make or cause to be made any statements, including but not limited 
to, comments in books or printed media, to any third parties criticizing or disparaging the Company Group or commenting on the 
character or business reputation of the Company Group. Without the prior written consent of the Board, unless otherwise required by 
law, the Executive shall not (A) publicly comment in a manner adverse to the Company Group concerning the status, plans or prospects 
of the business of the Company Group or (B) publicly comment in a manner adverse to the Company Group concerning the status, 
plans or prospects of any existing, threatened or potential claims or litigation involving the Company Group; 

(ii) the Company shall comply with its policies regarding public statements with respect to the Executive and any 
such statements shall be deemed to be made by the Company only if made or authorized by a member of the Board or a senior 
executive officer of the Company; and 

(iii) nothing herein precludes honest and good faith reporting by the Executive to appropriate Company or legal 
enforcement authorities. 

(i) The Executive acknowledges and agrees that a violation of the foregoing provisions of this Section I O  would cause 
irreparable harm to the Company Group, and that the Company’s remedy at law for any such violation would be inadequate. In recognition of 
the foregoing, the Executive agrees that, in addition to any other relief afforded by law or this Agreement, including damages sustained by a 
breach of this Agreement and any forfeitures under Section 9(g), and without the necessity or proof of actual damages, the Company shall have 
the right to enforce this Agreement by specific remedies, which shall include, among other things, temporary and permanent injunctions, it being 
the understanding of the undersigned parties hereto that damages, the forfeitures described above and injunctions shall all be proper modes of 
relief and are not to be considered as alternative remedies. 
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I I. Non-Comwtition. In consideration of the Company entering into this Agreement, for a period commencing on the Effective Date 
and ending on the expiration of the Restricted Period: 

of or have an interest in any Competitor ofthe Company Group, whether as an owner, investor, executive, manager, employee, independent 
consultant, contractor, advisor, or otherwise. The Executive’s ownership of less than one percent (1%) of any class of stock in a publicly 
traded corporation shall not be a breach of this paragraph. 

otherwise) in the United States including any territory of the United States (the ‘Territory”) that provides products and/or services that are the 
same or similar to the products andor services that are currently being provided at the time of Executive’s termination or that were provided by 
the Company Group during the hvc-year period prior to the Executive’s separation from service with the Company Group. 

’he Executive acknowledges and agrees that due to the continually evolving nature ofthe Company Group’s mhhy,  
the scope of its business andor the identities of Competitors may change over time. The Executive further achowledges and agrees that the 
Company Group markets its products and services on a nationwide basis, encompassing the Territory and that the restrictions imposed by this 
covenant, including the geographic scope, are reasonably necessary to protect the Company Group’s legitimate interests. 

Section 11 is unreasonable or unenforceable, it will be deemed amended so as to provide the maximum protection to the Company Group and 
be deemed reasonable and enforceable by the court. 

(a) 7he Executive covenants and agrees that the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, engage in any activities on behalf 

(b) A “Competitor” is any entity doing business directly or indirectly (e.g., as an owner, investor, provider of capital or 

(c) 

(d) The Executive covenants and agrees that should a court at any time determine that any reshiction or limitation in this 

12. Non-Solicitation. In consideration of the Company entering into this Agreement, for a period commencing on the Effective Date 
and ending on the expiration of the Restricted Period, the Executive hereby covenants and agrees that he shall not, directly or indirectly, 
individually or on behalf of any other pason or entity do or suffer any of the following: 

hire or employ or assist in hiring or employing any person who was at any time during the last IS months of Executive’s 
employment an employee, representative or agent of any member of the Company Group or solicit, aid, induce or attempt to solicit, aid, induce 
or persuade, directly or indirectly, any person who is an employee, representative, or agent of any member of the Company Group to leave his 
or her employment with any member of the Company Group to accept employment with any other person or entity; 

(a) 
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(b) induce any person who is an employee, officer or agent of the Company Group, or any of its affiliated, related or 
subsidiary entities to terminate such relationship; 

(c) solicit any customer of the Company Group, or any person or entity whose business the Company Group had solicited 
during the 180 day period prior to termination of the Executive’s employment for purposes of business which is competitive to the Company 
Group within the Territory; or 

would result in a Change in Control of the Company or to seek to control the Board in a material manner. 

communications with an employee of the Company Group relating to possible employment, (ii) offering bonuses or additional compensation to 
encourage an employee of the Company Group to terminate his employment, (iii) referring employees of the Company Group to personnel or 
agents employed by competitors, suppliers or customers of the Company Group, and (iv) initiating communications with any person or entity 
relating to a possible Change in Control. 

(d) solicit, aid, induce, persuade or attempt to solicit, aid, induce or persuade any person or entity to take any action that 

(e) For purposes of this Section 12, the term “solicit or persuade” includes, but is not limited to, (i) initiating 

13. DeveloDments. 

(a) The Executive acknowledges and agrees that he will make full and prompt disclosure to the Company of all inventions, 
improvements, discoveries, methods, developments, software, mask works, and works of authorship, whether patentable or copyrightable or 
not, (i) which relate to the Company’s business and have heretofore been created, made, conceived or reduced to practice by the Executive or 
under his direction or jointly with others, and not assigned to prior employers, or (ii) which have utility in or relate to the Company’s business 
and are created, made, conceived or reduced to practice by the Executive or under his direction or jointly with others during his employment 
with the Company, whether or not during normal working hours or on the premises of the Company (all of the foregoing of which are 
collectively referred to in this Agreement as “Developments”). 

(b) The Executive further agrees to assign and does hereby assign to the Company (or any person or entity designated by 
the Company) all of the Executive’s rights, title and interest worldwide in and to all Developments and all related patents, patent applications, 
copyrights and copyright applications, and any other applications for registration of a proprietary right. This Section 13@) shall not apply to 
Developments that the Executive developed entirely on his own time without using the Company’s equipment, supplies, facilities, or Proprietary 
Information and that does not, at the time of conception or reduction to practice, have utility in or relate to the Company’s business, or actual 
or demonstrably anticipated research or development. The Executive understands that, to the extent this Agreement shall be construed in 
accordance with the laws of any Territory which precludes a requirement in an employee agreement to assign certain classes of inventions made 
by an employee, this Section 13(b) shall be interpreted not to apply to any invention which a court rules or the Company agrees falls within 
such classes. 
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(c) The Executive further agrees to cooperate fully with the Company, both during and after his employment with the 
Company, with respect to the procurement, maintenance and enforcement of copyrights, patents and other intellectual property rights (both in 
the United States and other countries) relating to Developments. The Executive shall not be required to incur or pay any costs or expenses in 
connection with the rendering of such cooperation. The Executive will sign all papers, including, without limitation, copyright applications, patent 
applications, declarations, oaths, formal assignments, assignments of priority rights, and powers of attorney, and do all things that the Company 
may reasonably deem necessary or desirable in order to protect its rights and interests in any Development. 

Executive’s signature on any such papers, any executive officer of the Company shall be entitled to execute any such papers as the Executive’s 
agent and attorney-in-fact, and the Executive hereby irrevocably designates and appoints each executive officer of the Company as his agent 
and attorney-irkfact to execute any such papers on the Executive’s behalf, and to take any and all actions as the Company may deem 
necessary or desirable in order to protect its rights and interests in any Development, under the conditions described in this sentence. 

Remedies. The Executive and the Company agree that the covenants contained in Sections IO, 1 1 ,  12 and 13 are reasonable 
under the circumstances, and further agree that if in the opinion of any court of competent jurisdiction any such covenant is not reasonable in 
any respect, such court will have the right, power and authority to sever or modify any provision or provisions of such covenants as to the court 
will appear not reasonable and to enforce the remainder of the covenants as so amended. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the 
remedy at law available to the Company for breach of any of the Executive’s obligations under Sections I O ,  11, 12 and 13 would be 
inadequate and that damages flowing from such a breach may not readily be susceptible to being measured in monetary terms. Accordingly, the 
Executive acknowledges, consents and agrees that, in addition to any other rights or remedies that the Company may have at law, in equity or 
under this Agreement, upon adequate proof of the Executive’s violation of any such provision of this Agreement, the Company will be entitled 
to immediate injunctive relief and may obtain a temporary order restraining any threatened or further breach, without the necessity of proof of 
actual damage. Without limiting the applicability of this Section 14 or in any way affecting the right of the Company to seek equitable remedies 
hereunder, in the event that the Executive breaches any ofthe provisions of Sections IO, 1 1 ,  12 and 13 or engages in any activity that would 
constitute a breach save for the Executive’s action being in a state where any of the provisions of Sections IO,  I I ,  12, 13 or this Section 14 is 
not enforceable as a matter of law, then the Company’s obligation to pay any remaining severance compensation and benefits that has not 
already k e n  paid to Executive pursuant to Section 9 shall be terminated and within ten days of notice of such termination of payment, the 
Executive shall return all severance compensation and the value of such benefits, or profits derived or received from such benefits. 

(d) The Executive further acknowledges and agrees that if the Company is unable, after reasonable effort, to secure the 

14. 
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15. Continued Availability and Cooceration. 

(a) Following termination of the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall cooperate fully with the Company and with 
the Company’s counsel in connection with any present and future actual or threatened litigation, administrative proceeding or investigation 
involving the Company that relates to events, Occurrences or conduct occurring (or claimed to have occurred) during the period of the 
Executive’s employment by the Company. Cooperation will include, but is not limited to: 

(i) making himself reasonably available for interviews and discussions with the Company’s counsel as well as for 
depositions and trial testimony; 

preparation therefore, as and to the extent that the Company or the Company’s counsel reasonably requests; 

proceeding; and 

litigation or administrative proceeding. 

(ii) if depositions or trial testimony are to occur, making himself reasonably available and Cooperating in the 

(iii) re6aiing from impeding in any way the Company’s prosecution or defense of such litigation or administrative 

(iv) cooperating fully in the development and presentation of the Company’s prosecution or defense of such 

(b) The Company will reimbme the Executive for reasonable travel, lodging, telephone and similar expenses, as well as 
reasonable attorneys’ fees (if independent legal counsel is neceswy), incurred in connection with any cooperation, consultation and advice 
rendered under this Agreement after the Executive’s termination of employment. 

16. Disuute Resolution. 

(a) In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve any controversy or claim arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement or breach thereof, either Party shall refer the dispute to bmdmg arbitration, which shall be the exclusive f o r m  for resolving such 
claims. Such arbitration will be administered by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (‘‘m’) pmuant to its Employment 
Arbitration Rules and Procedures and governed by Kansas law. The arbitration shall be conducted by a single arbitrator selected by the Parties 
according to the rules of JAMS. In the event that the Parties fail to agree on the selection of the arbitrator witbin 30 days after either Party’s 
request for arbitration, the arbitrator will be chosen by JAMS. The arbitration proceeding shall commence on a mutually agreeable date within 
90 days after the request for arbitration, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, and in the location where the Executive worked during the six 
months immediately prior to the request for arbitration if that location is in Kansas or Virginia, and if not, the location will be Kansas, unless the 
Parties agree otherwise. 

@) The Parties agree that each will bear their own costs and attorneys’ fees. The arbitrator shall not have authority to 
award attorneys’ fees or costs to any Party. 

a Party in a court of law. The arbitrator’s award is limited by and must comply with this Agreement and applicable federal, state, and local 
laws. ?he decision of the arbitntor shall be final and bmding on the Parties. 

(c) ?he arbitrator shall have no power or authority to make awards or orders granting relief that would not be available to 



(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no claim or controversy for injunctive or equitable relief contemplated by or allowed 
under applicable law pursuant to Section IO, 1 I ,  12 and 13 of this Agreement will be subject to arbitration under this Section 16, but will 
instead be subject to determination in a court of competent jurisdiction in Kansas, which court shall apply Kansas law consistent with 
Section 21 of this Agreement, where either Party may seek injunctive or equitable relief. 

17. Other Agreements. No agreements (other than the agreements evidencing any grants of equity awards) or representations, oral 
or otherwise, express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof have been made by either party which are not expressly set forth in 
this Agreement. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises, or other agreements, orally or 
otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, pertaining to the subject matter hereof, which are not 
embodied herein, and that no prior and/or contemporaneous agreement, statement or promise pertaining to the subject matter hereof that is not 
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding on either party. 

18. Withholding of Taxes, The Company will withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement all federal, state, city or 
other taxes as the Company is required to withhold pursuant to any law or government regulation or ruling. 

19. Successors and Binding Agreement. 

(a) The Company will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganization 
or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company expressly to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the 
same manner and to the same extent the Company would he required to perform if no such succession had taken place. This Agreement will be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any successor to the Company, including without limitation any persons acquiring 
directly or indirectly all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company whether by purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganization 
or otherwise (and such successor shall thereafter be deemed the ‘Company” for the purposes of this Agreement), hut will not otherwise be 
assignable, transferable or delegable by the Company, except that the Company may assign and transfer this Agreement and delegate its duties 
thereunder to a wholly owned Subsidiary. 

(h) This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and he enforceable by the Executive’s personal or legal representatives, 

This Agreement is personal in nature and neither of the parties hereto shall, without the consent of the other, assign, 

executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributees and legatees. 

transfer or delegate this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder except as expressly provided in Sections 19(a) and 19(b). Without 
limiting the generality or effect of the foregoing, the Executive’s right to receive payments hereunder will not he assignable, transferable or 
delegable, whether by pledge, creation of a security interest, or otherwise, other than by a transfer by the Executive’s will or by the laws of 
descent and distribution and, in the event of any attempted assignment or transfer contrary to this Section 19(c), the Company shall have no 
liability to pay any amount so attempted to be assigned, transferred or delegated. 

(c) 
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20. Notices. All communications, including without limitation notices, consents, requests or approvals, required or permitted to be 
given hereunder will be in Writing and will be duly given when hand delivered or dispatched by elech.onic facsimile transmission (with receipt 
thereof c o n h e d ) ,  or five business days after having been mailed by United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, 
postage prepaid, or three business days after having been sent by a nationally recognized ovemight courier service such as Federal Express or 
UPS, addressed to the Company (to the attention of the General Counsel of the Company) at its principal executive offices and to the 
Executive at his principal residence, or to such other address as any party may have furnished to the other in ~ t i n g  and in accordance 
herewith, except that notices of changes of address shall be effective only upon receipt. 

2 1 .  Governing Law and Choice of Forum. 

(a) 
the conflict of laws principles thereof. 

(b) 

’his Agreement will be conshued and enforced according to the laws of the State of Kansas, without giving effect to 

To the extent not othenvise provided for by the Section 16 ofthis Agreement, the Executive and the Company 
consent to the jurisdiction of all state and federal courts located in Overland Park, Johnson County, Kansas, as well as to the jurisdiction of all 
courts of which an appeal may be taken from such courts, for the purpose of any suit, action, or other proceeding arising out of, or in 
connection with this A m e n t  or that othenvise arise out of the employment relationship. Each party hereby expressly waives any and all 
rights to bring any suit, action, or other proceeding in or before any court or tribunal other than the courts described above and covenants that it 
shall not seek in any manner to resolve any dispute other than as set fmth in this paragraph. Further, the Executive and the Company hereby 
expressly waive any and all objections either may have to venue, including, without limitation, the inconvenience of such fonnn, in any of such 
couTts. In addition, each of the parties consents to the service of process by personal service or any manner in which notices may be delivered 
hereunder in accordance with this Agreement. 

22. Validitv/Severabilit. If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any provision is held invalid, unenforceable or 
othenvise illegal, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision will not be affected, and the provision so held to be 
invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illegal will be reformed to the extent (and only to the extent) necessary to make it enforceable, valid or legal. 
To the extent any provisions held to be invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illegal cannot be reform& such provisions are to be stricken 
herefiom and the remainder of this Agreement will be binding on the parties and their successors and assigns as if such invalid or illegal 
provisions were never included in this Agreement from the first instance. 

23. Survival of Provisions. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the piuties’ respective rights and obligations 
under Sections 10, 11 ,  12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18,22 and 26 will survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement or the termination ofthe 
Executive’s employment. 
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24. Representations and Acknowledgements. 

(a) The Executive hereby represents that he is not subject to any restriction of any nature whatscever on his ability to 
enter into this Agement  or to perform his duties and responsibilities hereunder, including but not limited to, any covenant not to compete with 
any former employer, any covenant not to disclose or use any non-public information acquired during the come of any former employment or 
any covenant not to solicit any customer of any former employer. 

terms of any agreement with any previous employer or other party to r e h h  fiom using or disclosing any trade secret or confidential or 
proprietary information in the course of the Executive’s employment with the Company or to refrain from competing, directly or indirectly, with 
the business of such previous employer or any other party. 

The Executive M e r  represents that, to the best of his knowledge, his performance of all the terms of this Agreement 
and as an employee of the Company does not and will not breach any agreement with another party, including without limitation any agreement 
to keep in confidence proprietary information, knowledge or data the Executive acquired in confidence or in hust prior to his employment with 
the Company, and that he will not knowingly disclose to the Company or induce the Company to use any confidential or proprietary 
information or material belonging to any previous employer or others. 

connection with execution of this Agreement. 

or the oppomity to enter into any business activity, whether as owner, investor, executive, manager, employee, independent consultant, 
contractor, advisor or othenvise, the Executive will inform the offeror ofthe existence of Sections IO, 11, 12 and 13 ofthis Agreement and 
provide the offeror a copy thereof The Executive authorizes the Company to provide a copy of the relevant provisions of this Agreement to 
any of the persons or entities described in this Section 24(e) and to make such persons aware of the Executive’s obligations under this 
Agreement. 

Compliance with Code Section 409A. With respect to reimbursements or in-kind benefits provided under this Agreement: 
(a) the Company will not provide for cash in lieu of a right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits to which the Executive bas a right under this 
Agreement, (b) any reimbursement or provision of in-kind benefits made during the Euecutive’s lifetime (or such shorter period prescribed by a 
specific provision of this Agreement) shall be made not later than December 3 1% of the year following the year in which the Executive incurs the 
expense, and (c) in no event will the amount of expenses so reimbursed, or in-kind benefits provided, by the Company in one year affect the 
amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other taxable year. Each payment, reimbursement or 
&kind benefit made pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement shall be regarded as a separate payment and not one of a series of payments 
for purposes of Section 409A of the Code. It is intended that any amounts payable under this Agreement and the Company’s and the 
Executive’s exercise of authority or discretion hereunder shall comply with the provisions of Section 409A of the Code and the i~easury 
regulations relating thereto so as not to subject the Executive to the payment of the additional tax, interest and any tax penalty which may be 
imposed under Section 409A of the Code. In furtherance of this interest, to the extent that any provision hereof would result in the Executive 
being subject to payment of the additional tax, interest and tax penalty under Code Section 4 0 9 4  the parties agree to amend this Agreement in 
order to bring this Agreement into compliance with Code Section 409A, and thereafter interpret its provisions in a manner that complies with 
Section 409A of the Code. Reference to Section 409A of the Code is to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 
and will also include any proposed, temporruy or fmal regulations, or any other guidance, promulgated with respect to such Section by the US. 
Depar!ment of Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no particular tax result for the Executive with respect 
to any income recognized by the Executive in connection with the Agreement is guaranteed, and the Executive shall be responsible for any 
taxes, penalties and interest imposed on him under or as a result of Section 409A of the Code in connection with the Agreement. 

@) The Executive hereby represents that, except as he has disclosed in writing to the Company, he is not bound by the 

(c) 

(d) The Executive acknowledges that he will not be entitled to any consideration or reimbursement of legal fees in 

The Executive hereby represents and agrees that, during the Restricted Period, if the Executive is offered employment (e) 

25. 

- 17-  

CMer Employment Agcrmeor ~ April 29, 2009 



26. Amendment; Waiver. Except as otherwise provided herein, his Agreement may not be modified, amended or waived in any 
manner except by an instrument in Writing signed by both Parties hereto. No waiver by either Party at any time of any breach by the other Party 
hereto or compliance with any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by such other Party will be deemed a waiver of similar 
or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time. 

27. Countexparts. lk i s  Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original 
but all of which together will constitute one and the same agreement. 

28. m. Unless otherwise noted, the headings of sections herein are included solely for convenience of reference and shall 
not control the meaning or interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

29. DefinedTem. 

(a) “Ameement”has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 

@) ‘Base Salary” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a). 

(c) “ E 4 4  has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a) 

(d) “Bonus Award” has the meaning set forth in Section 4@)(ii) 

(e) ‘ B B  means the Amended and Restated Sprint Nextel Corporation Bylaws, as may be amended from time to time. 
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(0 “Camed Bonus Award” shall mean the lesser of the annual Target Bonus or actual performance for such fiscal year in 
accordance with the then existing terms of the STIP, which shall not he payable until the Compensation Committee has determined that any 
incentive targets have been achieved and the subsequent designated payout date has arrived. 

(g) ‘Cause” shall mean: 

(i) 

(ii) 

any act or omission constituting a material breach hy the Executive of any provisions of this Agreement; 

the willful failure hy the Executive to perform his duties hereunder (other than any such failure resulting from the 
Executive’s Disability), after demand for performance is delivered hy the Company that identifies the manner in which the Company 
believes the Executive has not performed his duties, if, within 30 days of such demand, the Executive fails to cure any such failure 
capable of being cured; 

or including, but not limited to, misappropriation, fraud including with respect to the Company’s accounting and financial statements, 
embezzlement or conversion by the Executive of the Company’s or any of its Subsidiary’s property in connection with the Executive’s 
duties or in the course of the Executive’s employment with the Company; 

(iii) any intentional act or misconduct materially injurious to the Company or any Subsidiary, financial or otherwise, 

(iv) the conviction (or plea of no contest) of the Executive for any felony or the indicbnent of the Executive for any 
felony including, hut not limited to, any felony involving fraud, mwal turpitude, embezzlement or theft in connection with the Executive’s 
duties or in the cwrse of the Executive’s employment with the Company; 

(v) the commission of any intentional or knowing violation of any antifraud provision of the federal or state 
securities laws; 

(vi) the Board reasonably believes in its good faith judgment that the Executive has committed any of the acts 

there is a final, non-appealable order in a proceeding before a court of competent jurisdiction or a final order 

referred to in this Section 29(g)(v); 

in an administrative prcceeding fmding that the Executive Uxnmtted any willful misconduct or criminal activity (excluding minor traffic 
violations (H other minor offenses) which commission is materially inimical to the interests of the Company or any Subsidiary, whether 
for his personal benefit or in connection with his duties for the Company or any Subsidiary; 

(vii) 

(viii) 

(ix) 

(x) 

current alcohol or prescription drug abuse affecting work performance; 

current illegal use of drugs; or 

violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct, with written notice of termination hy the Company for Cause in 
each case provided under this Section 29(g). 
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For purposes of this Agreement, no act or failure to act on the part of the Executive shall be deemed “intentional” if it was due primarily 
to an error in judgment or negligence, but shall be deemed “intentional” only if done or omitted to be done by the Executive not in good faith 
and without reasonable belief that the Executive’s action or omission was in the best interest of the Company. 

(h) 

(i) 

(i) 

“Change in Control” has the meaning set forth in the CIC Severance Plan. 

“Chief Executive Officer” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a). 

“CIC Severance Plan” means the Company’s Change in Control Severance Plan, as may be amended from time to 
time, or any successor plan, program or arrangement thereto. 

(k) 

( I )  

“CIC Severance Protection Period” has the meaning set forth in the CIC Severance Plan. 

“Certificate of Incorporation” means the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Sprint Nextel 
Corporation, as may be amended from time to time. 

(m) 

(n) 

(0) 

(p) 

(4) 

(r) 

(s) 

‘‘W has the meaning set forth in Section 4(b)(v). 

Tomvany” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 

“Company Group” has the meaning set forth in Section lO(a)(i) 

“Compensation Committee” means the Human Capital and Compensation Committee of the Board 

“Competitor” has the meaning set forth in Section 1 l(b). 

“Develovments” has the meaning set forth in Section 13(a). 

‘ D 3  or ‘‘W shall mean: 

(i) the Executive’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness to substantially perform his duties and the essential 
functions of his position, with or without reasonable accommodation, on a full-time basis for six consecutive months as determined by 
the Board in its reasonable discretion, and within 30 days after a notice of termination is thereafter given by the Company, the Executive 
shall not have returned to the full-time performance ofthe Executive’s duties; and, further, 

(ii) the Executive becomes eligible to receive benefits under the LTD Plan; 

provided, however, if the Executive shall not agree with a determination to terminate his employment because of Disability, the question of the 
Executive’s disability shall be subject to the certification of a qualified medical doctor agreed to by the Company and the Executive. The costs 
of such qualified medical doctor shall be paid for by the Company. 
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(t) 

(u) 

(v) 

(w) 

“Effective Date” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 

“Emulovee Plans” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a). 

“Emulovment Term” means the Initial Employment Term and any Renewal Term. 

“Executive” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 

(x) “Good Reason” means the occurrence of any ofthe following without the Executive’s written consent, unless within 30 
days of the Executive’s written notice of termination of employment for Good Reason, the Company cures any such occurrence: 

(i) 

(ii) 

the Company’s material breach of this Agreement; 

a reduction in the Executive’s Base Salary, as set forth in Section 4(a), or Target Bonus, as set forth in 
Section 4(b)(ii) (that is not in either case, agreed to by the Executive), as compared to the corresponding circumstances in place on the 
Effective Date as may be increased pursuant to Section 4, except for across-the-board reductions generally applicable to all senior 
executives; or 

(iii) relocation of the Executive’s principal place of work more than 50 miles without the Executive’s consent 

Any occurrence of Good Reason shall be deemed to he waived by the Executive unless the Executive provides the Company written notice of 
termination of employment for Good Reason within 60 days of the event giving rise to Good Reason. 

(y) 

(2)  

(aa) 

(bb) 

“Initial Emdoment Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2 

“JAMS” has the meaning set forth in Section 16. 

“LTD Plan” has the meaning set forth in Section 9(e) 

“LTsIp“ means the Company’s 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, effective May 8,2007, as may be amended from time 
to time, or any successor plan, program or arrangement thereto. 

(cc) 

(dd) 

(ee) 

(f€) 

“LTSIP Target Award Ouuortunities” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(b)(iii) 

“Particiuant” has the meaning set forth in the CIC Severance Plan. 

‘‘W has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 

‘‘pam“‘ has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 
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(gg) “Payment Period” means the period of 18 continuous months, as measured from the Executive’s Separation from 
Service. 

(hh) 

(ii) 

(a) 

“Place of Performance” has the meaning set forth in Section 8. 

‘’Proprietaw Information” has the meaning set forth in Section lO(a)(i). 

‘‘Release” means a release of claims in a form provided to the Executive by the Company in connection with the 
payment of benefits under this Agreement. 

(h) “Release Consideration and Revocation Period” means the combined total of the Release Consideration Period and 
the Release Revocation Period. 

(c) “Release Consideration Period” means the period of time pursuant to the terms of the Release afforded the Executive 
to consider whether to sign it. 

(ij) “Release Revocation Period” means the period pursuant to the terms of an executed Release in which it may be 
revoked by the Executive. 

(kk) 

(11) 

“Renewal Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2. 

“Restricted Period” means the 18 month period following the Executive’s date of termination of employment with the 
Company for any reason or Cause, including for nonrenewal of this Agreement, Disability, termination by the Company or termination by the 
Executive. 

(mm) “Separation from Service” means “separation from service” from the Company and its subsidiaries as described 
under Section 409A of the Code and the guidance and Treasury regulations issued thereunder. Separation from Service will occur on the date 
on which the Executive’s level of services to the Company decreases to 2 1 percent or less of the average level of services performed by the 
Executive over the immediately preceding 36-month period (or if providing services for less than 36 months, such lesser period) after taking 
into account any services that the Executive provided prior to such date or that the Company and the Executive reasonably anticipate the 
Executive may provide (whether as an employee or as an independent contractor) after such date. For purposes of the determination of 
whether the Executive has had a Separation from Service, the term “Company” shall mean the Company and any affiliate with which the 
Company would be considered a single employer under Section 414(h) or 414(c) of the Code, provided that in applying Sections IS63(a)(I), 
(2), and (3) of the Code for purposes of determining a controlled group of corporations under Section 414(h) of the Code, the language “at 
least 50 percent” is used instead of “at least 80 percent” each place it appears in Sections 1563(a)( I), (2) and (3) of the Code, and in applying 
Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2 for purposes of determining trades or businesses (whether or not incorporated) that are under 
common control for purposes of Section 414(c) of the Code, “at least SO percent” is used instead of “at least 80 percent” each place it 
appears in Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(~)-2. In addition, where the use of such definition of “Company” for purposes of determining a 
Separation from Service is based upon legitimate business criteria, in applying Sections 1563(a)(1), (2), and (3) ofthe Code for purposes of 
determining a controlled group of corporations under Section 414(b) ofthe Code, the language “at least 20 percent” is used instead of “at least 
80 percent”at each place it appears in Sections 1563(a)(I), (2) and (3) ofthe Code, and in applying Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2 
for purposes of determining trades or businesses (whether or not incorporated) that are under common control for purposes of Section 414(c) 
of the Code, “at least 20 percent” is used instead of “at least 80 percent” at each place it appears in Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2. 
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(nn) “Swcified Emulove” shall mean an Executive who is a “specified employee” for purposes of Section 409A of the 
Code, as administratively determined by the Board in accordance with the guidance and Treasury regulations issued under Section 409A of the 
Code 

(00) “Seuaration Plan”means the Company’s Separation Plan Amended and Restated Effective August 13,2006, as may 
be amended from time to time or any successor plan, program, arrangement or agreement thereto. 

(pp) “SDecified Emulove” shall mean an Executive who is a “specified employee” for purposes of Section 409A of the 
Code, as administratively determined by the Board in accordance with the guidance and Treasury regulations issued under Section 409A of the 
Code. 

(qq) ‘‘m means the Company’s short-term incentive plan under Section 8 of the Company’s 2007 Omnibus Incentive 
Plan, effective May 8,2007, as may be amended from time to time, or any successor plan, program or arrangement thereto. 

(rr) ‘‘Subsidiary’’ shall mean any entity, corporation, partnership (general or limited), limited liability company, entity, firm, 
business organization, enterprise, association or joint venture in which the Company directly or indirectly controls ten percent or more of the 
voting interest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of Section 3(a), “Subsidiary” shall mean any affiliate with which the Company 
would be considered a single employer as described in the definition of Separation from Service. 

(ss) 

(a) 

‘Target Bonuses’’ has the meaning set forth in Section 4(b)(ii) 

‘ T I  has the meaning set forth in Section 1 l(b). 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be signed by an officer pursuant to the authority of its Board, 
and the Executive has executed this Agreement, as of the day and year first written above. 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

BY: /s/SandraJT Price 

Sandra J. Price 
Senior Vice President, Human Resources 

/s/ Matthew Carter Jr 

Matthew Carter Jr. 

caner Employmen, A**eern<”, - *p“l 29,2003 

(Back To Tou) 

Section 3: EX-10.34 (EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, DATED JULY 27,2009) 

Exhibit 10.34 

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

(Daniel H. Schulman) 

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) dated as of July 27, 2009 by and between 
Sprint Nextel Corporation (the “Company”) on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, affiliates and related entities (“-7 and Daniel H. 
Schulman (the “Executive”). 

WHEREAS, the Executive has been employed by Virgin Mobile USA, L.P. (“Prior Emulover”) pursuant to the terms of an Amended 
and Restated Employment Agreement between Virgin Mobile USA, Inc. (‘Vm’) and Executive, dated as of January 1, 2008, as amended 
December 12,2008 (the “Prior Ameement”); 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the Company, its subsidiary and VMU are entering into an Agreement 
and Plan of Merger (the “MerpeZ’), dated as of the date hereof (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, 
the “Merger Ameement”); 

WHEREAS, as a result of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the Company desires to assume Executive’s Prior 
Agreement and the Executive desires to accept such assumption concurrently with (and subject to the Occurrence of) the Effective Time (as 
defined in the Merger Agreement and referred to herein as the “Commencement Date”) and the execution and delivery of the Merger 
Agreement; and 

into this Agreement. 
WHEREAS, both Company and Executive desire to amend and restate the Prior Agreement in its entirety in the form hereof and enter 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
parties agree to amend and restate the Prior Agreement in its entirety as follows: 

1, Term of Emploment. Executive shall be employed by the Company hereunder for a period commencing as of the Commencement 
Date and ending upon termination of Executive’s employment pursuant to Section 9 of this Agreement (the ‘%mploment Term’). 

2. position. 

(a) During the Employment Term, Executive shall serve as the Company’s President, Prepaid, shall report directly to the Chief 
Executive Ofticer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Oficer”) and shall have full authority for the day to day operations of the Company’s 
entire prepaid wireless business (‘‘w), subject to oversight by and prior approval of the Chief Executive Officer for major transactions 
and financial commitments, and such other duties, consistent with Executive’s position, as shall be determined from time to time by the Chief 
Executive Officer. Executive shall have exclusive authority with regard to the hiring and firing of all employees (other than himself) and 
consultants of Prepaid; that (i) Executive shall consult with the Chief Executive offcer with regard to the hiring and fuing of senior 
executives in Prepaid and (ii) following consultation with Executive, the Chief Executive Officer shall retain the right to unilaterally terminate the 
employment of any such employee or consultant for cause. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive’s authorities and duties shall in all cases be 
subject to the fiscal policy, annual plans and budgets, as determined from time to time by the Company. 
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(b) During the Employment Term, Executive will devote Executive’s full business time and efforts to the performance of 
Executive’s duties hereunder and will not engage in any other business, profession or occupation for compensation or otherwise which would 
materially conflict or interfere with the rendition of such services either directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of the Chief 
Executive Officer; & that nothing herein shall preclude Executive (i) from continuing to serve on any b a r d  of directors, advisory 
committees or bards  of trustees of those business corporations and/or charitable organizations listed on Schedule I hereto, (ii) from being 
involved in charitable, professional and political support activities, (iii) from managing his personal and family invesbnents and (iv) subject to the 
prior approval of the Chief Executive Officer, fiom accepting appointment to any additional boards of directors or advisory committees of any 
business corporation, provided, in each case, and in the aggregate, that such activities do not materially conflict or interfere with the 
performance of Executive’s duties hereunder or conflict or interfere with Section IO. 

(c) The principal place of Executive’s employment hereunder shall be in Northern or Central New Jersey or New York City, 
New York subject to such travel as may be reasonably necessary in connection with Executive’s performance of his duties to the Company 
(the “Principal Place of Emdovment”). 

3. Base Salary. Effective as of the Commencement Date and continuing for the duration of the Employment Term, the Company shall 
pay Executive a base salary at the annual rate of $750,000, payable in regular installments in accordance with the Company’s usual payment 
practices. Executive’s base salary shall be reviewed annually by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the 
“Compensation Committee”) and shall be subject to such increases, if any, as may be determined from time to time in the sole discretion of the 
Compensation Committee. Once increased, the Executive’s base salary shall not be reduced before 2012 without Executive’s written consent 
or, thereafter, except for across-the-board reductions generally applicable to the Company’s senior executives. Executive’s annual base salary, 
as in effect from time to time, is hereinafter referred to as the “Base Salary.” 

4. Short-term Incentive. 

(a) With respect to the fiscal year ending December31, 2009 Executive shall be eligible to earn a semi-annual target bonus 
award (a“Semi-Annual Bonus”) of one hundred twenty percent (120%) of Executive’s Base Salary during such semi-annual period and, with 
respect to each performance period thereafter during the Employment Term, a Short-term Incentive rsTI”) opportunity of at least one 
hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of Executive’s annual Base Salary during such performance period (in each case, the “Tareet Bonus” and, 
in each case, not subject to reduction before 2012 without Executive’s written consent and, thereafter, except for across-the-board reductions 
generally applicable to the Company’s senior executives), based upon, and subject to, the achievement of reasonable performance objectives 
established for each applicable performance period during the term of Executive’s employment. 
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(b) With respect to the calendar year ending December 31, 2009, there shall be two semi-annual performance periods of 
January 1st through June 30”, 2009 (the “Interim Performance Period’) and January 1st through December 31*, 2009 (the ‘‘U 
Performance Period’). The Semi-Annual Bonus for the Interim Performance Period, if any, shall be paid to Executive during 2009 and the 
Semi-Annual Bonus for the Annual Performance Period, if any, shall be paid to Executive no later than March 15, 2010. Payment for the 
Annual Performance Period shall be based upon objectives and schedules in effect immediately before the Commencement Date and such 
payment will be based on year-to-date achievements against year-to-date target achievements less payment, if any, for the Interim Performance 
Period. 

(c) With respect to calendar years ending December 31, 2010 and 2011, Executive’s STI opportunity will be based on the 
achievement of objectives, established by the Compensation Committee with input from the Executive, based on the criteria set forth in 
Schedule 11 attached hereto. Each 2010 and 2011 performance objective will have a payout range with a threshold of 25% (below which 
results in a zero payout), target at 100% and maximum achievement of 200%. Payment of STI, if eamed, is subject to Executive’s continued 
employment with the Company through the end of the applicable calendar year performance period, except as otherwise provided in this 
Agreement, and shall be paid no later than March 15” after the end of the applicable calendar year performance period. 

(d) Executive’s STI for performance periods after 201 1 shall be subject to Section 4(a) above and such other terms as 
determined by the Compensation Committee, but shall be no less favorable in design than that available to the Company’s other senior 
executives. 

5. Long-term Incentive C‘LTI”). 

(a) With respect to the fiscal year ending December 31, 2009, Executive shall be eligible to receive a long-term incentive award 
(the “Incentive Award”) in the amount of $1,100,000 pursuant to the terms of the Prior Employer’s 2009 Mid-term Incentive Plan, based 
upon, and subject to, the achievement of performance objectives previously established by the Prior Employer. Any such bonus shall be paid 
by March 15, 2010. This bonus shall be referred to as the “Mid-Term Bonus.” Payment of the Mid-Term Bonus shall be determined by the 
same performance criteria as in effect immediately before the Commencement Date but will be based upon year-to-date achievements through 
the Commencement Date against year-to-date targets through the Commencement Date. 

(b) With respect to calendar years ending December31, 2010 and 2011, Executive’s aggregate target LTI opportunity is 
$6,000,000, ofwhich 25% percent will be awarded in restricted stock units ( W a s ” )  and 75% will be performance-based awards payable in 
cash and/or unrestricted registered shares of Company stock at the discretion of the Compensation Committee. The RSUs and performance- 
based awards shall be granted under the Company’s 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan or any successor plan thereto and shall be made no the 
later than the later of (i) November 5, 2009 and (ii) the Commencement Date. 
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(i) The RSUs shall vest 50% on December 31, 2010 and the underlying shares shall he delivered in January 201 1, and 
50% on December 3 I ,  201 1 and the underlying shares shall be delivered in January 2012, subject to Executive continued employment with the 
Company through the respective December 31, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement; and 

The performance-based awards shall he payable based upon the achievement of performance objectives, 
established within 90 days after the beginning of the applicable performance period by the Compensation Committee with input fiom the 
Executive, and shall he consistent with the criteria set forth in Schedule Ill attached hereto. Each objective will have a payout range with a 
threshold of 25 percent (below which results in a 0 payout), target at 100 percent and maximum achievement of 150 percent. Payment of these 
performance-based awards, if earned, is subject to Executive’s continued employment with the Company through December 31, 201 1, except 
as otherwise provided in this Agreement, and would be paid no later than March 15,2012. 

(iii) Subject to Section 6(hl if Executive is terminated due to death or Disability (as defined below), without Cause by 
the Company, resigns for Good Reason (as defined below) or resigns pursuant to a mutually agreed upon succession plan as described in 
Section 9(d) hereof, then any unvested portion of the RSUs shall vest in full on the date of termination and Executive shall be entitled to pro- 
rata payment of the performance-based awards in an amount and payable pursuant to Section 9(c)(iii)(D) (or Section 9(d#iiMD) if termination 
is pursuant to the mutually agreed upon succession plan) hereof. 

(iv) The RSUs and performance-based awards shall not be subject to any post-termination restrictions and obligations 
other than as provided herein or in the “Clawback Policy” as described in the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the United 
States Securities Exchange Commission on March 30,2009. 

(c) After 201 1, Executive shall have such LTI opportunities and with such terms as determined by the Compensation Committee, 

(ii) 

but shall be no less favorable in design than that available to the Company’s other senior executives. 

6. Eauitv Arrangements. 

(a) Existing Eauitv Awards. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the option granted to Executive by VMU on 
November 12,2008 and the restricted stock unit grants made or assumed by VMU on February 14,2007, May 23,2007, March 13,2008, 
and February 23, 2009 (“Existing h u i t y  Awards”) shall continue to be governed by their respective existing terms and conditions, subject to 
the terms of the Merger Agreement as to conversions and assumptions and Section 6(h) below. 
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(b) Restricted Stock Units. As of March 13, 2008, Executive was granted an aggregate of 400,000 restricted stock units of 
VMU (the “Restricted Stock Units”), and his right to 133,333 of these Restricted Stock Units was vested before the Commencement Date. 
Notwithstanding Section 6(a) above, the remaining unvested portion ofthe Restricted Stock Units shall vest pursuant to the following criteria: 

(i) 2009 Vesting. Omatunity. Subject to Executive’s continued employment with the Company as of December 31, 
2009 (and subject to Sections 6(b)(ii) and 6(c) below), 133,333 of the Restricted Stock Units (the amount which is based on pre-Merger 
conversion calculations) shall become vested if VMU’s net eamings per share for fiscal year 2009 through the closing date for the Merger (the 
‘Merger Closine Date”) meets or exceeds the target set by the VMU Compensation Committee, as certified by the Compensation Committee 
in good faith as soon as practicable following the receipt by the Company of VMU’s unaudited financial statements for fiscal year 2009 up to 
the Merger Closing Date (but in no event later than December 3 1, 2010). 

(ii) 2010 Vestino Omortunity. Subject to Executive’s continued employment with the Company as of December 31, 
2010 (and subject to the Section 6(c) below), the remaining 133,334 ofthe Restricted Stock Units (the amount which is based on pre-Merger 
conversion calculations) and any remaining unvested Restricted Stock Units that have not vested in prior years shall become vested on 
January 1,2011. 

(c) Accelerated Vesting. In the event that either (x) Executive is still employed with the Company six (6) months following the 
Merger Closing Date or (y) within six (6) months following the Merger Closing Date Executive’s employment is terminated by reason of death, 
Disability, the Company without Cause or if Executive resigns for Good Reason, all unvested Existing Equity Awards then held by Executive 
shall fully vest, as the case may be, upon the occurrence of such six (6) month anniversary or such termination of employment and the 
Restricted Stock Units and any other restricted stock units shall be distributed as provided in the applicable grant agreements, subject to 
Section 16 hereof. 

(d) Post-Termination Oution Exercise Period of Existing. Eauity A w d s .  In the event that either (x) Executive’s employment is 
terminated by the Company without Cause or for Disability, (y) Executive resigns for Good Reason or Executive’s employment is terminated as 
a result of death or (2) Executive’s employment is terminated pursuant to the terms of a mutually agreed succession plan as described in 
Section 9(d) hereof Executive shall be entitled to receive an extension of the period of time to exercise vested stock options that are Existing 
Equity A w d s  that are held by Executive on the date of such termination through the twenty-four (24) month period following such termination 
date & vested stock options that are not exercised will expire on the earlier of the end of such twenty-four (24) month period or the 
expiration date of the stock option); provided, however, if Executive (x) breaches any of his obligations under Section 10 (which remains 
uncured for ten (IO) days following witten notice from the Company of such breach) or (y) materially breaches during the one (1) year period 
following Executive’s termination of employment with the Company, the confidentiality restriction set forth in Section 1 I(a) (including any willful 
breach or disclosure of material confidential information or other disclosure which could reasonably be expected to result in material harm to 
the Company), any extension shall cease to apply and the Executive may thereafter only exercise such options during the original exercise 
period. 
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(e) Forfeiture. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if Executive (x) breaches any of his obligations under Section 10 
(which remains uncured for ten (IO) days following Written notice from the Company of such breach) or (y) materially breaches, during the one 
(I)  year period following Executive’s termination of employment with the Company, the confidentiality restrictions set forth in Section 1 l(al 
(including any willful breach or disclosure of material confidential information or other disclosure which could reasonably be expected to result 
in material h a m  to the Company), then (i) all unvested Restricted Stock Units then held by Executive shall be automatically forfeited as of the 
date of such breach and (ii) with respect to shares of Company or VMU common stock issued to Executive either upon the lapse of 
restrictions relating to Restricted Stock Units within the lesser of the one-year period preceding such breach or the period of time elapsed from 
the date of termination through the date of such breach or upon the exercise of vested stock options held by Executive and exercised during the 
period beginning on termination of Executive’s employment and ending on the first anniversary of such termination, Executive shall pay to the 
Company the after-tax value of such shares received by the Executive (as determined by the market price of the shares of Company or VMU, 
as the case may be, common stock as of the date of the lapse of such restrictions or the date of exercise of such vested stock options). 

(0 Chance in Control. For purposes of this Agreement, “€hanee in Control” shall mean an event satisfying the requirements of 
Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-3(i)(S) and which is one of the following: (i) the sale or disposition, in one or a Series of related transactions, of all 
or substantially all of the assets of the Company to any “person” or “group” (as such terms are defined in Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the 
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), (ii) any person or group is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 
13d-5 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the total voting power of the Company or (iii) any merger or other 
corporate transaction after which the outstanding shares of the Company immediately prior thereto represent less than fitly percent (50%) of 
the voting power (in the election of directors) of the shares in the surviving entity immediately thereafter. 

(g) For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of the Prior Agreement, including the definitions of Change in Control, Cause, 
Good Reason, and Disability in such Prior Agreement, shall continue to be incorporated as part of any Existing Equity Awards to the extent so 
incorporated on the Commencement Date and any cash incentive awards made by the VMU or its affiliates to Executive, as well as any related 
award agreements. Except as otherwise specifically provided in the grant or other agreement, in the event of any inconsistency between the 
terms and conditions governing any Existing Equity Awards or cash incentive awards and the Prior Agreement, the provisions of the Prior 
Agreement shall govern. 
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(h) Accelerated Vestine of Future Equitv Awards. In the event that within two (2)years following a Change in Control 
Executive’s employment is terminated by reason of death, Disability, the Company without Cause or if Executive resigns for Good Reason, or 
Executive’s employment is terminated pursuant to the terms of a mutually agreed succession plan as described in Section 9(d) hereof all 
unvested future equity awards granted before 2012 (including the awards described in Section Ybl) then held by Executive shall fully vest upon 
the Occurrence of such termination of employment, provided, that if an award is subject to multiple levels of performance-vesting, such award 
shall vest based on required achievement in such equitable manner as established by the Compensation Committee at the time the award is 
made and paid out within sixty (60) days following termination. Notwithstanding anything herein to the conhilry, if within six (6) months prior to 
a Change in Control and in anticipation of such Change in Control (i) Executive is terminated by the Company without Cause, or (ii) Executive 
terminates employment for Good Reason, all unvested future equity awards (including the awards described in Section Xb)) then held by 
Executive shall fully vest as if the date of termination was immediately after the date of such Change in Control, hut payment of such amounts 
shall be made at such time as if a Change in Control had not occurred. Distribution of any equity award that is considered ‘honqualified 
deferred compensation” under Section 409A or would be if not qualifying for the “short term deferral” exception under Section 409A to the 
extent not provided herein, shall be made as provided in the applicable grant agreement (and in accordance with Section 409A). 

7. Emplovee Benefits. During the Employment Term, Executive shall be entitled to piuticipate in the Company’s employee benefit plans 
and payroll practices (other than bonus and incentive plans) as in effect from time to time (collectively “Emdowe Benefits”), on the same hasis 
as those benefits are generally made available to other senior executives of the Company; that for the Employment Term, Executive 
will be provided with a minimum of $2 million of life insurance death benefit protection, long-term disability protection of at least sixty-five 
(65%) of Executive’s Base Salary and four (4) weeks per year of vacation. 

8.  Business ExDenses. During the Employment Term, reasonable business expenses incurred by Executive in the performance of 
Executive’s duties hereunder shall be reimbursed by the Company in accordance with Company policies. All taxable payments and 
reimbursements related to expenses paid pursuant to this Section 8 shall be paid in accordance with Section 16(c) hereof. 

9. Termination. The Employment Term and Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by either party at any time and for 
any reason. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the provisions of this Section 9 shall exclusively govern Executive’s rights 
upon termination of employment with the Company. 

(a) BY the Commnv For Cause or BY Executive Resignation Without Good Reason. 

(i) The Employment Term and Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company for Cause and 
shall terminate autwMtically upon Executive’s resignation without Good Reason (other than pursuant to a mutually agreed succession plan as 
described in Section 9(d) hereof); &that Executive will be required to give the Company at least thirty (30) days advance Written notice 
of a resignation without Good Reason. 
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(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, ’ C 2 ”  shall mean, during the Employment Term: (i) Executive’s Willful misconduct 
or gross negligence with regard to the Company that has a material adverse effect on Company; (ii) Executive’s willful failure to attempt to 
follow proper legal Written direction ofthe Chief Executive Oficer within five (5) business days after written notice by the Company that failure 
to attempt to follow such direction shall be grounds for termination; (iii) Executive’s willful continuous failure to attempt in good faith to perform 
Executive’s duties hereunder (other than a result of incapacity due to physical or mental illness) within ten (10) days after delivev of a Written 
demand for substantial performance by the Company; (iv) Executive’s conviction of or plea of guilty or no contest to a felony (other than a 
traffic violation) or misdemeanor involving fraud or theft with respect to Company or Company customer businesses or assets; or 
(v) Executive’s breach of the provisions of Section IO or 1 l(a) of this Agreement which breach is not cured within fifteen (15) business days 
a k r  Executive’s receipt of written notice thereof from the Company. No act or failure to act (other than the events described in clause 
(ii) above) will be considered to be ‘ ~ U W  if undertaken (or omitted to be done) in good faith and with a reasonable belief that such action or 
inaction was in the best interests of the Company. No termination shall be for Cause unless the Notice of Termination (as defined below) is 
accompanied (or followed) by a resolution adopted by two-thirds of the full Board at a meeting at which (or following a meeting at which) 
Executive (and, if Executive elects, his counsel) are permitted to appear and respond to the charges and of which Executive has been given at 
least ten (10) days Written notice with reasonably specificity as to the alleged Cause event. 

(other than pursuant to a mutually agreed succession plan as described in Section 9(d) hereof), Executive shall be entitled to receive: 

(A) the Base Salary, and any accrued but unused and unpaid vacation, through the date of termination; 

(E) any Semi-Annual Bonus or STI award and Mid-Term Bonus earned, but unpaid, as of the date of termination 
for a preceding performance period, paid in accordance with Section 4 and Section 5 ,  respectively (except to the extent payment is 
otherwise deferred pursuant to any applicable deferred compensation arrangement with the Company); 

(C) reimbursement, within sixty (60) days following submission by Executive to the Company of appropriate 
supporting documentation, for any unreimbursed business expenses properly incurred by Executive in accordance with Company policy 
prior to the date of Executive’s termination; provided claims for such reimbursement (accompanied by appropriate supporting 
documentation) are submitted to the Company within ninety (90) days following the date of Executive’s termination of employment; 

(D) such Employee Benefits, if any, as to which Executive may be entitled under the employee benefit plans of the 
Company, to the extent such employee benefit plans expressly provide for the continuation of such Employee Benefits following 
termination of employment; and 

(iii) If Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause, or if Executive resigns without Good Reason 

(E) any equity rights and rights to LTI payments and/or awards expressly applicable following such a termination 
of employment pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement and any applicable equity plans and award agreements. 
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The amounts described in clauses (A) through (E) hereof are the “Accrued Riehts.” 

Following such termination of Executive’s employment by the Company for Cause or resignation by Executive without Good Reason, 
except as set forth in Sections 9(a)(iii), 13 and 16 and Executive’s rights with regard to indemnification and directors and officers liability 
insurance, Executive shall have no futher rights to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement. 

(b) Disability or Death 

(i) The Employment Term and Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate upon Executive’s death and may be 
terminated by the Company if Executive becomes physically or mentally incapacitated and is therefore unable for a period of six 
(6) consecutive months or for an aggregate of one hundred eighty (180) days in any twelve (12) month period to perform Executive’s material 
duties (such incapacity. a “Disabillh/’?. Any question as to the existence of the Disability of Executive as to which Executive and the Company 
cannot agree shall be determined in writing by a qualified independent physician mutually acceptable to Executive and the Company. If 
Executive and the Company cannot agree as to a qualified independent physician, each shall appoint such a physician and those two physicians 
shall select a third who shall make such determination in writing. The determination of Disability made in writing to the Company and Executive 
shall be final and conclusive for all purposes of the Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that as a result of absence because 
of mental and physical incapacity Executive incurs a Separation fiom Service (as defined in Section 16) , Executive shall on such date 
automatically be terminated from employment because of Disability. 

(ii) Upon termination of Executive’s employment hereunder for either Disability or death, Executive or Executive’s estate 
(as the case may be) shall be entitled to receive the payments and benefits described under Section 9(cKiii), subject to the terms and conditions 
set forth therein. 

(iii) Following Executive’s termination of employment due to death or Disability, except as set forth in Sections 9(bKii). 13 
and Executive’s rights with regard to indemnification and directors and officers liability insurance, Executive shall have no further ri&s 

to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement. 

(c) Bv the ComDanv Without Cause or Resirnation by Executive for Good Reason. 

(i) The Employment Term and Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company without Cause or 
by Executive’s resignation for Good Reason. 
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(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean, during the Employment Term (A) any diminution in 
Executive’s title; (B) any material adverse diminution in Executive’s duties or responsibilities such that they are materially inconsistent with 
Executive’s position (except for diminution due to Executive’s Disability or temporary illness or other absence), (C) relocation of Executive’s 
Principal Place of Emdoment to a location outside of Northern or Central New Jersey or New York City, New York; or (D) failure of the 
Company to timely pay Executive any of the compensation set forth in Sections 3.4 .  5 or 6 oftbe Agreement; e that no such even@) 
shall constitute “Gmd Reason” unless the Company shall have failed to cure such event(s) within twenty (20) days after receipt by the 
Company from Executive of Written notice describing in detail such events, In addition, except to the extent of any equity awards that are not 
Existing Equity Awards, either (I) a resignation by Executive for any reason during the thirty (30) day period commencing on the date that is six 
(6) months after a Change in Control, or (11) a resignation by Executive for any reason effective during the 60-day period commencing on 
January 1, 2012, shall be deemed to constitute Good Reason. Notwithstanding anything herein or the Prior Agreement to the contrary, 
Executive hereby acknowledges and agrees that changes to his position, title and activities consistent with this Agreement from those prior to 
the Commencement Date shall not constitute an event of “Good Reason” under this Agreement. 

(iii) If Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause or if Executive resigns for Good Reason, 
Executive shall be entitled to receive: 

(A) the Accrued Rights; 

(B) subject to Section 16 hereof, a lump sum cash payment equal to two times the sum of (a) Executive’s Base 
Salary in effect on the Merger Closing Date plus (b) Executive’s Target Bonus amount for 2009, paid twenty (20) days following 
Executive’s termination of employment; (C) a pro rata portion of the actual Semi-Annual Bonus or STI award for the year OF 
termination and any Mid-Term Bonus for any uncompleted measuring period that Executive would have been entitled to receive 
pursuant to Section 4 and Section 5 hereof, respectively, based on actual Company performance for the respective measurement period 
and upon the percentage of the measuring period that shall have elapsed through the date of ternxination of Executive’s employment, 
payable when such awards would have othenvise been payable had Executive’s employment not terminated; 

(D) (x) full vesting of any unvested RSUs at the time of termination of employment and paid within sixty (60) days 
following termination of employment and Q subject to Section 6(hl, a pro-rata payment (reflecting the period employed from the 
beginning of the performance period for the particular performance objective, as applicable, until the employment termination date as 
opposed to the full performance period for each such particular performance objective), if any, of the Executive’s performance-based 
awards (as described in Section 5(b)(ii) hereof) determined in an equitable manner as established by the Compensation Committee at 
the time such award is made and based on actual results and payable on the date payment wwld have been made if Executive was still 
employed with the Company; and 

(E) any equity rights expressly applicable following such termination of employment pursuant to Section 6 of this 
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e that the aggregate amount described in Section 9(c)(iii)(B) shall be in lieu of (and Executive shall not be eligible for) any other 
cash severance or termination benefits which would be payable to Executive under any other plans, programs or mangements of the Company 
w its &%liate.s; and provided. further, that, without prejudice to the Company’s other remedies at law or in equity, if Executive (x) breaches 
any of his obligations under Section 10 (which remains uncured for ten (10) days following written notice from the Company of such breach) or 
(y) materially breaches, during the one year period following Executive’s termination of employment with the Company, the confidentiality 
restrictions set forth in Section ll(a1 (including any willful breach or disclosure of material confidential information or other disclosure which 
could reasonably be expected to result in material harm to the Company), Executive shall cease to be eligible for the benefits in Section s(c)(iii) 
(B) above and Executive hereby agrees to promptly repay to the Company all amounts paid to him under Section 9(c\CiiO(B). 

Following Executive’s termination of employment by the Company without Cause (other than by reason of Executive’s death or 
Disability) or by Executive’s resignation for Good Reason, except as set forth in Sections 9(c)(iii). 13 and 16 and Executive’s rights with regard 
to indemnification and directors and officers liability insurance, Executive shall have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits 
under this Agreement. 

(d) Mutuallv Aaeed Succession Plan. 

(i) The Employment Term and Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated pursuant to the terms of a 
succession plan with respect to the position of President, Prepaid consented to in writing by Executive (which Executive may do or not do in his 
sole discretion), prior to the a‘currence of any of the events constituting Good Reason as set forth in Section 9(c)(iii) hereof. 

(ii) If Executive’s employment is terminated pursuant to the terms of a mutually agreed succession plan with as set forth in 
Section 9 (dW above, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary Executive shall be entitled to receive: 

(A) the Accrued Rights; 

(6) subject to Section 16 hereof, a lump sum cash payment equal to the sum of (a) Executive’s Base Salary in 
effect as of the date of termination plus (b) the Target Bonus amount for the year in which such termination occurs, paid twenty 
(20) days following Executive’s termination of employment; 

(C) a pro rata portion of the actual Semi-Annual Bonus or STI award for the year of termination and any Mid- 
Term Bonus for any uncompleted measuring period that Executive would have been entitled to receive pursuant to Section 4 and a respectively, based on actual applicable performance for the respective measurement period and upon the percentage of the 
measuring period that shall have elapsed through the date of termination of Executive’s employment, payable when such awards would 
have otherwise been payable had Executive’s employment not terminated; and 
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(D) (x) full vesting of any unvested RSUs at the time of termination of employment and paid within sixty (60) days 
following termination of employment and (y) subject to Section 6(h), a pro-rata payment (reflecting the period employed fiom the 
beginning of the performance period for the particular performance objective, as applicable, until the employment termination date as 
opposed to the full performance period for each such particular performance objective), if any, of the Executive’s performance-based 
awards (as described in Section XbMii) hereot) determined in an equitable manner as established by the Compensation Committee at 
the time such award is made and based on actual results and payable on the date payment would have been made if Executive was still 
employed with the Company; and 

(E) any equity rights expressly applicable following such termination of employment pursuant to Section 6 of this 
Agreement and any applicable equity plans and award agreements; 

e that the aggregate amount described in Section 9(dMiiXB\ shall be in lieu of (and Executive shall not be eligible for) any other 
cash severance or termination benefits which would be payable to Executive under any other plans, programs or arrangements of the Company 
w its Affiliates; and provided, further, that, without prejudice to the Company’s other remedies at law or in equity, if Executive (x) breaches 
any of his obligations under Section IO (which remains uncured for ten (IO) days following written notice fiom the Company of such breach) or 
(y) materially breaches, during the one y e a  period following Executive’s termination of employment with the Company, the confidentiality 
restrictions set forth in Section 1 ](a) (including any willful breach or disclosure of material confidential information or other disclosure which 
could reasonably be expected to result in material harm to the Company), Executive shall cease to be eligible for the benefits in Section 9(dVii) 

Following Executive’s termination of employment pursuant to a mutually agreed succession plan, except as set forth in Sections S(dMii2 
13 and 16 and Executive’s rights with regard to indemnification and directors and officers liability insurance, Executive shall have no further 
rights to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement. 

(e) Notice of Termination. Any purported termination of employment by the Company or by Executive (other than due to 
Executive’s death) shall be communicated by written Notice of Termination to the other party hereto in accordance with Section 15(h) hereof. 
For purposes of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” shall mean a notice which shall indicate the specific termination provision in this 
Agreement relied upon and shall set forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of 
employment under the provision so indicated. 
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10. Non-ComDetition. 

(a) Executive acknowledges and recognizes the highly competitive nature of the businesses of the Company and its AfIXiates and 

(i) During the Employment Term and, for a period of one ( I )  year following the date Executive ceases to be employed by 

(A) engage in or participate in a Competitive Business (as defined below). For purposes of this Agreement, 
‘nrnwtit ive Business” shall mean any entity, person or business, or any division, business unit or segment, that is primarily engaged in, 
devotes substantial resources to, or generates more than fifteen percent (15%)of its revenue from, (i)the wireless youth 
telecommunications business (pre- or post-paid) or (ii) any other business that competes with the wireless telecommunications business 
of the Company or its subsidiaries as in effect upon the date of Executive’s termination of employment (or (x) any other material line of 
business of the Company or its subsidiaries as of the date of termination of Executive’s employment or b) businesses which the 
Company or its subsidiaries have specific plans to conduct as material lines of business during the Restricted Period and as to which 
Executive is aware of such planning) (the “Company Business”) in the United States or any other geographical area where the Company 
manufactures, produces, sells, leases, rents, licenses or otherwise provides its products or services; 

(B) enter the employ of, or render any services to, any entity, person or business, or any division, business unit or 
segment who or which is a Competitive Business or h i c h  has an Affiliate that is engaged in a Competitive Business; that, 
notwithstanding the foregoing, it is agreed it shall not be a breach of Section lO(a)(i)(A) or (B) for Executive to provide services to an 
entity or person, that is not itself a Competitive Business, but either (I) has a division, business unit or segment that is a Competitive 
Business or (11) has an Aftiliate that (x) is a Competitive Business or (y) has a division, business unit or segment that is a Competitive 
Business, so long as Executive demonstrates to the Company’s reasonable satisfaction that Executive does not and will not, directly or 
indirectly, provide services or advice to such division, business unit or segment, or such Affiliate (or its division, business unit or 
segment) that is the Competitive Business, provided that for this purpose services or advice shall be deemed not to include services or 
advice that is unrelated to the operations, management, strategic planning or marketing activities of any aspect of the business of such 
division, business unit or segment or such Affiliate (or its division, business unit or segment) that is competitive with the Company 
Business; 

(C) aquire a financial interest in, or othenvise become actively involved with, any Competitive Business, directly 
or indirectly, as an individual, partner, shareholder, ofticer, director, principal, agent, trustee or consultant; or 

(D) interfere with, or attempt to interfere with, business relationships (whether formed before, on or after the date 
of this Agreement) between the Company or any of its Affiliates and customers, clients, suppliers, partners, members or investors of the 
Company or its Affiliates existing as of the date of Executive’s termination of employment. For the avoidance of doubt, the foregoing 
restriction with respect to ultimate consumers of the Company’s business shall mean solely that Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, 
target, in particular, the Company’s ultimate consumers. 

accordingly agrees as follows: 

the Company (the “Restricted Period”), Executive will not directly or indirectly: 
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(ii) Not,&hmding anything to the conwary in this Agreement, Executive may, directly 01 indirectly Own, as an 
with employment or retention), securities of any person engaged in a Competitive Business, which Public'y 

on a national or regional st& exchange or on the over-the-counter market if Executive (i) is not a controlling person of, or amember of 
which controls, such person and (ii) does not, directly or indirectly, own three percent (3%) Or more of any class Of securities Of such 

(iii) k i n g  the Resb.icted Period, Executive will not, whether on Executive's own behalf or on behalf of or in COnjUnCtiOn 

(A) solicit or encourage any employee of the Company or its Affiliates (other than his secretary and administrative 
assistant) to leave the employment of the Company or its Attiliates; provided the foregoing shall not be violated by general advertising 
for employees or undirected activities of search firms; or 

(6) hire any person who was employed by the Company or its Affiliates as of the date of Executive's termination 
of employment with the Company or who left the employment of the Company or its Miliates coincident with, or within six (6) months 
prior to or after, the termination of Executive's employment with the Company (other than his secretary and administrative assistant); 

that the foregoing shall not limit any entity with which Executive is associated from hiring any person so long as Executive is 
not, directly or indirectly, involved in the hiring process. 

(iv) During the Restricted Period, Executive will not, directly or indirectly, solicit or encourage to cease to work with the 

(b) It is expressly understood and agreed that although Executive and the Company consider the restrictions contained in this 
Section IO to be reasonable, if a final judicial determination is made by a court of competent jurisdiction that the time or territory or any other 
restrictim contained in this Agreement is an unenforceable restriction against Executive, the provisions of this Agreement shall not be rendered 
void but shall be deemed amended to apply as to such maximum time and territory and to such maximum extent as such court may judicially 
determine or indicate to be enforceable. Alternatively, if any court of competent jurisdiction finds that any restriction contained in this 
Agreement is unenforceable, and such restriction cannot be amended so as to make it enforceable, such fmding shall not affect the 
enforceability of any of the other restrictions contained herein. 

investment (ol. in 

a 
person. 

with any person, company, business entity or other organization whatsoever, directly or indirectly: 

Company or its Affiliates any consultant then under contract with the Company or its Miliates. 
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11. Coniidentialitv: Inventions. 

(a) confidentiality. Executive will not at any time (whether during or after Executive’s employment with the Company), (i) except 
as required by law (or as Executive reasonably determines in good faith during the Employment Term is necessary in the conduct of the 
business and in the best interests of the Company), disclose or provide to any third party or (ii) use for Executive’s own benefit, purposes or 
account or the benefic purposes or account of any other person, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, corporation or other business 
organization, entity or enterprise other than the Company and any of its subsidiaries or Afiliates, in each case, any trade secrets, know-how, 
software developments, inventions, formulae, technology, designs and drawings, or any Company property or confidential information relating 
to research, operations, finances, current and proposed products and services, vendors, customers, advertising, costs, marketing, trading, 
investment, sales activities, promotion, manufacturing processes, or the business and affairs of the Company generally, or of any subsidiary or 
Affiliate of the Company (‘Confidential Information”) without the prior witten authorization of the Company; & that the fwegoing shall 
not apply to information which is not unique to the Company or which is generally known to the industry or the public, in each case, other than 
as a result of Executive’s breach of this covenant or the wrongful acts of others who were under confidentiality obligations as to the item or 
items involved and such obligation is known to Executive. Except as required by law, Executive will not disclose to anyone, other than his 
immediate family and legal or financial advisors, the existence or contents of this Agreement; & that Executive may disclose to any 
prospective future employer the provisions of Sections IO and 11 of this Agreement provided they are advised of the need to maintain the 
confidentiality of such terms. Executive agrees that upon termination of Executive’s employment with the Company for any reason, he will 
return to the Company immediately all memoranda, books, papers, plans, information, letters and other data, and all copies thereof or 
therefrom, in any way relating to the business of the Company, its Affiliates and subsidiaries, except that he may retain only those portions of 
personal notes, notebooks and diaries that do not contain Confidential Information. 

(b) Prior Inventions. To the fullest extent permissible by law, Executive hereby grants the Company a non-exclusive royaltyfree, 
irrevocable, perpetual, worldwide license under all rights, if any, owned by Executive in any inventions, works of authorship, developments and 
other intellectual property (“Inventions’) that were created or contributed to by Executive either solely or jointly with others prior to Executive’s 
employment with the Company (collectively referred to as ‘Trior Inventions”) to make, have made, copy, modify, distribute, use and sell works 
of authorship, products, services, processes and machines and to otherwise operate the Company’s current and future business. 
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(c) Ownershin of Inventions. Executive agrees that Executive will promptly make full written disclosure to the Company, and 
Executive hereby assigns to the Company, or its designee, all of Executive’s right, title, and interest in and to any and all Inventions, whether or 
not patentable, which Executive may solely or jointly conceive or develop or reduce to practice, or cause to be conceived 01 developed or 
reduced to practice, during the period of time Executive is in the employ of the Company (collectively referred to as “Companv Inventions’?. 
Executive M e r  acknowledges that all original wwks of authorship that are created or contributed to by Executive (solely or jointly with 
others) within the scope of and during the period of Executive’s employment with the Company are to be deemed “works made for hire,” as 
that term is defined in the United States Copyright Act (17 U.S.C. Section IOI), and the Company will own all right, title and interest in such 
works, including all copyright and all intellectual properly therein shall be the sole property of the Company or its designee for all territoties of 
the world in pelpetuity, including any and all copyright registrations, copyright applications and all other copyrightable materials, including any 
renewals and extensions thereof, and in and to all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the works covered by such copyrights and 
in and to all income, royalties, damages, claims, and payments now or hereinafter due or payable with respect thereto, and in all causes of 
action, either in law or in equity for past, present or future infringement based on said copyrights, and in and to all rights corresponding to the 
foregoing throughout the world. To the extent any of such works are deemed not to be “works made for hire,” Executive hereby assigns the 
copyright and all other intellectual property rights in such works to the Company. 

(d) Contracts with the United States. Executive agrees to execute any licenses or assignments as with regard to Company 
Inventions as reasonably required by any contract between the Company and the United States or any of its agencies. 

(e) Maintenance of Records. Executive agrees to keep and maintain adequate and culrent written records of all Company 
Inventions made by Executive (solely or jointly with others) during the term and within the scope of Executive’s employment with the Company. 
The records will be in the form of notes, sketches, drawings, and any other format that may be specified by the Company. The records will be 
available to and remain the sole property and intellectual property of the Company at all times. 

(0 Further Assurances. Executive covenants to take all reasonably requested actions and execute all reasonable requested 
documents to assist the Company, or its designee, at the Company’s expense (but without further remuneration), in every way to secure the 
Company’s above rights in the Prior Inventions and Company Inventions and any copyrights, patents, mask work rights or other intellectual 
property rights relating thereto in any and all countries, and to pursue any patents or regishations with respect thereto. Section 1 1  shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement and Executive’s employment. If the Company is unable for any reason to secure Executive’s signature on any 
document for this purpose, then Executive hereby irrevocably designates and appoints the Company and its duly authorized officers and agents 
as Executive’s agent and attorney in fact, to act for and in Executive’s behalf and stead to execute any documents and to do all other lawfully 
permitted acts in connection with the foregoing. 

12. Specific. Executive acknowledges and agrees that the Company’s remedies at law for a breach or threatened breach 
of any of the provisions of Section 10 or Section 1 I would be inadequate and the Company would suffer irreparable damages as a result of 
such breach or threatened breach. In recognition of this fact, Executive a c e s  that, in the event of such a breach OT threatened breach, in 
addition to any remedies at law, the Company, without posting any bond, shall be entitled to obtain equitable relief in the form of specific 
performance, temporary restraining order, temporary or permanent injunction or any other equitable remedy which may then be available. 
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13. 28OG Gross-UD. Attachment A hereto sets forth Executive’s rights with regard to a gross-up of the excise tax, if any, incurred 
under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Q&‘), as a result of the Merger and any occurrences thereafter 
that result in an excise tax because of its relationship to the Merger and its resulting treatment as contingent on a Change in Control of W, 
and shall survive any termination of Executive’s employment, For the avoidance of doubt, Attachment A shall not be applicable with regard to 
any excise tax incurred under Code Section 4999 resulting from a change of ownership or effective control or a change of the ownership of a 
substantial portion of the assets of the Company covered by Code Section 280G(b)(2) following the consummation of the Merger (a ‘‘m 
280G Event’?). With respect to a Future 280‘3 Event, Executive’s rights with regard to a gross-up of resulting excise tax, if any, incurred under 
Section 4999 of the Code, shall be equivalent to the gross-up rights provided to the Chief Executive Of%cer. 

14. -. 

Any dispute with regard to the enforcement of this Agreement or any matter relating to the employment of Executive by the Company 
including but not limited to disputes relating to claims of employment discrimination, alleged torts or MY violation of law other than the seeking 
of injunctive relief to preserve the status quo pending arbitration in accordance with applicable law under Section 12 hereof, shall be exclusively 
resolved by a single arbitrator at an arbitration to be conducted in New York City before, and pursuant to the National Rules for the Resolution 
of Employment Disputes rules of the American Arbitration Association (“m) with the arbitrator applying the substantive law of the State of 
New Yo& as provided for under Section ]%a) bereof. The AAA shall provide the parties hereto with lists for the selection of arbitrators 
composed entirely of arbitrators who are members of the National Academy of Arbitrators and who have prior experience in the arbitration of 
disputes between employers and senior executives. The determination of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties hereto and 
judgment therein may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. Each party shall pay its own attorneys fees and disbursements and 
other costs of the arbitration, subject to Section IXm) of this Agreement; provided that if the arbitrator determines that overall Executive has 
prevailed in the arbitration, Executive shall be entitled as part of the award to reimbursement by the Company for the reasonable fees and 
disbursements of counsel actually incurred by Executive in connection with such arbitration proceeding. If the foregoing proviso is applicable, 
the Company shall within sixty (60) days of the award pay Executive such amount, subject to an obligation of the Executive to repay if 
judgment on such portion of the award is not upheld by the ultimate decider of fact. 

15. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Governing Law: Jurisdiction. 7his Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
New York, without regard to conflicts of laws principles thereof. Any suit, action or proceeding related to this Agreement, or any judgment 
entered by any court related to this Agreement, may be brought only in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of New York, and the 
parties hereby submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts. The parties (and any Affiliates of the Company or beneficiq or permitted 
transferee of Executive, or any successor to the Company or the Company’s At3liate) irrevocably waive any objections which they may now 
or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any suit, action or proceeding brought in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of New 
Yak,  and hereby irrevocably waive any claim that any such action, suit or proceeding has been brought in an inconvenient forum. 
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(b) Entire Aereementihendments. As of the Commencement Date, this Agreement contains the entire understanding of the 
parties with respect to the employment of Executive by the Company. There are no restrictions, agreements, promises, warranties, covenants 
or undertakings bemeen the parties with respect to the subject matter herein other than those expressly set forth herein. This Agreement may 
not be altered, modified, or amended except by written instrument signed by the parties hereto. 

(c) No Waiver. The failure of a party to insist upon strict adherence to any term of this Agreement on any occasion shall not be 
considered a waiver of such party’s rights or deprive such party of the right thereafter to insist upon strict adherence to that term or any other 
term of this Agreement. 

(d) Severability. In the event that any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall be or become invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

(e) Assimment. This Agreement shall not be assignable by Executive. This Agreement may be assigned by the Company only to 
a person or entity which is a successor in interest to substantially all of the business operations of the Company, and provided that such 
assignee promptly delivers to Executive a written assumption of the obligations hereunder. Upon such assignment, the rights and obligations of 
the Company hereunder shall become the rights and obligations of such successor person or entity. 

(f) MitigationNo Set OfflBeneficiary. Executive shall have no obligation to mitigate any amounts due him under Section 9 and 
any such amounts shall not be reduced by amounts earned by Executive for subsequent employment. The Company’s obligation to pay 
Executive the amounts provided and to make the arrangements provided hereunder shall not be subject to set off, counterclaim or recoupment. 
In the event Executive dies after termination of employment, but prior to the payment of any amounts due under Section 9, such amounts shall 
be paid to Executive’s estate or designated beneficiary. 

(8) Successors; Binding Ameement. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon personal or legal 
representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributes, devises and legatees. 

(h) Notice. For the purpose of this Agreement, notices and all other communications provided for in the Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered by hand or overnight courier or three days after it has been mailed by 
United States registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the respective addresses set forth below Agreement, or 
to such other address as either party may have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith, except that notice of change of address 
shall be effective only upon receipt. 
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If to the Company: 

General Counsel 
Sprint Nextel Corporation 
6200 Sprint Parkway 
Overland Park, KS 6625 1 

If to Executive: 

To the most recent address of Executive set forth in the personnel records of the Company. 

(i) Executive Representation. Executive hereby represents to the Company that the execution and delivery of this Agreement by 
Executive and the Company and the performance by Executive of Executive’s duties hereunder, shall not constitute a breach of, or otherwise 
contravene, the terms of any employment agreement or other agreement or policy to which Executive is a party or otherwise bound. The 
Company acknowledges that Executive is subjed to certain confidentiality and nonsolicitation obligations with regard to his prior employer 
(pursuant to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Priceline.com Incorporated and Daniel H. Schulman, dated 
December 20, 2000) and agrees not to require Executive to violate such obligations, and Executive agrees to fulfill his confidentiality and 
nonsolicitation obligations. Executive hereby represents that he has previously disclosed to the Company in writing all competition, solicitation 
and confidentiality covenants to which he is subject. 

0) Prior Ameement.. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings (including verbal agreements) between 
Executive and the Company andor its Affiliates regarding the terms and conditions of Executive’s employment with the Company. Until the 
Commencement Date, the Prior Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and apply to any matter occurring prior to the Commencement 
Date. In the event the Merger is not consummated and the Merger Agreement is terminated this Agreement shall be null and void and the Prior 
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

(k) Cooperation. Executive shall provide his reasonable cooperation in connection with any action or proceeding (or any appeal 
from any action or proceeding) which relates to events occurring during Executive’s employment hereunder. This provision shall s w i v e  any 
termination of this Agreement. 

(I) Withholdinc Taxes. The Company may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such Federal, state and 
local taxes as may be required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation. With respect to any tax withholdings that become 
due in connection with the vesting of Executive’s Restricted Units or Restricted Stock Units, Executive shall be entitled to satisfy the tax 
withholding requirements thereon by having the Company withhold a portion of such Units or Restricted Stock Units (as the case may be) 
equal to the statutory minimum required withholding amounts. 
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(m) Leral Fees. The Company shall pay the reasonable legal fees (based only upon actual time charges and disbursements of 
cwnsel) incurred by Executive in negotiating and entering into this Agreement. Any reimbursement that is treated as taxable income shall be 
paid to Executive promptly and in accordance with Section 16fc) hereof. 

(n) Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the 
signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. 

16. Compliance with IRC Section 409A. 

(a) The intent of the parties is that payments and benefits under this Agreement comply with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 409A and the regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder (“Section 409A”) and, accordingly, to the maximum extent permitted 
this Agreement shall be interpreted to be in compliance therewith. If Executive notifies the Company (with specificity as to the reason therefor) 
that Executive believes that any provision of this Agreement (or of any award of compensation, including equity compensation or benefits) 
would cause Executive to incur any additional tax or interest under Section 409A and the Company concurs with such belief or the Company 
(without any obligation whatsoever to do so) independently makes such determination, the Company shall, after consulting with Executive, 
promptly reform such provision to attempt to comply with Section 409A through good faith modifications to the minimum extent reasonably 
appropriate to conform with Section 409A. To the extent that any provision hereof is modified in order to comply with Section 409A, such 
modification shall be timely made in good faith and shall, to the maximum extent reasonably possible, maintain the original intent and economic 
benefit to Executive and the Company of the applicable provision without violating the provisions of Section409A. From time to time, the 
Company shall review its plans, programs and payroll practices with respect to Section 409A, and, if it determines in good faith that a revision 
or modification of any such plan, program or payroll practices is necessary to comply with Section 409A, it shall promptly undertake such 
revision or modification. 

(b) A termination of employment shall not be deemed to have occurred for purposes of any provision of this Agreement 
providing for the payment of any amounts or benefits that is considered “nonqualified deferred compensation” under Section 409A upon or 
following a termination of employment unless such termination is also a Separation from Service (as defined below) and, for purposes of any 
such provision of this Agreement, references to a “termination,” “termination of employment” or like terms shall mean Separation from Service. 
If Executive is deemed on the date of termination to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of that term under Section 409A(a)(ZXB), 
then with regard to any payment or the provision of any benefit that is specified herein as subject to this Section or is otherwise considered 
“nonqualified deferred compensation” under Section 409A (whether under this Agreement, any other plan, program, payroll practice or any 
equity grant) and is due u p  Executive’s Separation from Service, such payment or benefit shall not be made or provided until the date which 
is the earlier of (A) the expiration of the six (6)-month period measured from the date of such Separation from Service of the Executive, and 
(B) the date of Executive’s death (the “Delay Period”’) and this Agreement and each such plan, program, payroll practice or equity grant shall 
hereby be deemed amended accordingly. Upon the expiration of the Delay Period, all payments and benefits delayed pursuant to this 
Section 16(b) (whether they would have otherwise been payable in a single sum or in installments in the absence of such delay) shall be paid or 
reimbursed to Executive in a lump sum, and any remaining payments and benefits due under this Agreement shall be paid or provided in 
accordance with the normal payment dates specified for them herein. 
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(c) All expenses or other reimbursements paid pursuant to Sections 8(a) and W m )  hereof that are taxable income to the 
Executive shall in no event be paid later than the end of the calendar year next following the calendar year in which Executive incurs such 
expense or pays such related tax. With regard to any provision herein that provides for reimbursement of costs and expenses or in-kind 
benefits, except as permitted by Section 409A, (i) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation OT exchange 
for another benefit, (ii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, of in-kind benefits, provided during any taxable year shall not affect 
the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other taxable year, provided that the foregoing clause 
(ii) shall not be violated without regard to expenses reimbursed under any arrangement covered by lntemal Revenue Code Section 105(b) 
solely because such expenses are subject to a limit related to the period the arrangement is in effect and (iii) such payments shall be made on or 
before the last day of Executive’s taxable year following the taxahle year in which the expense occurred. Any tax gross-up shall be made no 
later than the end of the calendar year next following the calendar year in which the Executive remits the related tax. Any reimbursement of 
expenses incurred due to a tax audit or litigation shall be made no later than the end of the calendar year immediately following the calendar 
year in which the taxes that are the subject of the audit or litigation are remitted to the taxing authority, or, if no taxes are to he remitted, the end 
of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the audit or litigation is completed. 

(d) Whenever a payment under this Agreement specifies a payment period with reference to a number of days (e.g.. “payment 
shall be made within thirty (30) days following the date of termination”), the actual date of payment within the specified period shall be within 
the sole discretion of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any payment or reimbursement made pursuant to Attacbment A shall be 
paid to the Executive promptly and in no event later than the end of the calendar year next following the calendar year in which the related tax is 
paid by the Executive or where no taxes are required to be remitted, the end of the Executive’s calendar year following the Executive’s 
calendar year in which the audit is completed or there is a final and nonappealable settlement or other resolution of the litigation. 
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(e) “Separation from Service” means “Separation from service” from the Company and its subsidiaries as described under Code 
Section 4WA and the guidance and Treasury regulations issued thereunder. Separation from Service will occur on the date on which the 
Executive’s level of services to the Company decreases to 21 percent or less of the average level of services performed by the Executive over 
the immediately preceding 36-month period (or i f  providing services for less than 36 months, such lesser period) afler taking into account any 
services that the Executive provided prior to such date or that the Company and the Executive reasonably anticipate the Executive may provide 
(whether as an employee or as an independent contractor) afler such date. For purposes of the determination of whether the Executive has had 
a Separation from Service, the term ‘Company” shall mean the Company and any affiliate with which the Company would be considered a 
single employer under Code Section 414(b) or 414(c), provided that in applying Code Sections 1563(a)(1), (Z), and (3) for purposes of 
determining a controlled group of corporations under Code Section 414(h), the language “at least 50 percent” is used instead of “at least 80 
percent”each place it appears in Code Sections 1563(aKI), (2) and (3), and in applying Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2 for purposes 
of determining trades or businesses (whether or not incorporated) that are under common control for purposes of Code Section 414(c), “at 
least 50 percent” is used instead of “at least 80 percent” each place it appears in Treasluy Regulation Section 1.414(~)-2. In addition, where 
the use of such defiition of “Company” for purposes of determining a Separation &om Service is based upon legitimate business criteria, in 
applying Code Sections 1563(a)(I), (2), and (3) for purposes of determining a controlled group of corporations under Code Section 414(b), 
the language “at least 20 percent” is used instead of “at least 80 percent” at each place it appears in Code Sections 1563(a)(1), (2) and (3), 
and in applying Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2 for purposes of determining trades or businesses (whether or not incorporated) that 
are under common control for purposes of Code Section 414(c), “at least 20 percent” is used instead of “at least 80 percent” at each place it 
appears in Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(~)-2. 

[Signature Page to FoNowJ 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to he signed by an officer pursuant to the authority of its Board, 
and the Executive has executed this Agreement, as of the day and year first written above. 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

/s/Sandra J Price 
By: Sandra J. Price 

Senior Vice President, Human Resources 

DANIEL H. SCHULMAN 

/s/ Daniel H, Schulman 
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Section 4: EX-12 (COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED 
FIXED CHARGES) 

Exhibit 12 

Computation ofRatio ofEnrmogs to Combined Fired Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends 

For the Years Ended 
December 31, 

1w9 ZOQ8 ZWJ7 ImM 1005 
I" m1111.11 

Fixed charges 
Interest capitalized 

rtization of interest capitalized 
Earnrngs (loss), as adjusted 

Fixed charges 
est expense. gross 

Interest capitalized 
f rentals representative of interest 

Preferred stock dividends paid 
Total fixed charges 
Total fixed charges and preferred stockdividends 
Ratio of combined earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends - 0 1  -<*I -01 166 - I 6 9  - - - - 

(Back To Toe) 
I 

Section 5: EX-21 (SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT) 

Exhibit 21 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT 

Sprint Nextel Corporation is the parent. The subsidiaries of Sprint Nextel Corporation are as follows: 

Ownership 
Inbrut  
Held 
By 11s 
Immediate 



or O.I."L.lion Pwml 

Delaware 100 

100 

Name 

Alamosa Holdings, Inc. 
Subsidiary: Delaware Aiffiale PCS, Inc. 

Subsidiaries: 
AGW Leasing Company, Inc. 
AirGate Network Services, LLC 
AirGate Service Company, Inc, 

Alamosa PCS Holdings, Inc. 
Subsidiary: 

Alamosa (Delaware), Inc. 
Subsidiaries: 

AlamOSa Delaware Operations, LLC 
Alamosa Holdings, LLC 

Alamosa PCS, Inc. 
Subsidiaries: 

Subsidiary: 

Alamosa Wisconsin GP, LLC 
Subsidiary: 

Alamosa Wisconsin Limited Partnership 
Subsidiary: 

Alamosa (Wisconsin) Propenies, LLC 
Alamosa Finance, LLC 
Alamosa Limited, LLC 

Subsidiary: 
Texas Telecommunications, LP 

Subsidiary: 
Alamosa hoperties. LP 

AlamOSa Delaware GP, LLC 
Subsidiaries: 

Alamosa Properties, LP 
Texas Telecommunications. LP 

Alamosa Wisconsin Limited Partnership 
Alamosa Missouri, LLC 

Subsidiary: 
Alamosa Missouri Properties, LLC 

Washington Oregon Wireless, LLC 
Subsidiaries: 

Washington Oregon Wireless Licenses, LLC 
Washingtan Oregon Wireless Properties, LLC 

SWLP, L.L.C. 
Subsidiary: 

Southwest PCS, L.P 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Wisconsin 

Wisconsin 

Wisconsin 
Delaware 
Delaware 

TCXi3.9 

Texas 
Delaware 

Texas 
Texas 
Wisconsin 
Missouri 

Missouri 
Oregon 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Oklahoma 

Oklahoma 

100 
100 
100 
100 

100 

100 
100 

100 

100 

1 

100 
100 
100 

99 

99 
100 

1 
1 

99 
100 

100 
100 

100 
100 
100 

99 



Ownership 
1"llrr.t 
Held 

iurildiciion ar By Its 
I"Co,po..liO" I",mdi.te 
or 0,g.nhllion p.re.t N.ln* 

(Alamasa Holdings, LLC subsidiaries continued) 
SWFP, L.L.C. Oklahoma IO0 

Subsidiary 
Southwest PCS, L.P. Oklahoma I 

Subsidiaries: 
Southwest PCS Licenses, LLC Delaware IO0 

Southwest PCS Properties, LLC Delaware 100 
American Telecasting, Inc Delaware 100 

Atlanta MDS Co., Inc. Georgia 100 

Caroline Ventures, Inc. Delaware IO0 
C FON Corporation Delaware 100 
iPCS, Inc. Delaware 100 

Bnght PCS Holdings, Inc. Delaware 100 

Bright Personal Communications Services, LLC Ohio 100 
iPCS Wireless, Inc. Delaware 100 

iPCS Equipment, Inc. Delaware 100 
Horizon Personal Communications, Inc. Ohio IO0 

IWO Holdings, Inc. Delaware 100 

Independent Wireless One Corporation Delaware 100 

Independent Wireless One Leased Realty Corporation Delaware IO0 
Lor Angeles MDS Company, Inc. California 100 

New York MDS, Inc. Delaware 100 

Nextel Communications, Inc. Delaware 100 

Dial Call Midwest, Inc. Delaware IO0 
NCI 900 Spectrum Holdings, Inc. Delaware 100 

ACI 900, Inc. Delaware IO0 

Subsidiary 
SN UHC 3, Inc. (see People's Choice TV Corp. for SN UHC 3, Inc. subs; see endnote) Delaware 29.631') 

Subsidiary: 
SN IIHC 2, Inc. (see Sprint WBC afNew Y o h ,  Inc. for SN UHC 2, Inc. subs, see endnote) Delaware 4.421') 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary: 

Subsidiary: 

Subsidiary: 

Subsidiary: 
SN UHC 2, Inc. (see Sprint WBC of New Yark, Inc. for SN UHC 2, Inc. subs; see endnote) Delaware 8 5!W 

Subsidiary: 
SN UHC 2, Inc. (see Sprint WBC ofNew York, Inc. far SN UHC 2, Inc. subs; see endnote) Delaware 21.58(>1 

Subsidiaries: 

Subsidiaries: 

2 



(Nextel Finance Company subsidiaries continued) 
Velocita Wireless Holding Carp. 

Subsidiaries: 
Machine License Holding, LLC 
Velocifa Wireless Holding. LLC 

Subsidiaries: 

Nextel Finance Company 

FCI 900, Inc. 
Nextel of California, Inc. 

Machine License Holding, LLC 

Subsidiaries: 

Subsidiaries: 
Boost Mobile, LLC 
Nextel Boost ofCalifornia, LLC 

Nextel Communications of the Mid-Atlantic, Inc. 
Subsidiary 

Nextel Boost ofthe Mid-Atlantic, LLC 
Nextel License Acquisition Corp. 
Nextel ofNew York, Inc. 

Subsidiary: 
Nextel Boost of New York, LLC 

Nextel Operations, Inc. 
Subsidiary 

Nextel South Corp. 
Subsidiaries: 

Nextel Retail Stores, LLC 

Nextel Boost South, LLC 
Nextel License Holdings I ,  Inc. 
Nextel License Holdings 3, Inc. 

Nextel Systems Corp. 
Nextel ofTexas, Inc. 

Subsidiary: 

Nextel West Corp. 
Subsidiaries 

Nextel BoostofTexas, LLC 

Nextel Boost West, LLC 
Nextel West Services, LLC 
Nextel License Holdings 2, Inc. 
Nextel License Holdings 4, Inc. 

Nextel of Puerto Rico, Inc. 
Subsidiary 

Nextel License Holdings 5 ,  Inc. 
Sprint Nextel Holdings (ME) Carp. 
Tower Parent Corp. 
Unrestricted Subsidiary Funding Company 

Subsidiaries: 
Nextel 220 License Acquisition Carp. 

3 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Georgia 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Texas 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delawarc 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Puerio Rim 

Puerto Rico 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

i00 

96.17 
100 

3.83 
100 

100 
100 

100 
100 
100 

100 
100 
100 

100 
100 

100 
100 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

100 
100 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

100 
100 
100 
100 

100 



(Nextel Finance Company subsidiaries continued) 
Nextel Broadband, Inc. 
Nextel Data Investments I ,  Inc. 
Nextel Unrestricled Relocation Com 
Nextel 700 Guard Band Corp 
SN UHC 1, Inc 

Subsidiary: 
Sprint HaldCo, LLC 

Subsidiary: 
Cleanvire Communications LLC 
Clearwire Corporation 

Unrestricted UMTS Funding Company 

Domestic USF Corp. 
Subsidiaries: 

Falcon Administration, L.L.C. 
Nextel WIP Corp. 

Subsidiary: 
Nextel Partners, Inc. 

Subsidiary: 
Nextel Partners Operating Corp. 

Subsidiaries: 
Nextel Partners of Upstale New Yark, Inc. 
Nextel WIP Expansion Carp. 
Nextel WIP Exbansion Two Corp. 
Nextel WIP Lease Corp. 
Nextel WIP License Corp. 
NPCR, Inc. 

Subsidiary: 
Nextel Partners Eauioment LLC 

NPFC, Inc. 
Nextel Boast Investment, Inc 

Subsidiary: 
Boast Worldwide, Inc. 

Nextel China Holding Company 
NCI 700, Inc 
Sprint Nextel Aviation, Inc. 
Unrestricted Extend America Investment Corp 
Unrestricted Subscriber Equipment Leasing Company, Inc. 

People's Choice TV Corp. 
Subsidiaries: 

G & S Television Network, Inc. 
Subsidiary: 

SN UHC 3, Inc. (see People's Choice TV Corp. for SN UHC 3, Inc. subs; see endnote) 
SN UHC 3, h e .  (see SN UHC 3, Inc. subs below; see endnote) 

Subsidiary: 
Sprint HoldCo, LLC 

Subsidiary: 
Clearwire Communications LLC 
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Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Washington 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Nevada 
Nevada 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Michigan 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

54.59 

56.36191('1 
56.361911'1 
100 

100 

100 
100 

100 

100 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

100 
100 
100 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

100 

l . 4 I l ~ ~  
53 55ill 

30.35 

56.361911~1 



(People's Choice TV Corp  subsidiaries cantinued] 

Pin Drop Insurance, Ltd. 
San Francisco MDS, Inc. 

C l e w i r e  Corporation 

Subsidiary: 

S-N GC GP, Inc. 
Subsidiaries: 

SN UHC 2, Inc. (see Sprint WBC ofNew York, Inc. for SN UHC 2, Inc. subs, see endnote) 

Gulfcoast Wireless Limited Partnership (see S-NGC HaldCa, LLC) 
S-N GC HoldCo, LLC (see S-N GC LP HoldCo, Inc.) 

Subsidiary: 
Gulfcoast Wireless Limited Partnership (see S-N GC GP, Inc.) 

S-N GC LP HoldCo, Inc. 
Subsidiary: 

SPCS Caribe Inc. 
Sprint Asian American, Inc. 
Sprint Capital Corporation 

EQF Holdings, LLC 

S-N GC HoldCo, LLC (see S-N GC GP, Inc.) 

Subsidiary: 

Sprintcorn, Inc. 
Subsidiaries: 

Sprintcorn ECP I, L.L.C. 
Subsidiary: 

Enterprise Communications Partnership (see Sprintcorn 
ECPII, L.L.C.) 
Subsidiaries: 

Enterprise Digital PCS, LLC 
Enterprise Towers, LLC 
Enterprise Wireless, LLC 

Sprintcorn ECP II, L.L.C. 
Subsidiary: 

Enterprise Communications Partnership (see Sprintcorn 
ECP 1. L.L.C.) ~ 

STC Two LLC (see Sprintcorn Equipment Company L P ) 
STE 14 Affiliate LLC 

Sprint Corporation 
Sprint Corporation (Inactive) 
Sprint Credit General, Inc. 
Sprint Credit Limited, Inc. 
Sprint eBusiness, Inc. 
Sprint Enterprise Mobility, Inc. 
Sprint Enterprise Network Services, Inc 
Sprint ewireless, Inc, 
Sprint Healthcare Systems, Inc. 

Delaware 
Bermuda 
California 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Louisiana Partnership 
Delaware LLC 

Louisiana Partnership 
Delaware 

Delaware LLC 
Puerto Rico 
Kansas 
Delaware 

Delaware LLC 
Kansas 

Delaware 

Georgia Partnership 

Georgia 
Georgia 
Georgia 
Delaware 

Georgia Partnership 
Delaware 
Delaware LLC 
Kansas 
Missouri 
Kansas 
Kansas 
Kansas 
Delaware 
Kansas 
Kansas 
Kansas 

56.36191[') 

100 
100 

4.1801 
100 

2 
I 

98 
100 

99 
100 
100 
100 

100 
100 

100 

50 

100 
100 
100 
100 

50 
15 
85 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

5 



OW"W.hip 
l"teE8t 
Held 

Juriidiction or By Its 
Inrorpor.lion I..rdi.l* 

N..* or org.ni..,ion P.P.", 

Sprint International Holding, Inc. Kansas IO0 

SETTOV UK Limited United Kingdom IO0 
SlHl Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (see Sprint International Incorporated) Mexico 99.9 
SlHl New Zealand Holdco, Inc. Kansas 100 

Sprint International New Zealand New Zealand IO0 
SlHl Scandinavia AB Sweden IO0 
SN Holdings (BR I )  LLC Delaware LLC IO0 
Sprint B r a d  Servicos de Telecornunicacoes Ltda. (see Sprint Intern. do B r a d  Ltda.) Brazil <. 01 

Hong Kong 50 

Sprint International Argentina SRL (see Sprint International Incorporated) Argentina YO 
Sprint International Australia PQ. Limited Australia 100 
Sprint International Austria GmbH Austria 100 
Sprint International Chile Lirnitada (see Sprint International Incorporated) Chile 99.9 
Sprint International Colombia Ltda. (see Sprint International Incorporated) Colombia 99.9 
Sprint International Communications Canada ULC Canada 100 
Sprint International Communications Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100 
Sprint International do B r a d  Ltda. (see Sprint lnternational Incorporated) 

Sprint B r a d  Sewicas de Telecomunicacoes Ltda. (see Sprint Intern. Holding) 
Sprint International Holding, Inc. -Japanese Branch Office Japan IO0 
Sprint International Holding, Inc. - Shanghai Representative Office China IO0 
Sprint International Japan Corp. Japan IO0 
Sprint International Korea Korea IO0 
Sprint International Norway AS NOWay IO0 
Sprint International Spain, S.L. (see Sprint International Incorporated) Spain 98 
Sprint International Taiwan Limited Taiwan 100 
Sprint International Venezuela, S.R.L. Venezuela 100 
SprintLink Belgium BVBA (see Sprint International Incorporated) Belgium 99.96 
SprintLink Denmark ApS Denmark IO0 
SprintLink France SAS France 100 
SprintLink Germany GmbH Germany 100 
Sprintlink India Private Limited (see Sprint International Incorporated) 
SprintLink International (Switzerland) GmbH Switzerland 95 
SprintLink Ireland Limited Ireland 100 
SprintLink Italy S r.1. (see Sprint International Incorporated) Italy 99 

Subsidiaries: 

Subsidiary 

Sprint Hong Kong Limited (see Sprint International Incorporated) 

Brazil 50 

Brazil > 99.9 
Subsidiary: 

India > 99.99 

6 



(Sprint International Holding, Inc. subsidiaries continued) 

SprintLink Netherlands B.V. 
SprintLink U K  Limited 

Sprint Mexico, Inc. 
Sprint PCS Canada Holdings, Inc. 
Sprint Solutions, Inc. 
Sprint TELECENTERs, Inc. 
SprintlUnited Management Company 
Sprint Ventures, Inc. 

Subsidiary: 
Virgin Mobile USA, L.P. (see Virgin Mobile USA, Inc.) 

Sprint Wavepath Holdings, Inc. 
Subsidiary: 

SN UHC 3, Inc. (see People's Choice TV COT. for SN UHC 3, Inc. subs; see endnote) 
Wavepath Holdings, Inc. (see Transworld Telecommunications, Inc.) 

Subsidiary: 

Sprint WBC o f N e w  York, Inc. 
SN UHC 3, Inc. (see People's Choice TV COT. for SN UHC 3, Inc. subs; see endnote) 

Subsidiarv: 
SN UHC 2, Inc. (see SN UHC 2, Inc. subs below; see endnote) 

Subsidiary: 
Sprint HoldCo, LLC 

Subsidiary: 
Clearwire Communications LLC 
Clearw ire Corporation 

SWV Eight, Inc. 
Subsidiary: 

SWV Three Telephony Partnership (see SWV Seven, Inc.) 
Subsidiary: 

Sprint Telephony PCS, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P.) 
Subsidiaries: 

Sprint PCS Assets, L.L.C. 

STC One LLC 
Sprint PCS License, L.L.C. 
PCS Leasing Company, L P .  (see Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L .P)  

Subsidiary 

1 

Netherlands 
United Kingdom 
Kansas 
Kansas 
Delaware 
Florida 
Kansas 
Kansas 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware Pamership 

Delaware Partnership 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware Partnership 

Oxntribip 
Inkru t  
Held 
By Ita 
I"W"ddi.1. 
Pare", 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

16.6508(1) 
100 

3.431" 
62 5 

10.801'l 
100 

4 l ,9 l ( l l  

3 02 

56.3619101 
56,361911') 

100 

22 

40.8 

100 

100 
100 
51 



SWV Five, Inc. 
Subsidiaries: 

PhillieCo Partners I, L.P. (see SWV Four, Inc.) 
Subsidiary 

PhillieCo Sub, L.P. (see PhillieCo Partners I I ,  L.P.) 
Subsidiaries, 

PhillieCo, L.P. (see PhillieCo Partners I I ,  L.P.) 
Subsidiary: 

STC Four LLC 
PhillieCo EauiDment& Realty Comrranv. L.P. (see PhillieCa Partners II ,  L.P) . .  

PhillieCo Partners 11, L.P. (kt SWV Four; Inc.) 
Subsidiaries: 

PhillieCo Equipment & Really Company, L.P. (see PhillieCo Sub, L.P.) 
PhillieCo, L.P. (see PhillieCa Sub, L.P.) 
PhillieCo Sub, L.P. (see PhillieCo Partners I. L.P,) 

SWV Four, Inc. 
Subsidiaries: 

PhillieCa Partners I, L.P. (see Spin1 Enterpises, L.P.) 
PhillieCo Partners I I ,  L.P. (see Sprint Enterprises, L.P.) 
S W V  Two Telephony Partnership (see SWV Three, Inc.) 

Subsidiaries: 
Minorca, L.P. (see SWV One Telephony Partnership) 

Subsidiaries: 
American PCS, L.P. (see Sprint SpeClNm Holding Company, L.P.) 

Subsidiaries: 
American PCS Communications, LLC (see American Personal Communications 

Holdings, Inc.) 
Subsidiaries: 

AFC FCS, LLC (see American Personal Communications Holdings, Inc.) 
APC Really and Equipment Company, LLC (see American Personal 

Communications Holdings, Inc.) 
Subsidiary: 

STC Three LLC 
American Personal Communications Holdings, Inc. 

Subsidiaries: 
American PCS Communications, LLC (see American PCS, L.P.) 
APC PCS, LLC (see American PCS Communications, LLC) 
APC Really and Equipment Company, LLC (see American PCS 

Communications, LLC) 
Sprint Spectrum Equipment Company, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum L.P.) 
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Delaware 

Delaware Partnership 

Delaware Partnership 

Delaware Partnership 

Delaware 
Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnership 

Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Pamership 
Delaware Partnership 

Delaware 

Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnership 

Delaware Partnership 

Delaware Pannership 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware Partnership 

100 

35.3 

99 

99 

100 
99 
35.3 

I 
I 
I 

100 

17.6 
17.6 
99 

15 
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Subsidiary: 
SWV One Telephony Partnership (see SWV One, Inc.) 
Wireless Leasing Co., Inc. (see SWV Three, Inc.) 

TDI Acquisition Corporation 
Subsidiaries: 

SN UHC 4, Inc. (see SN UHC 4, Inc. subs below, see endnote) 
Subsidiary: 

Sprint HoldCo, LLC 
Subsidiary: 

Clearwire Communications LLC 
Clearwire Corporation 

Wireless Broadcasting Systems OfAmerica, Inc. 
Subsidiary: 

SN UHC 4, Inc. (see TDI Acquisition Corporation far SN UHC 4, Inc. subs: see endnote) 
Transworld Telecommunications, Inc. 

Subsidiaries. 
SN UHC 3, Inc. (see People's Choice TV Carp. for SN UHC 3, Inc. subs; see endnote) 
Wavepath Holdings, Inc. (see Sprint Wavepath Holdings, Inc. for subs) 

UbiquiTel Inc. 
Subsidiary: 

UbiquiTel Operating Company 
Subsidiary: 

UbiquiTcl Leasing Company 

UCOM, Inc. 
Subsidiaries: 

SN UHC 5,  Inc. (see US Telecom, Inc. for SN UHC 5,  Inc. subs; see endnote) 
Sprint Communications Company L.P. (see US Telecom, Inc.) 

Subsidiaries: 
Sprint Communications Company of New Hampshire, Inc. 
Sprint Communications Company of Virginia, Inc. 
Sprint Licensing, Inc. 
USST ofTexas, Inc. 

SprintCom Equipment Company L.P. (see US Telecom, Inc.) 
Sprint Enterprises, L.P. 

Subsidiaries: 
MinorCo, L.P. (see SWV Two Telephony Partnership) 
PhillieCo Partners I, L.P. (see SWV Five, Inc.) 
PhillieCo Partners II, L.P. (see SWV Five, Inc ) 
Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P. (see SWV Six, Inc.) 

Wireless Leasing Co., Inc. (see U S  Telecom, Inc.) 
Wireline Leasing Ca., Inc. (see US Telecom, Inc.) 
Sprint Global Venture, Inc 

Subsidiary: 
SGV Corporatml 
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Delaware Partnership 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Pennsylvania 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Missouri 

Delaware 
Delaware Partnership 

New Hampshire 
Vtrginia 
Kansas 
Texas 
Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnership 

Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnership 
Delaware Partnership 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Kansas 

Kansas 

99 
14.85 
100 

95.231"l 

11.92 

56.36191131 
56.36191W 
100 

4.770U 
IO0 

0.831) 
37.5 
IO0 

100 

100 

100 

34.140v 
34.14 

IO0 
100 
100 
100 
49 
48.99 

40 
47.1 
47.1 
40 
19,60 
34.14 

ill) 

100 



Name or 0rg.nh.lian 

US Telecom, Inc. Kansas 
Subsidiaries. 

ASC Telecom, Inc 
LCF, Inc. 
SN UHC 5, Inc. (see SN UHC 5, Inc. subs below; see endnote) 

Subsidiary 
Sprint HoldCo, LLC 

Subsidiary 
Clearwire Communications LLC 
Clearwire Corporation 

Sprint Communications Company L.P. (see Utelcom, Inc.) 
SprintCom Equipment Company L.P. (see UCOM, Inc.) 

Subsidiary 
STC Two LLC (see SprintCam, Inc.) 
STE 14 Affiliate LLC 

Sprint Enterprises, L.P. 
Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see UCOM, Inc.) 
Sprint Iridium, Inc. 
United Telecommunications, Inc. 
US Telecom of New Hampshire, Inc. 
Wireless Leasing Co., Inc. (see SWV One, Inc.) 
Wireline Leasing Co , Inc. (see Utelcom, Inc.) 

US Unwired Inc, 
Subsidiaries: 

Louisiana Unwired, LLC 
Subsidiaries: 

Georgia PCS Management, L.L.C. 

Georgia PCS Leasing, LLC 
Texas Unwired (see US Unwired Inc.) 

Subsidiary: 

Subsidiary: 
Texas Unwired (see Louisiana Unwired, LLC) 

UT Transition Cormmtion (Inactive) 
Utelcom, Inc 

Subsidiaries: 
Private TransAtlantic Telecommunications System, Inc. 

Subsidiary: 
Private Trans-Atlantic Telecommunications System (N.J.), Inc. 

SN UHC 5 ,  Inc. (see US Telecom, Inc., for SN UHC 5, Inc., subs; see endnote) 
Sprint Communications Company L.P (see Sprint International Communications Corporation) 
Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see Sprint International Communications Corporation) 

I 1  

Kansas 
California 
Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware Parmership 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware LLC 
Delaware Partnership 
Kansas 
Kansas 
Delaware 
New Hampshire 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Louisiana 

Louisiana 

Georgia 

Georgia 
Louisiana General Pari 

Louisiana General Part 
Delaware 
Kansas 

Delaware 

New Jersey 
Delaware 
Delaware Partnership 
Kansas 

0.12 

56.36191~'1 
56.361911'1 
58.98 
51 

25 
15 
51.01 

(14) 

IO0 
100 
100 
20.40 
58.98 
100 

100 

IO0 

100 
80 

20 
100 
100 

100 

IO0 
4.941121 
4.941131 



(Utelcam, Inc. subsidiaries continued) 
Sprint International Incorporated 

Subsidiaries. 
SlHl Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (see Sprint International Holding, 1°C.) 

Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see UCOM, 1°C.) 
Sprint Hang Kong Limited 
Sprint International Argentina SRL (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.) 
Sprint International do Brasil Ltda. (see Sprint International Holding, 1°C.) 
Sprint International Caribe, Inc. 
Sprint International Chile Limitada (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.) 
Sprint International Colombia Ltda. (see Sprint International Holding, 1°C.) 
Sprint International Communications Corporation 

Subsidiaries: 
SN UHC 5 ,  Inc. (see US Telecom, Inc. for SN UHC 5 ,  Inc. subs; see endnote) 
Sprint Communications Company L.P. (see UCOM, Inc.) 

Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see UCOM, Inc.) 
Sprint International Network Company LLC 
WirelineLeasing Co., Inc. (see UCOM, Inc.) 

Sprint lnternational Incorporated - Belling Representative Office 
Sprint International Spain, S L. - (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.) 
SprintLink Belgium BVBA (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.) 
Sprintlink India Private Limited (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.) 
SprintLink International (Switzerland) GmbH 
SprintLink Italy S.r.1. (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.) 

Wireline Leasing Co., Inc. (see Sprint International Communications Corporation) 
VidNet Companies 

Subsidiary 
SN UHC 2, Inc. (see Sprint WBC ofNew York, Inc. far SN UHC 2, Inc. subs; see endnote) 

Virgin Mobile USA, Inc. 
Subsidiaries, 

VMU GP, LLC 
Subsidiary: 

Bluebottle USA Investments L.P. 
Bluebottle USA Investments L.P. 

Delaware 

Mexico 
Kansas 
Hang Kong 
Argentina 
Brazil 
Puerto Rico 
Chile 
Colombia 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Partnership 
Kansas 
Delaware 
Delaware 
China 
Spain 
Belgium 
India 
Switzerland 

Delaware 
Nevada 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Italy 

Delaware 

D&WarC 
Delaware 

50 
IO0 
.I 
. I  
IO0 

1.941") 

1.94 
13 
IO0 
1.94 
100 
2 
.04 
<0.01 
5 
I 
4.94 
IO0 

19.3211 
100 

100 

0.001~') 
1001'1 

I2 



Ownership 
Juriadhtion 1nt.rut 
or Held 
1ncorpor.tion BY 111 
O r  Immediate 
Olg."il.ti." Plrr", N.",C 

(Virgin Mobile USA, Inc subsidiaries continued) 
Bluebottle USA Investments L.P. Delaware 99.999i1l 

Subsidiary: 
Bluebottle USA Holdings L.P. 
Bluebottle USA Holdings L P. 

Bluebottle USA Holdings L.P. 
Subsidiary: 

VMU GPI ,  LLC 
Subsidiary: 

Virgin Mobile USA, L.P. 
Virgin Mobile USA, L.P. 

Virgin Mobile USA, L.P. 

Delaware 99.470('1 
Delaware IOO'~]  
Delaware O.S3('1 

Delaware 100 

Delaware 0.0005'~~ 
Delaware 100n  

52.6459 
Delaware 0 1  

30 7028 
Delaware 0)  Virgin Mobile USA, L P 

Subsidiaries: 
Assurance Wireless ofSouth Carolina, LLC 
Helio LLC 

Wireless Cable ofFlorida. Inc. 

Delaware 100 
Delaware 1oo~Ixs 
Florida 100 

Subsidiary: 
SN UHC 3, Inc. (see People's Choice TV Corp. for SN UHC 3, Inc. subs; see endnote) Delaware 0.3511l 
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ENDNOTES 

11) See also AmericanTelecasting, Inc., People's Choice TV Corp., G & S Television Network, Inc., Sprint Wavepath Holdings, Inc., Transworld 
Telecommunications, Inc., Wavepath Holdings, Inc., Wireless Cable of Florida, Inc. 
(2) See also Sprint WBC ofNew York, Inc., AtlantaMDS Ca., Inc., Las Angeles MDS Company, Inc., New York MDS, Inc., San Francisco MDS, Inc., V i a e 1  
Companies 
(3) Economic interest. 
(41 Voting interest. 
(SiMinorCo, L.P. holds a limited and preferredpartnership interest ofless than I%. 

16) American PCS, L.P. holds the general partnership interest of greater than 99%. 
171 American PCS Communications, LLC holds the general partnership interest of greater than 99%. 
181 American Personal Communications Holdings, Inc. holds alimited partnership interest ofless than 1% 

( 9 )  Sprint SpecVum L.P. holds the general pannership interest of greater than 99%. 
1101 Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P holds the general partnership interest of greater than 99%. 
IIlSee also TDI Acquisition Corporation and Wireless Broadcasting Systems ofAmerica, Inc. 
W S e e  also US Telewm, Inc,, UCOM, Inc., Utelcom, Inc., Sprint International Communications Corporation, 
I l l 1  UCOM, Inc., US Telewm, Inc., and Utelcom, Inc., each holds less than I% of the wmmon stock. 
( I 4 1  Held in trust for Sprint International Holding, Inc., 

(Back To Too) 
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Section 6: EX-23.1 (CONSENT OF KPMG LLP) 

Exhibit 23.1 
Consent oflodeptodmt Rrglstrrrd Public Accounting Firm 

The Board afDirectors and Shareholders 
Sprint Nextel Corporation: 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements on Farm S-3 (No. 335138548) and Form S-8 (No. 33342077, No. 333-68737, No. 333- 
56938, No. 333-59124, No. 333-76783, No. 333-92809, No. 333-54108, No, 333-75661, No. 333-103691, No. 333-105244, No. 333-111956, No. 333-115621. NO. 333- 
115607, No. 333-115609, No. 333.124189. No. 333-127426, No. 333-130277, No. 333-142702 and No. 333-159330) of Sprint Nextel Corporation of our report dated 
February 26,20 IO, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets ofsprint Nextel Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,2009 and 2008, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and shareholders' equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, and the 
effectiveness of internal wntrol over financial reporting as of December 31,2009, which report appears in the December 31,2009 annual report on Form 10-K of 
Sprint Nextel Corporation. 

The Company adopted recently issued accounting guidance regarding accounting for business combinations and equity method investments in 2009. 

id KPMG LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri 
Febmary26,2010 
(Back To TOD) 

Section 7: EX-23.2 (CONSENT OF KPMG LLP) 

Exhibit 23.2 

Coosrntaflodcpendeol Rrgktered Public Aeeouatiag Firm 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Sprint Nextel Corporation: 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements on Form S-3 (No. 335138548) and Form S-8 (No. 33342077, No. 33348737, NO. 333- 
56938, No. 333-59124, No. 333-76783, No. 333-92809, No. 333-54108, No. 333-75664, No. 333-103691, No. 333-105244, No. 333-1 11956, No. 333-115621, NO. 333- 
115607, NO. 333-115609, No. 333-124189, No. 333-127426, No. 333-130277, No. 335142702 and No. 333-159330) of Sprint Nextel Corporation of our report dated 
August 4, 2008, with respect to the statements of operations, cash flows and business equity (included within the statement of stockholders' equity and 
comprehensive loss) of the WiMAX operations of Sprint Nextel Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2007, which report appears in Ihe December 3 I, 
2009 annual report on Form IO-K ofSprint Nextel Corporation. 

is/ KPMG LLP 

Kansas City. Missouri 
February 26,2010 
(Back To TOD) 



Section 8: EX-23.3 (CONSENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE) 

Exhibit 23.3 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333- 138548 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 333- 
42077,333-68737,333-S6938,333-S9124,333-76783,333-92809,333-54l08,333-7S664,333-10369l, 333-lOS244,333-lll9S6, 
333-115621,333-115607,333-115609,333-124189,333-127426,333-130277,333-142702, and 333-159330 onForm S-8 ofsprint 
Nextel Corporation of our report dated February 24, 2010, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Clearwire Corporation and 
subsidiaries (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatoty paragraph regarding the business combination between 
Clearwire Corporation and the WiMAX Operations of Sprint Nextel Corporation), appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Sprint 
Nextel Corporation for the year ended December 31,2009. 

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Seattle, Washington 
February 24,2010 
(Back To Toe) 

Section 9: EX-31.1 (CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-l4(A)) 

Exbibit31.1 

CERTIFICATION 

I. Daniel R. Hesse, certify that: 
1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5.  

I have reviewed this annual report on Form IO-K ofsprint Nextel Corporation; 
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
Statements made, in light ofthe circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report: 
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial 
condition,  result^ ofoperations and cash flaws of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible far establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and I Sd-IS(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(0 and ISd-15(0) for 
the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known lo us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
Designed such internal contml over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of  financial stalements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during Ule registrant’s most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repon) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting: and 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of  the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 

likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control 

over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26,ZOlO 

(Back To Toe) 

/si Daniel R. Hesse 
Daniel R. Hesse 
Chief Executive Offker 

Section 10: EX-31.2 (CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO 13A-14(A)) 

Erhibit31.2 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Robert H. € 3 ~ ~ 1 ,  certify that: 
I .  
2. 

3. 

4. 

I have reviewed this annual report an Form 10-K of Sprint Nextel Corporation, 
Based on my knowledge, this report doer not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statemenls made, in light ofthe circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 
Based an my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repon, fairly present in all material respects the financial 
condition, results ofoperations and cash flows ofthe registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
The registrant’s other certifying affcer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(0 and 15d-15(0) for 
the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared: 
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial StatementS for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reponing that occurred during the registrant’s most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reponing; and 

fh) 

(c) 

(d) 

5. The registrant’s other certifying offiicer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or perrons performing the equivalent functions): 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 

likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control 

over financial reponing. 

Date: February 26,2010 

Is/ Robert H. Brust 
Robert H. Brust 
Chief Financial Officer 

(Back To Top) 

Section 11: EX-32.1 (CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350) 

Exhibit 32.1 

Certification Pur suml  to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
As Adapled Pursuant to Secfion 906 of the 

Sarbaocs-Orlcy Act of 2002 

In connection with the annual report of Sprint Nextel Corporation (the “Company”) an Farm 10-K for the year ended December 3 I ,  2009, as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I ,  Daniel R. Hesse, ChiefExecutive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to I8 U.S.C. $1350, as adopted 
pursuant to 5906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002, that: 

( I )  
(2) 
Date: Fehrualy 26,2010 

The Report fully complies with the requirements ofsection 13(a) or IS(d)of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results ofoperations ofthe Company. 

/si Daniel R .  Hesne 
Daniel R. Hesse 
Chief Executive Officer 

(Back To Top) 

Section 12: EX-32.2 (CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350) 

Exhibit 32.2 

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Serlioo 1350, 
As Adopted Pursuant 10 Seclioo 906 afthe 

Sarbaors-Oxley Act of 2002 

In connection with the annual report of Sprint Nextel Corporation (the “Company”) an Farm 10-K for the year ended December 31,2009, as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Robert H. Brust, ChiefFinancial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to I8 U.S.C. $ 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to $906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002, that: 



( I )  

(2) 

Date: February 26,ZOlO 

The Report fully complies with the requirements ofsection 13(a) or IS(d) afthe Securities Exchange Act of1934; and 
The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results ofoperations ofthe Company 

Is/ Robert H .  B r u t  
Robert H .  Brust 
Chief Financial Officer 

(Back To TOD) 




